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Certification

| CLIFF M. FRIEDMAN. General Manager/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC. with SEC registration number 13951 with principal office at Don Celsc 8. Tuason Victorla Valley
Antlpolo Clty. on oath state:

1. That on behalf of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., | have caused this Annual Report
(SEC Form 17-A) for the year ended June 30. 2020 to be prepared, _

2. That | read and understood its contents which are true and correct of my own personal.
knowledge and/or based on true records;

3. That the company Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. will comply with the requirements set
forth in SEC Notice dated June 24, 2020 for a complete and official submission of reports
and/or documents through electronic mail, and

4. That | am fully aware that documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation and/or
processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon payment of

a filing fee.
iN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand this day of
nron
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this __dayof
>
.-"/ s.,___‘_\_‘_\_
A e
.'-;.-"‘H.
o
78 -
JG
¥
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12.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17 -A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020
SEC Identification No. 13951
BIR Tax Identification No. 000-849-197

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter - VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY
CLUB, INC.

Province, Country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization - Antipolo,
City, Philippines.

[ 1 (SECUseonly) Industry Classification Code

Address of principal office - Don Celso S. Tuason Ave. Victoria Valley, Antipolo,
City

Issuer's telephone number - 658-4801 to 03, 858-4920, 658-0079 to 89

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report
- Not Applicable.

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 & 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of
the REA

Title of each class Number of Shares of Ordinary Shares
Qutstanding and Subscribed
Common Shares 1,594 shares outstanding

Are any or all these securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

Yes No X

Check whether the issuer

(a) has filed all reports to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1

there under or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 there under and Sections
26 and 141 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding 12 months
(or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);



13.

14.

Yes _ X No
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 9C days.
Yes No_ X

The market value of each share of stock of Valley Golf as of June 30, 2020 is
P1,300,000.00 plus P112,000.00 transfer fee; for June 30, 2018 it was P800,000
plus P112,000 transfer fee; for June 30, 2018 it was P400,000.00 plus
P112,000.00 transfer fee; for June 30, 2017 it was P312,000.00 plus transfer fee
of P87,200 (promo period for transfer fee) or P112,000.00 (regular transfer fee
rate), and; for June 30, 2016 and 2015 it was at P250,000.00 plus transfer fee of
P56,000 (promo period for transfer fee) or P112,000.00 (regular transfer fee
rate). For the years 2003 to 2014 market price is at P 400,000.00 to P
500,000.00 for Club subscription and P332,000 to P292,000 for third party
market. Market prices were based on subscription rates and transactions
processed in the club.

The aggregate market value therefore of the 1,584 issued and outstanding
shares of Valley Golf at P1,412,000.00 is P2,250,728,000.00

Valley Golf is not invoived in insolvency/suspension of payments proceeding
during the preceding five years; this is not applicable to us.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
A Annual report to security holders

The Annual Report to stockholders contains the President's and
Treasurer's Report, the Financial Report of the Independent Auditors, the
accomplishments of the present Board of Directors, the pictures of the
present Board of Directors, the roster of Committee members and various
pictures of the events of the preceding year. The financial report and its
discussion are incorporated in Part Il — Operational and Financial
Information, whereas the information on the Directors is included in Part
Hll = Control and Compensation Information.

B. Proxy Form

The proxy form attached is the form sent to all stockholders in
connection with the stockholders’' meeting and included therein are the
matters to be voted upon by the stockholders. This is incorporated in Part
| — Business and General Information.



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
September 27, 2020 at 4:00 P.M.

Via Live Streaming, VGCCI

PROXY
No. S-2020- ACCT. No.--A

I the undersigned member of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. do
hereby appoint, name and constitute:

or, in the absence and/or non-attendance of my PROXY the Chairman of the Meeing,(EXCEFT THAT
THE CHAIRMAN MAY NOT VOTE FOR CANDIDATES to the Board of Directors), ag my attorney-in-
fact and proxy, to represent me at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of Valley Golf & Couantry Club,
Inc., to be held on 27 September 2020 at 4:00pm1, and/or asy postponements or adjournment{s) thereof,
as fully and to all intents and purposes as I lawfully might or could do if presenst and yoting in person, .
hereby ratifying and confirming any and all actions taken on matters which may properly come before
him during such meeting or adjournment(s) thereof. In particular, I hereby direct my said proxy to vote
on the agenda items as I have expressly indicated by marking with a check “v*the appropriate box below.
I also authorize my proxy to vote for any of the candidates for the Board of Directors except the
candidates marked with an “X” under the “AGAINST” column:

ITEMS ACTION

FOR AGAINST | ABSTAIN

1. To vote for Quorum purposes anly.

2. To approve the minutes of the 2019
Annual stockholders’ meeting.

3. To approve the Company’'s 2020 Annual
Report and Audited Financial Statements.

4. To confirm and wwtify all acts ared
resolutions of ¥he Board of Directors &
Management (July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020
inclusive).

5. To appoint External Auditors.

6. -Amendment of Par. 6 of the Articles of
Incerpozation to incsegge the number of
Direetors from the peesent 9 to 11 to make
room for the election of 2 independent
directors as required by law.

7. Amendment of Article II, Section 1 of the
By-Laws to allow annual meetings to be
held by remote communications and
participation by stockholders through | ‘

remote communications or  other
alternative modes of communications. ! |

istockholders may votein person online from September 23 (starting at 8:00 a.m.) up to September 24, 2020 {5:00
p.m.). Voting by Proxyholdersand attorneys-in-fact online shall be on September 25, 2020 from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00

p.m.



8. Amendment of Article IV, Section 1 of the
By-Laws to the effect that the business and
property of the Club shall be managed by
a Board of eleven (11) directors composed
of nine (9) regular directors and two (2)
independent directors, and the manner of
voting thereafter.

9. All matters arising from the agenda
(except the sale or disposition, total or
partial, of the corporate assets).

10. Election of the Board of Directors

a. Renato “Rene” Balibag

b. Jose Arsenio Isidro “John” Borromeo
I

Stephen C. Cruz

Constantine L. Kochet Chua
Rafael “Chino” 8. Raymundo
Others

oA

If no instructions are indicated on a returned and duly signed proxy ar I left any items in blank, my
PROXY may vote the membership certificates under my name on any blank item according to his sound
discretionincluding electing members of the Board of Directors .By submitting this proxy, I hereby agree
that I shall be counted as being present during fhe annual membeérs’ meeting for quorum purposes
notwithstanding my or my proxy’s phyzical absenceduring the meeting itself.

I understand that a proxy form that is returmed without a sigiature shall not be valid. I also understand
that should I choose to send back the signed proxy form online to the Club’s website, I shall use my
registered e-mail address to ensure the integrity of my vote otherwise the proxy shall be considered void.

Voting Rules

Each shareholder owning ome share or his Mpoxy is entitled to cast one vote for as many positionsfor
directors as are being voled upen or camulate the votes and cast it in favor one or two candidates.
Example -If there aze 3 seats for directors open for voting, the shareholder or his proxy is entitled to 3
votes. He/she may efther distribute the 3 votes among 3 candidates of his/her choice, cast all 3 votes in
favor of one candidate & cast 2 votes in favor of 1 candidate and 1 vote for another candidate. If the
shareliolder owns more than one share, each share shall be entitled to 3 votes which he/she may
distribute evendy or cumailatd in favor of just one or two candidates.

Validation of Proxies
Proxy form shall be validated as these are received by the Club, provided that the proxy forms are
submitted to the Club on or before 5:00 p.m. of September 20, 2020 which is consistent with the deadline
provided under the Club’s By-Laws. “
Revocation of Proxies
A member giving a proxy has the power to revoke it any time before the right granted is exercised. A

proxy is also considered revoked if the member decides to vote and actually votes online from Sept. 23 to
24, 2020



Signed this at

Printed Name of Member Signature of Member or AuthorizedSi-gnahory

PLEASE DATE AND SIGN YOUR PROXY

PLEASE MARK, SIGN AND EMAIL BACK YOUR PROXY AT VALLEY WEBSITE USING YOUR
REGISTERED EMAIL ADDRESS OR SEND IT THRU PRIVATE COURIER ON OR BEFORE 5:00 P.M. OF
SEPTEMBER 20, 2020.

ADDRESS:VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. DON CELSO S. TUASON AVE., ANTIPOLO CITY.



PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

A)

DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS.
1.} Business Development

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is situated at the rolling hills of Antipolo,
City, a private and non-profit club organized in 1958 by a group of golfers, well-
known and influential businessmen headed by the late Don Celso S. Tuason.
The property is about nine kilometers from EDSA and about seven kilometers
from Antipolo. The site formerly owned by Hacienda Benito measures almost
210 hectares when it was originally purchased. On May 14, 1958, the original
Articles of Incorporation was approved by SEC. At present the Club has an
authorized capital stock of 1,800 shares at P 9,000 par value and 1,594 shares
are issued and outstanding.

The building of this dream course has taken all of three years from the
planning of the lay-out, the grading and the sculpturing of its contoured fairways
and formidable greens, to the final touches on the tee-shaped clubhouse
Architect Gabriel Formoso designed in the Malayan motif. To get the best
playing possibilities from the saucer-shaped course, the Valley authorities
brought in not one but two reputable golf course architects, an Englishman
named Fred Smith and an Australian named Jas H. Scott. It is a tribute to their
artistry, skill, and thoroughness that, except for two holes, their plans coincided
almost exactly. It was Scott's lay-out which was finally accepted. '

The original seven ( 7 ) Board of Directors were Celso S. Tuason, Aurelio
Montinola, Sr., Ernest Kahn, Henry Belden, J. Antonio Araneta, Francisco
Ortigas, Jr., and Jaime Velasquez. The course was opened for play on
November 1961 and attracted a great traffic of players and aficionados. With this
encouraging trend, the Club was expanded to accommodate another par-69, 18-
hole course on the north in addition to its original south course in 1994.

The South Course is a par-72 championship layout, sits on 80 hectares of
rolling hills and meandering brocks. It played host to the famed Philippine Open
in 1975, 1983, 1991 and 2011. It was during the 1983 Philippine Open that
American Jeff Lewis established the course record of 65.

On November 1991, Valley Golf for the first time, became the venue of
XVI Southeast Asian Games Golf Championship.

Valley's greens are meticulously designed sc that the golfer is challenged
to use most, if not all, of his clubs in the bag. The terrain provides the contour
which assures that no two shots will ever be alike. Some notable holes: the tight
first, the picturesque Nos 4 and 10, the intriguing No. 16 and the short but tricky
No. 18.

When play traffic increased at Valley, a nine-hole all-weather course with
a par 36 layout spread over 50 hectares was added. Valley acquired from the



adjoining property owners through barter arangements several parcels of land,
enabling it to expand the nine holes into an 18-hole complex now known as the
North Course (formerly Executive Course). This is open to non-members and
tourists who wish to play at Valley. It exemplifies the finest the Philippines have
to offer in international championship golf courses. Some notable holes: Hole
No. 15 with its tee overlooking the entire golf course and a man-made terrace;
and Hole No. 6 best known for its island green.

The North Clubhouse has been completed and was inaugurated last Nov.
1999. It is now fast becoming the favorite venue for tournaments and parties.
We have a new Food & Beverage concessionaire in the North Clubhouse
offering a variety of new menus and accepts catering for special events. The
Men's Locker was recently renovated, and the Registration and Cashiering
services was provided in the North Clubhouse. The tournament participants in
the North Course and Non-members are required to register and avail of locker
services in the North Clubhouse. A Sports Clubhouse equipped with modern
sports facilities and other amenities that will suit every man’s needs are still in the
planning stages. The Main Clubhouse was renovated while preserving the
original aesthetic design and concept of the architect as a reminder of the
historical past of one of the oldest golf club in the country. The latest renovation
is the Men's Locker Rooms which was completed and inaugurated last April 10,
2013. The new locker room is spacious and accommodating to the needs of the
golfing public. The amenities include the air-conditioned locker rooms, newly
rehabilitated wood lockers, sauna bath, clean bathrooms and a scenic pocket
garden.

The South Course was rehabilitated into a world class golf course. The
plans for the course upgrading and engineering studies were prepared by
Planning Resources and Operations Systems, Inc. The Club hired the services
of Eco-Turf and Turf Care Systems, Inc. as the Construction Manager and
Golforce, Incorporated as the Contractor. Works started on the back 9 holes in
August 2002 and was completed last October 2003 and it was playable in
November 2003. As per approved plans the layout will not be changed only the
drainage system will be improved and the course will be all weather. Funding
came from the shares sold on installment basis and loan from members.

Rehabilitation works of the front nine South Course started in November
2003 and after completion was inaugurated on Nov. 20, 2004. Contract for labor
for the rehabilitation was awarded to bidder Philgolf Development & Equip, Inc. in
the amount of P 20,000,000.00. Materials were purchased in-house with an
initial budget of P 31,500,000 and additional budget of P 4,000,000.00 for the
bunker sand and P 1,552,000.00 for herring bone installation. As of June 30,
2005, total cost of the renovation stood at P 130,000,000 (gross of vat) or P
125,000,000.00 {net of vat)

During the fiscal year 2008 the Board approved the renovation plans of
the Main Clubhouse. Phase 1 included the Executive Offices, Board room,
function rooms, upper and lower veranda, and main lobby. With a total estimated
cost of P 9 Million, the Board awarded the contract to Reyes Interiors for the
amount of P 4.5 Million excluding the cost of plumbing fixtures, electrical fixtures,
grillwork on veranda, gutter works, glass and aluminum panels, floor and wall



tiles and ceramic tiles on base columns. Works started on July 15, 2008 and
were finished sometime in Sepiember 2009.

For the fiscal year 2010, restoration works were done to repair the
damage caused by the typhoon Ondoy on the Club’s properties. Total cost
amounted to P 4,504,509.00, which was taken from the special assessment to
members with a total billing of P 4,886,000.00. The balance of the funds was
used to continue the riprap works in the South Course. Capital expenditures
during the year included extension of Hole # 14 of the North Course, riprap of
waterways in the South and North courses, concreting of the DCTA, purchase of
varifold for the Founders’ Hall and purchase of ground equipment.

For the fiscal year ending June 2011, the projects undertaken included
the concreting of the Don Celso Tuason Avenue from the bridge gate up to
Sumulong gate which was completed at the cost of P 5 Million. Other projects
during the year include riprapping of slope protection at the South and North
courses, repair of the Caddie House and construction of new gasoline station.
We also purchased 3 units Flymowers, 3 units Backpack blowers and 3 units
Rotary mowers. By July, Renovation of the Main Clubhouse resumed which
included Phase 2 — Construction of Office Basement and the Coffee Bar with a
budget of P 3.7 Million and P 450,000, respectively. Another project undertaken
was the construction of the golf car parking shed amounting to P 1.5 Million

For the fiscal year ending June 2012, the projects undertaken included
Phase 2 of the Renovation of the Main Clubhouse — Construction/Renovation of
the Office Basement — P 4.31 Million, golf cart parking shed = P 1.08 Miltion, Air
conditioning units for basement office — P1.21 Million, Coffee bar — P 512k and
Valley Golf cart shed — P 478,000. Ongoing projects at the time included the
improvement of motorpool area and Riprap/slope protection at Hole # 17 of the
South Course. The equipment purchased during the year included the following:
Fairway aerator, Flymowers, Rotary mowers, bush cutters, walk behind fertilizer
spreader, backpack blowers, sound system, ID card maker and PABX telephone
system.

For the fiscal year ending June 2013, the projects undertaken included
Phase 3 of the Renovation of the Main clubhouse — which consisted of the
Renovation of the Men's locker room with a total contract price of P5,000,000.00,
(materials supplied by the Club amounted to P1,000,000.00), construction of the
pocket garden for P 600,000, purchase of air con units for P430,000 and
installation of double panel solar water heater for P675,000 { paid for with golf
shares). The men's locker room in the North Clubhouse was likewise renovated
at a cost of P535,000 and was used by members and guests from Jan. to Apr.
2013 during the renovation period of the locker room in the Main Clubhouse.
Other projects undertaken were the: construction of the Wall of Honor — P88,000,
satellite kitchen — P184,000, and guard house at Hole # 12 South Course —
P201,000; Rehabilitation of the Koi Pond — P435,000; rebiocking and asphait
overlay of DCTA -~ P 4 Million, and; riprap works in the South Course —
P191,000. Meanwhile, construction of the members’ gym and lounge, renovation
of the clinic and tee house in the North course were still on-going at the time.
Equipment purchased included the greens mower with groomer — P615,000 and
Danfoss variable speed pump control = P250,000.



For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2014 the on-going projects from the
previous year that were compisted included — the Men's Lounge and Gym -
P419,000, tee house in the North Course Hole # 4 — P467,000 and renovation of
the clinic — P247,000. Other projects completed during the year were — Phase 2
of the reblocking and asphalt overlay of DCTA — P3.88 Million, installation of
roofing for the golf cart area — P773,000, Kitchen exhaust system — P217,000
and kitchen hood fire suppression system — P150,000. On-going projects at the
time were the sanding of fairways and improvement of bridges in the North
Course. Various equipment were purchased during the year which included — 10
units Golf carts — P 2.65 Million, 1 unit greens mower with groomer — P640,000, 2
units walk behind rotary mower — P150,000, 2 units fymower — P110,000, 1 unit
Truck mounted man lifter — P680,000 and 1 server and computers.

Other projects of the Club included the streamlining of operations and the
outsourcing of the grounds maintenance for both the South and North Courses.
The Board of Directors approved on Aug. 8, 2014 the engagement of the
services of MJ Carr Golf Management, Inc. for the maintenance of both courses
for a monthly service fee of P 2.7 Million inclusive of VAT for a period of three
years. Likewise, a voluntary early retirement program for the employees was
approved with payment of 125% and 150% of the basic pay for every year of
service.

For the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015, the following projects were
completed:

1. Purchase of one (1} unit backhoe P 3,303,571.43
2. Purchase of ten (10) units golf carts 2,800,000.00
3. Purchase of 4 units desk top computers 160,000.00
4. Purchase of 2 units 2 way radio 23,000.00
5. Repair of controller pump of the South course 150,714.29
6. Renovation of satellite kitchen 45,471.00
7. Driving range shot area 81,194.10
8. Additional golf cart storage 70,058.94
8. Purchase of copying machine 243,000.00
10. Purchase of 17 units Samsung Galaxy tablets 407,830.00
11. Purchase of 7 units transformer book 156,100.00
12. Purchase of 3 units brush cutters 37,500.00
13. Purchase of projector 33,900.00
14. Purchase of 2 units tru cut edger 40,850.00
15. Purchase of steel lockers 62,400.00
16. Improvement of bridges 226,555.98
17. Improvement of drainage in Hole # 5 South course 535,714.28
18. Improvement of driving range facilities 48,901.79
19. Renovation of Bag drop area 938,178.97

9,364,840.78
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The following were the projects for Fiscal year 2016

PARTICULARS
Controller for vertical turbine pump
Rehabilitation of bunker sand
Repair of pump in the North Course
Sound system for the Founders® Hall
Purchase of tablets, Laptop and printers
Purchase of Riso digital duplicator
Rehabilitation of the South course

The following were the projects for Fiscal year 2017
PARTICULARS

Repair of South Course pump

(total project cost is P3.25 Million)

Irrigation system

Construction of Expansion of Men's Locker room
Renovation of Secondary & Sumulong gates
Purchase of 20 units golf carts

Purchase of 8 units desktop computers
Rehabilitation of bunker sand

Repair of Bag drop area Phase 2

Repair of Pump North Course

. Rehabilitation of South Course
. Purchase of Suzuki carry for water delivery
. Purchase of 2 units projectors

The following were the projects for Fiscal Year 2018

Repair of the Main Clubhouse raofing (on-going) P
Rehabilitation of the North Course bunkers (on-going)
Purchase of Service Vehicle

Purchase of 15 units electric golf carts

Purchase of Emergency vehicle

Purchase of Tables, Chairs and Sofa

Purchase of 11 units desk top computers

Purchase pf 1 unit welding generator

Purchase of 10 units Air coolers

. Purchase of Sophos firewall

P

The following are the projects for Fiscal Year 2019

Dredging works at South Course Hole # 12, 16 P
And 17 and North Course Hole # 15 (on-going)

AMOUNT DISBURSED
P 621,012.58
P 2,817,418.14
P 186,000.00
P 363,248.45
P 144,830.00
P 125,000.00
P 5,454,400.38

AMOUNT DISBURSED

P 1,346,277.66
1,395,843.28

225,000.00
199,988.00
5,880,000.00
187,500.00
3,035,840.85
600,317.38
245,000.00
5,379,464.16
160,000.00
64,000.00

P 18,719,231.33

1,654,387.30
2,321,428.57
1,241,800.00
4,410,000.00
743,107.40
250,000.00
311,000.00
235,200.00
1569,850.00
150,000.00
11,476,873.27

1,749,438.54



2. Filter for pumps 959,576.00

3. Zoysia Matrella Turf Nursery 1,021,645.93

4. Reblocking and Drainage improvement 6,759,003.65
of DCT Avenue (on-going) .

5. Men's Locker Roofing 2,052,998.41

6. Purchase of Forward Truck 1,450,000.00

7. Purchase of Manlift Truck 840,000.00

8. Purchase of 10 units Electric Golf Carts 2,940,000.00

9. Purchase of 20 units Electric Golf Carts 6.500.000.00

24,272,662.53

The following are the projects for the fiscal Year 2020:

1. Dredging works at South Course Hole # 12, 16 P 4,221,428.56
And 17 and North Course Hole # 15 (completed)

2. Reblocking and Drainage improvement 7,945,401.82
of DCT Avenue (completed)

3. Purchase of 10 units Electric Golf Carts 2,767,857.14

4. Rehab of greens at South Course 1,964,285.72

5. Repair of Bunker at South Course 1,848,701.10

8. Purchase of 2 units Pumps and Accessories 1,067,857.14

7. Improvement of Motorpool Area roofing 559,933.60

For the Fiscal year 2016, the Club engaged the services of Cafirma, Ong & Co.,
CPAs, represented by Mr. James A. Cafirma as the Intemal Auditor of Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc. effective Jan. 12, 2016. This is the first time that the Club outsourced
the Internal Audit services of the Club. The Club also entered into a Build Operate and
Transfer Arrangement with Freeport Elite Resort Inc. for the construction and cperation
of the Driving Range for a period of 15 years. Another food and beverage
concessionaire, Jay-J's Food Management, Inc. was engaged by Valley Golf for the
North Clubhouse for a period of 3 years. On January 20, 2017, the Club entered into a
three-year contract with Anix's House of Kare as the F & B Concessionaire for the Main
Clubhouse.

For the Fiscal year 2018 the following are the significant contracts of Valley Golf.
On October 2017, the Club engaged the services of Cubacub Law and Accounting
Office as the Internal Auditor of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. Mr. Rizaldy Legaspi
was hired as Golf Director effective Sept. 16, 2017. The contract with Smart
Communications was renewed last Oct. 1, 2017 for another 10 years. Golf Course
Maintenance Service Agreement was entered into between Valley Golf and VMJ
Evergreen Golf Maintenance and Construction Corporation effective Jan. 1, 2018 up to
Dec. 31, 2020.

For the Fiscal year 2019, the significant contracts are as follows: Mr. Dan L.
Salvador Ili was hired as Generat Manager effective July 14, 2018, Mr. Eugene Bunyi
was hired as Golf Director effective Dec. 1, 2018 and upon expiration of the contract of
Cubacub Law and Accounting Office as Internal Auditors, the Board of Directors in their
Regular Meeting last Oct. 20, 2018 approved the hiring of Miss Maria Cristina T. Odon
as Internal Audit Head and Miss Rachel Ann F. Magsakay as Internal Audit Assistant
effective Dec. 1, 2018. The Club entered into a Memorandum of Agreement with



Mulawin Homes Neighborhood Association Inc. on donation of a portion of a lot with
an area of 1,362 sq. meters last Oct. 4, 2018. The Club hired a new security
agency, Gold Cross Security and Investigation Agency Inc. last Dec. 1, 2018. On
Jan. 17, 2019, the contract for the Reblocking and Improvement of Drainage of Don
Celso Tuason Ave. with Verlin Konstrukt was approved by the Club. The dredging
contract for the South and North courses was entered into with Z & S Diving and
Marine Services Corp. last Jan. 21, 2019

For Fiscal Year 2020, the significant contracts are as follows: Abejo Rosario
Tayag Santos Retainer Agreement, Dismantling and Instailation of Motorpool Roofing,
Rehabilitation of the Greens of the South Course and Rehabilitation of the Swimming

pool.

The projects for implementation for Fiscal Year 2021 are as follows:

Project Cost

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER
1 EQUIPMENT

1

2

6
7
8
9

Three (3) units Desktop computers @
PS50k each

Two (2) units Laptop including MS Office
License @ P60k each

Two (2) units Printers @ P20k each

One (1) unit UPS hardware 3000 VA
Server

Computer unit for Server

Software/Windows Server Operating
System

Thirty (30) pcs. Client Access License @
P1,650 each

Thirty {(30) pcs. Patch cord

Three (3) pcs. HUBS @P10K each

MS Office 365 Renewal

Google drive space for back up purposes
Two {2) units Tablets @ P15,000 each
Payroll System

FISCAL YEAR 2020

1 GOLF COURSES

South Course

150,000.00

120,000.00

40,000.00

66,000.00

450,000.00
66,000.00

49,500.00

5,000.00
30,000.00
217,000.00
5,000.00
30,000.00
350,000.00
1,578,500.00

Projected

Cost

Notes

For the Registration to replace partially
defective units
For Internal Audlt and Admin

For MIS existing server and F & A

Manager

To replace defective unit of MIS -

Last purchase was in 2014. To upgrade
exlsting IT infrastructure

For all departments

For Starters to monitor on-line tee times

Notes



[y

Construction of Filtration System at
Irrigation lakes for both the North and
South Courses

Waterways Management to Include
Control of Silt and Garbage at Hole #12
and entrance to #13 Waterway

Clearing works and restoration of ponds
in Holes #2,4,5,6, and 7

Additional maintenance for both courses
but not covered by VMJ

Improvement of Bunkers

Herring Bones Dralnage, trench drain

Widening of Bag drop area

Improvement of desliting/catch basin
already Included in #2 above

Zoysia Japonica

Waterways upkeep team

North Course

Rehabilitation of Turbine Pumps and/or
purchase of new pumps for North and
South

Transfer of Starter house

1,000,000.00

1,500,000.00

3,400,000.00

500,000.00

1,363,000.00

122,000.00

1,200,000.00

465,000.00

2,500,000.00

250,000.00

In order to reduce malntenance costs on
the pumps as well as reduce sllt being
Irrigated onto the golf course.
{500k/course)

To control siltation at #12 and allow for
easy silt removal on an annual basis.
Also, to catch garbage flow In 2 screens
at the siltation wall, as well as an,
additional screen at entry #13 waterway.
The continuation of the desilting works
of silt that has been bullt up over many
years. After #12 siltation control has
been Implemented, this should be a one-
time only project.

Inciudes golf course maintenance such
as cleaning work and hiring of casual
workers.

Replacement of silica sand to crushed
marble

marble.

Project under review to determine
primary needs locatlon, as well s If the
projects can be done in house with
additional labor. Needs to be repriced.

To accommodate more players during

big tournaments.

Installation of Sluce gate. Concreting of
catch basin flooring, construction of
ramp for access of equipment, rip
rapping along the perimeter and
installation of screen as garbage catch as
noted in #2 above.

For fairways (1,000 sq.m.) per month at
Php95 per sgm. In addition, we will
harvest grass (essentially free of charge)
from coring of North Greens.

4-person team to constantly monitor the
upkeep and beautification of both North
and South Waterways

To help improve the efficiency of
irrigation system and reduce electric
consumption costs, as well as pump
maintenance costs, It is critical that
water filtration systems be installed
before purchasing any new pumps.

To make the Starter house accesslble for
both front and back nine, and to make
#1 and #10 tee visible from starter
house
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3 Improvement of bridges 2,500,000.00 So long as bridges are structurally sound,
the aesthetics should be reviewed and
considered under a total design and
branding plan for all facilities.

3 improvement of fences 700,000.00 Holes 3, 16 and other areas with low
fences can be better protected and
secured.

4 Improvement/Automation of North 4,500,000.00 This plan would convert North Course

Course sprinkier and control system. irrigation to Semi-automatic system. It

would rehabilitate the controller boxes
previously purchased but not yet in use,
at a cost of about P900k. The estimated
cost of the installation and
commissioning of the system has not yet
been determined. It will be required to
have an accurate set of as-bullt drawings
(cost of 100K) to determine the
installation costs. We should NOT move
forward with the rehabilitation of the
controller boxes as a separate project,
until we know and approve the cost of
the installation. To do one without the
other, would be a waste of resources.

5 Repair of Tee boxes 1,000,000.00 Includes sod cutting of existing turf, re-
leveling, sand capping and stolenizing.
We will get stolens from our existing
grass nurserles at no cost except
manpower. | believe the budget is high

for this project.
6 Riprap at Tee house # 14 300,000.00 Clearing of the areas and installing
additional fence for aesthetic purposes.
7 Trellis for North Course 250,000.00 Waiting area beautification should be

reviewed under total design and
branding plan.

2 CLUBHOUSES, FACILITIES & OTHERS
1 Sewerage Treatment Plant 3,000,000.00 Currently under study for
implementation by Engineering.

2 Storercom for Controllers' Files 250,000.00
3 Drivers' Waiting Lounge 200,000.00
4 Annual Improvement of Club Facliitles 500,000.00 This Includes the annual improvements
on Club faclilities such as clubhouse
painting and course amenities. This also
covers the preparation of the DCT
Tournament.
5 Improvement of Don Celso Tuason Ave. 300,000.00 To improve driving condition from
Main Gate to Sumulong streetlights Sumulong ’
6 Concrete epoxy sealing Main Gate to 600,000.00 Sealing of minor cracks to prevent major
Ortigas gate cracks and reblocking works.
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7

Golf cart Parking Extension

Cabana and Pool

Architectural Design for the Veranda

2,000,000.00

6,500,000.00

300,000.00

PURCHASE OF MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT, VEHICLES & OTHER
3 EQUIPMENT

1

VR, AR WRNRERRPRPRPOR WO 0 N OO WGV B W

One unlt Laptop each for Controller, and
Sports and Games

Printers:

Controllers - 2 units @ 15,000

Sports & Games - 1 unit @ 15,000

Audit - 1 unit @ 15,000
UPS for Server

Hubs for MIS - 3 pcs @ 10,000
Membership 1D Maker

Scoring System

Data Privacy Audit

Club Management & Accounting System
Split type Aircon for Ladies' Locker
Generator Set for North Clubhouse

Floor Polisher

Vacuum Cleaner

Service Vehicle

Motorcycle for Messenger Reliever

Fire Resistant Vault for files of shares of
stock booklets

80,000.00

30,000.00
15,000.00
15,000.00
79,500.00
30,000.00
350,000.00
250,000.00
600,000.00
4,000,000.00
100,000.c0
600,000.00

38,000.00
66,000.00
1,200,000.00
75,000.00

92,000.00

Currently we have parking for only 50
carts leaving 50, club owned carts,
exposed to the elements. Long term
solution is to convert 2nd floor
apartments of burned out building into
good standard housing units. The 7
families currently living in the housing
behind the motor pool will be moved to
these units. The buiiding that is
currently their existing housing units wiil
then be converted to a proper golf cart
parking and storage facility. Thisis a
VERY HIGH priority project to protect the
company assets. Note, the final plan
and costing Is not developed, so this Is
provisionary budget only.

Previous budget was P6.5m. Bidding
failed. It will require a redesign or re-
budgeting.

P45k controller, P35k for Grounds and
S&G

For North Clubhouse Locker Room

For North Clubhouse Locker Room
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1 Aircon for Warehouse Office 20,000.00 Old unit no longer working.
6
1 Filing cabinets (8 units @ P8,000} 40,000.00 For Membership & Office of Pres.
7
1 Woodchipper 130,000.00 To reduce wood to smaller chips
8
1 Centralized Grease Trap 1,000,000.00 For the Main and North Clubhouse
9
2 Rubber track pad 300,000.00 For the existing equipment to avoid
0 additional damage to cart paths
2 Backhoe loader {Bobcat brand) 1,500,000.00 My recommendation is to rent
1 equipment in this regard if it Is
supplementali to the current equipment
we own.
2 Spray Gun Marker 10,000.00 For Operations
2
TOTAL 45,820,500.00
TOTAL PRIORITY 1 19,675,500.00
TOTAL PRIORITY 2 26,145,000.00
45,820,500.00
Absolute first priority 15,665,000.00
22,842,500.00
7,313,000.00
45,820,500.00

Valley Golf does not have any bankruptcy, receivership, or similar
proceedings.

Valley Golf does not have any material reclassification, merger,
consolidation, or purchase or sale of a significant amount of assets not in the
ordinary course of business.

2) Business of Issuer

The main business of Valley Golf is golf and country club operations. Our
main sources of income are monthly dues from the members and green fees
from guests; they comprise 40% and 15% respectively of the gross income.

Valley Golf does not have foreign sales, distribution methods of products
nor publicly announced new product.

International Opportunities - Being a member of Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc. allows the members the privilege of playing in foreign golf clubs like the
Kelab Golf Negara Subang in Selangor, Malaysia; Singapore Island Golf and
Country Club; and Royal Selangor Golf and Country Club in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia. In the year 2002 we were able to establish reciprocal rights with Kiub
Golf Bogor Raya of Indonesia and Royal Palm Springs Golf Club of Malaysia. In
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2017 the Club established reciprocity rights with the largest golf course operator
in the world, Mission Hills Golf Club in China. Last June 18, 2019 another
reciprocal agreement was signed between Valley Golf and Kelab Golf Sarawak.

The principal competitors near our area of operations are two privately
owned golf courses, Forest Hills Golf and Country Club located in Cogeo,
Antipoto City and Eastridge Goif & Country Club in Binangonan and one public
course, Sun Valley Golf Course. These golf courses are relatively new and are
still building up their membership base; whereas, Valley Golf having been in the
business for 60 years old is already proud Golf Club with its roster of respectable
membership. Valley Golf's luscious greens and fairways are still the best in the
area and very well maintained. The rainforest trees in our courses that have
matured through the years have provided a canopy on the fairways and its
majestic beauty is something that other golf courses cannot duplicate. The
friendly atmosphere and the camaraderie of the entire membership and
employees are what make our golf course unique. Eastridge has an 18-hole golf
course and Forest Hills has a 36-hole golf course but Valley Goif's greens,
fairways, trees, sand traps and meandering rivers will always make the
difference. Each golf course may have its own unique characteristics, but Valley
Golf's design and intriguing South Course is something that has always attracted
the enthusiasm of golfers. The challenging contour of the courses will always
make one's round of golf an enjoyable and unforgettable experience. Valley
Golf's all weather South Course has already made its impact on the members
and their guests.

Our competitors are marketing their new facilities and in anticipation of
this Valley Golf rehabilitated the South Course into an all-weather golf course.
We have completed phases 1 and 2 of the renovation of our Main Clubhouse
including the Men’s locker room, the restaurant/veranda area, and the offices to
keep up with the modem trends in interior design while stiil maintaining the
unique architecture of our clubhouse. Financially, Valley Golf is more stable than
our competitors because our focus now is maintenance and constant
improvement. Moreover, our Stockholders’ Equity has long been built up unlike
our competitors who are still selling shares of stock to augment their capital.

Valley Golf has no branch or subsidiaries, so we do not have transactions
with related parties. The other parties we usually transact with are the suppliers
of office, grounds and motorpool supplies. In Dec. 2015, the Club entered into a
3-year golf course maintenance agreement with MJ Carr Golf Management.
Upon the expiration of the contract of MJ Carr, a Golf Course Maintenance
Service Agreement was entered into between Valley Golf and VMJ Evergreen
Golf Maintenance and Construction Corporation effective Jan. 1, 2018 up to Dec.
31, 2020. We have concessionaires for golf supplies, restaurants and driving
range but these are not part of the Club's major sources of income. We do not
have patents, trademarks, copyrights etc.

Valley Golf has an approved registration from BIR of its VAT and NON
VAT activities. The Club keeps up to date its annual Municipal Business,
Sanitary Permits and Real Property Taxes from the City Government of Antipolo.
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A governmental regulation which affected the Club was the
implementation of the CTRP. Before the CTRP, the Club was exempted from the
payment of income tax as per Sec. 27 of the NIRC. By reason of the CTRP, the
Club is now subject to 32 % income tax effective Jan. 1998 and upon recent
amendments from the BIR our tax rate is now 30%.

The 26 International Financial Reporting Standards and revised
International Accounting Standards by the Accounting Standards Council which
took effect in January 2005 started affecting the financial reports of the Club for
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006. The significant effects are on the
recognition of income tax expense and derecognition of deferred tax assets in
the absence of definite plans that operations for the coming years shall result to
net income after depreciation. Other minor effects were in the recording of
interest income, capital gains, property plant and equipment and depreciation
and lease-finance expenses.

In August 2012, the BIR issued Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 35-
2012 - Clarifying the Taxability of Clubs Organized and Operated Exclusively for
Pleasure, Recreation and Other Non-profit purposes. Under Revenue
Memorandum Circular No. 35-2012, membership dues which were previously
exempted from VAT and income tax by virtue of BIR Rulings issued by the then
Commissioner Chato and Asst. Commissioner Roldan in 1996 and 20086,
respectively, are now subject to VAT and income tax. Said Revenue Memo
caused a significant impact in our finances and adversely affected our cash flow
forcing the Board of Directors on Sept. 15, 2012 to increase membership dues
effective Oct. 2012. The Club complied under protest with the mandate of
Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 35-2012.

For fiscal year 2014, the Club applied certain accounting standards that
require restatement of previous year's financial statements, particularly Revised
PAS 19, Employees Benefits. This required all actuarial gains and losses to be
recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. Also, unvested past service
costs previously recognized over the average vesting period, were recognized
immediately, whether in income or loss, when incurred.

The Supreme Court issued a decision last August 13, 2019 that declared
that Membership Dues, Assessments and fees of similar nature collected by
Clubs which are organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recreation, and
other nonprofit purposes do not constitute as: a) “the income of recreational clubs
from whatever source” that are subject to income tax; and b) part of the “gross
receipts of recreational clubs” that are subject to VAT. The decision became final
and executory last February 18, 2020. Valley Golf duly complied with the
Supreme Court decision. As such, the related Input Vat on expenses,
inventories, completed projects and additions to property and equipment that is
use for maintenance, preservation and upkeep of the Club’s general operations
and facilities related to members are to form part of the recorded amount of
expenses, inventory and Property and Equipment.
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Being a golf course, we do not spend much for research and
development since our major concemn is the maintenance of the golf course. We
sometimes test new products for our insecticides, fertilizers, sands and grounds
equipment but these are sither samples given for free or the amount involved is
very minimal.

The Club strictly adheres to all environmental laws. Sources of water are
from the running creeks along the fairways and fertilizers used are all
environmentally friendly and not hazardous to health. The Board signed a
mutual environmental protection project and tree planting and seedling
propagation with the DENR. Organic materials are being used for the
maintenance of the greens and fairways. During the year 2001 the Club had
undertaken the planting of around 300 golden coconut seedlings near the
perimeter fence and within the golf course. Animals such as ducks and wild birds
are allowed to roam within the creeks and fairways. In 2010, we constructed a
greenhouse for seedlings of various trees and several tree saplings were planted
in the courses or given to members. In our locker rooms, we had eliminated the
use of plastics and styropor. Instead we made use of cloth bags and paper cups.
We also eliminated the use of plastic cups in the fairways and clubhouse;
instead, we are using paper cups.

Total number of employees is 82, all full time. We have 18 General
Manager, Department Managers and Supervisors and 63 rank and file
employees. The 63 rank and file are covered by a CBA which will expire on Oct.
2022. The breakdown of the employees are as follows; Office of the GM - 1,
Golf Affairs — 21, Clubhouse - 20, Controllers - 18, Engineering -15,
Administration/HR — 5 and Internal Auditor - 2. When we started engaging MJ
Carr Golf Management for the maintenance of the golf courses, the Grounds
Department was abolished. Our employees have never been on strike for the
past three years neither are they threatening to strike. Supplemental benefits
include free meals during overtime and holidays and special events in the Club,
free coffee during break time and various gift items during Christmas seasons.

There is no major risk involved in the business of Valley Golf & Country
Club.

The Club members’ equity as of June 30, 2020 is P 244 Million. We do
not issue unsecured bonds. Valley Golf has been in business for 62 years.

ITEM 2. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

Seen from the air, the Main Clubhouse, which was designed by noted
Filipino Architect Gabriel Formoso, takes on the unmistakable shape of a golf ball
perched on a tee. The “golf ball “ houses the Men's Locker Room. The “ tee *
houses the upper veranda, the golfers’' lounge and a viewing deck where one can
enjoy the action on the Sth or 18th green.

Adjacent to the Main Clubhouse are two swimming pools with cabanas for
men and women. The swimming pools and cabanas are now being renovated to
be at par with modern designs. The Club now has a state-of-the-art fully lighted
for night use driving range with amenities such as coffee shop and restaurant,
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sports bar, members’ lounge, pro-shop and shower rooms. The driving range has
two-level driving bays, all equipped with convex mirrors while the upper-level
bays feature the revolutionary TMAX-GOLF motor less dispensers. Adequate
parking near the Main Clubhouse is assured for as many as 200 cars.

The North Clubhouse is furnished with modern facilities, complete with
restaurant, function rooms, locker rooms and offices. The restaurant is now
being managed by a concessionaire as part of innovations being introduced to
the membership.

a.) Location and area of the properties.

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is located along Don Celso S. Tuason
Ave., with entry and exit on Ortigas Ave., Extn. and Sumulong Highway. Total
land area is 1,222,971 sq. meters, part of which is in Antipolo City and another
part in Cainta, Rizal.

b.) Description and condition of the properties.

All properties are registered in the name of Valley Golf Club, Inc. and
none of the properties are mortgaged nor encumbered. The Club does not leass
any of its land.

Valley Golf does not intend to acquire any properties in the next tweive
(12) months.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

1. Helirs of Victor Reyes vs. Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc.
(SC GR No. 180641; CA-G.R Civit Case No. 80378, RTC-Makati City,

Branch 138: Civil Case No. 01-528; SEC Case No. 01-97-5522

This is a complaint by a former stockholder of VGCCI for reinstatement of
playing rights and/or issuance of new shares of stocks. The complainant claims
the auction sale in 1986 of his share for delinquency of his accounts was void for
lack of notice to him. He is also claiming the amount of PhP20,000.00 as
attomey’s fees as well as costs of suit against the Club. In its Answer, the Club
claims that the complainant's action is already barred by the statute of limitation
and there was proper notice to him of his delinquency and the auction sale. As
counterclaim, the Club is claiming PhP50,000.00 as moral damages,
PhP50,000.00 as exemplary damages and PhP25,000.00 as attorney's fees. The
Regional Trial Court has rendered judgment dismissing the complaint as there
was no infirmity in the auction sale of complainant's share. Mr. Reyes has filed an
Appeal with the Court of Appeals where the case of now pending. During the
pendency of this appeal, the plaintiff passed away and the court, upon motion of
his heirs, ordered their substitution as the plaintiffs.

On August 5, 2008, the Court of Appeals rendered a Decision reversing
the decision of the Regional Trial Court and declared the plaintiff (as
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substituted by his heirs) to be entitled to the reinstatement of his playing
rights and/or the re-issuance of a new share of stock from Valley. The Court
of Appeals said that the notice issued to the plaintiff as to the auction sale was
defective as the registry receipt was not sufficiently authenticated and that even
assuming there was notice of delinquency sent to the plaintiff, the payment of
dues was the responsibility at the time of the playing guest to whom the playing
rights of the share was assigned. The Club filed a Motion for Reconsideration on
August 28, 2008 which was denied by the Court of Appeals in its Resolution
dated November 25, 2008. On December 18, 2008, the Club filed a Petition for
Review with the Supreme Court. The heirs of Victor Reyes already filed their
Comment to which Valley Golf filed its Reply on 03 January 2011.

On 10 November 2015, the Supreme Court rendered its decision denying
the Club’s petition for review and affirming the Court of Appeals decision. On 16
February 2016, Valley Goff filed its Motion for Reconsideration. However, this
was denied by the Supreme Court in its Notice dated 16 March 2016 which we
received on 25 May 2016. An Entry of Judgment has been issued and hence, the
decision has become final and executory. On 30 April 2018, undersigned
counsel received a Motion for Issuance of Writ of Execution filed by the plaintiffs’
counsel. We then filed on 11 May 2018 a Comment/Manifestation to the motion
stating that while Valley Golf intends to comply with the Decision dated 05 August
2008 of the Court of Appeals which has already become final and executory, its
compliance should be in accordance with law and consistent also with Valiey
Golf's own rules and procedures regarding stock ownership, transfer of shares
and approval of membership and playing rights. The court in its Order dated 21
May 2018 has already granted the plaintiffs’ Motion for Issuance of Writ of
Execution. To forestall any inconvenience to Valley Golf and ensure orderly
compliance with the Court of Appeals’ decision, we met with plaintiffs’ counsel on
30 May 2018 to explain to them the rules and procedures regarding stock
ownership, transfer of shares and approval of membership and playing rights and
inquired if plaintiffs are willing to accept a playing right instead of a golf share.
Plaintiffs’ counsel undertook to relay the information given to his clients and
revert to us which to date, he has yet te do.

2. Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. vs. Gabina Maestre, et al.
(Civil Case No. 09-8769, Branch 71 of the Regional Trial Court of Antipolo

City)

This is a complaint for accion publiciana to recover possession of real
property belonging to the Club under TCT No. 518354 currently being occupied
by several squatters. The Club is seeking a decision from the Regional Trial
Court ordering the defendants (about 37 in number), together with their
families/mouseholds, and any and all persons claiming rights from them, at
present and in the future, to vacate the subject properties in question and to
restore the possession of the same to the Club. The Club is alsc seeking the
payment of the attorney’s fees in the amount of PHP50,000.00 acceptance fee
and the amount of appearance fees, as and by way of attorney's fees, as well as
for defendants to pay the costs of suit and litigation expenses.

Some of the defendants have filed an Answer claiming that they and their
predecessors-in-interest have been in possession of the Club’s property for more
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than thirty (30) years which will entitle them to the ownership and possession of
the property. They also claim that the Club’s title is not valid since the property
was acquired from the Manila Railway Company and that under a 1800s law, the
railway company was bound to give the property back to the public once it is no
longer used for railway operation. As counterclaim, defendants are claiming
PHP500,000.00 as moral damages and PHP20,000.00 attorney’s fees for each
of them.

Valley Golf has previously filed a motion to declare in defauit some of the
defendants who failed to file their Answer and this motion was already granted by
the court. On 04 September 2013, in view of the failure of the defendants
represented by counsel to file their Pre-Trial Brief, the court allowed Valley Golf
to present its evidence ex-parfe. These defendants filed a Motion for
Reconsideration which Valley opposed and the court denied this motion. Valley
Golf presented its evidence ex-parte and filed its Formal Offer of Evidence. The
other defendants filed another Manifestation with Motion, seeking that they be
allowed to present their own evidence which was denied by the court after Valley
Golf filed its opposition.

On 02 September 2015, Valley Golf through its counsels received the
Decision of the Regional Trial Court which declared Valley Golf as the lawful
owner of the property and ordered it to be placed in possession of it and the
defendants were ordered to vacate the same to surrender it peacefully to Valley
Golf. Some of the defendants filed a Motion for Reconsideration to which Valley
Golf filed its Comment/Opposition on 27 October 2015.

In the interval, Valley Golf signed in 2015 a Memorandum of Agreement
with Malaya Valley Homeowners' Association, Inc., which, though not a party,
claims to represent all the informal seitlers on the subject property, some of
which are already defendants in this case. Upon the instructions of the Board and
management, Valley Golf's counsels filed a Motion for Approval of Compromise
Agreement or the terms of the MOA. However, some of the individual
defendants filed a Manifestation claiming that they did not sign and are
vehemently opposing the Compromise Agreement (MOA).

On 24 October 2018, the RTC of Antipolo rendered an Order denying the
Motion for Reconsideration of some of the defendants and approving the
Compromise Agreement insofar as the defendants who were not opposing it.
The defendants who filed the Motion for Reconsideration then filed a Notice of
Appeal. On.the other hand, upon the instructions of the Board of Directors, we
filed on 21 December 2016 a Motion for Partial Reconsideration of the Order
insofar as it approved the Compromise Agreement considering that a great
number of defendants who are supposedly beneficiaries of the MOA are
objecting to it thereby putting to naught the objective of the MOA to end the
litigation, and that it will now be virtually impossible to implement the MOA based
on its original terms and premises. The Motion for Partiai Reconsideration was
approved and defendants’ Motion for Reconsideration was denied.

Some of the plaintiffe thereafter filed a Notice of Appeal from the Regional

Trial Court's decision. On 18 June 2018, we received an Order from the Court of
Appeals directing the defendants-appellants to file their Brief within forty five (45)
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3.

days from their receipt of the Order. We received a copy of the Brief of
defendants-appellants on 06 August 2018. Valley Golf filed its Appellee’s Brief on
30 October 2018. Defendants-appellants did not file any Reply Brief to Valley
Golf's Brief. On 26 March 2019, we received a Resolution from the Court of
Appeals stating that in the interest of justice, appellants are given twenty (20)
days from notice within which to file reply brief, with warning that in case of non-
compliance within the stated twenty (20) day period, the appeal will be deemed
submitted for decision without reply brief.

On 10 September 2019, we received the Decision of the Court of Appeals
which affirmed the Decision dated 16 July 2015 and Order dated 24 October
2016 of Branch 71 of the Regional Trial Court of Antipolo. Defendants filed a
Motion for Reconsideration to which we filed a Comment/Opposition on 04
November 2019. On 10 January 2020, we received the Resolution from the
Court of Appeals which denied the defendants’ Motion for Reconsideration. On
29 January 2020, defendants through their counsel filed a Manifestation stating
that they “discovered” that the property subject of the case was registered in the
name of another party, Harmony Homes, Inc. and not Valley Golf. They then said
that they will forego further appeal to the Supreme Court but will resist execution
of the judgment on the ground that an alleged indispensable party, Harmony
Homes, Inc. was not impleaded as a party and the judgment is null and void. We
have verified this claim of the defendants with the engineer of Valley Golf and the
latter has confirmed that the claims of defendants are false as subject property is
indeed under the title of Valley Golf.

With the foregoing of appeal by defendants, the decision of the Court of
Appeals has become final and executory and we expect the issuance of an Entry
of Judgment. Once this is issued, the records of the case can be remanded back
to the Regional Trial Court for the filing of a motion for issuance of writ of
execution of the judgment.

Jose B. Tayawa vs. Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. , Jaime Victor
Santos, Wilfredo G. Manahan, Albert G. Que, Leopoldo M. Garcia, and
Albert D.G. San Gabriel

(SCC Case No. 18-003, Regional Trial Court, Branch 70, Binangonan, Rizal)

The case filed by plaintiff, a member and stockholder of VGCCI as well as a
Past President, is an Intra-Corporate Controversy insofar as the matter of his
suspension of his membership by the Board of Directors for a period of one (1)
year starting on 17 June 2019. As stated in his Complaint, he prayed that after
due notice and hearing for the: 1) issuance of a Temporary Order valid for twenty
(20) days for the immediate restoration of his full rights and privileges as member
of VGCCI, 2) thereafter, but before the Temporary Order expires, 2) issuance of
a Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction for all defendants to immediately
restore his full rights and privileges as member of Valley Golf, and that after trial,
judgment be rendered: 3) dissolving the Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction
and replacing it with a Permanent Mandatory Injunction, 4) as First Cause of
Action, deciaring the 17 June 2019 Suspension Order as Null and Void, 5) as
Second Cause of Action, ordering Defendant Board Members to pay him One
Million and Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php1,500,000.00) as Moral
Damages; 6) as Third Cause of Action, ordering Defendant Board Members to
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pay him Three Million Pesos (Php3,000.000.00) as Exemplary Damages, and 7)
on the Fourth Cause of Action, ordering Defendant Board Members to pay him
the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php500,000.00) as Attorney’'s
Fees and Costs of Litigation.

The dispute arose when the Board of Directors imposed upon plaintiff the
penalty of suspension for one (1) year. As stated in the Notice of Suspension, the
grounds for suspension was for acts of cheating, in particular, for knowingly,
deliberately and with intent to make a mockery of the election of the directors
submitting to Valley Golf and using without the authority of the authorized
signatory of Solid State Multi Product Corporation the Request for Duplicate/New
Proxy Form (RFD) as well as replacement proxies of Solid State for one
candidate, as the authorized signatory of Solid State himself certified that he
only signed one set of proxies in favour of another candidate.

In his Complaint, plaintiff alleges that he 'did not commit any forgery or
cheating or submission of an unauthorized proxy and hence, he should not have
been suspended. He argues that even assuming that there was sufficient
evidence of wrongdoing on his part, the penalty of one (1) year suspension
against him is harsh, oppressive and confiscatory since the Board of Directors
has no authority to increase the penalty recommended by the Membership
Committee. He aiso claims that there was no complaint against him to begin with
and assuming there was, the complainant was not called upon to confirm the
truthfulness and veracity of his complaint. He added that the defendant board
members merely assumed the same and on the basis of their faulty reasoning
and assumption, held that plaintiff cheated or has submitied an unauthorized
proxy. Plaintiff claims that on procedural and substantive grounds, the
Suspension Order should be declared null and void.

Plaintiff likewise ciaims that as a result of defendants’ acts, he suffered
serious anxiety, sleepless nights, besmirched reputation and social humiliation
which is why he is claiming for moral damages. Plaintiff likewise accuses
defendants of acting in wanton, fraudulent, reckless, malevolent and oppressive
manner for which he is claiming exemplary damages. He Is likewise claiming for
attomey’s fees and costs of suit.

On the other hand, defendant VGCCI and board members argue in their
Answer with Compulsory Counterclaim claim that there is sufficient evidence or
substantial evidence as required in administrative proceedings for defendants to
conclude that plaintiff submitted and used proxies for the five (5) shares of Solid
State without the authority of the latter. The authorized signatory of Solid State,
sent a letter addressed to the directors certifying that he signed only one set of
proxy forms in favour of another candidate, and not the candidate appearing in
the proxy forms submitted by plaintiff, thereby disowning the proxy forms
submitted by the plaintiff. Defendants allege that the plaintiff readily admitted that
he does not know the president or any of the officers and directors of Solid State
Multi-Products corporation. Hence, it would not be possible for plaintiff to be able
to secure proxies duly signed by its authorized representatives. Thus,
defendants argue that they were justified in concluding that without a doubt,
plaintiff willfully and maliciously submitted and used the proxies of Solid State
without being authorized to do so.
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Defendants further argue that plaintiff was fully accorded procedural due
process as he was allowed to give lefters in response to the accusations against
him and was even allowed to appear before the Board of Directors to air his side.
They likewise state that the penalty of one (1) year suspension is not harsh,
oppressive and confiscatory considering the gravity and seriousness of the
offense committed by plaintiff. Defendants also argue that the penalty of one (1)
year suspension is also within the power of the Board of Directors pursuant to the
Revised Corporation Code, the Amended By-Laws of VGCCI and the Member’s
Handbook as well.

Defendants also denied the claims for moral damages, exemplary damages
as well as attomey's fees for lack of any factual or legal bases. Defendants also
claim that there is no basis for the court to grant plaintiff's prayer for a Writ of
Preliminary Mandatory Injunction as he has not demenstrated any injury that is
incapable of pecuniary estimation and no clear and unmistakable right on his
part that was violated when he was suspended by defendant Board members.

As counterclaim, individual defendants claim that by reason of the filing of
this baseless, unwarranted complaint against them, considering that they were
only performing their duties as directors to defend the interest, honor and integrity
of the corporation’s election process, they have suffered serious anxiety,
sleepless nights, besmirched reputation thereby entitling each of them to claim
the amount of Five Hundred Thousand Pesos (Php500,000.00) as and by way of
moral damages. And because of the malicious filing of the case which is devoid
of any merit, defendant VGCCI was compelled to engage the service of counsel
for which plaintiff should be held liable to pay Php175,000.00 acceptance fee,
appearance fees of Php10,000.00 (partner) and Php7,500.00 (associate) for
every appearance, pleading fees from Php10,000.00 to Php50,000.00, milestone
fees and other iitigation costs and costs of suit.

Proceedings were held before the Regional Trial Court of Binangonan,
Antipolo to hear the plaintiffs prayer for a Writ of Preliminary Mandatory
Injunction. Plaintiff completed his presentation of evidence and filed his Formal
Offer of Exhibits to which defendants filed their Comment/Objections. Thereatter,
Defendants presented their witnesses to oppose plaintiffs prayer for a Writ of
Preliminary Mandatory Injunction.

After presentation of three (3) witnesses, the last hearing was scheduled for
25 March 2020 for the purpose of presenting defendants’ iast witness. However,
this hearing was cancelled in view of the Enhanced Community Quarantine
(ECQ) imposed by the Phiiippine govemment and no further hearings were set in
view of the lockdown due to the COVID-19 pandemic. On 15 June 2020,
defendants through counsel filed a Manifestation in Premises with the court
manifesting that while defendants are willing to procure the attendance of the last
witness, doing so may now be futle and inappropriate as the one year
suspension of the plaintif’s membership already lapsed on 15 June 2020. Hence,
the prayer for Writ of Preliminary Mandatory Injunction has become moot and
academic. We have yet to receive any order or resolution from the court as to
the Manifestation in Premises filed.
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4. Valley Golf and Country Ciub, Inc. (represented by Rosanna Arguelles)

vs. Jetrick Nelson Tamayo
(For Other Deceits, pending before Office of the Provincial Prosecutor of

Rizal)

This is a criminal complaint for Other Deceits filed against Jetrick Nelson
Tamayo, a person who was apprehended for having used fake Valley Golf car
sticker in entering Don Celso Tuason Avenue on 16 October 2018. Upon his
apprehension by Valley Goif's security guards, Tamayo admitted to using the fake
Valley Golf car sticker and promised to pay the Php5,000.00 fine imposed by
Valley Golf for the use of fake car stickers. However, he failed to do so. Demand
letters were sent to him to pay the fine of Php5,000.00 but to no avail. Hence,
Valiey Golf authorized the filing of a criminal complaint for Other Deceits against
him with the Office of the Provincial Prosecutor.

After the filing of the criminal complaint, we were informed that the Asst.
Provincial Prosecutor decided not to hold preliminary investigations anymore and
instead submitted the case for resolution. To date, we have yet to receive the
prosecutor's Resolution.

The Club has a monthly retainer agreement with the Firm, Valley Golf and
Country Club, Inc. has no outstanding/unpaid billing with our Firm as of June 30,
2020.

{TEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting was
held on Sept. 22, 2019. Out of the 1,594 issued and subscribed shares, 839 shares
were represented by proxy or present in person, and majority being in attendance, the
President, as Presiding Chairman, declared a quorum.

At the ensuing slection, the following were elected as Directors:

1. Mr. Carlo J. Carpio - 658 votes
2. Mr. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro - 626 votes
3. Mr. Pablito M. Gregore - 527 votes

The other directors whose term of office continued are Messrs. Albert San
Gabriel, Wilfredo Manahan, Atty. Jeremy Parulan, Albert DG. San Gabriel, Leopoldo
Garcia and Atty. Ronald O. Solis.

Matters discussed during the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting include the
ratification of the acts of the Board of Directors from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019,
approval of the minutes of the annual meeting held on September 23, 2018 and the
election of the external auditor. On the election of the External Auditor, the stockholders
resolved to elect Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as the Club's External Auditor for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2020.

The details of the discussion are as follows:
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MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL STOCKHOLDERS’ MEETING OF

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

Held at the Board Room, Main Clubhouse
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.,
Don Celso Tuason Avenue, Antipolo City

22 September 2019 at 4:00 p.m.

TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES OUTSTANDING 1,594
TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES (839)
PRESENT/REPRESENTED (52.60%
AND ENTITLED TO VOTE 60%)

L CALL TO ORDER

After the National Anthem, the President and Chairman of the Board of Directors,
Mr. Jaime Victor J. Santos, called the meeting to order and presided over the same. The
Corporate Secretary, Mr. Rio Sesinando E. Venturanza, recorded the minutes of the
proceedings.

IL CERTIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QUORUM

The Secretary confirmed that notices of the meeting were duly sent to all
members of the Board of Directors together with a copy of the materials for the meeting.

Based on a certificate issued by the Club’s stock transfer agent, Suremail Courier
Services Inc., attesting to the mailing of the notices of the meeting to the Club’s
stockholders of record, the Secretary certified that notices of the meeting were sent to all
stockholders of record as of 01 August 2019 . A copy of the certificate has been attached
to these minutes pursuant to the instructions of the Chairman.

The Secretary certified that, based on the register of attendees and proxies as
tabulated by the Stock Transfer Agent, out of the total 1,594 shares representing the
outstanding capital stock of the Club, holders of a total of 839 shares of stock were
present in person or by proxy representing an attendance of 52.60%. Accordingly, the
Secretary certified that a quorum existed for the transaction of the business at hand.

At this juncture, Atty. Ricardo Fernandez raised a point of order. He questioned
the supposed presence of quorum since a number of proxyholders are not present at the
meeting. The Corporate Secretary explained that under the terms of the proxy earlier
submitted by the proxyholders, the member who signed the proxy authorized the
chairman of the meeting to vote on behalf of the member in the absence of the appointed
proxy on all matters stated in the agenda except the election of directors. After further
discussion and the matter being clarified, the meeting proceeded.
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M. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS'
MEETING

Upon motion duly made and seconded, the reading of the minutes of the last
stockholders' meeting held on 23 September 2018 was dispensed with as the same had
been previously circulated/distributed to the stockholders. The Chairman opened the floor
for further questions about the Minutes of the 2018 Annual Stockholders® Meeting. No
questions having been raised, the Minutes of the last stockholders’ meeting was thereafter
approved.

The votes for the Resolution on the approval of the Minutes of 2019 Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting are as follows:

VOTES IN VOTES
| AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Approval of Minutes of the 839 0 0
Previous Meeting of Stockholders (52.60%) (0.00%) {0.00%)

Accordingly, the following resolution was thereafter passed:

“RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the Annual Meeting of the
Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(the ‘Corporation’) held on 23 September 2018 is hereby approved.”

IV. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF THE LAST
STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

The Chairman, Mr. Jaime Victor J. Santos, opened the floor for inquiries relative
to the previous year’s minutes.

After a moment of silence, considering that no questions were raised, the
Chairman proceeded with the next item on the agenda.

V. READING AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

The Chairman, Mr. Jaime Victor J. Santos, informed the stockholders present ofa
slight change in the agenda consisting of a presentation by GM Cliff M. Friedman of his
proposal for the Club’s five (5) year plan entitled “Valley Golf World Class Five Years
and Beyond”.

There being no objection, the Chairman asked GM Friedman to share his report to
the stockholders.

V1. MAIN AGENDA
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GM FRIEDMAN PRESENTATION: Five Year Plan for Valley Golf entitled
“Valley Golf World Class Five Years and Beyond”

GM Friedman stated that the report was first presented during a board meeting
and the Chairman has requested him to give the stockholders a glimpse of his
presentation. He started by saying that it has always been Valley Golf’s Mission and
Vision to become a world class golf course. His proposed S-year plan is geared towards
the achievement of this vision in a cost-cffective way. By having such plan, arbitrary
decisions of the board whose composition changes every year would be avoided. Instead,
their efforts would reflect a cohesive course of action designed to achieve specific goals
that would help bring the Club to world class status. The Club is blessed with two great
golf courses. The South Course for him is one of the best championship golf courses in
Southeast Asia while the North Course is spectacularly challenging in its own way.
Presently, the Club has started plugging the South Course greens with Zoysia Matrella
grass which is expected to be finished ahead of schedule by the first week of November.
By February of next year, he expects the South Course to have excellent greens. The
Club intends to convert the grass in the South Course fairways to Zoysia Japonica and
work is already in progress. He expects the work to be completed in a year’s time. The
drainage system is also being improved so there will be no standing water on the fairways
and this is being done in-house to minimize expenses. Wastewater improvement which
actually is a long-term project is also being undertaken by controlling the trash and
flushing the silt to improve the quality of irrigation water. This way, the Club will save
on costly pump repairs and improve playing conditions in the golf course.

Mr. Errol Collado commended the GM on his vision for the Club and suggested
that the Board form a committee to oversee the Club’s long terms plans. The Chairman
replied that the suggestion will be endorsed to the next board for action.

VII. PRESIDENT'’S REPORT AND PRESENTATION OF AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Chairman, Jaime Victor J. Santos, noted that all stockholders have been
provided copies of the Club’s Annual Report. Nevertheless, he reported that the Club has
a number of on-going projects in coordination with VMJ to make sure the courses will be
in tip-top shape. Despite the simultaneous works going on, cash flow remains healthy
even without increasing the members’ monthly dues. Priority project during his
administration was the greens.

Thereafter, the Treasurer, Mr. Wilfredo G. Manahan, requested the Club’s
comptroller, Ms. Rosanna Arguelles, to provide the stockholders with a summary of the
Club’s annual financial performance. She reported that for the fiscal year 2018-2019,
revenues increased by P15 million compared to the last fiscal year's while operating
expenses Increased by ™16 million. Net income for the year is #6.96 million compared
to last year’s 12 mililon or a decrease of 5.2 million.
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Thereafter, the Chairman opened the floor for questions in regard to the 2018-
2019 Annual Report on the Club’s operations and Financial Statements.

Mr. Ferlu Sudario asked what the Club plans to do after the Supreme Court
decision came out invalidating the VAT imposed by the BIR on the members’ monthly
dues. The Chairman replied that the BIR has yet to issue the pertinent regulations but
efforts will be exerted to make sure that VAT paid by the Club will be recovered through
appropriate tax credits. The Chairman noted though that senior members of the Club have
not been charged VAT on their monthly dues.

A request was then made on the floor to revert golf cart rental being charged
seniors back to 350 from the new rate of ®700. The Chairman noted the request and
said that he will endorse the matter to the incoming board of directors.

After further deliberations and upon motion duly made and seconded, the Annual
Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 1 July 2018 to
30 June 2019, was approved based on the results of the voting via poll:

AGENDA ITEM | VOTES IN FAVOI-! . VOTES AGAINST | ABSTAIN
Approval of 2018-2019 293 0 0

Annual Report and
Financial Statements (52.60%) (0.00%) (0.00%)

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that the 2018-2019 Annual Report on the
operations of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(the ‘Corporation’) together with the Audited Financial Statements and
accompanying notes for the fiscal year 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019, is
hereby approved.”

VII. RATIFICATION OF CORPORATE ACTS

The Chairman next presented the acts of the Club’s Board of Directors and
Management for Fiscal Year July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019, including the disposal of non-
performing assets and settlement of cases that may involve disposal of some properties of
the Club from the date of the last stockholders’ meeting up to this meeting for the
stockholders’ confirmation, ratification, and approval.

Upon a motion to confirm, ratify, and approve all the acts of the Club’s Board of
Directors and management including the disposal of non-performing assets and
settlement of cases that may involve disposal of some properties of the Club from the
date of the last stockholders’ meeting up to date of the present meeting was duly made
and seconded, and no objections thereto having been raised by any of the stockholders’
present, the motion was then approved based on the following results of voting via poll:

27



VOTES IN VOTES

AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Ratification of all acts of the
. Board of Directors and 893 0 0
Management from the date of the .
last stockholders® meeting up to (52.60%) (0.00%) (0.00%)
the date of the present meeting.

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that all acts of the Board of Directors and
Management of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(the ‘Corporation’) for the period July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019, including
the disposal of non-performing assets and settlement of cases that may
involve disposal of some properties of the Club from the last stockholders’
meeting on 23 September 2018 up to the date of this meeting, are hereby
confirmed, ratified and approved.”

VIII. APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Chairman informed the audience that, afier deliberations and upon the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors approved the re-
appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company (SGV & Co.) as the Club’s external
auditor for the year 2019-2020.

No questions or objections having been raised by the stockholders present despite
the opportunity given, the proposal to re-appoint SGV & Co. as the Club’s external
auditor for year 2019-2020 was approved by the stockholders based on the following
results of voting via poll:

AGENDA ITEM VOTES IN FAVOR VOTES AGAINST ABSTAIN

Re-appointment of
Sycip Gorres
Velayo & 893 0 0
Company as {52.60%) (0.00%) (0.00%)
External Auditor
for 2019-2020

The following resolution was likewise approved:

“RESOLVED, that VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC. (the ‘Club’) hereby approves the re-appointment of Sycip Gorres
Velayo & Co. as the Bank’s external auditor, for Year 2019-2020.”

IX. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
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The Chairman announced that the next item in the agenda is the election of the
new members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year.

The Chairman then mentioned the names of the nominees and informed the
audience that the nominees, whose individual profiles appear in the Club’s Information
Statement and Annual Report, were duly screened by the Nomination Committee.

The Chairman called on the Chairman of the Commission on Elections
(Comelec), Atty. Felipe T. Cuison, to preside over the election of the new Directors. The
other members of the Comelec were Atty. Ben Delos Reyes, Jr., and Atty. Marcus
Antonius T. Andaya. The following were the official nominees:

Atty. Plaridel J. Bohol Ii

~ Mr. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro
Mr. Pablito M. Gregore

Mr. Carlo J. Carpio

Mr. Errol U. Collado

| Mr. Marcos C. Hermoso
Mr. Noel S. Flores

o | i 0[N

~|

After all votes cast were counted, the following persons were declared elected as
new members of the Board of Directors of the Club for the year 2019-2020 after
receiving the votes indicated opposite their names:

Nominee No. of Votes Received
In By Total
Person  Proxy
1. | Mr. Carlo J. Carpio 16 642 658
2. | Mr. Reginald Benjamin V, San Pedro 33 603 | 626
3. | Mr, Pablito M. Gregore 23 | sS04 | 527

IX. AWARDING OF PLAQUE

Thereafter, the Chairman proceeded to the awarding of the plaque of appreciation
to the outgoing Directors including himself.

The General Manager, Mr. Friedman, together with the members of the Comelec,
awarded the plaque of appreciation to out-going Directors of Valley Golf and Country
Club, Mr. Virgilio G. Bucat and Mr. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr., in recognition of their
invaluable services to the Club as members of the Board and as Chairmen of various
committees. Plaque of appreciation was likewise given to the outgoing President, Mr.
Jaime Victor J. Santos, in recognition of his outstanding service to the Club as member of
the Board, chairman of various committees and finally as President of the Club.

X. OTHER MATTERS
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The Chairman opened the floor for discussion of other issues and/or unfinished
business.

A. Ms. Cielo Fregil on the procedure to sanction erring members

Ms, Fregil asked why it takes the Club months before an erring member is
penalized. She cited the case of a lady member who was caught cheating on her
scorecard who was able play several more tournaments before her case was decided.
Dir. Manahan explained the existing procedure before disciplinary action can be imposed
including giving the member concemed due process. Also, the Membership Committee
meets only once a month and its recommendation is submitted for approval of the Board
which also meets once a month.

The Chairman noted the valid concern raised and undertook to refer the matter to
the next board for study on how to speed up disciplinary action process.

B. Mr. Renato Balibag request for 100% green fee discount for PASG

Mr. Balibag asked the Chairman to completely waive the green fees (from just
50% discount) being charged participants in the PASG which the Club and its senior
members are going to host the following month. While the Club’s association of senior
members receive subsidy from the Club, this is hardly enough considering that there are 4
senior tournaments held every year and these are usually well attended. The senior’s
funds will be heavily depleted if they are going to foot the 50% green fee. He also
requested that the senior’s association be allowed to choose who among its members will
represent the Club in intra-club senior tournaments. The Chairman noted the requests and
promised to refer the matter to the next board for immediate action.

ADJOURNMENT

There being no other matters to be discussed, the meeting was thereupon
adjourned.

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTS COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDERS' MATTERS

1) Market Information
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. does not market its shares in the stock
exchange and all stockholders have pre-emptive rights on the sale of club shares. Total

number of authorized capital stock is 1,800 at P 8,000.00 par value. Valley Golf is a
non-profit club and does not issue any stock or cash dividends.
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The Board of Directors on their Special Meeting last June 22, 2009 approved the
sale of 26 shares of stock with the following conditions:

1. The conditions of the sale are as follows:

1.1

1.2.

2.1

22

23

3.1

3.2
3.3

3.4

Cash basis

1.1.1. Outright sale of shares at Php380,000.00 each (minimum price for
the first batch). Transfer Fee shail not be applicable.

1.1.2. For non-members, membership is subject to compliance to the
Membership processing requirements and approval of the
Membership Committee.

1.1.3. All shares must be activated within 30 days pursuant to Article VIl,
Section 3, of the By-Laws and Section 7 of the Articles of
Incorporation.

Shares of stock will be sold in batches and prices as follows:
Date
of Sale

1.2.1. Firstbatch -3 shares of stock P 380,000.00 June 26 — 30
1.2.2. Second batch - 3 shares of stock P 400,000.00 Jul. 1 —Jul. 7

or after 1# batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.3. Third batch -3 shares of stock P 425,000.00 Jul. 8 — Jul.14

or after 2™ batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.4. Fourth batch -3 shares of stock P 450,000.00 Jul. 15- Jul. 22

or after 3" batch is sold whichever is earlier
1.2.5. Fifth batch -3 shares of stock P 475,000.00 Jul. 23 -Jul.31

or after 4" batch is sold whichever is earlier
Note: Prices are subject to change without prior notice.

Sale will be as follows:

From June 26 — July 7, 2009, only to proprietary members on record as of
May 31, 2009. Proprietary members who are interested to buy shares
after July 7, 2009 will be given priority.

Assuming that shares are still available, Playing guests, Corporate
Representatives, children and spouses of proprietary members will be
allowed to buy shares beginning July 8, 2009.

Assuming that shares are still available, Non-members will be allowed to
buy beginning July 15, 2009.

The mechanics of the sale were as follows:

Sales inquiry must be coursed through the Office of the President
beginning June 28, 2009.

Sale will be on a first come, first serve basis.

if there are more than three (3) interested buyers at the same time, the
winner will be selected by raffle.

No reservations will be entertained.

Utilization of the proceeds of the sale:
4.1,
4.2

Payment of outstanding loans.
To fund the 3-year development program
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As of June 30, 2013, there were fifteen (15) shares sold from this issuance.

The Board of Directors in their regular meeting last Nov. 15, 2014 approved the
following:

1. INSTALLMENT SALE OF SHARES OF STOCK
a.) Deferred payment of the share of stock and transfer fee.
b.) “All in selling price" of P 350k.
¢.) Payable in 12 monthly instaliments.
d.) Membership of the buyers is subject to compliance with the Membership
processing requirements and approval of the Membership Committee.

As of June 30, 2015, there were five (5) shares sold from this issuance.

For the fiscal years 2000 and 2001, the market price ranged from the club
subscription rate of P 625,000.00 to P 500,000.00. For the year 2002 market price was
between P 500,000.00 to P 450,000.00. For the years 2003 to 2014 market price
ranged from P 400,000.00 to P 500,000.00 for Club subscription to P332,000 to
P292,000 for third party market. Market prices included the transfer fee of P 112,000.00.
For the fiscal year 2015 and 2016 the market price was P250,000.00 pius P56,000
transfer fee during the promo period or P112,000 after the promo. For the fiscal year
2017 the market price was P312,000.00 plus P87,2000 transfer fee during the promo
period or P112,000 after the promo. The market value of the shares of stock of Valley
Golf as of June 30, 2018 is P400,000.00 plus P112,000.00 transfer fee. For the Fiscal
Year 2019, the market price is P800,000.00 plus P112,000.00 transfer fee. For the
Fiscal Year 2020, the market price is P1,300,000.00 plus P112,000.00 transfer fee.
Market prices were based on subscription rates and transactions processed in the Club.

2)  Holders

Total number of shares issued and outstanding as of June 30, 2020 is 1,594
shares. There is no individual or corporate stockholder who is the beneficial owner of at
least five percent (5 %) of the total shares outstanding. The top twenty (20)
shareholders are as follows:

No. of
Shares Amount %
STOCKHOLDER Owned subscribed Ownership  Citizenship
1 FENESTRAM CORPORATION 6 54,000.00 0.38% Filipino
2 PAE VENTURES, INC 6 54,000.00 0.38% Filipino
3 G7 PHILIPPINE PRINTING CORP. 5 45,000.00 0.31% Filipino
4 MANILA ELECTRIC CO. 5 45,000.00 0.31% Filipino
5 SOLID STATE MULTI-PROD. CORP. 5 45,000.00 0.31% Filipino
6 SQUIRES BINGHAM CO., INC. 5 45,000.00 0.31% Fi]ipho
7 TDR, INCORPORATED 5 45,000.00 0.31% Filipino
8 FIRST PHIL. HOLDING CORP. 4 36,000.00 0.25% Filipino
9 MADRIGAL, VICENTE/GERARDO A.S. 4 36,000.00 0.25% Filipino
10 METROPOLITAN BANK & TRUST CO. 4 36,000.00 0.25% Filipino
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11 PHILIPPINE NATIONAL BANK 4 36,000.00 0.25% Filipino
12 RELIABLE ELECTRIC CO., INC. 4 36,000.00 0.25% Filipino
13 CHEOK, EDWARD N. 3 27,000.00 0.19% Filipino
14 CO, VAL CONSTANTINE L. 3 27,000.00 0.1%% Filipino
15 DEE C. CHUAN & SONS, INC. 3 27,000.00 0.19% Filipino
16 SEVERO A. TUASON & CO.INC. 3 27,000.00 0.19% Filipino
17 TUASON, SEVERO J. 3 27,000.00 0.19% Filipino
18 CARMONA, MANUEL Y. 2 18,000.00 0.13% Filipino
19 METROPOLITAN INSURANCE COMPANY 2 18,000.00 0.13% Filipino
20 PHIL. LONG DISTANCE TEL. CO. 2 18,000.00 0.13% Filipino

3)

4)

ITEM 6.

There is no acquisition, business combination or other reorganization that may
affect the amount and percentage of the present equity holdings of each director and
nominee and of all directors and officers as a group nor are there any present
commitments to such persons with respect to the issuance of shares.

Dividends

Valley Golf is a non-profit club and does not declare any form of dividends.
Income eamings are being used for maintenance of the golf courses and to improve
services to the members.

Recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities.

Valley Golf has not sold any unregistered or exempt securities during the present
and previous fiscal years.

OPERATION.

1. PLAN OF OPERATION

OBJECTIVES:

a.
b.
c.

ACTION PLAN:

1.

Full implementation of the following priority capital expenditures:

To have a timely scheduled improvement of Club facilities and services.
Profitability and financial liquidity for operations and to fund various projects.

To ascertain that the ongoing processes for controlling operations throughout the
organization are adequately designed and functioning in an effective manner.

a. Renovation of Ladies’ Locker Room with a budget of P2.14 Million

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF

b. Lower Lanai Multi-Purpose Room with a budget of P3.96 Million
c. Renovation of Guests' Locker Room with a budget of P865k
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d. Implementation of the new Club Management and Accounting System with a
Budget of P4 Million by June 2021,

e. Installation of CCTV Cameras on vital areas of operation in the Clubhouses
with a budget of P500k by December 2021.

2. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The results of operations for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2020 is reflected in
the Audited Financial Reports. Gross Revenue from Operations amount to Php139.70
Million or a decrease of Php12.15 Million from last year's figure of Php151.86 Million.
Operating Expenses however increased from Php143.83 Million in 2019 to Php154.99
Million in 2020 or an increase of Php11.37 Million or 7.91%. Excess of revenue over
expenses for the year amount to (P15.29 Million) or a decrease of Php23.52 Million from
last year's excess of Php8.23 Million.

In a more detailed analysis of our Revenue sources, the significant decreases
are from our Green Fees by Php4.20 Million, Green Fee Coupons by Php0.97 Million,
Assessment for Road Maintenance by Php1.82 Miltion, Transfer Fee by Php1.04 Million,
Concessionaires’ Fee by Php1.36 Million, Golf Cart Rental by Php0.31 Million, Self
Insurance Fund & Service Fee by Php0.32 Million, Proshop Rental by Php0.24 Million
Tournament Fee by Php0.75 Million, Gain on Settlement by Php4.35 Million, Gain on
Sale of Property by Php2.77 Million and Interest Income by Php0.11 Million. On the
other hand the following revenue sources increased during the year Service Charge by
Php1.04 Million, Road Users’ Fee by Php1.51 Million, Miscellaneous Income by Php3.34
Million.

Our Operating Expenses increased due to maintenance works concentrated in
our golf courses and clubhouses as part of the Club’s effort to give back to our members
our excess revenues. The projects include purchase of Zoysia Japonica for the
rehabilitation of the fairways in the South Course - P115,469, Repair of Pumps -
P716,205, Maintenance of the Nursery — P657,174, Repair of Backhoe — P164,964,
Repair of Riprap in the North Course — P114,285, Labor costs for painting in the
Clubhouses — P 158,442, Repair of the satellite kitchen — P60,035 and Cleaning of
Lagoons — P652,827. External factors such as the 2.5% inflation rate in the later part of
2020, the implementation of the Supreme Court decision that declared that Membership
Dues, Assessments and fees of similar nature collected by Clubs do not constitute as: a)
“the income of recreational clubs from whatever source” that are subject to income tax;
and b) part of the “gross receipts of recreational clubs” that are subject to VAT, thus the
related Input Vat on expenses that Is use for maintenance, preservation and upkeep of
the Club's general operations and facilities related to members are to form part of the
recorded amount of expenses and the Covid 19 pandemic affected our expenses.

During the year the Treasury was able to finance various projects such as the
Rehabilitation of the Greens in the South Course, Repair of Bunkers in the South
Course, Improvement of the Motorpool roofing, Renovation of Swimming pool,
installation of Electronic Locks for the Men’s Lockers, Purchase of 10 units Electric Golf
Carts and 1 unit lce Maker.
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We would like to note the unfavorable variances in our Balance Sheet that
resulted from the closure of the Club Operations for aimost three months during the
Covid 19 quarantine pericd . Our Current Assets decreased by Php10.80 Million, from
Php70.49 in 2019 to Php59.69 Million in 2020. Our Property and Equipment decreased
by Php4.48 Million. Our total assets for the Fiscal year 2020 are Php285.58 Million. Our
Liabilities however, increased by Php3.21 Million due to provision for probable claims
and payables to suppliers that are not yet due.

The market value of our shares of stock has reached Php1.3 Million plus transfer
fee of P112,000. Our keen business decisions, the continuing development of our golf
courses and the upward trend of the golf clubs’ market are contributing factors for our
achievement. The Board is committed in its effort to maintain the steady increase in the
market value of our shares of stock. The scheme to gradually return the exclusivity of
the Club but at the same time introducing alternative revenue sources to cushion the
financial impact is a matter we are considering to pursue.

Valley Golf has no liquidity problems on its operations and projects and does not
anticipate any liquidity problems in the future. All interest payments are being paid on
due date and funds are available for the termination of loans when the need arises. All
trade payables are paid based on the credit terms.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial
condition or results of operation.

There are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is
material to Valley Golf. There is no anticipated default or acceleration of obligation.

There are no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations or other
relationships of the Club with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during the
fiscal year.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures.

There are no other trends, events or uncertainties that would have a material
favorable or unfaverable impact on net sales or revenues.

There are no significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from Valiey
Golf's continuing operations.

The FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS are as follows:

1. CURRENT RATIO - represents the ratio of current assets against
current liabilities. This ratio represents the liquidity of the Club or the available
current assets to settle the current liabilities.

Current Assets
Current Llabllitles

Current Ratio
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| As of June 30. 2020 as of June 30, 2019

| Current Assets 59.693.051.00 70,490,715.00
| Current Liabilities 44,735 954.00 45,837.718.00
| Current Ratio 1.33 | 1.54

This above ratio indicates that the Club is less liquid as compared to last year.
The principal cause of the decline in the liquidity ratio is the closure of the Club
due to the pandemic and the policy not to accept guests thus the decrease in
Cash and Cash equivalents by ‘P12,665,531. Current Liabilities however
increased due to the increase in Accrued provision for probable claims by
P4,790,929.

. ACID TEST RATIO - the ratio is an indicator of whether the Club has sufficient

short-term assets to cover its short-term liabilities. This ratio is more useful in
certain situations than the Current Ratio, also known as the working capita! ratio,
since it ignores assets such as inventory, which may be difficult to quickly
liquidate.

Acid Test Ratio Current Assets Less Inventory

Current Llabllitles

~ As of June 30, 2020 as of June 30, 2019

"Current Assets less

Inventory 55,848.377.00 66,328.409.00
Current Liabilities 44,735 ,954.00 | 45,837,718.00
Acid Test Ratio I 1.25 1.45

The amount of Current Assets less Inventory for Fiscal year 2020 decreased to

P55.85 Million from P66.33 Million in 2019 or a decrease of P10.48 Million, whereas the
Current Liabilities decreased by P1.10 Million. The decrease in the ratio indicates that
the Club is more liquid in FY 2019 than in FY 2020.

3. SOLVENCY RATIOS - are ratios that are calculated to judge the financial

position of the Club from a long-term solvency point of view. These ratios
measure the club’s ability to satisfy its long-term obligations and are closely
tracked by stockholders and investors to understand and appreciate the ability of
the business to meet its long-term liabilities and help them to assess the long-
term investment pf their funds in the business.

a. LONG-TERM DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO — aims to determine the amount of
long-term debt the Club has undertaken vis-a-vis the Equity and heips in
finding leverage of the business. The ratio also helps in identifying how much
long-term debt the Club has to raise compared to its equity contribution.
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Long-Term Debt to Equity Ratio =

Long-Term Debt

Total Equity

_As of June 30, 2020 as of June 30, 2019
Long-Term Liabilities 8.127,786 3,810,281
Total Members' Equity 242 712,820 263,548,671
Long Term Debt to Equity 03 01
Ratio e |

The increase in the Long-Term Debt Ratio from .01 in FY 2019 to .03 in FY 2020
indicates the increase in the long-term debt by P4.32 Million in relation to the

equity of the Club.

b. DEBT TO TOTAL ASSETS RATIO-

this represents the ratio of total

liabilities to total assets or the assets available to settle outstanding liabilities
of the Club. This is used to assess the tota! leverage of the business. The

higher the ratio, the higher the leverage and higher the financial risk on

account of a heavy debt obligation on the part of the business.

Total Liabilities
Debt to Total Assets Ratlo = Total Assets
As of June 30, 2020 as of June 30, 2019
Total Liabilities 52,863,740 49 647,999
Total Assets I 295,576 560 313.196,670
Debt to Total Assets Ratio 0.18 0.16 |

Liabilities for the year increased by P3,215,741, while assets decreased by

P17,620,110 thereby increasing the ratio. The decrease in assets is greater than the
decrease in liabilities, therefore there are less assets to settle the outstanding

liabilities of the Club.

c. PROPRIETARY RATIO - this ratio establishes between Stockholders' funds
and total assets of the business. It indicates the extent to which stockholders
funds have been invested in the assets of the business.

= Total Miembers’ Equity
Total Assets

Proprietary Ratlo

" As of June 30, 2020

as of June 30, 2019

Total Members' Equity

| 242 712 820

263,548,671
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Total Assets | 295,576,560 | 313,196,670 |

Asset to Equity Ratio | 0.82 | 0.84 |

The ratio decreased from 0.84 in FY 2019 to 0.82 in FY 2020, the lower the ratio
the higher the leverage and comparatively more is the financial risk on the part
of the Club.

DEBT TO EQUITY RATIO - the ratio is used to evaluate a company's
financial leverage. It is a measure of the degree to which a company is financing
its operation through debt versus wholly-owned funds. More specifically, it
reflects the ability of shareholders equity to cover all outstanding debts in the
event of a business downturn.

Total Llabilities
Debt to Equity Ratio = Total Members’ Equity
| Asof June 30, 2020 as of June 30, 2019 |
Total Liabilities 52.863.740 | 49,647,999
Total Members' Equity 242,712,820 263,548,671
Debt to Equity Ratio 0.22 019

This shows that in 2020 the ratio increased and thus the total liabilities comprise
a higher percentage of the total stockholders’ equity. This resulted from the
increase of the Accrued Provision for Probable Claims by P4.79 Million and
Retirement Benefit Obligation by P4.33 Million.

ASSET TO EQUITY RATIO — measures the proportion of the Club’s assets that
hae been funded by the Stockholders

Asset to Equity Ratio = Total Assets
Total Members’ Equity

| As of June 30, 2020 as of June 30, 2019
Total Assets | 295,576,560 313.196.670 |
Total Members’ Equity 242,712,820 263,548,671
Asset to Equity Ratio 1.22 1.19

The Total Assets decreased by P17.62 Million in Fiscal Year 2020 while the

Stockholders' Equity decreased by P20.83 Million thus the ratio increased, therefore
more of the assets were funded by shareholders than funded by debt.

6.

INTEREST RATE COVERAGE RATIO — measures the number of times a
company can make interest payments on its debt with its earnings before interest
and taxes. It is a debt ratio and profitability ratio used to determine how easily a
company can pay interest on its outstanding debt.
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Interest rate coverage ratlo = Earnings Before Interest and Taxes
Interest Expense

7.

' o | as of December 31, 2019 | as of June 30, 2019
EBIT ~ (15,289,709) | 8,229.674
interest Expense 0 0
Interest Rate Coverage Ratio o 0

This ratio is not applicable since the Club has no outstanding loan.

RETURN ON EQUITY - is calculated by dividing net income by shareholders’
equity. This is a profitability ratio that measures the ability of a fim to generate
profits from its shareholders investments in the company. The Return on Equity
ratio shows how much profit each Peso of stockholders’ equity generates.

Return on Equity = Net income (L oss)
Total Members’ Equity

As of June 30,2020 |  asofJune 30, 2019
Net Income (Loss) (17.198,344) | 6,965,564
Total Members’ Equity 242,712,820 263,548,671
Return on Equiity (.07) 03

The operations for Fiscal Year 2020 resulted to a net loss of (P17,198,344) thus
the Return on Equity Ratio is negative .07 which is lower by 1.00 to the .03 in
previous fiscal year. Each peso of Members’ Equity suffered a loss of (.07) in FY
2020. '

RETURN ON ASSETS (ROA) - measures the amount of profit the
company generates as a percentage of the value of its total assets.

Returmn on Assets = Net Income/{Loss)

Average Total Asaets

As of June 30, 2020 _as of June 30, 2019
Net Income/ (Loss) (17,198.344) 6,965,564 |
Average Total Assets | 295576560 | 313,196,670

_ Return on Assets (0.06) 0.02

Operations for Fiscal Year 2020 resulted to a net loss of (P17,198,344) as
compared to net income of P6,965,564 in Fiscal year 2019 or lower by
P24,163,908 and thus the rate of return on assets also decreased.
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9. NET PROFIT MARGIN - is a financial ratio used to calculate the percentage of
profit a company produces from its total revenue. It measures the amount of net
profit a company obtaine per Peso of revenue gained.

Net Profit Margin = Net Income/(Loss)
Total Revenue
As of June 30, 2020 as of June 30, 2019 |
'Net Income/ (Loss) | ~ (17.198,344) 6,965,564 |
Total Revenue 139,704,496 151,856,633 |
Net Profit Margin (12.31%) 4.58% |

Since the operations for the Fiscal year 2020 resulted to a net loss of
(17,198,344), the Net Profit Margin is (12.31%) which is 16.9% lower than last
year's 4.58%.

10. OTHER RATIOS

EARNING PER SHARE (EPS) - this represents the net income per
share of stock issued and outstanding and subscribed. The resulting number
serves as an indicator of a company’s profitability.

Net income/(Loss)

Earnings Per Share = Common Shares Outstanding
" AsofJune 30,2020 | as of June 30, 2019
Net Income/ (Loss) {17,198,344) 6,985,564
Common Shares Qutstanding 1,594 | 1,594
Debt to Total Assets Ratio (10,789.42) 4,369.86

For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2020 the net loss per share is (P10,789.42) while for
the Fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 the net income per share was P4,369.86. Net loss
for the year is (P17,198,344) or a decrease of P24,163,808 from the net income of
P6,965,564 for the year ended June 30, 2019,

The following are the detalls of the operatlons of the Club for the year 2020

A. OPERATING RESULTS
1. Revenues - revenues decreased from P151,856,633 in 2019 to

P139,704,496 in 2020 or a decrease of P12,152,137 or 8.00%. Significant
sources of the decrease are the Green Fees that decreased by P4,200,532
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and the Assessment for Road Maintenance that decreased by P1,817,327.
Other Revenue sources that showed decreases include Golf cart rental by
P314,848, Green Fee coupons by P968,347, Transfer Fee by P1,040,000,
Concessionaires’ Fee Main Clubhouse by P965,037, Concessionaires’ Fee
North Clubhouse by P398,062, Pro-shop rental by P243,557, Locators’ Fee
by P361,225, Self Insurance Fee by P184,200, Service Fee on Non Members
by P136,257, Tournament Fee by P751,056 and Rental of Driving Range by
P84,912.

Revenue sources that increased in the year 2020 include Patronage Fee by
P60,320, Service Charge by P1,044,279, Golf Cart Storage by P116,433,
Road Users’ Fee by P1,508,459, Monthly Dues by P185,577 and
Miscellaneous Income by P3,337,803.

Decrease in Green Fee is due to the decrease in total number of non-
member golfers who played in our courses from 23,027 in 2019 to 17,780
guests in 2020 brought about by the Covid 19 Pandemic quarantine
restrictions that closed the operations of the Club for almost three (3) months
and since Mar. 17, 2020 the Club has not allowed guests to play in
accordance with IATF Guidelines. Assessment for road maintenance
decreased due to decrease in quantity sold because of the closure of the
Club. Golf cart rental decreased due to decrease in number of rentals by
1,164 units, from 14,070 in 2019 to 12,906 in 2020 because of the closure of
the Club's operations during the pandemic and non-acceptance of guests.
income from Green Fee coupons decreased due to non-availment of the
coupons purchased by Prime Sports because of the restrictions on the
acceptance of guests during the quarantine period. Decrease in Transfer
Fee is mainly due to the decrease in number of members willing to sell or
transfer their shares to 39 party, 1* degree and foreigner. Decrease in
Concessionaires’ Fee was due to decrease in total sales of Main Clubhouse
Anix's by P7.53 Million, sales of North Clubhouse Jayj's by P5.66 Million and
Pro-shop Rental by P243,557 for this fiscal year. Locators’ Fee decreased
because of the Board Resolution that cancelled the imposition of the
Locators' Fee and instead the establishments along Don Celso Tuason will
pay the Road Users’ Fee. The Self Insurance Fee, Service Fee and
Tournament Fee decreased because of the decrease in the number of
guests. Rental of Driving Range decreased because of the waiver of the
rental fee for 3.5 months during the quarantine period.

Patronage Fee increased due to increase in number of members who availed
of the food and beverage of the concessionaires. Service Charge increased
because for the fiscal year 2020 there were 41 new members, 31 corporate
members and 89 renewals. Golf cart storage fee increased due to
conversion of some units from gasoline to electric with the difference in billing
by P200 per unit. increase in Road User's Fee is duse to increase in passing
thru vehicles by P1.5 Million. Monthly Dues increased due to assignment of
playing rights of the Proprietary Members, thus higher membership dues from
playing rights members. Miscellaneous Income increase due to change in
accounting treatment of accounts receivable from concessionaires by P3.94
Million.
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2. Cost and Expenses - For the fiscal year 2020 the total cost of services and
general and administrative expenses amount to P154,994,205 or an increase
of P11.37 Million or 7.91% from previous year’s figure of P143,626,959

Personnel Expenses decreased from P30,380,488 in 2019 to P29,334,697 or
a decrease of P1,045791 or 3%. Salaries and Wages decreased by
P673,437 because of the resignation of the Golf Director and the salary of the
General Manager recorded as Outside Services. Meal Allowance increased
by P4,760, 13" month Pay decreased by P48,528, Vacation, Sick leave
increased by P74,228, Overtime decreased by P208,260, SSS, Philhealth
and ECC increased by P126,638, Bonus and Gratuity Pay decreased by
P186,722, Retirement Benefit Expense decreased by P105,931, Empioyee of
the year decreased by P49,000 and Training and Seminar increased by
P20,461.

Supplies decreased from P19,373,244 in 2018 to P18,354,808 in 2020 or a
decrease of P1,018,437 or 5%. Stationeries and office supplies decreased
by P157,653, Gasoline and Oil Supplies increased by P2,843,272, Repairs &
Maintenance decreased by P3,314,704, Toilet and cleaning supplies
increased by P225,645, Janitorial supplies decreased by P201,495, Medical
and Dental supplies increased by P84,742 and Service supplies decreased
by P120,036. Swimming pool supplies decreased by P98,795, Linen
supplies increased by P126,264, Motorpool and Ground supplies decreased
by P19,091 and Miscellaneous supplies decreased by P398,887.

Utilities increased from P12,681,377 in 2019 to P14,673,327 in 2020 or an
increase of P1,991,950 or 168%. Electricity increased by P100,539,
Communication by P253,995 and Water by P1,637,4186.

Outside Services increased from P35,848,969 in 2019 to P42,377,884 in
2020 or an increase of P6,528,916 or 18%. Legal Fees increased by
P866,597, Retainers Fee by P1,675,742, Security Services by P1,362,817,
Golf Course Maintenance by P2,018,639 and Maintenance Crew by
P1,153,975. Audit Fees decreased by P54,351, Laundry Services by
P194,504 and Internal Audit Services by P300,000.

Sundries increased from P17,853,997 in 2019 to P18,270,256 in 2020 or an
increase of P416,258 or 2%. Taxes and Licenses increased by P1,027,601,
Insurance by P122,027, Ads & Publication by P30,756, Marketing Expenses
by P55,155, Provision for inventory obsolescence by P$55,483 and
Miscellaneous by P580,630. Transportation & travel decreased by P45,758,
Board, Committee and Stockholders Meeting by P151,132, Dues &
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Registration fees by P32,318, Promotional and Industrial by P186,603, Bank
Charges by P32,262, Self-insurance expense by P120,506 and Tournament
expenses by P886,813.

B. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

i

Cash and cash equivalents — went down from P46,752,642 in 2019 to
P34,087,111 or a decrease of P12,665,531 or 27.1%. Decrease resulted
from the net cash generated from operating activities amounting to P5.53
which is lower by P15.8 Million from last year's P21.33 Million due to the
net loss in the results of the operations of the Club. Net cash flow used in
investing activities amounting to (P18.19) Million due to additions of
property and equipment amounting to P17.93 Million offset by disposals
of Land Improvements of P153,745, Ground Tools, Service Machinery &
Equipment of P789,588, Fumiture and fixtures of P335,179 and
Transportation Equipment of P1,026,783.

Trade and other receivables — went up from P14,049,760 in 2019 to
P16,987,794 in 2020 or an increase of P2,8938,034 or 20.9%. Increase
was due to increase in Members account by P805,550 and Other
Receivables by P2,375695 whine Allowance for doubtful accounts
increased by P243,212.

Other current assets — decreased from P9,688,312 in 2019 to P8,618,146
in 2020 or a decrease of P1,070,166 or 11%. Decrease resulted from
decrease in supplies inventory and recoverable input vat amounting to
P317,631 and P290,113 respectively. Another source of the decrease is
the short term investment of P866,224.

Property and equipment — decreased from P233,177,487 in 2019 to
P228,695,886 in 2020 or a decrease of P4,481,601 or 1.9%. The
decrease was due to Improvements in the South Course such as the
Rehabilitation of the Greens — P1,964,285, Rehabilitation of Bunkers —
P1,848,704 and Purchase of two units pumps and accessories —
P1,210,491. Other increases include Reblocking along Don Celso
Tuason Ave. — P7,845491, Dredging of Ponds both in the South and
North Courses — P4,221,428, Purchase of 10 units Electric Golf Carts —
P2,767,857, Purchase of Operations and Maintenance Equipment —
P2,501,304 and Improvement in the Motorpool Area roofing — P559,933.
However, the Accumulated Depreciation increased by P20,556,954 thus
the Property and Equipment decreased.

Investment properties — went down from P2,911,947 in 2019 to P349,053
in 2020 or a decrease of P2,562,894 or 88%. Depreciation for the fiscai
year 2020 for the North clubhouse is P2.56 Million.

Deferred tax asset — amount for year ended June 30, 2020 is P684,991.
This figure is arrived at deducting the Provision for deferred tax the year
recognized in the Net Loss in the amount of P1,853,545 and adding the
Other Comprehensive Income of P1,558,831.
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7. Other non-current assets — increased from P863,123 in 2019 to
P1,334,064 in 2020 or an increase of P471,841 or 54.7%. Increase is
due to Computerization Project in the amount of P245,000 and Advances
to Suppliers of P285,400.00

8. Trade and other payables — decreased from P24,514,832 in 2019 to
P16,276,250 in 2020 or a decrease of P8,238,582 or 33.6%. Decrease
was due to decrease in Accounts Payable by P5.39 Million, Accounts
Payable Others by P 2.28 Million and Payable to Organizations, Lessors
and Cooperative by P928,606

9. Members' Deposits and Others went up from P13,547,957 in 2019 to
P15,484,520 in 2020 or an increase of P1,936,563 or 14.3%. Increase
resulted from refundable cash deposits from members, Credit balances of
former members and advance payments made by the members to avail
of the 1 month discount promo of the Club upon payment of 1 year
monthly dues.

10. Retirement benefit obligation —increased from P3,645,579 in 2019 to
P7,976,808 in 2020 or an increase of P4,331,229 or 118.8% due to
increase in the present value of benefit obligation as per actuarial
valuation.

11.Members’ Equity —decreased from P263,548,671 in 2019 to
P242,712,820 in 2020 or a decrease of P20,835,851 or 7.8%.

Fiscal Year 2019

A. OPERATING RESULTS

1

Revenues — revenues increased from P131,024,822 in 2018 to P151,856,633
in 2019 or an increase of P20,831,811 or 15.90%. Significant sources of the
increase are the Green Fees that increased by P3,251,793 and the
Assessment for Road Maintenance that increased by P3,390,891. Other
Revenue sources that showed increases include Golf cart rental by
P1,169,199, Transfer Fee by P880,000, Service Charge by P1,459,529,
Locker rental by P54,321, Concessionaires’ Fee Main Clubhouse by
P578,223, Golf Cart Storage Fee by P280,386, Road Users' Fee by
P1,886,913, Self Insurance Fee by P114,643, Service Fee on Non Members
by P58,124, Tournament Fee by P683,288, Locators Fee by P112,45¢ and
Miscellaneous Income by P2,058,769.

Revenue sources that decreased in the year 2019 include Patronage Fee by
P123,609, Green Fee coupons by P516,623 and Monthly Dues by P84,493.

Increase in Green Fee is due to the increase in total number of non-member
golfers who played in our courses from 21,458 to 23,028 guests. Increase in
Road User's Fee is due to increase in passing thru vehicles by P2.04 Million.
Golf cart rental increased due to additional 30 units electric golf carts that
were purchased during the year and increase in number of rentals by 1,609
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units, from 12,461 in 2018 to 14,070 in 2019. Increase in Transfer Fee is
mainly due to the increase in number of members willing to sell or transfer
their shares to 39 party, 1% degree and foreigner. Increase in
Concessionaires’ Fee was due to increase in total sales of Main Clubhouse
Anix’s by P4.8 Million for this fiscal year. Service Charge increased because
for the fiscal year 2019 there were 26 new members and 96 renewals all at
full rate as compared to the discounted promo rates in fiscal year 2018. Golf
cart storage fee increased due to increase in number of golf carts in storage
from 385 units in 2018 to 408 units in 2018 or an increase of 23 units.
Assessment for road maintenance increased due to increase in the prices of
the car stickers and increase in quantity sold by 1,440 pcs. Miscellaneous
income increase due to change in accounting treatment of accounts
receivable from concessionaires by P1 Million, Income from wheel clamping
by P94k and fake stickers by P178k.

Cost and Expenses - For the fiscal year 2019 the total cost of services and
general and administrative expenses amount to P143,626,959 or an increase
of P25.26 Million or 21.34% from previous year’s figure of P118,363,066

Personnel Expenses increased from P27,400,954 in 2018 to P30,380,488 in
2019 or an increase of P2,979,534 or 11%. Salaries and Wages increased
by P1,927,451 CBA increase of P550.00 and in-house hiring of Internal
Auditor and Golf Director. Corresponding increases in overtime, SSS,
Philhealth, 13th month pay and the Employee of the Year incentive program.
Meal Allowance increased by P110,400, 13" month Pay increased by
P184,739, Vacation, Sick leave increased by P173,60, Overtime increased by
P2681,440, SSS, Philhealth and ECC increased by P195,862, Bonus and
Gratuity Pay increased by P195,998 and Training and Seminar decreased by
P127,155.

Supplies increased from P13,393,444 in 2018 to P19,373,244 in 2018 or an
increase of P5,979,801 or 45%. Stationeries and office supplies increased by
P184,773, Gasoline and Oil Supplies by P255,416, Repairs & Maintenance
by P5.37 Million, Toilet and cleaning supplies by P72,590, Janitorial supplies
by P196,501, Medical and Dental supplies by P40,432 and Service supplies
by P20,841. Swimming pool supplies decreased by P5,332, Linen supplies
by P4,311, Motorpool and Ground supplies by P64,6843 and Miscellaneous
supplies by P103,296.

Utilities increased from P10,093,474 in 2018 to P12,681,377 in 2019 or an
increase of P2,587,903 or 26%. Electricity increased by P2,691,756 and
Communication by P67,612, Water decreased by P71,483.

Outside Services increased from P31,299,532 in 2018 to P35,848,969 in
2019 or an increase of P4,549,436 or 15%. Legal Fees increased by
P492,7220, Audit Fees by P181,120, Security Services by P1,337,657,
Laundry Services by P69,050 and Maintenance Crew by P2,725331.
Retainers Fee decreased by P1,434 and Internal Audit Services by P269,035

Sundries increased from P17,931,275 in 2018 to P17,853,997 or a decrease
of P77,278 or .43%. Taxes and Licenses increased by P504,393,
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Transportation and Travel by P48,136, Insurance by P59,637, Board,
Committee and Stockholders Meeting by P164.877, Marketing Expenses by
P140,345, Dues & Registration fees by P31,313, Promotional and Industrial
by P160,639, Bank Charges by P84,830 and Miscellaneous by P1,084,212.
Prompt payment discount decrease by P263,214, Self-insurance expense by
P179,079, Write-off on inventory loss by P72,908, Tournament expenses by
P1,693,277 and Provision for inventory obsolescence by P55,483.

. BALANCE SHEET ACCOUNTS

. Cash and cash equivalents — went up from P44,044,150 in 2018 to P46,752,642
in 2019 or an increase of P2,708,492 or 6.15%. Increase resulted from the net
cash generated from operating activities amounting to P20.16 Million due to the
positive operating results of the Club. Net cash flow used in investing activities
amounting to P17.45 Milion due to additions of property and equipment
amounting to P25.79 Million offset by proceeds from sale of property &
equipment and proceeds from sale of investment property amounting to P3.7
Million and P4.9 Million, respectively.

. Trade and other receivables — went up from P11,865,726 in 2018 to P14,049,761
in 2019 or an increase of P2,184,035 or 18.41%. Increase was due to increase
in Members account by P1,840,015 and Other Receivables by P344,019.

. Other current assets — went up from P7,285,053 in 2018 to P9,688,312 in 2019
or an increase of P2,403,259 or 32.99%. Increase resulted from increase in
supplies inventory mainly attributable to sprinkiers and deferred input tax
amounting to P1,036,186 and P655,368 respectively. Another source of the
increase is the short term investment of P666,224.

. Property and equipment — went up from P226,576.571 in 2018 to P233,177,487
in 2019 or an increase of P§,600,816 or 2.91%. The increase was due tc
purchase of transportation & operations equipment of P12.82 Million,
Construction in Progress — DCTA Road Reblocking of P8.82 Million and
Construction in Progress — Dredging of Ponds of P1.59 Million.

. Investment properties — went down from P5,580,860 in 2018 to P2,911,947 in
2019 or a decrease of P2,668,913 or 47.82%. Depreciation for the fiscal year
2018 for the North clubhouse is P2.66 Million.

. Deferred tax asset — amount for year ended June 30, 2019 is P979,605. This
figure is arrived at deducting the deferred tax liability of P1,418,786 from the
deferred tax asset of P2,398,390

_ Other non-current assets — went down from P874,372 in 2018 to P863,123 in
2019 or a decrease of P11,249 or 1.29%. Decrease is due to the depreciation of
the Computer Software.

. Trade and other payables — went up from P17,735,086 in 2018 to P24,514,832 in

2019 or an increase of P8,779,748 or 38.23%. Increase was due to unpaid
portion of the installment purchase of 20 units goif cart in the amount of P3
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Million, suppliers for the Don Celso Tournament that are net yet due in the
amount of P1.76 Million and payable to previous security agency of P929,980.

9. Members’ Deposits and Others went up from P11,884,376 in 2018 to
P13,547,957 in 2019 or an increase of P1,663,582 or 14%. Increase resuited
from former members account on the sale of delinquent shares through public
auction, refundable cash deposits from members and advance payments made
by the members to avail of the 1 month discount promo of the Club upon
payment of 1 year monthly dues.

10. Retirement benefit obligation —decreased from P5,189.476 in 2018 to P3,645,579
in 2019 or a decrease of P1,543,897 or 29.75% due to decrease in the present
value of benefit obligation as per actuarial valuation.

11. Members' Equity —increased from P255,917,285 in 2018 to P263,548,671 in
2019 or an increase of P7,631,386 or 2.98%.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Attached Reports :

1. Statement of Management Responsibility

2. Audited Financial Statements for 2020 and 2019
3. Schedules A — G under RSA Rule 68
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR.FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and
fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached therein, for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting
framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Club or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholder or members.

Sycip, Gorres, Velayo & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for the
years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively, has audited the financial statements of the
Club in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in its report to the
stockholders or members, has expressed its opinion on the fairness of presentation upon
completion of such audit.

Gecinoni omeas

Treasurer

L

SEP. 25 2020.

Signed this______ day of
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CAINTA, RizAL! . Affiant exhibiting to me his/her T#x Identification as
indicated before his/her name and signature above. AL WA,
iDREW V. FERRER
) NETARY PUBLIC UNTIL DEC.\31, 2023
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From: eafs@bir.gov.ph

Sent: October 8, 2020 01:57 PM

To: INFO@VALLEYGOLF.COM.PH

Cc: ELDAJUGO@VALLEYGOLF.COM.PH

Subject: Your BIR AFS eSubmission uploads were received

Hi VaLLEY GOLE ANR GRUNTRY ELUB, INC.;

Valid files
« EAFS0006491970THTY062020-03.pdf
o EAFS000649197AFSTY062020.pdf
o EAFS0006491970THTY062020-02.pdf
o EAFS0006491970THTY062020-04.pdf
o EAFS0006491970THTY062020-05.pdf
e EAFS0006491970THTY062020-01.pdf
e EAFS000649197ITRTY062020.pdf

Invalld file

e <None>

Transaction Code:AFS-D-ZXNXS)(R:MSVXVPZTNMXZT3$ZOQZMQYYQN
Submission Date/Time: Oct 08, 2020 01:56 PM
Company TIN: 000-649-197

Please be reminded that you accepted the terms and conditions for the use of this portal and expressly agree, warrant
and certify that:

¢ The submitted forms, documents and attachments are complete, truthful and correct based on the personal
knowledge and the same are from authentic records;

e The submission is without prejudice to the right of the BIR to require additional document, if any, for completion
and verification purposes;

e The hard copies of the documents submitted through this facility shall be submitted when required by the BIR in
the event of audit/investigation and/or for any other legal purpose.

This is a system-generated e-mail. Please do not reply.

DISCLAIMER

This email and its attachments may be confidential and are intended solely
for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed.

If you are not the intended recipient of this email and its attachments, you
must take no action based ‘upon them, nor must you disseminate, distribute or
copy this e-mall. Please contact the sender immediately if you believe you

1 .
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANNUAL INCOME TAX RETURN

The Management of Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. is responsible for all information and
representations contained in the Annual Income Tex Return for the year ended June 30, 2020.
Management is likewise responsible for all information and representations contained in the
andited fifancial statements accompanying the Annual Income Tax Réturn covering the same
reporting period. Furthermore, the Management is responsible for all information and
representations contained in all the other tax returns filed for the reporting period, including, but
not limited to, the value added tax and/or percentage tax returns, withholding tax retums,
documentary stamp tax returns, and any and all other tax returns.

In this regard, the Management affirms that the attached audited financial staternents for the year

ended June 30, 2020 and the accompanying Annual Income Tax Return are in accordance with

the books and records of Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. complete and correct in all material -
respects, Management likewise affirms that:

(2) the Annual Income Tax Return has been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the
National Internal Revenue Code, as amended, and pertinent tax regulations and other
issuances of 1he Department of Finance and the Bureau of Internal Revenue;

(b) any disparity of figures in the submitted reports arising from the preparation of financial
statements pursuant to financial accounting standards and the preparation of the income tax
return pursuant to tax accournting rules has been reported as reconciling items and
maintained in the company’s books and records in accordance with the requirements of
Revenue Regulations No. 8-2007 and other relevant issuances;

(c) Valley Golf and Country Club, Inc. has filed all applicable tax retumns, reports and
statements required to be filed under Philippine tax laws for the reporting period, and all
taxes and other impositions shown thereon to be due and payable have been paid for the
reporting period, except those contested in good faith,

Chairman of the Board and President HEFREDO G. MANAHAN

Signature: L '
Treasurer: LEOPOIDO M. GARCIA

SEP-34 2020

Signed this day of
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AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEC Reglstration Number
1(3(92]5]1

v|iA|lL|L|E|Y]| |G|O

Cl. (A Njo|n

PRINCIPAL OFFICE (No./ Strost/ Barangay / Clty / Town / Provincs )

Form Type Department requlring the report Secondary Licanse Typs, If Applicable
AlA|F|S CIRIM|D
| COMPANY INFORMATION |
Gompany's Emafl Address Company’s Telephone Number Mobile Number
info@valleygolf.com.ph 658-4901 to 03 N/A
No. of Stockhelders Annual Meeting {Month / Day) Figcal Year (Month / Day)
1,594 4th Sunday of September June 30
CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
The designated contact parson MUST be an Officer of the Corparation
Name of Conlact Paraon Emall Addrass Telaphone Numberfs Mobile Number
rosannaarguelles@valley
Rosanna R. Arguelles olf.com.ph 658-4901 0920-9762-483

CONTACT PERSON's ADDRESS

Block 4A Lot 21, Modena St.,Trails of Maia Alta, Brgy. Dalia, Antipolo City

NOTE 1: In cese of death, mdgnaﬂonorcessaﬂmofoﬂhafﬂleoﬁcerdeelgnmdnmctpmn.auchhddsntmaﬂbsrapor!sdhﬂ:ecamnﬂsslonmm
thirly {30) calendar days from the ocourrence thereof with Informetion and complete contact delalls of the new contact person designafed.

2: Al Boxes must be propetly and complotely filed-up. Faliure fo do 50 shalf cause the delay in updating the corparafion’s racords with the Commission
and/or non-recelpt of Notios of Deficiencies. Further, not-recelpt of Notice of Deficlencies shalf not excisse the corporation from Hablity for its deficlencies.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Don Celso S. Tuason Ave.

Antipolo City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (a nonprofit orgenization)
(the Club), which comprise the statements of financial position as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and the
statements of income, statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in members’ equity
and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2020, and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Club as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2020 in accordance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRSs).
Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Club in accordance with the
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with PFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Club or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control,

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease to continue as a going
concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on the Supplementary Information Required Under Revenue Regulations 15-2010

Gt Gl Wt Snded o o plrpe o omingan opiod o e s Sl sements ke

the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal Revenue and is not
a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of the management
of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

- etk
Peter John R. Ventura
Partner
CPA Certificate No. 0113172
SEC Accreditation No. 1735-A (Group A),
January 15, 2019, valid until January 14, 2022
Tax Identification No. 301-106-741
BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-140-2018,
December 17, 2018, valid until December 16, 2021
PTR No. 8125315, January 7, 2020, Makati City

August 29, 2020
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30
T 2020 2019
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) $34,087,111 £46,752,642
Trade and other receivables (Note 5) 16,987,794 14,049,761
Other current assets (Note 6) 8.618.146 9.688.312
Total Current Assets 59.693.051 70.490.715
Noncurrent Assets
Property and equipment (Note 7) 228,695,886 233,177,487
Investment properties (Note 8) 349,053 2,911,947
Trust fund (Note 9) 4,818,615 4,773,793
Deferred tax assets - net (Note 24) 684,991 979,605
Other noncurrent assets (Note 10 1.334.964 863,123
Total Noncurrent Assets 235.883.509 242.705.955
TOTAL ASSETS . . £295.576.560 $313.196.670
LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables (Note 11) B16,276,250 £24,514,832
Members’ deposits and others (Note 12) 15,484,520 13,547,957
Contract liabilities (Notel3) 7,164,515 6,755,189
Accrued provision for probable claims (Note 14) 5.810.669 1.019.740
Total Current Liabilities  44.735.954 45,837,718
Noncurrent Liabilities
Retirement benefit obligation (Note 26) 7,976,808 3,645,579
Other noncurrent liabilitv (Note 20) 150.978 164,702
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8.127.786 3,810,281
Total Liabilities 52.863.740 49,647,999
Members’ Equity
Capital stock (Note 15) 14,346,000 14,346,000
Contributions in excess of par value 201,627,772 201,627,772
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses (Note 15) 26.739.048 47.574 899
Total Members® Equity 242,712,820 263.548.671
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS’ EQUITY B295.576,560 £313,196,670

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC,

(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended June 30
- 2020 2019 2018
REVENUES
Revenue from contracts with customers (Note 16) $#123,666,014  R135,105,293
Rentals (Note 20) 15,343,492 15,945,144 13,886,742
Interest income (Notes 4 and 9) 694,990 806,196 507,362
Members® dues (Note 17) - - 52,394,200
Green fees (Note 18) - - 22,220,657
Assessment for road maintenance - - 11,920,146
Transfer fees - - 5,810,000
Concessionaires’ fees (Note 19) - - 5,155,832
Patronage fees (Note 17) - - 3,657,382
Service charge on playing guests - - 2,872,531
Miscellaneous income (Notes 7, 8, 16 and 18) -~ - 12,599,970
139,704,496 151,856,633 131,024,822
COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of services (Note 21) 131,011,939 123,749,600 102,378,411
General and administrative (Note 22) 23,982,266 19,877,359 15,984,655
154,994,205 143,626,959 118,363,066
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES BEFORE INCOME
TAXES (15,289,709) 8,229,674 12,661,756
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES
{Note 24) 1.908.635 1.264.110 479,366
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES {P17,198.344) 6,965,564 £12,182,390

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended June 30
= = 2020 2019 2018
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES (P17,198.344) $6.965.564 £12.182.3%0
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (LOSS)
Item not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obligation (Note 26) (5,196,438) 951,175 (97,117)
Income tax effect 1.558.931 (285.353) 29.135
(3.637,507) 665,822 (67.982)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
__(LOSS) - (£20.835.851) $7.631,386 £12,114.408

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit Organization)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN MEMBERS’ EQUITY

Years Ended June 30
- . 2020 .2019. 2018
CAPITAL STOCK (Note 15)
Issued and outstanding:
Balance at beginning of year P14,346,000 14,346,000 14,337,000
Issuance of shares - - 9.000
Balance at end of vear 14,346.000 14.346.000 14.346.000
CONTRIBUTIONS IN EXCESS OF
PAR VALUE
Balance at beginning of year 201,627,772 201,627,772 201,403,972
Premium on shares issued - - 223800
Balance at end of vear 201.627.772 201.627.772  201.627.772
ACCUMULATED EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENSES (Note 15)
Balances at beginning of vear B 47,574,899 39.943.513 27.829,105
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses (17,198,344) 6,965,564 12,182,390
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
 benefit oblipation - net of tax 13,637.507) 665,822 167.982)
Total comprehensive income (20.835.851) 7,631.386 12,114,408
Balance at end of vear 26,739.048 47,574 899 39,943,513
TOTAL MEM};E]_!S' EQUITY B242,712.820  $263,548 671 #255917.285

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

(A Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30
= ..2020. . ... 2019 2018
CASH FLOWS FROM Orfna¥iNe Avtdveiis
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses before
income taxes (#15,289,709) 8,229,674 212,661,756
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization (Notes 7, 8 and 10) 25,040,564 21,978,752 18,194,589
Movement in retirement benefit obligation (865,209) (592,722) (594,571)
Interest income (Notes 4 and 9) (694,990) (806,196) (507,362)
Gain on sals of property and equipment and investment
properties (Notes 7, 8 and 16) (320,536) (7,442,159) {7,020,564)
Provision for expected credit losses on receivables
(Note 5) 243,212 (7,067) -
Interest expense (Note 22) 10,575 10,081 49,808
Reversal of inventory obsolescence - (55,483) -
Loss on write-off of property and equipment - - 4,482
Transfer fee on issuance of share - - 160.000)
Operating income before working capital changes 8,123,907 21,314,880 22,728,138
Decrease {increase) in:
Trade and other receivables (3,139,966) (2,093,772) 1,722,954
Other current assets 1,015,076 (3,716,636) (2,648,305)
Increase (decrease) in;
Trade and other payables (8,238,582) 6,779,746 3,677,173
Accrued provision for probable claims 4,790,929 - -
Members® deposits and others 1,936,563 1,663,582 2,176,361
Contract liabilities 409,326 1,204,989 -
Membership dues paid in advance - - 329,400
Payuble to contractor - (4.523.504) -
Net cash generated from operations 4,897,253 20,629,285 27,985,721
Interest received 639,987 709,274 653,631
Interest jaid (10,575} (10.081) (49,808)
Net cash flows zencrated from uperaiing: activities 5,526.665 21328478 28,589,544
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment (Notes 7 and 28) (17,926,910)  (25,794,656)  (16,198,106)

Decrease (increase) in:

Other noncurrent assets {541,000) (120,373) 2,325,635

Trust fund (44,822) (162,639) (319,104)
Proceeds from sale of:

Property and equipment (Note 7) 320,536 3,100,000 2,375,000

Investment properiies (Wote 81 - 4357.682 5.300.000
Net cash flows used in investing activities (18,192.1%)  (18.619.986) 16.516.575)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (12,665,531) 2,708,492 22,072,969
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 40,752,642 44044150 21,971,181
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR (Mote 4} $34,087.111 P46.752 642  P44.044,150

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(A Nonprofit Organization) ’

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1: Corporate Information
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Philippine Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on May 14, 1958 as a nonprofit organization
for a term of 50 years up to 2008. The Club’s corporate life was extended for another 50 years from
May 15, 2008 as confirmed and ratified by the stockholders on November 18, 2007 and was
subsequently approved by the SEC on April 29, 2008. On July 17, 1963, the SEC granted the Club a
secondary license to sell its securities to the public.

The primary purpose of the Club is to foster and promote the game of golf and operate and maintain a
golf course and country club and, generally, to do and perform all such acts and things, and exercise
such powers as are ordinarily done, performed and exercised by social and athletic clubs and
associations.

Prior to 2012, the Club is exempt from payment of income tax on income received from social,
recreational, and athletic activities on a nonprofit basis provided that no part of the Club’s income shall
inure to the benefit of any of its members, trustees and officers. Under Section 30 (E) of the Tax Reform
Act of 1997, an organization organized for recreational, sports and athletic activities shall be exempt
from payment of income tax on income received from aforementioned activities.

On August 3, 2012, the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) issued Revenue Memorandum Circular
(RMC) No. 35-2012 clarifying that clubs organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recreation
and other non-profit purposes are subject to income tax and value-added tax (VAT) on their income
from whatever source, including but not limited to membership fees, assessment dues, rental income,
and service fees,

On August 13, 2019, the Supreme Court declared that membership fees, assessment dues, and fees of
similar nature collected by Clubs which are organized and operated exclusively for pleasure, recreation,
and other nonprofit purposes do not constitute as: (a) “the income of recreational clubs from whatever
source” that are “subject to income tax™; and (b) part of the “gross receipts of recreational clubs” that
are “subject to VAT”. Accordingly, the Club did not collect the related output VAT for membership
fees, assessment dues, and fees of similar nature.

The registered office of the Club, which is also its principal place of business, is located at
Don Celso S. Tuason Ave., Antipolo City.

The Club’s Board of Directors (BOD) approved the issuance of the financial statements as at
June 30, 2020 and 2019 and for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2020 on
August 29, 2020.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Club have been prepared on a historical cost basis and are presented in
Philippine peso (B}, which is the Club’s functional and presentation currency. All values are rounded
to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements provide comparative
information in respect of the previous period.



Statement of Compliance
The financial statements of the Club have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Chanpes ini Acdotinting Policies and Disclosures _

Gc Hrkeupting policieg adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, t that th
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these pronouncements did not have eny significant impact on the Club’s financial position or

performance.

e PFRS 16, Leases

PFRS 16 supersedes PAS 17, Leases, Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 4, Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, Philippine Interpretation SIC-15, Operating Leases-Incentives and
Philippine Interpretation SIC-27, Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognize most leases on the statement

of financial position.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases: operating and finance leases. Therefore,
PFRS 16 did not have an impact for leases where the entity is the lessor.

The Club adopted PFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach upon adoption of PFRS 16
in July 1, 2019 and elects to apply the standard to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying PAS 17 and Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-4. The Club will therefore not apply the
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as containing a lease applying PAS 17 and
Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-4.

The Club has no lease contracts where the Club is the lessee. Accordingly, the adoption of PFRS
16 had no impact on the financial statements of the Club.

o Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

» Amendments to PFRS 9, Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

e Amendments to PAS 19, Employee Benefits, Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement
s Amendments to PAS 28, Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

o Annual Improvements to PFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

s Amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations, and PFRS 11, Joint Arrangements,
Previously Held Interest in a Joint Operation

» Amendments to PAS 12, Income Tax Consequences of Payments on Financial Instruments
Classified as Equity

s Amendments to PAS 23, Borrowing Costs, Borrowing Costs Eligible for Capitalization

LTI
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Standards and Inierpretations Issued but'not vet Effective

Pronouncements issued but not yet effective are listed below. Unless otherwise indicated, the Club does
not expect that the future adoption of the said pronouncements will have a significant impact on its
financial statements. The Club intends to adopt the following pronouncements when they become
efféctive.

Effective beginning on or afier suly 1, 3b2e

Amendments to PFRS 3, Definition of a Business .

The amendments to PFRS 3 clarify the minimum requirements to be a business, remove the
assessment of a market participant’s ability to replace missing elements, and narrow the definition
of outputs. The amendments also add guidance to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and add illustrative examples. An optional fair value concentration test is introduced which permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business,

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

Amendments to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, and PAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, Definition of Material

The amendments refine the definition of material in PAS 1 and align the definitions used across
PFRSs and other pronouncements. They are intended to improve the understanding of the existing
requirements rather than to significantly impact an entity’s materiality judgements,

An entity applies those amendments prospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after January 1, 2020, with earlier application permitted.

Effective beginning on or after July 1, 2021

PFRS 17, Insurance Coniracts

PFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition
and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, PFRS 17 will replace PFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. This new standard on insurance contracts applies to all types of insurance
contracts (i.e., life, non-life, direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the type of entities
that issue them, as well as to certain guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions will apply.

The overall objective of PFRS 17 is to provide an accounting mode! for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to the requirements in PFRS 4, which are largely
based on grandfathering previous local accounting policies, PFRS 17 provides a comprehensive
model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The core of PFRS 17 is
the general model, supplemented by:

* A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)
o A simplified approach (the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

PFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021, with comparative
figures required. Early application is permitted.

SRR GEE



Deferred effectivity

o Amendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, and PAS 28, Sale or Contribution
of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

Th& amendments address the conflict between PFRS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
COMEIO] OF  Btisdivioibyl (it L Bwid Wi dnasbelAbs] ish ot MUaMLI) wie fuliie wriabiabis, Thu sbbisoslons it
clarify that a full gain or loss is recognized when a transfer to an associate or joint venture involves
a business as defined in PFRS 3. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets
that does not constitute a business, however, is recognized only to the extent of unrelated investors’

interests in the associate or joint venture,

On January 13, 2016, the Financial Reporting Standards Council deferred the original effective
date of January 1, 2016 of the said amendments until the Interational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) completes its broader review of the research project on equity accounting that may result
in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting for
associates and joint ventures.

Amendments to this standard will have no impact on the Club's financial position or performance
since it has no investments in an associate or joint venture.

Current versus non-current classification

The Club presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current and

noncurrent classification. An asset is current when it is:

o Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle;

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

» Expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; or

» Cash and cash equivalents unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as noncurrent.

A liability is current when:

» Itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

o Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

o Itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period

The Club classifies all other liabilities as noncurrent.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities ere classified as noncurrent assets and liabilities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments

that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less
from dates of acquisition and that are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

N Ml



Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), and fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual
cash flow characteristics and the Club’s business mode! for managing the financial assets. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component the Club initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at FVTPL, transaction
costs.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortized cost or FVOCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding, This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level.

The Club’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Club commits to purchase or sell the asset.

The Club’s financial assets are in the nature of financial assets at amortized cost. As at June 30, 2020
and 2019, the Club has no financial assets classified as FVOCI and FVTPL.

Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

» Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

» Financial assets at FVOCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments)

» Financial assets designated at FVOCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon
derecognition (equity instruments)

» Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)
The Club measures financial assets at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

e The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPPI
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate (EIR)

method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of income
when the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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The Club’s financial assets at amortized cost includes cash and cash equivalents, trade and other
receivables, short-term investments under “Other current assets” and trust fund (see Notes 4, 5, 6,
and 9).

1n .pa:rment ef Fmanc:lal Assets

The Emb fecos an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruinents not held
at FVTPL, ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual vash iews dus in sugosdunce with

the contract and all the cash flows that the Club expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of
the original EIR. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing
of the default (a lifetime ECL).

For cash in bank and cash equivalents, short-term deposits under “Other currents assets” account and
trust fund, the Club applies the low credit risk simplification. The probability of default and loss given
defaults are publicly available and are considered to be low credit risk investments. It is the Club’s
policy to measure ECLs on such instruments on a 12-month basis, However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime ECL.
The Club considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due,

For trade and other receivables, the Club applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore,
the Club does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLe at each reporting date. The Club has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Definition of default

The Club considers the following ds constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable.

» when there is a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty; or

o information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Club, in full (without taking into account any collaterals
heid by the Club).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Club considers that default has occurred when a financial asset

is more than 120 days past due unless the Club has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more conservative default criterion is more appropriate.



Credit-impaired ﬁnancml assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is

credit-impaired includes observable data about the following events:

a% sipdificakit financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;

b) a breach of contract, such as'a defauit or past due event

¢) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having

d) granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

e) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

or
f) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

The Club implements & policy on its receivables, wherein members in the delinquent list or those with
accounts that are past due for a certain period are reported to the BOD. The respective shares of the
members or of the juridical entities they represent shall be ordered sold by the BOD, through an auction,
to satisfy the claims of the Club.

Write-off policy

The Club writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or hes entered into bankruptey proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under the Club’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized the statement of income.

Derecounition of Financial Assets
A financial asset {or, where appliceble a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have explred

o the Cluyb retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; or

o the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

‘Where the Club has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing
involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Club could
be required to repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option (including a cash-
settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Club’s continuing
involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the Club may repurchase, except that in the case
of a written put option (including a cash-setfled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at
fair value, the extent of the Club’s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.



Financial Liabilities

Initial Recoznition and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivative designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial Habilitles are recognized inittaliy at fe value and, in ¢ase er (OBRS Befrewmigs and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Club has no financial liabilities at FVTPL and derivative instruments as at June 30, 2020 and 2019,

Subscauent Measurement of Financial Liabilities

Loans and borrowings and Payables

This is the category most relevant to the Club. After initial recognition, loans and borrowings and
payables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are
recognized in the statement of income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as
finance costs in profit or loss.

This category applies to trade and other payables and members’ deposit and others (see Notes 11
and 12).

Derecocnition of Financial Liabilities

A financia] liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or has expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of
income.

Offseitinge of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of
financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforcesble legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The Club assesses that it has currently enforceable right of offset if the right is not
contingent on a future event and is legally enforceable in the normal course of business, event of default,
and event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Club and all of the counterparties.

Fair Value Measurement

The Club measures financiel instruments and non-financial assets at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

o In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Club.

BRI SR
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest,

A fair value meagurement of a nén-ﬁ:;gnciai asset takes info account a market participant's ability to
geneedté Scoriomic benefits by using the assef in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would nse the asses 1 iw Angheus saed tset use.

The Club uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient

data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is uncbservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Club
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Club has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained above.

Inventories

Inventories consist of gasoline, maintenance supplies, spare parts, office supplies and others.
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV). Costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present location and condition are accounted for using the first-in, first-out method.

NRV of the saleable merchandise is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. NRV of gasoline, maintenance supplies, spare parts and
others is the estimated replacement costs. In determining NRV, the Club considers any adjustment
necessary for spoilage, breakage and obsolescence. An allowance for inventory obsolescence is
determined based on a regular review and management evaluation of movement and condition of
supplies.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment, except for land, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, if any. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value,

The initial cost of property and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties, non-
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of such property and
equipment when the recognition criteria are met. Expenditures incurred after the property and
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equipment have been put into operations, such as repairs and maintenance and overhaul costs, are
normally charged to the statement of income in the period when the costs are incurred.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets:

Ca.t?ptk.,\ e - . Numiber of Years.
Land improvemenis §=310
Building and structures 5-50
Ground tools and services machinery and equipment 3-10
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10
Transportation equipment 5

Construction in progress is stated at cost. Depmciaﬁm is computed when the construction is completed.

The remaining useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from

items of property and equipment.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of income in the year the asset is derecognized.

Investment Properties

Investment properties consist of land and building held for rentals or capital appreciation or both.
Except for land, investment property is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment in
value for building. The cost of the investment property comprises its purchase price and other direct
costs. Depreciation on the building is computed on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life
of 20 years. Land is stated at cost less any impairment in value.

Transfers are made to investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced by ending of owner-
occupation, commencement of an operating lease to another party or ending of construction of
development. Transfers are made from investment property when there is a change in use, evidenced
by commencement of owner-occupation or commencement of development with a view to sale, These
transfers are recorded using the carrying amount of the investmént property at the date of the change in
use.

Gains or losses resulting from the sale of an investment property are recognized in statement of income.

Investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal, Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property is recognized in the statement of income in the year of retirement or disposal,

Compiter Software

Computer software included as part of “Other noncurrent assets” is initially recognized at cost.
Following initial recognition, computer software is carried at cost, less accumulated amortization and
any accumulated impairment in value,

B GER  ATAE
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Computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic life of three
(3) years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortization commences when the computer software is available for use, The period
and method of amortization for the computer software are reviewed at each end of the reporting period.
Changes in the estimatzd useful lifé is accountéd for by changing the amortization period or method,
as i{gﬁrdpﬂaté, aiid freafed as changes ih accouriting estimates. The amortization expense is recognized
1n the statement of invemd 11 WwWe oNPutile Yaidgolly voRSictent With the hipeden or e yomputey
software,

Impairment of Property and Equipment, Investment Properties and Computer Software

The Club assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that a nonfinancial asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Club makes a formal estimate of recoverable amount. The
nonfinancial asset’s estimated recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other nonfinancial assets or
group of nonfinancial assets, in which case the recoverable amount is assessed as part of the cash
generating unit to which it belongs. Where the carrying amount of the nonfinancial asset exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount, the nonfinancial asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
estimated recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated firture cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the nonfinancial asset. Fair value less costs to sell is the amount
obtainable from the sale of the nonfinancial asset or cash-generating unit in an arm’s-length transaction,
adjusted for incremental costs that would be directly attributable to the disposal of the nonfinancial
asset.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of income in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired nonfinancial asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recoghized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the nonfinancial asset’s recoverable amount since the
last impairment loss was recognized. If that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
its estimated recoverable amount, That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal
is recognized in the statement of income,

Capital Stock
Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.

Contribution in Excess of Par Value
Amount of contribution in excess of par value is accounted for as an additional paid-in capital,
Additional paid-in capital also arises from additional capital contribution from the members.

Accumulated Excess of Revenue Over Expenses
Accumulated excess of revenue over expenses represents accumulated net profits (losses).
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Revenue Recognition (upon adoption of PFRS 15)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Club expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods oz services. The Club has generally concluded that it is the principal
in its revenue arrangements except f for the concessionaire services, because it typically controls the
gubds or services before transferring them to the customer.

The following are the Club’s performance obligations:

Membership Dues

Membership dues pertains to monthly member’s dues and administration fee charged to the Club’s
members and past Club presidents, respectively. Revenues are recognized over time when membership
dues are due and demandable, net of any discount. Any advance payments are recorded under “Contract
liabilities” account in the statement of financial position.

(i) Variable Consideration
8. Discount on annual dues are provided to the members when they pay the annual dues in
advance. The discount is equivalent to one-month membership dues and is presented as a
reduction to the revenue recognized.
b. Discount on prompt payments are provided to members when they pay their account balance
in full within one month after billing. To estimate the variable consideration for the expected
discount on prompt payments, the Club applies the most likely amount.

Sports and Recreation

Sports and recreation pertain to fees charged for use of the Club’s golf and swimming pool facilities.
This also includes the service fee charged for every play of golf. Revenues are recognized overtime
when the related services have been rendered.

(i) Variable Consideration
a. Discount on green fees are provided to guests when they purchase coupons which may be
redeemed at a later date. Upon redemption, the green fee revenue recognized is net of the
discouat.

Assessment for Road Maintenance
Assessment for road maintenance is income generated from the use of the Club’s main road, Don Celso
8. Tuason Avenue. Revenues are recognized overtime when the related services have been rendered,

Corporate Services

Corporate services pertain to fees charged by the Club for processing members transactions, This
includes transfer fees and service charge on playing guests. Transfer fees are transaction fees for
transfers of members shares of stocks. Service charges on playing guests are transaction fees or cash
requirements in order to process the Club’s playing rights to outside individuals. Revenues are
recognized overtime when the related services have been rendered.

Concession Fees

Concession fees pertaing to a fee charged by the Club to its concessionaires in exchange for the right
granted to the later to render food and beverage services and sale of goods to its members and guests.

The amount of the commission income is based on the terms of the concessionaires’ agreements. The
Club acts as an agent on its concession agreements since it doesnot have control over the specified
goods or services that will be delivered by the concessionaires to the Club’s members and guests.

Revenues are recognized at a point in time when the concessionaire has delivered the goods to the
members and guests and the related services have been rendered.
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Revenue from Special Events
Revenue from special events pertains to fees charged for golf tournaments and Club’s social events.
Revenue is recognized overtime upon occurrence of the event.

Patrondgé Fees o , . _

Pitroni E e fées are consumables that members are entitled to for the consumption of food provided
the Club’s concesslonaire. flevenue are rovognised overmime upon determination of the g:rt;ired ﬁ
unconsumed portion of the minimum required purchase of food and beverage, subject to the Club’s
policy. Any advance payments are recorded under “Contract liabilities” account in the statement of

financial position.

Sale of Properties

Revenue from sale of properties are recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. The Club considers whether there are other promises in the contract that
are separate performance obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated.
In determining the transaction price for the sale of properties, the Club considers the effects of variable
consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and
consideration payable to the customer (if any).

Surcharge on Past Due Accounts

Surcharge on past due accounts are penalties charged to members with delinquent accounts for over
45 days from the statement or cut-off date of the later statement of account until the account is paid in
full. Revenues are recognized at a point in time upon. collection of the amount charged to the member
for delayed payment.

Contract Balances

Receivables

A receivable represents the Club’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the
customer. If the Club performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer
pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration
that is conditional.

Contract liabilities ‘

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Club has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays
consideration before the Club transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made, or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognized as revenue when the Club performs under the contract.

Revenue Recognition (prior to adoption of PERS 15)

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Club
and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is made. Revenue
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates,
and other sales taxes or duties. The Club has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue
arrangements, except for the concessionaire services, because it typically controls the goods or services
before transferring them to the customer.
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The following specific recognition criteria must &lso be met before revenue is recognized:

Membership Dues

Members® dues are recognized, monthly as the fees become due. Any advance payments for
membersh:p dues are recognized as a liability and credited to “Mbers]:up dues paid in advance”
accaunt in the statement of financial position.

Green Fees .
Green fees are income generated from use of the golf course by member’s guest and walk-in customers.

Assessment for Road Maintenance
Assessment for road maintenance is income generated from the use of the Club’s main road, Don Celso
S. Tuason Avenue. Revenues from road usage is recognized upon the sale of car stickers and tickets.

Rentals and Concessionaires’ Fees
Rentals and concessionaires’ fees are recognized when the service is rendered in accordance with the
terms of the agreements entered into by the Club.

Transfer Fees
Transfer fees are recognized when the shares of stocks have been transferred.

Patronage Fees
Patronage fees are consumables that members are entitled to for the consumption of food provided by
the Club’s concessionaire. These are recognized monthly as the fees expire.

Service Charge on Playing Guests
Service charges on playing guests are transaction fees or cash requirements in order to process the
Club’s playing rights to outside individuals. These are recognized when the service is rendered.

Golf Cart Storage
Golf cart storage is income generated from the safekeeping and storage of member’s golf carts.

Interest Income _
Interest is recognized as income when it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Miscellaneous Income
Miscellaneous income are recognized as the earning process occurs and collection is reasonably
assured.

Interest Income
Interest is recognized as income when it accrues, taking into account the effective yield on the asset.

Cost and Expenses

Cost and expenses are decreases in economic benefits during the accounting period in the form of
outflows or decreases of assets or incurrence of liabilities that result in decreases in equity, other than
those relating to distributions to equity participants. Cost and expenses are recognized when incurred.
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Leases — accounting policies applied before July 1, 2019

Determination of Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a spetific asset or dssets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

A reassessment is made after incoption o¥ the isase enly i one or the foilowing appiies:

(a) There is a change in contractnal terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement;

(b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension was
initially included in the lease term;

(c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset; or

(d) There is a substantial change to the asset.

When a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the change
in circumstances give rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), {c) or (d) and at the date of renewal or
extension period for scenario (b}.

Leases — accounting policies applied on or after Julv 1. 2019

Determination of Whether an Arrangement Coniains a Lease

The Club assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Club as a Lessor

Leases in which the Club does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease terms and is included in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Retirement Benefit Oblication

Defined Benefit Plan

The net defined benefit liability or asset is the aggregate of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the financial reporting period reduced by the fair value of plan assets (if any),
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. The asset ceiling is the
present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in
future contributions to the plan.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is actuarially determined using the
projected unit credit method.

Defined benefit costs comprise the following:

e Service cost

o Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset

e Re-measurements of net defined benefit liability or asset
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Service costs which inchude current service costs, past service costs and gains or losses on non-routine
settlements are recognized as expense in statement of income. Past service costs are recognized when
plan amendment or curtailment occurs. These amounts are calculated periodically by independent
qualified actuaries.

Net iniereit ofi tiié fet definied benefit _liabﬂity or asset is the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liability or asset that arises #om the passage of dme which i deteinined vy uppiying the
discount rate based on government bonds to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Net interest on the

net defined benefit liability or asset is recognized as expense or income in statement of income,

Re-measurements comprising actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest on defined benefit liability) are recognized immediately
in OCI in the period in which they arise. Re-measurements are not reclassified to statement of income
in subsequent periods.

Plan assets are assets that are held by a long-term employee benefit fund or qualifying insurance
policies. Plan assets are not available to the creditors of the Club, nor can they be paid directly to the
Club. Fair value of plan assets is based on market price information. When no market price is available,
the fair value of plan assets is estimated by discounting expected future cash flows using a discount
rate that reflects both the risk associated with the plan assets and the maturity or expected disposal date
of those assets (or, if they have no maturity, the expected period until the setflement of the related
obligations). If the fair value of the plan assefs is higher than the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, the measurement of the resulting defined benefit asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan.

The Club’s right to be reimbursed of some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit
obligation is recognized as a separate asset at fair value when and only when reimbursement is virtually
certain,

Income Taxes

Current Income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and the prior period are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authority, The income tax rates and income tax
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of each
financial reporting period.

Deferved Tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the deferred
tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable income or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
benefits of unused tax credits from excess minimum cotporate income tax (MCIT) over regular
corporate income tax (RCIT) and unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and the carryforward benefits of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized
except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial

153
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recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable income or loss.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end of reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probdble thét sufficient future taxable income will be available to allow

all of pait 6f thé deferrsd tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at
each end of reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has become probabie that sutticient

future taxable income will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the income tax rates that are expected to apply to the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on income tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax relating to
items recognized directly in equity is recognized in equity and not in the statement of income,

The Club offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if and only if it has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simuitaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Value-added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if applicable.

When VAT from sales of goods and/or services (output VAT) exceeds VAT passed on from purchases
of goods or services (input VAT), the excess is recognized as payable in the statement of financjal
position. When VAT passed on from purchases of goods or services (input VAT) exceeds VAT from
sales of goods and/or services (output VAT), the excess is recognized as an asset in the statement of
financial position to the extent of the recoverable amount.

For the non-VAT registered activities, the amount of VAT passed on from its purchase of goods or
service is recognized as part of the cost of goods/asset acquired or as part of expense item, as applicable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Club has a present obligation (legal and constructive) as a result of
a past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are made by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognized as an interest expense.

Where the Club expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate
asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to any
provision is presented in the statement of income, net of any reimbursement.

Contingencies _ ‘

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements, These are disclosed in the notes to
financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is
remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Events After the Reportine Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Club’s position at the reporting date
(adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

. Signﬁicint Aeaun—tiil_'g J uigments,Estlmates, and Assumptions

The preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying financial statements in compliance with
PFRSs requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and the accompanying notes, The judgments and estimates used in the
accompanying financial statements are based upon management’s evaluation of relevant facts and
circumstances as at the date of the financial statements. Future event may occur which wil] cause the
assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any change in estimate are
reflected in the financial statements as they become reasonably determinable. Actual results could differ
from such estimates.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstance.

Ju ts
In the process of applying the Club’s accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers
The Club applied the following judgement that significantly affect the determination of the amount of
revenue from contracts with customers:

e Principal versus agent considerations

The Club entets into contracts with its concessionaires to perform, on their behalf, sale of goods

and services to its members. The Club determined that it does not control the goods before they are

transferred to customers. The following factors indicate that the Club does not control the goods

before they are being transferred to customers. Therefore, the Club determined that it is an agent in

these contracts.

e The Club is not primarily responsible for fulfilling the promise to provide the goods or setvices,

e The Club’s revenue is in the form of a fixed commission income as established in the
concession contract with the concessionaires.

e The Club does not have inventory risk before or after the goods has been transferred to the
customer.

e The Club has no discretion in establishing the price for the goods and services.

Operating Lease - Club as Lessor

The Club has entered into commercial property leases. The Club has determined, based on an
evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a
major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum lease
payments not amounting to substantially all of the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties and accounts for the
contracts as operating leases.
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Rental income pertaining to these leases for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 amounted
to £15.3 million, 15,9 million, and 213.9 million, respectively (see Note 20).

Estimates and Assumptions
The key assumptions concernmg the future and other key sources of estimation uncertamty at the

repakting date thdt have a significant risk of caiising a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within t%m © next Ananoiat yoarn:t%o diseussed béliow &

Estimation of Provision for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) of Trade and Other Receivables

The Club uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for its trade and other receivables. The provision
rates are based on days past due of each member that have similar loss pattern. The provision matrix is
initially based on the Club’s historical observed default rates. The Club calibrates the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in its members, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-locking estimates are analyzed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic
conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Club’s historical credit loss experience and
forecast of economic conditions may alse not be representative of customer’s actual default in the
future.

Receivables from members that are considered as delinquent for a certain period and the amount due
the Club has exceeded the credit limit of members as maybe fixed by the BOD from time to time shall
be reported to the BOD and their shares of the juridical entities they represent shall thereafter be ordered
sold by the BOD at auction to satisfy the claims of the Club as stated in the By-laws. It shall be
absolutely prohibited to auction the share of a member whose overdue/delinquent account does not
exceed such member’s credit limit. As approved by the BOD, the members’ credit limit shall be fixed
at 250 thousand. A member may pay the overdue account at any time before the auction sale.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables amounted to £17.0 million and #14.0 million as at
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Allowance for ECL amounted to £2.0 million and £1.8 million
as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 5).

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment and Investment Properties

The Club estimates the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties based on the
period over which the Club’s property and equipment and investment properties are expected to be
available for use, The estimated useful lives of property and equipment and investment propertics are
reviewed periodically and updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of these assets, In
addition, the Club’s estimation of the useful lives of property and equipment and investment properties
are based on collective assessment of industry practice, internal technical evaluation and experience
with similar assets. It is possible that the future results of operations could be materially affected by
changes in estimates brought about by changes in factors mentioned above.

Ag of June 30, 2020, and 2019, there were no changes made in the estimated useful lives of the Club’s

property and equipment and investment properties. The carrying amount of property and equipment as
of June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to #228,7 million and #233.2 million, respectively (see Note 7).
The carrying amount of investment properties as of June 30, 2020 and 2019 amounted to 20.3 million
and ®2.9 million, respectively (see Note 8).
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Determining Retirement Benefit Costs

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and the present value of the pension obligation are determined
using actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include
the determination of the discount rates, future salary increases, turnover rate and future pension
incredses: Due to the complexity of the valuahon, the Imderlymg assumptions and its long-term nature,

defitiéd benbfit obligations are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumpti
reviewed at each r]élggrung duty, ta 3 idaw upég:spmaw disyount ngu, munugemem%agrsl!sdﬁ

the market yields on Philippine govermnment bonds with terms consistent with the expected employee
benefit payout as at end of the reporting periods.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables and is modified accordingly with
estimates of mortality improvements. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on
expected future inflation rates for the Philippines.

Retirement benefit obligation amounted to £8.0 million and $3.6 million as of June 30, 2020 and 2019,
respectively (see Note 26).

Assessing Recoverability of Deferred Tax Assets

The Club reviews the carrying amounts of defetred tax assets at each reporting date and reduced the
amounts to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. However, there is no assurance that the Club can
generate sufficient taxable profit to allow all or part of its deferred taxable assets to be utilized.

As of June 30, 2020 and 2019, the Club’s net deferred tax assets amounted to 0.7 million and $1.0
million, respectively (see Note 24),

Temporary deductible differences for which no deferred tax asset was recognized amounted to
$20.4 million and #10.4 million as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 24),

Provisions and Contingencies

The Club is currently involved in various legal proceedings. The estimate of the probable costs for the
resolution of these claims has been developed in consultation with its counsel handling the defense in
these matters and is based upon an analysis of potential results. In the opinion of management and its
legal counsel, the eventual liability under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or
adverse effect on the Club’s financial position and results of operations. It is possible, however, that
the future results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effectiveness of the sfrategies relating to these proceedings.

The Club has accrued provision for probable claims amounting to £5.8 million 1.0 million as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 14),

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2020 2019
Cash on hand £130,000 P683,475
Cash in banks 10,304,474 23,516,221
Cash equivalents 23.652.637 22.552.946

£34.087.111 P46.752,642
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Cash on hand consists of fund for daily operating expenses and undeposited collections. Cash in banks
earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short term deposits made for
varying periods of up to three (3) months and earns interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest iricome earned amounted to R0.7 million, £0.8 million and 0.5 million in 2020, 2019 and

2018; Fmapeciively:

. Trade and Other Receivables
3 2020 2019
Members #13,430,509 £12,624,960
Others 5.587.396 3,211,700
19,017,905 15,836,660
Less allowance for ECL 2.030.111 1,786,899

P16987,794 _ P14.049,761

Receivables from members, which are due 30 days after billing date, are noninterest-bearing and

constitute a lien on the members’ shares,

Other receivables consist mainly of the share of the concessionaires and maintenance provider for the
security services and electricity of the access roads around the Club, advances made to officers and
employees and receivables from concessionaires and various organizations which are settled within 30-

90 days’ term.

As of June 30, 2020, and 2019, the aging analysis of trade and other receivables are as follows:

2020 2019
Not more than 30 days outstanding £8,819,108 £8,167,851
Beyond 30 days outstanding:
31-60 days 1,726,116 2,378,158
61-90 days 2,108,575 961,631
Over 90 davs - B 6,364,106 4,329.020
S - ~ $19.017.905 P15,836,660
The movements in allowance for ECLs are as follows:
2020 2019
Balances at beginning of year $1,786,899 1,793,966
Provision (Note 22) 243,212 4,066
Write-off - (11,133)
Balances at end of vear £2.030,111 £1.786.899
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6. Other Current Assets

2020 2019

Supplies inventory at NRV $3,844.674 P4,162,305
Pre??yments 2,578,441 2,645,648
Sdiie iliadng e CVD e
Others 1,410,866 1,719,924
P8.618.146 £9.688,312

Supplies inventory include gasoline and oil stocks, grounds materials, office, shop and maintenance

supplies and construction materials.

As of Tune 30, 2020, and 2019, the balance of supplies inventory is as follows:

2020 2019
Supplies inventory at cost $3,844,674 84,245,718
Less allowance for inventory: obsolescence - - 83.413
Supplies inveniorv at NRV £3,844.674 R4.162.305

Prepayments pertain to prepaid taxes and licenses, prepaid medical expenses and prepaid insurance
premiums.

CWTs are amounts withheld from income subject to expanded withholding taxes. CWTs can be utilized
as payment for income taxes provided that these are properly supported by certificates of creditable tax
withheld at source subject to the rules on Philippine income taxation. CWTs which are claimed against
the income tax due, represents excess of the tax payable and carried over in the succeeding period for
the same purpose.

Short-term investments consist of time deposits with maturities of more than three (3) months but less
than one (1) year, and earn interest at the respective short-term investment rates.

Others pertain to advances on purchases and deferred input VAT.

7. _Pro_perty and Equipment

2020
Ground Teals
und Serviea Furnlturs,
Lasd  Bullding and Machisery  Fixturssand Tramsportation  Comstroction
Lapd Tmpprnvomisiil Biruatsres _swd [Lywipwment Lijuly mont Il wipment 1n Progires Tota}
Const:
Balmees at beginning of yoar 9,400,307  P301,783,84 $36,671,800 133,292,903 P5,368,185 30,784,950 PEADRDIE  B445,810,716
Additions - 1,385,681 - 1,966,786 - 254180 9,661,605 17926910
Dispoeals - (153,745) - (769,588) (35.179) (1,026,783) u.m.zm
Trenufees - 135710 551,827 50318 = 141,583 Pm
Enlances ut end of yesr 5,408,307 318,965 480 57,224,630 35,610,645 ﬂ,ﬂﬂ‘ 32,700,908 & M
Accunmlated deprecistion: .
Bulances at beginnlng of year - 131,963,085 ILTEERTL 22,9%0,130 2,366,171 14.542.!1! - 212,693,229
Deptociation (Notex 21 and 22) - 11,94331! 1571409 3,798,032 1,801 - 22,408,511
Disposals = 74 - {789,588) P5179) n,o_zﬁ,m) = (2,005,205)
—Balunces sl od ofyoar T TR XL T ———
Net book values w P175,207,675 !l'lﬁ'ﬂl leﬁ?“ P14 0l #2128
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2019
Ground Toola
and Service Fumniture,
Land  Bullding end Muachinery Flatoresand  Transportation Conatruction
Land ¥mpre- sments Struoteres o Faulpning Uinlnimnent immipment Jn Propres: Total
Cont;
Bi ath ing of F9.408,127 297,140,777 B57,906,802 030,228,512 B5414476 R20,906379 B2,529466 423,634,599
;‘-.m:l = = L= - . .- 3,942,399 - 9,878,571 11,973,686 25,794,536
Ulroels (7,820) .= (2,686,360) (B78,068) (46,291) - - (3,618,538)
Trandlegn = ==wr-vs saies s = = 404187 - h RS ) I - - s = - Xt U -
e QAUET 30|84 S6EMA| - 3AwASG . SRS - J07MAPN  SAmSM __eEDTG
Baltncen et begincing of yoar - IS4 3888023 20,6908 5370603 10,877,050 - 197,088m8
Deprovistion (Notes 21 and 22) - 10,356,121 1,893,975 3,225,002 41,859 3,664,963 - 19,185,920
Hliig ol = - 12 6860 L178.068! 46781 - - 311719
Balenoea stond of ziu= — 1BLinimS 379671 22990139 53171 14543013 - My
Net book valum H&T ] ﬂ!llgB 2] lﬂn Fﬂ- FEM- 1 6&7 “ﬂl”‘ !.'!33!1 77&7

In 2020, the Club sold five (5) units of golf carts that is fully depreciated. Proceeds and gain from the
sale of gold carts amounted to 80.3 million (see Note 16).

In 2019, the Club sold a parcel of land with a carrying value of B8 thousand. Proceeds from the sale of
land amounted to B3.1 million resulting to a gain of #3.1 million (see Note 16). In 2018, the Club sold
a parcel of land with a carrying value of B4 thousand. Proceeds from sale of land amounted to
2.4 million resulting to a gain of 82.4 million.

Total book value of certain fully depreciated property and equipment amounting to 2.0 million and
$3.6 million were disposed.

The cost of fully depreciated property and equipment still used in operations amounted to
£114.8 million and #103.9 million as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

8. Investment Properties

2020
North
Clubhouse Land Total

Cost:

Balances at beginning of year P53,718,366 £73,562 $53,791,928

Dizposal - - -

Balances at end of vcar 53.718.366 73.562 53.791.928
Accumulated depreciation: -

Balances at beginning of year 50,879,981 - 50,879,981

Depreciation (Notes 21 and 22) 2,562.894 - 2,562,894

Balances at end of vcar 53.442.875 - 53.442.875
Net book values 275491 P73562  R349.053

2019
North
- Clubhouse Land Total

Cost:

Balances at beginning of year 53,718,366 PB1,265 B53,799,631

Disposal = 17.703: (7,703}

Balances at end of veu 53.718.366 73,562 53,791,928
Accumulated depreciation:

Balances at beginning of year 48,218,771 - 48,218,771

Depreciation {Motes 21 and 22) 2,661,210 - 2,661.210

Balances at end of vear 50.879.981 - = 50,879.981
Netbookvelues B2.838.385 £73.562 22911947

I A S U e



“24-

In 2019, the Club sold parcel of land with a carrying value of B8 thousand. Proceeds from the sale of
land amounted to B4.4 million resulting to a gain of #4.4 million (see Note 16). In 2018, the Club sold
a parcel of land with a carrying value of 87 thousand. Proceeds from sale of land amounted to
£5.3 million resulting to a gain on sale of 4.7 million (see Note 16).

Biked o the latest appraisal feports submitted by Top Consult, Inc., independent appraiser, dated
fune 3, 2020 and August 13, doo, ke Ml Sui o5l laau wiils uERIeELLE i stel OF B0 Nuse, und
building with total floor area of 2,271 sqm., amounted to £45.2 million and #31.8 million, respectively.
Based on the appraisal report submitted by Top Consult, Inc., independent appraiser, dated
June 14, 2019, the fair value of the land with aggregate land area of 9,577 sqm. and building with total
floor area of 2,271 sqm., amounted to #45.1 million and #32,7 million, respectively.

Rental income earned from investment property amounted to 0.3 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018
(see Note 20). Direct expenses related fo investment properties consist mainly of amortization
amounting to 2.6 million in 2020 and 2.7 million in 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Trust Fund

Pursuant to the resolution passed by the members on September 12, 1982 and as provided for in the
Club’s by laws, the trust fund committee is empowered to invest the Valley Golf Trust Fund, which in
o case shall be less than the original amount of #3.5 million, in leading universal banks in the country.

The members’ resolution further states that all proceeds from future sale of shares and real property,
including all amortizations due on the sale of shares previously sold, shall accrue to the trust fund and
that 85% of the interest income of the fund shall be made available for the maintenance and repair of
the golf course. The remaining 15% of said interest income shall accrue to and form part of the fund.

On May 21, 1989, the members’ resclution was amended stating that, “the proceeds of the sale of any
real property of the Club or shares of stock to be used for capital expenditure and other infrastructure
project shall not form part of the Valley Golf Trust Fund. However, any excess thereof shall form part
of the Valley Golf Trust Fund”.

Trust fund balance amounted to £4.8 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019. Interest income recognized
for the trust fund amounted to #45 thousand, #31 thousand and P32 thousand for the years ended
June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

10.

Other Noncurrent Assets
2020 2019
Refundable deposit P742,297 £741,697
Computer software 297,267 121,426
Advances to suppliers 295.400 —
£1,334.964 £863,123

Refundable deposit pertains to deposits to utility companies. The carrying amounts of the deposits are
regarded as its amortized cost since the timing of the refund or settlement of the deposits could not be
reasonably estimated.
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Advances to suppliers relate to the installation of new pump and purchase of various equipment.

The movement of computer software is as follows:

. i 2020 2019
Cost; o ,
Balance at begmning uid ehd oF eun $5,019,98% L LT
Additions - 245,000 78.400
Balance at end of year _— B 2.860.952 2615952
Accumulated amortization:
Balance at beginning of year 2,494,526 2,362,904
Amortization (Notes 21 and 22) 69.159 131.622
___Balance at end of vear 2,563,685 2,494,526
Net bock value 1297267 P121.426
11. Trade and Other Payables
2020 2019
Trade BS,018,457 £12,691,821
Accrued expenses 5,387,722 4,323,784
.Organizations and cooperative 4,919,926 5,848,532
VAT payable 417,535 790,400
Concessionaires 138,893 450,504
Others 393.717 409,791

P16.276.250  $24514 832

Trade payables are unsecured, noninterest-bearing and are payable to suppliers within 30 days.
Accrued expenses are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest. These
pertain to accruals made for outside services, utilities and other various accruals. These are normally
settled throughout the next financial year,

Organizations and cooperative are loans and advances by the employees from the association which are
payable on demand.

Concessionaires pertains to collections received by the Club for and on behalf of the concessionaires.

Other payables mainly consist of withholding tax payables and tournament deposits.
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12. Members’ Deposits and Others
2020 2019
Due to former members B8,132,582 P7,699,969
Cash deposits 7,100,000 5,580,000
] 2 2
Due to former members consist mainly of proceeds from auction sale of shares, payable to former
members and other advance payments made by them.
Cash deposit pertains to deposits made by playing guests. Any unpaid liabilities will be deducted from
this account and the excess will be refunded upon resignation of the playing guest.
Security deposit pertains to various deposits received by the Club from its concessionaires and lessee
and is to be refunded at the end of their respective agreements,
13. Contract Liabilities -
2020 2019
Membership dues paid in advance (Note 17) 5,660,800 $6,099,800
Green fee coupons - 1,254,788 376,024
Tournament deposit 199,008 171,429
Others 49,919 107.936
B e 27,164,515 #6,755,189
Membership dues paid in advance represents advance collection of monthly membership dues which
are applied in the next financial year.
Green fee coupons are issued to Freeport Elite Resorts, Inc. which operates a driving range facility
within the Club at a discounted price. The coupons are issued at different prices. These coupons are
then sold to Korean guests of the Club also at a discounted price.
Tournament depogits pertains to advance payments of the Club’s members made for an upcoming golf
tournament.
Others pertains to the advance payments of the members for dues and fees, and for golf cart storage
and locker rentals.
14, Accrued Provision for Probable Claims o

Accrued provision for probable claims pertains to the estimated liability to resolve various probable
claims against the Club. Any payment of actual claims against the Club requires the approval of the
BOD.

The information usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the outcome of these lawsuits, claims,
arbitration and assessments.



-27-

As of June 30, 2020, and 2019, accrued provision for probable claims amounted to 25,8 million and
£1.0 million, respectively.

15. Meémbers® Equity

Capi ¢
Shares Amount
2020 2019 2020 2019
Common shares - 89,000 par value
Authorized - 1,800 shares _
Issued 1.594 1,594 P14.346.000 P14 346.000

Accumulated Excess of Revenues Over [xpenses

2020 2019
Accumulated excess of revenues over expenses $27.480.815 $44.679.159
Other comprehensive income (loss) (Note 26):
Item not to be reclassified into profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Beginning balance 2,895,740 2,229,918
Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined
benefit obliy:tion (3,637,507) 665,822
__ Ending balance (741,767) 2,895,740
Total ~ 126.739,048 P47.574.899

16. Revenue from Contracts_with Customers

The table below presents the disaggregation of the Club’s revenue from contracts with customers:

2020 2019
Nature of services
Membership dues (Note 17) £52,957,284 852,771,707
Sports and recreation (Note 18) 20,965,399 26,505,536
Assessment for road maintenance 15,390,417 16,060,509
Corporate services 11,026,339 11,022,061
Revenue from special events 8,591,704 9,053,591
Concessionaires’ fec (Note 19) 4,129,714 5,730,543
Patronage fees (Note 17) 3,594,094 3,533,774
Surcharge 560,172 797,904
Sale of properties (Notes 7 and 8) 320,536 7,442,159
Others 6.130.355 2,187,509

#123.666.014  $135,105,293
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2020 2019
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time P118,655,592 B121,134,687
Goods transferred at a point in time B .5.010.422 13.970.606

P123.666.014 __ 135.105.293

Assessment for road maintenance are toll fees charged by the Club to users of the Club’s main road,
Don Celso S, Tuason Avenue, A specified fix rate is charged for different type of motor vehicles.

Revenue from special events are fees charged to the Club’s members for golf tournaments held at the
Club. This also includes assessment fees to the Club’s members for Club’s social events. Tournament
fees and assessment fees included under “Miscellaneous income™ account in 2018 amounted to
£2.3 million.

Surcharge are penaslties charged to members with delinquent accounts for over 45 days from the
statement or cut-off date. A surcharge of 5% shall be imposed on any account that remains delinquent
including interest of 1% a month until the account iz paid in full. Surcharges included under
“Miscellaneous income” account in 2018 amounted to 0.8 million.

Others pertains to income earned by the Club from corkage, commission on art display and sale of
scraps. These other income amounting to 1.3 million were included under “Miscellaneous income™.

Membership Dues and Patronage Fees

Membership Dues

Membership dues and assessments are collected by the Club from its members primarily to cover
expenses related to the maintenance and, for that matter, are utilized for improvements in the Club’s
facilities. The collection of these dues and assessments does not arise from any sale of goods or services
but are imposed to cover and defray necessary expenses related to the maintenance of, and
improvements in, the Club’s facilities and as such, no part of the Club’s income inures to the benefit of
any of its members.

Members’ dues recognized amounted to #53.0 million, #52.8 million and #52.4 million in 2020, 2019
and 2018, respectively.

Member’s dues paid in advance by its existing members amounted to ®5.7 million and $6.1 million as
at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Members’ dues paid in advance is considered as a contract
liability of the Club to its members. In 2019, upon the adoption of PFRS 15, members’ dues paid in
advance is considered as a contract liability of the Club to its members.

Patrona:e Fees
Patronage fees are monthly consumables that members are entitled for the consumption of food and
beverage provided by the Club’s concessionaires that has expired and unconsumed.

Patronage fees recognized amounted to #3.6 million, 3.5 million and $3.7 million in 2020, 2019 and
2018, respectively.

I
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18.

Sports and Recreation

Green Fees
Green fees are generated from the use of the Club’s golf courses. The Club has two golf courses: the

North and South cobrse. The North dourse is open to its members, their guests, and walk-in customers
while W€ South course is open to its mémbers and their guests only.

On September 30, 2016, the Club entered into agreement with Freeport Elite Resort, Inc. to purchase
1,000 coupons and another 1,000 coupons upon consumption of all coupons previously purchased. The
green fees from Freeport Elite Resort, Inc. amounted to £0.1 million, 1.0 million and £1.6 million in"
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Club’s aggregate green fees earned amounted to £21.0 million, £26.5 million and #22.2 million in
2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively. Service fees included under “Miscellaneous income™ account in
2018 amounted to £1.3 million.

15.

Concessionaires’ Fees

2020 2019 2018

Food and beverage services B3,374,760 $4,735,860 $4,149,021

Retail services 725,972 969,528 986,132

Spa and barbershop services 28.982 25,155 20,679
$4,129.714 P5,730,543 P5,155.832

Concession agreements entered into by the Club are shown below:

Food and Beverace Services

8) Jay-j’s Food Management, Inc. (JFMI), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered into a
concession agreement whereby JFMI manages the food and beverage operations of the Club located
at the North Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessjonaire shall pay a fee of 7% :
plus VAT of the monthly gross sales including special functions contracted for the members and’
guest and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share of stock is pledged to the Club which serves
as a security deposit to answer for any damages or expenses incurred. The agreement is for a period
of three (3) years from August 1, 2016 up to July 31, 2019. On June 15, 2019, the contract was
extended for a period of three (3) months, starting from August 1, 2019 up to October 31, 2019, On
August 16, 2019 the contract was subsequently extended for a period of six (6) months, starting
November 1, 2019 until April 30, 2020. On February 29, 2020 the contract was extended for
another three (3) months, starting from May 1, 2020 up to July 31, 2020. The concessionaire fee
recognhized from JFMI amounted to 1.1 million in 2020 and £1.5 million in 2019 and 2018.

b) Anix’s House of Kare-kare (AHK), a local food concessionaire and the Club entered into a
concession agreement whereby AHK manages the food and beverage operations of the Club at the
Main Clubhouse. The agreement also provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee of 7% plus
VAT of the monthly gross sales for the first six (6) months of operations and 10% plus VAT of the
monthly gross sales for the succeeding months or #100,000 whichever is higher including catering
services confracted for the members and guest and to purchase one (1) share of stock. The share
of stock is pledged to the Club which serves as a security deposit to answer for any damages or
expenses incurred. The agreement is for a period of three (3) years from January 20, 2017 up to
January 19, 2020, subject to renewal at the option of the Club under such terms and conditions to
be mutually agreed by the parties. The agreement was extended on Jamuary 20, 2020 until

LT



-30-

June 30, 2020. This extension revised the concessionaire fee to 7% plus VAT of the monthly gross
sales,

The concessionaire fee recognized from AHK amounted to P2.3 million, 3.3 million and
#2.7 million in 2020, 2019 anid 2018, respectively.

Pacsport Phils, Inc. was awarded the concession to operate a retail sales outlet, inside the Clubhouse to

serve the members, guests and dependents, exclusively. In consideration for operating the outlet, the
Club charges a basic minimum monthly concession fee of 265,000 or 15% of their gross sales per
month inclusive of VAT, whichever is higher. The agreement is for a period of two years from
March 15, 2016 up to May 14, 2018,

On July 9, 2018, the contract was renewed and shall be effective for a period of two (2) years, starting
from March 15, 2018 up to May 14, 2020. The contract provides that the concessionaire shall pay a fee
of #70,000 or 15% of their gross sales per month inclusive of value added tax, whichever is higher.
The concessionaire fees from Pacsport Phils, Inc, amounted to 80,7 million, 20.9 million and
#1.0 million in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

20.

Rentals

2020 2019 2018
Golf cart rental 28,843,670 £9,158,518 £7,989,319
Golf cart storage 3,139,648 3,012,128 2,662,047
Venue and room fee 942,009 1,078,320 738,168
Locker rental 946,098 944,084 889,763
Pullcart rental 591,150 736,645 629,685
Driving range 432,119 517,032 507,089
Communication cell site (Note 8) 305,404 305,404 287,655
Others 143,794 193,013 183,016

P15,343492  PL15945144 P13,886,742

Golf carts, pull carts, and lockers pertain to rental fees charged to members and guests. The Club
provides for pull carts to its members and guests in exchange for a rental fee for every play of golf.
However, the players may opt to rent a golf cart instead, thus, the pull cart fee will be waived. Rentals
of golf carts and lockers are for the use of the golf carts provided by the Club for its members. Rentals
of lockers are for the use of the Club’s locker rooms. '

Golf cart storage pertains to rental fees charged to members for keeping the golf carts in reserve within
the Club’s premises.

On September 16, 2016, the Club entered into a Build-Lease-Transfer agreement with a third party to
construct a Double Deck Driving Range with amenities located at the north course, The agreement
includes a lease term of fifteen (15) years which commenced on July 8, 2017. The lessee shall pay a
monthly lease of 25,000, inclusive of VAT, subject to a 10% escalation starting on the third (3rd)
year. As part of the agreement, the lessee shall pay 450,000 representing one (1) year advance rental
and six (6) months security deposits.



-31-

PN

The future minimum rental commitment under this operating lease as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018
are as follows:

. 2020 2019 2018

Within one (1) year . P463,014 $518.452 B267,857
Mbre than one ‘Slj yeat buit not

moroe than five (59 yeurs 2,000,009 2,506,879 1,249,159y

More than five (5) vears 3114974 3,632.005 6,250,133

26.164.567 B6.737.036 B7.761.115

The excess of principal amount of the refundable security deposits over its fair value, at inception date
of operating lease, is presented under “Other noncurrent liability” amounting to £0.2 million and its
current portion under “Trade and other payables” amounting to P13 thousand in the statement of
financial position. Straight-line amortization of deferred rent amounted to 13 thousand in 2020 and
2019.

The Club leases the north clubhouse’s rooftop to a local telecommunications company to be used as a
cell site under certain conditions. Monthly rental amounts to £15,000, subject to a 4.5% escalation
starting on the fourth (4) year. The lease period is from October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2017,
renewable for a period to be mutually agreed upon by the parties. The contract was renewed in 2017
for a period of 10 years which took effectivity on October 1, 2017 and expiring on September 30, 2027.
The lessee shall pay £23,197, inclusive of VAT, subject to a 4.5% escalation starting on the second
year of the new lease period.

The future minimum lease commitment under this operating lease as of June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018
are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Within one (1) year P305,404 305,404 305,404
More than one (1) year but not
more than five (5) years 1,527,020 1,527,020 1,527,020
More than five (5) vears 381.755 687.159 992,563
$2.214.179 P2 519,583 B2,824,987

Others pertain to rental fees from the Club’s housing and employee’s canteen.

2—1. Cost of Services

2020 2019 2018
Outside services P37,925,988 £33,891,093 $30,025,468
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, and 10) 24,748,395 21,751,957 17,907,874
Personnel cost (Note 23) 22,479,363 22,206,954 21,407,116
Utilities 14,068,617 12,066,285 9,588,934
Supplies 9,868,403 7,644,658 7,178,936
Repairs and maintenance 7,551,955 10,855,913 5,497,280
Club events 6,090,755 5,495,985 -
Others 8.278.463 9.836,755 10.772.803

P131,011,939 123,749,600  $102.378,411
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Others pertain to provision for tournament expenses, insurance, ads and publication, promotional and
industrial expenses, parking fee, and other miscellaneous expenses,

Outside services pertains to retainer fees, legal fees, maintenance crews, and audit fees.

22. General and Administrative

2020 2019 2018
Personnel costs (Note 23) 6,855,334 8,173,535 85,994,242
Taxes and licenses 5,861,950 4,834,349 4,329,956
Outside services 4,451,897 1,957,876 1,274,064
Bank charges 1,160,939 1,193,201 1,108,371
Supplies 925,054 852,531 713,381
Board members’ meetings 857,520 1,008,652 843,775
Utilities 604,711 615,092 504,540
Depreciation and amortization
(Notes 7, 8, and 10) 292,169 226,795 286,715
Provision for ECL (Note 5) 243,212 4,066 -
Interest 10,575 10,081 49,808
Others 2.718,905 1,001.181 879.803
P23,982,266 $19.877.359 P15.984.655

Other expenses consist mainly of advertising expenses, prompt payment discounts, insurance and net

expenses incurred during tournaments.

23. Personnel Costs

2020 2019 2018
Cost of services (Note 21):
Salaries and wages P17,220,703 R16,961,111 R16,476,142
Employee benefits 4,230,384 4,117,500 3,846,188
Retirement benefit
expense (Note 26) 1.028.276 1.128.343 1,084,786
22,479,363 22,206,954 21,407,116
General and administrative
(Note 22):
Salaries and wages 5,196,329 6,386,145 4,497,484
Employee benefits 1,387,281 1,509,801 1,177,461
Retirement benefit
expense (Note 26) 271.724 277.589 319,297
6.855.134 8,173.535 5994242
P29 134,697 $30.380,489 £27,401,358

TR
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24. Income Taxes

The composition of provision for (benefit from) income taxes is:

2020 2019 2018
Eurrent $55,090 R1,368,860 £490,823
Deferred o 1,888 540 194 P50) t11,49%)
- ~ P1,908,635 P1.264,110 $479,366

a, The Club's provision for current income tax pertains to MCIT in 2020, RCIT in 2019 and MCIT
in 2018,

b. The reconciliation of income computed at the statutory tax rates to provision for income tax as
shown in the statements of income is as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Income tax at the statutory rate (P4,586,913) £ 468,902 B3 798,527
Income tax effects of: '
Nondeductible expenses 21,243,136 350,208 -
Nontaxable revenues (19,379,290) - -
Movement of unrecognized
deferred tax assets 3,006,141 (1,317,259) (2,279,897)
Derecognition of advance
payments of membership
dues 1,829,940 - -
Expired MCIT - - 145,758
Expired NOLCO - 368,513
Interest income subject to
final tax (204,379) (237,741) (136,031)
Income subject to capital
zaing tax - — (1,417.504)
£1.908.635 B1.264.110 $£479.366

¢. The components of the recognized net deferred tax assets are as follows:

2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for ECL £609,034 £536,070
Advanced payments for membership dues and
others 14,975 1,862,321
Re-measurement loss on defined benefjt
oblization 317.900 —
941.909 2398391
Deferred tax liabilities:
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit
obligation - (1,241,032)
Rent receivable (253,644) (175,425)
_Interest income from accretion ) (3,274 (2.329)
B 256,918) (1.418.786)
- B o P684,991 979,605

A TR



-34-

The reconciliation of the net deferred tax assets is as follows:

2020 2019
Balances at beginning of year . 8979,605 £1,160,208
Benefit from (provision for) deférred tax during
g%ﬁ?ﬁ'ﬂ%%gmd i ¢1,808,040) 164, 2D
OCl 1,558,931 (285,353)
Balances at end of year £684,991 ®979,605

No deferred tax assets from the following deductible temporary difference were recognized as it is
not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax
agsets to be utilized:

2020 2019
NOLCO 210,390,337 P-
Retirement benefit obligation 7,925,686 7,782,353
Unrecognized past service cost 1,995,933 1,633,026
MCIT 55,090 -
Accrued provision for probable claims - 1,019,740

220.367,046 210,435,119

. As at June 30, 2020, the Club has available NOLCO that can be claimed as deductions from future
taxable income, as follows:

Year Incurred Year of Expiration NOLCO
2020 2023 $10.390.337

As at June 30, 2020, the Club has available MCIT that can be claimed as deductions from future
taxable liabilities, as follows:

Year Incurred Year of Expiration MCIT
2020 2023 55.090

Movements in excess of MCIT over RCIT follow:

2020 2019
Beginning balances o ®1,283,826
Additions 55,090 -
Applications - i 1283 82n)
Endinp balances B55.090
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25, Related Party Tramnsactions

Related parties include members of key managent personnel including directors and officers of the
Club and close members of the family and compames associated with these individuals. In considering
each possible rélated entity relationshp, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship and

tmeniwﬂohl&aifompam idefed to be related if hias the ability to control,
=té.ll';ec'tly or mdlr:ctly, the other ;:rge o?ogcsércise signi%can% inﬂue%%%avrgﬂle otl:fe? parttgr ?-?:ldng

financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

A summary of major account balances with related parties follows:
Kev Management Personnel Compensation

Compensation of key management personnel amounted to 2.7 million, 2.5 million and £0.8 million
in 2020, 2019 and 2018, respectively, which represent short-texrm benefits.

Compliment:ry Club Coupons and House Guests Privileges

Complimentary green fee coupons are given to the BOD and certain officers for distribution to
prospective members and certain guests and friends of the Club. The outstanding green fee coupons for
each fiscal year are as follows:

2020 2019 2018
Beginning balance 365 31 531
Additions during the year 2,000 3,380 2,804
Issuances during the year {1,319) (3,046} {3.304)
Ending balance 46 B 365 N 31

The amount of green fees charged to playing guest ranges from £921 to £1,983. On March 1, 2020
these green fee rates are changed ranging from 1,421 to #2,221,

The Club also authorizes certain Club officers to entertain houseguests and use the Club’s facilities
free-of-charge.

26. Retirement Benefit Obligation

The Club has a funded, non-contributory, defined benefit retirement plan covering all its qualified
officers and employees. Under the plan, qualified officers and employees are entitled to receive pension
benefits on a lump sum basis when they reach the retirement age of 60. With the consent of the Club,
an employee may elect to retire early provided he has rendered at least 20 years of credited service or
at least 15 years of credited service and at least 50 years old. The projected unit credit cost method was
used to determine the retirement benefit costs and obligation. The Club’s retirement fund is being held
in trust by a trustee bank.

The following tables summarize the components of the retirement benefit cost recognized in the

statement of income and the retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial
position for the retirement plan.
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Retirement benefits expense recognized in the statements of income:

2020 2019 2018
Service cost #1,131,772 P1,055,974 $£1,144,582
Netinterest st
Ioteresl coft on Denefit 1,138,222 1,467,337 1,091,189
Interest income on plan assets (989.994) (1.117.379) (831,686)
Retirement benefit cxpense £1.,300.000 P1,405,932 P1.404,083
Re-measurement losses (gains) on defined benefit obligation recognized under OCI in the statements
of comprehensive income:
2020 2019 2018
Actuarial losses {gains):
Changes in financial
assumptions 23,290,567 21,749,818 (#2,162,468)
Changes in demographic
assumptions 1,058,641 (222,669) (130,737)
Experience adjustments 356.365 (1.992.350) 1,049,691
4,705,573 (465,201) (1,243,514)
Return on plan assets excluding
the amount included in net
__interest cost_ 490.865 (485,974) 1.340.631
Re-measurement losses (gains} on
defined benefit oblizntion P5,196.438 (#951,175) #97,117

Cumulative re-measurement effect recognized in OCI included in the accumulated excess of revenues

over expenses:
o 2020 2019
Balances at beginning of year (®4,136,772) (®3,185,597)
Actuarial loss (gain) 4,705,573 (465,201)
Return on assets excluding amount included in net
interest cost ~ 490.865 1485.974)
1,059,666 (4,136,772)
Income tax effect (317.899) 1,241.032
Total amount regoenized in OCI $741.767 (#2,895.740)
Movements in retirement benefit obligation in 2020 and 2019 are as follows:
2020 2019
Balances at beginning of year R3,645,579 85,189,476
Retirement benefit expense 1,300,000 1,405,932
Contributions paid (2,165,209) (1,998,654)
Remeasurement losses (zaing) recopnized in QCK 5.196.438 i951.175)
Balance at end of vear £7.976.808 P3,645.579

JGHN VIR0
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Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation as follows:

2020 2019
Balances at beginning of year 821,528,299 $£21,204,293
Current service cost 1,131,772 1,055,974
Interest Cost 1,158,222 1,467,337
Net actuarial loss (galn) due to:
Changes in financial assumptions 3,290,567 1,749,818
Changes in demographic assumptions 1,058,641 (222,669)
Experience adjustments on plan liabilities 356,365 (1,992,350)
Benefits paid from plan assets (1.127.890) (1,734.104)
Balances at end of year $27.395.976 #21,528,299
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows:
2020 2019
Balances at beginning of year £17,882,720 £16,014,817
Interest income on retirement plan assets 989,994 1,117,379
Actual contributions 2,165,209 1,998,654
Actual return excluding amount included in net
interest cost (490,865) 485,974
Benefits paid {1,127.890) (1.734.104)
Balances at end of year P£19,419,168 P17.882,720
Retirement obligation as reported in the statement of financial position:
2020 2019
Present value of benefit obligation 827,395,976 £21,528,299
Fair value of retirement plan assets at end of vear (19.419.168) (17.882.720)
$7,976,808 P3.645.579
The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
2020 2019
Deposit in banks $4,587,518 $177,297
Investment in government securities 11,300,632 10,377,162
Other securities and debt instruments 702,137 4,351,000
Investment in shares of stock 2,809,421 2,802,057
Accrued interest receivable. 163,030 186,416
Other receivables 2,991 11,464
Accrued trust fees and other payables (146.561) (22.676)
219,419,168 $£17.882,720

Deposit in banks includes regular savings.

Investments in govemnment securities consist of retail treasury bonds that bear interest ranging from

5.0% to 11.1% and will mature on various dates starting July 2013 to October 2037.

Other securities and debt instruments pertains to “due from Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas’ and ‘time

certificate of deposit’.
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Miscellaneous receivable pertains to ‘dividends receivable’ and ‘due from brokers’,

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining retirement benefit obligations for the Club’s
retirement plan are as follows:

. 2020 2019
Discount rate 335 3R
Future salary increases 3.00% 3.00%

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of each
significant assumption on the defined benefit obligation as of the end of the reporting period, assuming
all other assumptions were held constant:

Effect on

Increase  defined benefit

(decrease) oblization

2020

Discount rates +1% (#1,749,166)
-1% 1,976,476

Salary increase rate +1% £1,964,144
-1% (1,771,601)

2019

Discount rates +1% (®1,165,594)

-1% 1,287,773

Salary increase rate +1% 21,305,761
-1% (1,202,316)

Shown below is the maturity profile of the undiscounted benefit payments:

2020 2019
Year] 21,074,348 £062,082
Year 2 4,806,787 2,716,133
Year3 2,627,401 4,412,466
Year 4 5,922,280 2,691,975
Year 5 1,662,198 6,726,755
Year6- 10 11,015720 9,256,275

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6.8 years and 5.7 years as of June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

The Club’s latest actuarial valuation report was as of June 30, 2020.
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27.

Financial Insfruments

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Club’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade and other payables, members’ deposit and

others. The mampurpose of these ﬁnancm liabilities ig to raise finance for the Club’s operations. The

§IM Weih vasiond filancial assets such as cash and cash equlvalmts trade and other receivables, short
term investments under “Other current assets", and trust which arise directly from its operations,

The main risks arising from the Club’s financial instruaments are credit risk and liquidity risk. The BOD
reviews and approves the policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarized below.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Club manages credit risk by establishing credit limits
at the level of the individual borrower, corporate relationship and industry sector. Also, the Club
transacts only with recognized third parties.

In addition, receivables balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Club’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. Provision for ECL/impairment losses on receivables will also
be made if the situation so warrants subject to the BOD’s review and approval.

The following table represents the Club’s maximum exposure to credit risk:

2020 2019

Cash in banks and cash equivalents £33,957,111 P46,069,167
Trade and other receivables 16,987,794 14,049,761
Short-term investments under “other current assets” - 666,224
Trust fimd 4,818,615 4.773.793
£55,763.520 65,558,945

Credit quality per class of financial asset

The credit quality of financial assets is being managed by the Club using internal credit ratings. High
grade financial assets are those that are current and collectible. Standard grade financial assets need to
be consistently followed up but are still collectible.

The tables below show the credit quality by class of financial asset based on the Club’s credit rating
system:

As of June 30, 2020

Nelther past due nor fmiyinired Past das Past due and
Standard but Individually
Hiyrh vrade grade not impaired impaired Total
Amortized cost:
Cash in banks and cesh equivalents £33,957,111 B [ o #33,057,111
Trade and other receivables: )
Trade receivables 886,071 - 10,514,327 2,030,111 13,430,509
Otherg - 5,427,146 160,250 - 5,587,396
Trust fund 4,818.615 - - - 4_B1M. 615

#39.061,797 B5.127.146 #10,674.577 #2.030.111 B57,793.631

AR AR M
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Ag of June 30. 2014

Nelther jiati due nor impnired Past due Past due and
"Standard bt Individually
Highgrade - prade . mot impaired impaired Total
Amortigsdgost; . .
w in b}ﬁks and takh equivalents $46,069,167 R e B P46,069,167
0 A0 dtiued Aty s
Trade receivables 2,139,402 - 8,698,659 1,786,859 12,624,960
Others - 3,211,700 - - 3.211,700
Short-term investmonty
under “other current assets 666,224 - - - 666,224
Trust fond 4.773.793 - 4.773.793

P53648586  P3IIL700 __ P8.698.659 PL786899  B67.3:5844

Cash in banks and cash equivalents, short-term investments under “Other current assets” and trust fund
are considered as high grade since these are deposited with reputable financial institutions.

High grade trade receivables pertain to those receivables from customers that consistently pay before
the maturity date. Standard grade receivables include other receivables that are collected on their due
dates even without an effort from the Club to follow them up.

Past due and individually impaired financial assets are those accounts identified by the Club that needs
to be provided with allowance. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of
factors that affect the collectability of the accounts such as but not limited to the length of the Club’s
relationship with the member, the member’s payment behavior and known market factors.

Impairment of financial assets
The Club’s financial assets that are subject to the ECL model consists of cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, short-term investments under “other current assets” and trust fund.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on days past due of trade and other receivables.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions.

With respect to credit risk for these financial assets, the Club’s maximum exposure equals to the
carrying amount of these instruments. The Club has impaired financial assets amounting to #2.0 million
and ®1.8 million as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively (see Note 5).

Trade and other receivables
Below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Club’s trade and other receivables
using a provision matrix:

Davi pnst due
2020 Current <30duvs 30-60 davs 6190 drvy  91-120day:  >120davs Total
Expected credit loss rate 0.3178% 0.5372% 1.1974% 2.4473% 5.4592% 100%
Estimated total groas carrying
amount at defimlt R6.110.672 B2.196.102 P1,717.156 #2.095.714 84, 731.570 P1.666.491  P19.0117.505
Expected credit loss P20, 1155 813,410 #2561 51,288 P258.106  P1.666491  ¥2,030.113
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[7aya pant due
2020 Current <30 dwve 30-60 day= 61-90 days  91-120 duyn >120 duya Total
Expected cradit loss rate 0.6773% 1.1693% 2.6105% 5.4446% 7.1992% 100%
-~ amount et default - - P3:536.155- P4.631.696 82,178,158 P96].6_31 - PB2.542 121 P1.411.340  P15.836.460
= Eiph&ad-ci'a'dit lod- . . . . 23,950 . 54158 862,082 P52,357 R183,01 £1,411340 21,786,899
— — ———
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Club may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they
fall due. The Club monitors and maintains a level of cash deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Club’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Club’s financial liabilities as of
June 30, 2020 and 2019, based on contractual undiscounted cash flows. The table also analyses the
maturity profile of the Club’s financial assets in order to provide a complete view of the Club’s
contractual commitments. The analysis into relevant maturity groupings is based on the remaining
period at the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity dates.

As of June 30. 2020

Less than _ More
On demand 30 Day's 30 to 60 duvs 61 10 30 duvs than 91 Duys Tota)
Financial llobilities
At emortized cost:
Trade and other payables:
Trade payables P3,658,662 #136,191 [ £1,075313 P148,291 B5,018457
Accrued expenses 2,636,740 387,027 935,108 326,527 1,102,323 5,387,722
Others* 865,776 184,448 72,950 247,879 3,859,369 3230422
Members duposits and others 15,444,510 - - - - 18404520
P2.2.(45.698 P707.666 P1.008.455 B1.649.719 $5.109.083 $31,121.121
e —— S ——
Financial axssix
At amortized cost:
Cagh in bank and cash equivalents #33,957,111 | [ o [ o P33,957,111
Trade and other receivables:
Trade receivables 886,071 2,345,640 1,726,116 2,108,575 6,364,107 13,430,509
Othern 5,427,146 160,250 - - - 5,587,396
Trust fund LEINGTS - - - - 4.8918.615
P4SURE D P2UKA00 ¥1.726.116 #2.108.575 I‘ﬁ-..'-l'i-i.lIIT PS7.793|1
*Excludes siatutory liabilities
As of June 30. 2019
Leas than More
On demend 30 Days 30 to 60 dervp 61 to 90 clivs than 91 Liuve Total
Financial Tabilities
At amortized cost:
Treds and other payables:
Trade payables 6,976,632 £2,759,740 2,728,750 #226,659 P12,691,821
Accrued expenses 2,857,526 613,684 238,065 134,918 479,591 4,323,784
Qthens* 854,575 30,000 - 159,600 4,598,082 5,682,257
Members d=nits end others 13.547.957 - - - - 13.547.957
#24.276.690 B3 403424 B2.966.515 #294 518 FSQ% 172 FSG..‘.-lS.SE_
Finaneial gygels
At emortized cost:
Cash in banks and cash equivalents 46,069,167 B- 3 B B P46,069,167
Trade and other receivablaz:
Trade receivables 2,139,403 3,636,520 2,264,402 908,485 3,676,060 12,624,960
Others 1,396,752 995,176 113,666 53,146 652,960 3,211,700
Short-tarm Investment
under “other current assefs” 666,224 = - - 566,224
Trust fund 4.773.793 - - - - 4,773,793
P55 045139 2. 631,196 B2.3748.158 R961.631 1%4,329.020 P67.345.844
——_ —_— -_ =

*Exciludes statutory labilities
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Fair Value Measurements
The following provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Club’s assets and liabilities as at

June 30, 2020 and 2019:

- Fair Value Measurement
Quoted Prices Significant . Significant
Date of Wﬂ‘g . Epu%:: . blt:
Valuaticn Total {Level 1) {Lavs] 2) (Leyel 3)
Assets for which fair values are disclosed
Investment Properties
{Note B) 2020 R76,955,400 - - 776,955,400
2019 277,779,100 = - 877,779,100

Significant unobservable inputs for fair value measurement of the Club’s investment properties include
sales listing of currently executed transactions involving similar items within the immediate vicinity of
the property. The fair value of the investment properties is adjusted considering the location, size and
physical attributes of the property.

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation:

Range Sensitivity of the Input to Fair
Assets Veluation Techniiue Significant Unobservable lipint  of lnpur Value
Investment properties ~ Market approach and cost Price per area Various Increase (decrease) in price per
approach area would increase (decrease)
the fair value

There are no changes in the valuation techniques used for assets classified under Level 3 category.
During the years ended June 30, 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2
fair value measurements, and no transfers into and out of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, short-term deposits under “Other current
assets ", trust fund, trade and other payables, and members’ deposit and others

The catrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, short-term deposits under
“other current assets” trust fund, trade and other payables, and members’ deposit and others and payable
to a contractor, approximate their fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

As of June 30, 2020, and 2019, the Club does not have any financial instruments to be presented under
the fair value hierarchy required by PFRS 7.

Capital Manarement

The primary objective of the Club’s capital management policy is to ensure that it maintains a strong
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize members’ value,
The club manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Club is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements. The Club considers total
member’s equity as capital.
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2020 2019

Capital stock 14,346,000 £14,346,000

Contributions in excess of par value 201,627,772 201,627,772
Accumulated excess of revenues over costs and ‘

Y e - 26.739.048 47.574.899

e oo iraiomsatatmons et 232,712,820 | $263,548.671

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the years ended June 30, 2020 and
2019.

28.

Notes to Statements of Cash Flows

The non-cash investing activity of the Club pertains to the purchase of 15 electric golf carts by
trading in five (5) used golf carts amounting to #200,000 in 2018.

The non-cash financing activity of the Club pertains to the issuance of one (1) share in exchange for
the services rendered amounting to £240,000 and #60,000 of transfer fee in 2018.

29,

Impact of Coronavirus Outbreak (COVID-19)

In a move to contain the coronavirus disease (COVID-19) outbreak, on March 13, 2020, the Office of
the President of the Philippines issued a Memorandum directive to impose stringent social distancing
measures in the National Capital Region effective March 15, 2020, On March 16, 2020, Presidential
Proclamation No., 929 was issued, declaring State of Calamity throughout the Philippines for a period
of six months and imposed an enhance community quarantine (ECQ) throughout the island of Luzon
until April 12, 2020, which was subsequently extended to April 30, 2020, On April 24, 2020, another
two-week extension was announced extending the ECQto May 15, 2020, particularly for Metro Manila
and other high-risk COVID-19 areas in Luzon.

The Inter-Agency Task Force (IATF), through Resolution No, 36, approved the guidelines on the
implementation of the modified enhanced community quarantine (MECQ) that is in effect in NCR,
starting May 16, 2020. This was subsequently lifted and placed the said areas in general community
quarantine (GCQ) starting June 1, 2020, On August 4, 2020, NCR was reverted to MECQ status as a
move to curb the growing impact of the pandemic, Starting August 19, 2020, NCR was back into GCQ.

These events resulted in travel and mobility restrictions causing forced temporary closure of leisure,
recreation and hospitality operations. In addition, the Club has temporarily closed its operations frem
March 17, 2020 to May 26, 2020 and issued a stricter health protocols for members that will utilized
the Club’s facilities and declared that the Club are open for members only. As a result, these have
caused a disruption to the Club’s operations and activities, including the reduction of green fee income,
golf cart rental, concessionaires’ fee and other related income. The allowance for ECL has increased to
£2.0 million.

LT T



-44 .

30. Supplementary Information under Revenue Regulations (RR) 15-2010

On November 25, 2010, the BIR issued RR 15-2010 prescribing the manner of compliance in
connection with the preparation and submission of financial statements accompanying the tax returns.
It mclqdes provisions for additional disclosure requirements in the notes to the financial statements,

?ﬁugb%:\ﬁl:ﬂw di tﬁ%’éﬁ“& P&ss s.ngd2 Bcenses paid or accrued during the year. The Chib reported and/or paid

a. VAT
The Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT. The VAT rate is 12.0%.

The NIRC of 1997 provides for the imposition of VAT on sales of goods and setvices.
Accordingly, the Club’s sales are subject to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-

registered individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT. R.A. No. 9337 increased the VAT

rate from 10.0% to 12.0%, effective February 1, 2006,

Details of the Club’s net sales/receipts, output VAT and input VAT accounts are as follows:

i. Net Sales/Receipts and Output VAT declared in the Club’s VAT returns

Net Sales/
Receipis Ouiput VAT
Taxable sales:
Sales of services P88,642,891 #10,637,147
Membership dues collected in advance 547,800 65,736
Exempt sales 20,287,196 -
Exemp! membership dues collected in advance 112,400 -
$109.590.287 R10,702,883
ii. Input VAT
Balance at July 1, 2019 P
Current year’s domestic purchases/payments for:
Goods other than for resale or manufacture 3,046,676
Capital goods exceeding #1,000,000 445,381
Domestic purchases of services 6.176,308
9,668,365
Applied against output tax (9,668.365)
Balance at June 30, 2020 - B
b. Withholdinr Taxes
Expanded withholding taxes 2,067,239
Withholding taxes on cormnpensation and benefits 157.380
S $2,224,619
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¢. Other Taxes and Licenses

Real estate taxes 3,832,467
Business taxes (local business tax) 2,029,348
Documentarvtax . ... . ... 135
T it te o teaparb i stieroreimenionn BSB6 1,930

d. Tax Agsessments
The Club did not receive any final tax assessments in 2020, nor did it have tax cases under
preliminary investigation, litigation and/or prosecution in courts or bodies outside the
administration of BIR.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Members and the Board of Directors
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Don Celso S. Tuason Ave.

Antipolo City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc, (2 nonprofit
organization) (the Club) as at June 30, 2020 and for the year then ended, on which we have rendered the
attached report dated August 29, 2020.

In compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, we are stating that the said Club has no
members owning more than one hundred (100) shares each.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

T L -Verdioea

Peter John'R. Ventura

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0113172

SEC Accreditation No. 1735-A (Group A),
January 15, 2019, valid until January 14, 2022

Tax Identification No. 301-106-741

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-140-2018,
December 17, 2018, valid until December 16, 2021

PTR No. 8125315, January 7, 2020, Makati City

August 29, 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Members and the Board of Directors
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

Don Celso S. Tuason Ave,

Antipolo City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. (a nonprofit organization) (the Club) as at June 30, 2020 and 2019, and
for each of the three years in the period ended June 30, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated
August 29, 2020, Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole, The schedules listed in the Index to the Financijal Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Club’s management. These schedules are
presented for the purpose of complying with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, and are not
part of the basic financial statements. These schedules has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the andit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, fairly state, in all material
respects, the financial information required to be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

fon Quiv £ - YesSura

Peter John R. Ventura

Partner

CPA Certificate No. 0113172

SEC Accreditation No. 1735-A (Group A),
January 15, 2019, valid until January 14, 2022

Tax Identification No. 301-106-741

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001998-140-2018,
December 17, 2018, valid until December 16, 2021

PTR No. 8125315, January 7, 2020, Makati City

August 29, 2020



VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

UNDER REVISED SRC RULE 68
June 30, 2020

—Schedule.. | Title. Page !
Financial Statements [ |
A | Financial Assets s1
B Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, and Not |
Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) | Applicable |
C Amounts Receivable from Related Parties which are eliminated Not |
during the Consolidation of Financial Statements Applicable
D Long Term Debt . Not
Applicable
E Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Not
_ | Companies) B Applicable |
F | Guarantee Securities of Other Issuers Not i
Applicable

G | Capital Stock §7




YALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES UNDER ANNEX 68-J
PURSUANT TO REVISED SRC RULE 68
June 30, 2020

Schedule A: Financial Assets
Number of 8hare or Amount in the
Principal Amount of Statement of  Income Received

Name of Tssuing Entiry and Association of Bach Issue  Bonds and Notes  Financial Position and Accrued
Loans and Recelvables
A. Cash in banks
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Compary
(MBTC) $2,416,954 B17,543
Rizal Commercial Banking Corporation 2,598,342 6,837
BDO Unibank Inc. 3,833,299 11,103
Security Bank & Trust Company (SBTC) 1,435,879 10,036
Citystate Savings Bank (CSB) 20,000 3,200
B. Cash equivalents
MBTC 9,953,678 206,246
SBTC 11,682,258 324,466
CSB 2,016,701 16,728
C. Trade and other receivables
Receivables from members —net 11,418,508 -
Receivables from concessionaires 921,889 -
Advances to employees 72,900 -
Others - net 4,574,497 -
D. Trust fund 4.818615 128.164
. - P57,793,631 £724,323
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Schedule A. Marketable Securities.( Current Marketable Equity Securities & Other Short-term Cash Investments )

Number of Amount in the Income

shares or Statement of received and
Name of Issuing entity and association of each issue principat Financial accrued
{1) amount of Position

bonds and {2)

notes

1. Metro Bank & Trust Co. 9,953,677.75 9,953,677.75 197,359.64
2. Security Bank & Trust Co. 11,682,257.59 11,682,257.59 268,436.03
3. CITYSTATE 2,016,701.38 2,016,701.38 16,701.38

23,652,636.72 23,652,636.72 482,497.05




Schedule B. Amounts Receivable from Directors, Officers, Employees, Related Parties and Pricipal Stockholders

OCoOo~NODLWN-=

( Other than Related parties ).
Beginning Additions Amounts Amounts Current Non Ending
Name and Designation of Balance collected written Current Balance
Debtori 1) (2) off (3)
Other Receivables:

Employees 21,422.99 174,465.29 163,488.18 32,400.10 32,400.10
Locators .00 415,369.02 255,118.72 160,250.30 160,250.30
Pacsport Phils. 201,558.756 941,035.45  1,032,645.51 109,948.69 109,948.69
S88- sickness benefits 93,170.00 16,200.00 109,370.00 109,370.00
Suppliers 148,700.00 3,736,844.99 3,001,165.70 884,379.29 884,379.29
Various Sponsors 180,000.00  3,335,000.00 2,334,285.71 1,190,714.29 1,190,714.29
Various Banks 84,337.54 625,857.11 667,136.11 43,058.54 43,058.54
Employees Canteen 3,533.48 131,724.49 84,714.18 50,543.79 50,543.79
ANIX Restaurant 646,423.34 3,673,370.80 4,177,500.97 142,293.27 142,293.27
Others -employees 212,729.90 595,919.84 500,030.26 308,619.48 308,619.48
BALI SPA/Barber Shop 5,125.70 66,488.29 69,451.83 2,162.16 2,162.16
FREEPORT/PRIME SPORTS 142,885.02 920,369.94 848,959.59 214,295.37 214,295.37
SMART 194,805.77 706,644.63 697,950.78 203,499.62 203,499.62
Goldcross Security 40,577.30 49893296  150,702.62 388,807.64 388,807.64
JAY J'S Restaurant 320,716.54  3,031,529.81 2,691,599.20 669,647.15 669,647.15
Celestial Security 10,439.76 10,439.76 10,439.76
Caddie Association 2,516.86 2,516.86 2,516.86
VMJ Evergreén 115,638.21  2,969,235.07 3,001,401.71 83,471.57 83,471.57
Other supplier 50.00 50.00 0.00 0.00
VGEC Coop 186,000.00 186,000.00 0.00 0.00
GAUDAN 183,320.78 63,320.78 151,641.56 95,000.00 95,000.00
Advances to Employees 80,500.00 40,000.00 40,500.00 40,500.00
SMART/FREEPORT-rent 584,748.22 260,730.00 845,478.22 845,478.22

3,211,700.16  22,429,538.57 20,053,842.63 .00 5,587,386.10 .00 5,587,396.10




Schedule C. Amounts Receivabie from Related Parties which are eliminated during the Consolidation of Financial Statements

Name and designation of debtor Beginning Additions Amounts Amounts Current | Noncurrent Ending
Balances collected written off Balances
! !
N.A. N.A N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.




Schedule D. Long Term Debt

S

Title of issue and type of obligation (1) Amount |Amount shown under Amount shown
authorized caption "Current under caption
by portion of fong-term "Long term debt
indebture debt" in related in related
balance sheet (2] balance sheet (3}
N.A. NA. N.A. N.A.



Schedule E. Indebtedness to Related Parties ( Long-Term Loans from Related Companies )

Name of Related Party ( 1)

Balance at beginning of period

1

Balance at end of period { 2 )

N.A.

N.A

Schedule F. Guarantees of Securities of Other Issuers ( 1)

N.A

|Name of issuing entity of Title of issue of |Total amount Amount owned | Nature of !

securities guaranteed by the |eachclassof  |guaranteed and  |by person for guarantee

company for which securities outstanding (2) |which statement |(3)

this statement is filed guaranteed is filed |

N.A NA. N.A NA N.A

Schedule G. Capitai Stock (1)

Title of issue (2 ) Number of |Number of shares |Number of shares Related |Directors, |Others |_.
Shares issued and reserved for Parfies officers and
authorized |outstanding at opfions, warrants, employees

shown under conversion and
related balance other rights
sheet caption
Common share 1,800 1,594 0 0 9 1,585




(B) INFORMATION ON INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT AND OTHER RELATED

MATTERS

1. External Audit Fees and Services

a. Audit and Audit-Related Fees

1.

The audit of Valley Golf's annual financial statements or services that are
normally provided by the external auditor in connection with statutory and
regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years.

Fiscal Year 2020 - Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
Fiscal Year 2019 - Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.

Other assurance and related services by the external auditor that are
reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the
registrant’s financial statements. Valley Golf hereby describes the nature
of the services comprising the fees disclosed under this category:

Income Tax Preparation - Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.
Professional Fees-

Special Audit P135,000.00
Out of Pocket

Expenses 10,000.00
Vat 17,400.00
Total P162,400.00

Nature of services:
1. Computation of Income Tax Due and other supporting

computations

2.  Preparation of Annual Income Tax Return

3. Give advice on specific taxes, which may indicate areas of risk
and possible exposure and the means by which such risk may be
mitigated.

b. Under the caption “Tax Fees”, the aggregate fees billed in each of the last
two (2) fiscal years for professional services rendered by the external auditor
for tax accounting, compliance, advice, planning and any other form of
services. Valley Golf hereby describes the nature of the services comprising
the fees disclosed under this category.

FY 2020-Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co.

Professional Fees-
Regular Audit -P400,000.00
Out of Pocket
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-—

Expenses 56,064.96
Vat 54,835.79
Total P511,800.75

Nature of services:
1. Conducted audit of the financial statements of the Company in

accordance with Philippines Standards on Auditing and to express an
opinion whether the financial statements present fairly, in all material
aspects, the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with PFRSs.

2. Reviewed the processes and procedures, the internal control over
financial reporting.

3. Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including disclosures.

¢. Under the caption “All other Fees”, the aggregate fees billed in each of the
last two (2) fiscal years for products and services provided by the external
auditor, other than the services reported under items (a) & (b) above.
Registrants shall describe the nature of the services comprising the fees
disclosed under this category.

There are no other services provided by the external auditor other than
the services mentioned under items (a) & (b) above.

d. The Audit Committee's approval policies and procedures for the above
services.

Selection of external auditor shall comprise of the following procedure:
Advertisement or invitation will be sent to the public.

2. A letter of intent shall be submitted to Internal Auditor by all the prospective

~

external audit firms

The Internal Auditor will determine the eligibility of the prospective external audit
firms thru their company background, familiarity of operations, and prestige.

The audit committee will hold an interview with the prospective audit firms.
Sealed audit fee proposals will be submitted to Internal Auditor on such date,
time, and place specified in the invitation. Proposals received after the deadline
will be invalid.

The Audit Committee will publicly open all the proposals at the same time, date,
and place as specified in the invitation.

A review on all proposals and result of the interview shall be evaluated by the
Audit Committee. The recommendation shall have a majority vote of the Audit
Committee.
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8. The Board of Directors may approve or reject the recommendation of the Audit
Committee. Once approved by the BOD, it will then be included in the annual
stockholders meeting for final approval.

8. This process will be repeated every 5 years or as need arises.

e A meeting is held with the Audit and Finance Committees to discuss, evaluate
and review the work, observations and recommendations of the External
Auditors.

« If necessary, revision and/or creation of internal control policies and procedures
including the target timeline of implementation are then made and submitted to
the Board of Directors for its approval.

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENT WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

For the Fiscal years ended June 30, 1998 up to June 30, 2003, the Club’s
external auditor was Joaquin Cunanan & Co.. The handiing partner was Miss Irene
Vallestero. The engagement of Joaquin Cunanan & Co. was terminated in May 2004
upon approval by the Board on April 29, 2004 of the hiring of Punongbayan & Araullo.

For the years ended June 30, 2004 up to 2007, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club were audited by Punongbayan & Araullo. The handling partner is
Ms. Mailene Sigue-Bisnar. Punongbayan & Araullo was hired to audit the 2004 books of
account by the Board of Directors, in compliance with the resolution approved during the
Stockholders’ Meeting of September 28, 2003 to leave the decision on the hiring of the
new external auditors to the sound discretion of the Board subject to the observance of
SEC Regulations on Good Corporate Governance. The election of Punongbayan and
Araullo as the Club's External Auditors was approved during the September 26, 2004
Stockholders’ Meeting.

For the years ended June 30, 2008 up to 2012, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. were audited by Uy Singson Abella & Co. The handling
partner is Ms. Milagros F. Pademnal. The change in external auditor was approved by
the Board of Directors on their regular meeting last June 14, 2008.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 up to 2020, the financial statements of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. were audited by Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. The handling
partner was Mr. Jose Pepito E. Zabat Il from 2013 to 2016. For fiscal year 2017 and
2018 the handling partner was Mr. Alexis Benjamin C. Zaragoza lll. For the current
Fiscal Year 2020 and Fiscal Year 2019 the handling partner is Mr. Peter John R.
Ventura. The change in external auditor was approved by the Board of Directors in their
regular meeting held on May 19, 2012 and the appointment was approved during
Regular Stockholders’ Meeting on September 22, 2013 and every year thereafter.

The regular changes of external auditor as well as the handling partners is in
compliance with Revised Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, No. 3, B, (ix), (2019) on
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Rotation of external Auditors and partners at least every five (5) years, and has been
reflected in a current report submitted to the SEC

There are no disagreements with Joaquin Cunanan & Co, Punongbayan &

Araullo, Uy Singson Abella and Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure.

PART lll - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE ISSUER

Incumbent Board of Directors, Executive Officers and Significant Employees of
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc.

= a Term of Office
Name Age | Citizenship Position as Director/
_ ] Period Served
Wilfredo G. Manahan 55 Filipino President 3 y;s 2017~
resent
Albert DG. San Gabriel 49 | Filipho Vice-President | 7% 2017
L resent
Leopoldo M. Garcla 71 | Filipino Treasurer 3 Yl,’:ész:nlta '
Pablito M. Gregore 57 Fillpino Asst. Treasurer 3 y;'s. 2019 -
resent
Jeremy Z. Parulan 62 Filipino Director 3 y;:észgnit'? i
= | =
Albert G. Que * 62 | Filipino Director 3 Y;:é:::te
Ronald O. Solis 60 | Filipmo |  Director 3yrs. 2018+
. - . 3yrs. 2019 -
*
ﬁarlo ]. Carpio 52 Filipino Director " Present
| Reginald Benjamin V. San e . 3 yrs. 2019 -
Pedro * 39 Filipino Director Present
Marcus  Antonius T. .
Andaya 54 Filipino Corporate Secretary N.A. |
* Independent Director

Mr. Wilfrede G. Manahan is a CPA by profession. He has been a
member of the Club since January 2005 as Playing guest and became a
Proprietary Member in January 2010. He is the Owner/Manager of Lubetech Car
Care Center. He was a Former Director of PNB Employees and Savings & Loan
Agsociation, Past President of Rotary Club of Metro West 3780 from 2008 to
2009 and Assistant Governor of the R.I. District 3780. He is also affiliated with
the Freemasonry under the Jurisdiction of the Grand Lodge of the Philippines.

Mr. Albert DG. San Gabrlel has been a member of the Club since June
22, 2012. He is currently a Board Director and General Manager of Olongapo
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Maintenance Services, Inc. He is also an Officer and Director of Acasa
Properties Corp, Eagle89 Construction and Trading Corp and Tipid Busog Meals,
inc. He is actively serving the Club as Chairman of the House Committee and
the Bids & Awards Commitiee.

Engr. Leopoldo M. Garcia is a Club Member since June 2015. He is the
President & CEQ of Polzon Enterprises and President and CEO of Symanpro
Manpower Service Contractor Corporation. He was a member of the Grounds
Committee in 2017-2018 and is currently the Chairman of the Finance and
Administration Committees.

Mr. Pablito M. Gregore is a Club Member since Sept. 11, 2006. He is
the Managing Director of Colorsteel System Corp. He is cuirently the Chairman
of the Security Committee.

Atty. Jeremy Z. Parulan is an Attorney by profession. He has been a
member of the Club since August 1997 as Playing Guest and become a
Proprietary Member in August 2008. He is the Managing Partner — Parulan
Soncuya & Trinidad Law Offices and President — Magistech Business Solutions
inc. He is currently the Chairman of the Real Estate Committee

Mr. Albert G. Que is a Club Member since July 2003 as Playing Guest
and became Proprietary Member in November 2007. He is the President and
CEO of Integrated Pipe Specialist. He is currently the Chairman of the Grounds
and Engineering/Construction Committees

Atty. Ronald O. Solis is a Club Member since June 2003, He is the
Senior Partner in Solis Medina Limpingco & Fajardo Law Offices, President of
UP Sigma Rho Council, Lecturer in UP Diliman and the College of Law, Lyceum
of the Philippines and First Vice-President and Director of the Philippine
Electronics & Telecommunications Federation Inc.

Mr. Carlo J. Carpio is a member of the Club since Nov. 1998. He is the
Vice President on Sales & Marketing of Texicon Agri Ventures. He is currently
the Chairman of the Sports & Games Committee.

Mr. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro is a member of the Club since
March 2012. He is the Chief Operating Officer of B-Mirk Group of Companies.
He is currently the Chairman of the Membership and Audit Committees.

Atty. Marcus Antonius T. Andaya is a Club Member as Proprietary
Member since August 10, 2017. Atty. Andaya is a Senior Managing Partner at
Bantog & Andaya Law Offices. He is a graduate of Bachelor of Laws in San
Beda College.

The directors are independent of management and free from any business or
other relationship which could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere
with their exercise of independent judgment in carrying out their responsibilities as
directors. There are no other directors other than the above mentioned names.
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There are no family relationships up to the fourth civil degree either by
consanguinity or affinity among directors, executive officers or persons nominated or
chosen by the registrant to become directors or executive officers.

During the past five (5) years there was no bankruptcy petition filed by or against
any business of which the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive
officers is a general partner or executive officer either at the time of bankruptcy or within
two years prior to that time.

There is no conviction by final judgment, in a criminal proceeding, domestic or
foreign, or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding
traffic violations and other minor offenses against the directors, any nominee for election
as director and executive officers.

None of the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive officers
is subject to any order, judgment or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or
vacated, of any court of competent jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, permanently or
temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any
type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities.

None of the directors, any nominee for election as director and executive officers
was found by a domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction, the Commission of
comparable foreign body, or a domestic or foreign Exchange or other organized trading
market or self-regulatory organization, to have violated a securities or commodities law
or regulation and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended or vacated.

SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Mr. CIiff M. Friedman was born on Oct. 24, 1958 in USA and is now 61
years old. Mr. Friedman started his employment with Valley Golf last June 11,
2019 with a 2-year contract up to June 12, 2021. He is a graduate of Associate
of Arts, Secondary Education in Northern Marianas College, Saipan, Northern
Marianas Islands. His last previous employment is with Bana Hills Golf Club in
Danang Vietnam.

Ms. Rosanna R. Arguelles was born on October 9, 1963 in Antipolo City
and is now 56 years old; She is a CPA and a graduate of BSC major in
Accounting at University of Santo Tomas. She was previously Chief Accountant
of the Municipality of Antipolo. She started her employment at Valley Golf in 1988
and is now the Division Manager of the Controller's Division.

Ms. Elda C. Jugo was born on September 9, 1962 in Binangonan, Rizal
and is now 57 years old. She graduated from Far Eastern University with a
degree of Bachelor of Science in Accounting. She was initially hired as typist-
filing clerk in 1986 and is now the Finance and Accounting Manager of the Club.

Mr. Sigfried Arguelles was born on January 5, 1962 and is now 58 years

old. He started working at Valley Golf in 1990 and now the Clubhouse and
External Affairs Manager of the Club.
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These are the General Manager, Division Manager and Department
Managers and are considered the key personnel of the Club. The division and
department managers as well as supervisors were previously given a yearly
increase in salaries at a maximum of 3%. But in 2010, instead of giving annual
increases, managers and supervisors were given performance bonuses -
percentage from the audited net income. They also receive Christmas bonuses.
All duties and responsibilities are ensured to be rotated to other supervisors
within the department so there will be no monopoly of knowledge. The friendly
atmosphere between management and supervisors and the benefits that the
employees receive are factors that contribute to the sense of loyalty of the
employees.

ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
Executive Compensation

General

The President, Vice-President, Treasurer, Asst. Treasurer and all members of
the Board are not paid any compensation of whatever kind since election to the Board

up to the present.

SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name Position Fiscal Salary/month 13% month Bonus
Year
Cliff M. Friedman General Manager 2020 133,333.33  66,666.66 55,890.41

Rosanna R. Arguelles Division Manager

Controller
2012  71,890.00 71,890.00 23,385.90
2013  76,390.00 76,390.00 24,780.90
2014 80,890.00 80,890.00 26,175.90
2015 80,890.00 80.89C.00 26,175.90
2016 83,317.00 83,317.00 30,298.27
2017 83,317.00  83,317.00 30,298.27
2018 85,817.00 85,817.00 32,523,27
2019 85,817.00 85,817.00 32,573.27
2020 89,517.00 89,517.00 44,758.50
Eilda C. Jugo F & A Mngr.

2012  38,340.00 38,840.00 13,140.40
2013 43,340.00 43,340.00 14,535.40
2014  47,840.00 47,840.00 15,930.40
2015  47,840.00 47,840.00 15,930.40
2016 49,275.00 49.275.00 19,745.25
2017 49,275.00 49,275.00 19,745.25
2018 50,753.00 50,753.00 21,753.42
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2019 50,753.00 50,753.00 21,803.42
2020 52,585.00 52,585.00 26,292.50

Sigfried C. Arguelles Clubhouse and
External Aff. Manager
2014  30,000.00 30,000.00 10,400.00
2015  30,000.00 30,000.00 10,400.00
2016  30,900.00 30,900.00 14,049.00
2017  30,900.00 30,900.00 14,049.00
2018  32,500.00 32,500.00 15,895.00
2019 32,500.00 32,500.00 15,945.00
2020  33,530.00 33,550.00 16,775.00

Compensation of Directors

Valley Golf & Country Club’s directors have not been and still are not
compensated, directly or indirectly for any services provided as such pursuant to Article
IV, Section 2 of the By-laws.

Employment contracts and termination of employment and change-in-control
arrangements

The Board of Directors is composed of nine (8) members. Every year at the
annual stockholders’ meeting, three (3) directors are elected for a term of three (3)
years. No director can serve consecutively for more than three (3) years.

The Club has no compensatory plan or arrangement with its directors and
General Manager resulting from resignation, retirement or any other termination of their
relationship with the company, or from a change in control of the company or a change
of responsibiiities following a change in control.

Warrants and Options Outstanding: Repricing

There are no warrants or options held by the company’'s CEQ, the executive
officers, and all officers and directors as a group.

Family Relationships
As of the filing of this report, management is not aware of any relationship (up to

the fourth civil degree), either by consanguinity or affinity among the directors, executive
officers or members nominated to be directors.
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ITEM 11. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT
1. There is no person or any group of persons who is the owner on record or
the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly of more than five percent (5%)
of the Ciub's voting securities.
2, All members of the Board are the owners on record of one share each
which qualifies them for directorship. There is no director who is the
beneficial owner of other shares of stocks.

" Title of | Amount/Nat |
Class Name of Beneficlal ure of . Percent of
Owner Beneficial Citizenship Class
: | Owmership
Ordinary | Wilfredo G. Manahan 1 share Filipino Negligible
_Ordinary | Albert DG. San Gabriel 1 share Filipino Negligible
_Ordinary | Leopoldo M. Garcia 1 share Filipino | Negligible
Ordinary | Pablito M. Gregore 1 share Filipino | Negligible
Ordinary | Jeremy Z. Parulan 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | AlbertG. Que 1 share Filipino Negligible
| Ordinary | Ronald 0. Solis 1 share Filipino Negligible
| Ordinary | Carlo|. Carpio 1 share Filipino Nesligible
Ordinary g:g:;aid Benjamin V. San 1 share Filipino Negligible
Ordinary | Marcus Antonius T. 1 share Filiptno Negligible
Andava
2. The Club is not aware of the existence of any voting trust holders of any
proportion of the existing authorized capital stock.
3. There is no arrangement, which may result in a change in management

control of registrant since the beginning of the last fiscal year.
ITEM 12 - CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

In line with the policy of Valley Golf of transparency and avoidance of conflict of
interest situations by its directors/officers as provided in the By-Laws it is hereby
disclosed that Yukon General Manpower Services, a corporation wherein the General
Manager is Ms. Sylvia Carpio, the wife of Dir. Carlo Carpio has been doing business with
Valley Golf since 2008. Dir. Carpio have no management control or participation over
said business and was not involved in the decision of Valley Golf management to enter
into business with said company.

Other than the disclosures stated above, Valley Goif does not have any
transactions with or involving a company or any of its subsidiaries in which a director,
executive officer, or stockholder owns ten percent (10%) or more of the total outstanding
shares and members of their immediate family had or is to have a direct or indirect
material interest.

Valiey Golf did not have transactions with promoters.

Valley Golf does not have a parent company or a subsidiary company.
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PART IV - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITEM 13 - CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(a.) The evaluation system established by the company to measure or determine the
levei of compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with its Manual
of Corporate Governance.

1.
2.

Initially, the Club adopted the Corporate Governance Self-Rating System
Form.

Valley Golf has a Business Plan and Annual Budget Management
conducts a monthly review of compliance with the action ‘plan. Every
month a Management Report is submitted during the Board Meeting
which contains the status report of the business plan and the comparative
financial statement against the budget to reflect the variances. Included
also is a monthly highlight of the financial report with detaited explanations
on the variances of the actual figures as compared to the budget.

(b.) Measures being undertaken by the company to fully comply with the adopted
leading practices on good corporate governance.

1.

The Audit Committee and the Finance Commitiee meet with the External
Auditors regarding the annual examination of the financial statements of
the Club and the operations of the Club.

The Club has a Membership Handbook and a Personnel Manual that
contain policies, procedures and implementing guidelines on dealing with
members and employees.

The President submits a monthly Management Report to the Board of
Directors.

The Board of Directors had appointed the members of the Nomination
Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee to comply with their respective duties and responsibilities as
provided for in the Manual of Good Corporate Governance.

The Board of Directors had appointed an External Auditor and hired an
Internal Auditor in compliance with the Manual of Good Corporate
Governance.

The Ciub’s annual report is disseminated to all members to inform them of
the results of the operations of the Club and the activities of the Board for
the fiscal year.

The Board of Directors has created several committees to ensure
compliance with the Club's Code of Corporate Governance. Among the
committees created are the Management Committee, House Committee,
Membership Committee, Finance Commities, Sports and Games
Committee, Nomination Committee, Grounds & Engineering Committee,
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Administration Committee, Legal Committee, Real Estate Committee,
Security Committee and Election Committee.

8. During the Fiscal year 2020, the following Members of the Board of
Directors and Compliance Officer attended the Seminar on Corporate
Governance:

The following Members of the Board of Directors and General
Manager/Compliance Officer attended the Seminar on Corporate
Governance Orientation Program on November 19, 2019 at the Institute
of Corporate Directors, Makati Diamond Residences, Makati City, Metro
Manila

1. Dir. Carlo J. Carpio
2. Dir. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro
3. GM CIiff M. Friedman

The following Members of the Board of Directors attended the Seminar on
Corporate Governance Orientation Program on August 28, 2019 at the
Institute of Corporate Directors, Tower Club, Philam Tower, Makati City,
Metro Manila.

1. Dir. Leopoldo M. Garcia
2. Dir. Albert G. Que

(c.) Any deviation from the company’s Manual of Corporate Governance. It shall
include a disclosure of the name and position of the person/s involved, and the
sanction/s imposed on said individual

There is no deviation from the Manual of Corporate Governance of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc.

(d) Any plan to improve corporate governance of the company
In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 24 Series of 2019,
requiring the submission of the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance, the

Board of Directors approved on July 22, 2020 the new Manual of Corporate
Governance of Valley Golf and was submitted electronically on July 25, 2020.

PLEASE REFER TO ATTACHED ANNUAL CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT (ACGR)

PART V - EXHIBITS AND SCHEDULES
iTEM 14, EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C
1. Exhliblits

A Amended Articles of Incorporation — 15 pages
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Amended By-Laws — 15 pages
Annuat Report to Security Holders — 68 pages
Minutes of the September 22, 2019 Stockholders’ Meeting

Annual Corporate Governance Report (ACGR)

Valley Golf does not have Plan of Acquisition, Reorganization,

Arrangement, Liquidation or Succession, Instruments defining rights of
security holders, voting trust agreement, subsidiaries, power of attorney
or other reports mentioned.

Reports on SEC Form 17 - C and Form 17 -Q

On Sept. 19, 2019, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the attendance of Dir. Leopoido M. Garcia and Dir. Albert Que in the
Seminar on Corporate Governance Orientation Program on August
28, 2019 at the Institute of Corporate Directors.

On Sept. 26, 2018, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the election of the Board of Directors, Board Members who ceased to
hold their positions and new officers elected by the Board of Directors
in the organizational meeting on Sept. 22, 2019.

On Sept. 26, 2019, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Co. as Valley Golf's
External Auditors or Independent Accountants during the Sept. 22,
2019 Stockholders’ meeting.

On Oct. 24, 2019, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the appointment of the Chairman and Members of the Audit
Committee, Chairman and Members of the Remuneration and
Compensation Committee, the appointment of the Asst. Treasurer
and the appointment of the Corporate Secretary.

On Nov. 7, 2019, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report
for the first quarter.

On Nov. 27, 2019, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on
the attendance of Dir. Carlo Carpio, Dir. Reginald Benjamin San
Pedro and General Manager Cliff M. Friedman in the Seminar on
Corporate Governance Orientation Program on Nov. 19, 2019 at the
Institute of Corporate Directors.

On Jan. 14, 2020, Valley Golf submitted the current report 17-C on
compliance with the Manual of Corporate Governance for the year
ended December 31, 2019.

On Feb 11, 2020, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report
for the second quarter.

On June 18, 2020, Valley Golf submitted 17-Q for the quarterly report
for the third quarter.

On July 1, 2020, Valley Golf submitted the Current Report 17-C on the
members of the Committee on Elections and Nominating Commiitee.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the reguirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the
Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Antipolo on September 25, 2020

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
By:

e

.-‘f- =

o~

L_Fvgy,antpo G. MANAHAN LEOPQLDO M. GARCIA
rincipal Executive Officer/ Principal Financlal Offlcer/

President Treasurer

T. ANDAYA CL

General Manager/Compliance

Officer
ROSANNA\R. ARGUELLES ELDﬁJ GO
Comptrolief/Head Controllers’ Principal Accounting Offlcer/
Division Finance & Accounting Manager
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of , 2020
affiants exhibiting to me their valid ID’s, as follows:
Name

Wilfredo G. Manahan TIN No. 109-940-874

Leopoldo M. Garcia TIN No. 103-090-050

Marcus Antonius T. Andaya TIN No. 117-688-980

Cliff M. Friedman TIN No. 205-657-276

Rosanna R. Arguelles PRC ID No. 069065

Elda C. Jugo TIN No. 102-778-591 /
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REPLBLIC OF THE PHLIPPINES
SEGURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Buliding, EDSA, Greenhllls
Clty of Mandaluyong, Meiro Manlla

- Company Reg, No. 13951
CERTIFICATE OF FILING
AMENDED A.RTICLE%FOF INCORPORATION
KNOW ALY PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS:

"THIS IS TO CERTIRY that the amended articles of Incorporition of the

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
{Amending Article IV by extending thie torm of its existunce thereof]

copy nnmexed, adopted ou July 29, 2006 by a majority vote of the Board of 4..-_

Directors and ou November 18, 2007 by the vote of the sinckholders owning or e
represcnting at least two-thirds of the outsinuding capital stock, and certifiad under i
oath by the Secrefary and a majoricy of tho Board of Divectora of the corportion was b
approved by the Commission on thia dats pursuant o the provision of Section 16 of the s
Corporntion, Code of fhe Philippines, Batss Pambanaa Rig. 68, upproved on May 1, 1980 %ﬂ:
and copfes thereof are fad with the Commission. _L':::_\_.g;.-c

Unless this corporatiou obtwins or already has obtained the appropriate =
Sccondary License from thls Commission, this Certificate docs not muthorize it to {;;;-.J,-L: _

e

undertake buginess sotivities reqmirlng » Secondary Edceuse from this Commizsion sach

a8, but not limited to acting ns: broker or dealer In secnrities, government securlties s

oligible dealer (GSED), lnvestment adviser of an investment company, closo-end or niag

open-end Luvestment compary, investment hoase, transfer agent, commodity/flnancinl i B

futnres exchange/broker/merchant, financing compauy, pre-nesd plan fssuer, genoral ':E b

agent fn pre-noed plans and tine shares/cinb shares/membership cortilicntes lssuers or & ;E;;;'.

selling agenta thersol Neither does thiy Certifieate consiitute as permit-to undertake f.g. 5:&5{\

activities for which other govermmont agencied require a license or permit. 313?1
AT

S

e

IN WITNISS WHEREOF, X have hereuuto set ny liand and cansed the seal of S

Lpe

L

L
£F]

thlagimiuim to be affized st Mandsluyong City, Metro Manila, Philippines, this

yof April, Two Thousand Eight.
/ﬁ’a,-,.:t..:c,—
[NITO A. CATARAN

Director
Comp?ny Registration aud Montoring Depnrtment
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AMENDED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
VALLEY GOLF & GOUNTRY CLUB,
{Amended as of IE'.Me‘:l‘;iamber 10, 1989)
(Formerly Valley Golf Club, Inc.)
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
That we, all of whom are of legal age and residents of the Phiiippines, have

this day voluntarlly associaled ourseives together for the purpose of forming a

corporation under the laws of the Philipplnes.

AND WE HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIRST. Thal the name of sald corporation shali be “YALLEY GOLF &
COUNTRY CLUB, 1NC.” (As amended on Saptember 10, 1988).
SECOND.  That the purposea for which the said corporation |s formed are:

PRIMARY PURPOSE

To foster and promote the game of golf and operate and maintaln a golf course

and country club.

SECONDARY PURPOSE

To buy, laaes or otherwise acquire, own, hoid and dispose of, such real and
personal property as may be necessary, advantageous or convenient In the conduct
of Ite business; to develop, improve, and subdivide any properties owned by the

corporation; and, generally, (o do and perform all such acts and things, and to



axerclsa such powers as are ordiharily done. performed and exercised by soclal and

athletic clubs and associations,

THIRD, Thet the place whera the princlpal office of the corporation is to
be established or located is Antipolo, Rizal, Philippinee.

EOURTH. That the tarm for which aaid corporation s to exist for ancther
FIFTY (80) YEARS from May 15, 2008. (gg amendad on November 18, 2007},

iFTH. ‘That the names, resldence and nationaiity of the incorporators

of sald corporafion are ai follows:

Name Natlonality Residence
Celgo Tuason Fillptno Wilson St., San Juan, Rizal
Aurslio Montinola, 8r. Fliiplno Mahogeany Rd,, Forbes Park Makati,
Ernest Kahn Fllipino Russell Ave., PE:I:;I City
Henry Belden American 13" st., New Manila, Q. C.
J. Antonio Araneta Filiplno Mckinlay Rd., Ferbes Park Makaed,
Rzal
SIXTH. ‘I'iat the numbsr of Directors of sald corporation shall be nine

(8) nd the names and reeidences of the Directors of the corporation who are to
serve until their successors are elected and qualified as provided by the By-Laws are

-

a8 follows:
Name Nationallty Residanca
Celso Tuason Filipino Wllson St., San Juan, Rizal
Aurelio Montinola, Sr. Filipino Mahogany Rd. Forbes Park, Makati,
Rizal
Emest Kahrt Filipino Russel} Ave,, Paaay City

Heniy Belden Ametican 13" st,, New Manila, Q. C.
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J. Antonlo Araneta Fliipino Mckinley Rd., Forbes Park, Makat],
Rizal

Franclsco Ortigae, Jr. Flllpino R. Alunan §t., Manila

Jaime Velasquez Fllipino Easy St., San Juan, Rizal

SEVENTH. That the cepilal stock of said corporation la Sixisen Millon Two
Hundred Thousand Pesos (PhP16,200,000.00) divided Into One Thousand Elght
Hundred {1,800) shares of the par value of Nine Thousand Pesos {PhP9,000) each.
(as amended on September 13, 1881).

Sald shares of stock shall.bs owned by and the Interest thersof accrus only to
the registered owner thereof, who, aside from his rights as shareholdsr, may in
addliion, and subject to euch rules and regulations as may be promulgated by, and to
screening and approval of the Board of Directors, be lesued & regular membarship
card that would entitie him to all the rights and privileges that are extended to all
holders of regular membership carde for the use and enjoyment of the facllities and

premises of tha Club.

Any person who owns or buys a share in the company must apply for
membership within thiry (30) days from date of registration of sale. This condition
shall appear In the stock certificates. '

EIGHTH. That the amount of sald capltal stocic which has been actually
subscribed fe ONE MILLION PESOS (PhP1,000,000.00) and the following persons
have subscribed for the number of shares and amount of capital stock set out after

thelr respective names.



Name

Aguinaldo, Frandisco R.

Aguirre, Tomas B.
Alafris, Arturo A.
Araneta, J. Antonlo
Araneta, Luls M.
Bahat, Chester
Balcoff, Charles |.
Barredn, Manusl
Bautista, Constantino
Belden, Hanry
Bennett, Henry E.
Brias, Endque

Brias, Jalme

Cecho, Francisco
Cecho, Josa A,
Ghua, Antonlo Roxas
Cojuangoo, Pedro
Consunji, Ricardo
Cortes, Jose Ma.
Cortes, Fellx

Gruz, Blenvenido

Cu Unjieng, Benlto
Damparre, Alfonso R. de
Dlez, Pompeyo
Faria, Jose -
Femandez, Jose
Friedar, Robert
Gabsldon, Isauro
Gamboa, Regino D.
Gonhzalas, Antonlo
Gonzales, Rafael
Guerraro, Oscar E.
Halling, F. R.

Hueng, Frank
Jathuena, L. P.

Kahn, Emast

Klar, Jose

LIboro, Andres
Licarcs, Gregorio, Sr.
Licaros, Gregorio, B. Jr.
Lim, P. L.

Lim, Peter

Locsin, Jose

Lopa, Manuel

Lopez, Honrado C,
Lovell, G. H.

Luz, Alfredo J.
Madrigal, Antonlo P.
Madrigel, Jose P,
Maznahan, Genstantino P
Manglapus, Reul
Manotos, Ricardo 8.

Residence

Quezon Clty
Pasay Clty
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Manlla
Quezon City
Manila
Manila
Quezon Clty-
Quezon City
San Juan, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
Manila
Mandaluyong, Rizal
Manlle,
Manila
Manlla
Mandaluyong, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon Cly
Pasay City
Manlla
Manlla
Manlla
Manila
Manlla
Quezon Chy
Manila
Msnlla
Quezan Clty
Quezon Clty
S, Juan, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
§. Juan, Rizal
Pasay City
Pasay Clty
Quezon Clty
Quezon City
Manila
Manila

8. Juan, Rizal
Mekati, Rizal
Manlila

Pasay Clty
Manlla

Pasig, Rizal
Manlla
Quszon City
Quezon City
Quezon City
San Juan, Rizal
Quezon Clty

No. of

Amount

Shares  Subscribed

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
i
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

*10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
40,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
16,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
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Metilla, Faustino
Miranda, Antonlo
Montinola, Aureilo Sr.
Montinola, Aurelio Jr.
Viontincla, Serglo
Nethan, Karl

Norton, J. E

Olivas, Sebastlan
Oriiges, Eduardo
Ortigas, Francisco
Ortlgas, Rafaal
Peraz Rublo, Miguel
Pleazo, Evaristo
Plcomall, Santlago
Preysier, J. B,
Quirno, Carlos
Recto, Alfonso
Reyss, Narciso Jr.
Reyes, Victor

Roco, Femando 8.
Roxas, Antonto
Roxas, Eduardo
Rufino, Ereste D.
Sentayana, Luis S.
Sorianp, Andres
Sorlano, Andres Jr.
Soriano, Jose Marla
Syclp, Washington
Tuason, Celso A,
Tuason, Juan E.
Tuason, Severo A
Unson, Miguel R.
Uy, James
Velasquez, Jaime
Velayo, Alfredo
Vallguth, Alfred C.
Vilia-Abrilie, Alfredo
Villaraal, Fernendo Sr.
Wilkinson, Gerald
Wilsen, Calude M., Jr.
Young, Walter Au
Ysmas!, Garlos
Yemagl, Fallpe

Yu Kho Slong

Yu Kho Thal
Yujuleo, Alelandro 8.
Yujuico, Jesus 8.
Zulyeta, Cesar de

Quszon Gity
Pasay CHy
Makati, Rizal
Malcati, Rizal
Bacolod City
Quezon City
Quezon Clty
Quezon Clty
Quezon Clty
Manila

Manlle

Makatl, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
Manila

Maleati, Rizal
Menila,

Makatl, Rizal
Manfla

Manfta

Quezon City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Pasay City
Makatl, Rizal
Pasay Clty
Makati, Rizal
Pasay City
Makat, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
Manila

Manila

Pasay Clty
Makatl, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
Parafiaque, Rizal
Makstl, Rizal
Quezdn Clty
Quezon Chy
Mandaluyong City
San Juan, Rizal
Quezon Clty
Quezon Clty
Manlla

Pasay City
Quazon City
Quezon City
Makati City

1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
4
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

100

J

10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000,00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
19,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000.00
10,000,00
10,000.00
10,000.00
~10,000.00
P1.000.000




Thst the following persons have pald on the shares of capltal
stock for which they have subacribed the amounts eet out aftar their reapective

names.

Name

Agulnaldo, Franclsco R.
Agulrre, Tomas B.
Alaftls, Arturo A.
Araneta, J. Antonlo
Aranetz, Luis Ma.
Baicoff, Chester
Blacoff, Charles T.
Baredo, Manuel
Bautista, Cohstantino
Balden, Hanry
Bennett, Henry E.
Bries, Enrique

Brigs, Jalme

Cacho, Francisco
Ceacho, Joga A,
Chua, Antonio Roxas
Cojuangeo, Padro
Consunjl, Ricardo
Cortes, Jose WMa.
Cortes, Felix

Cnuz, Blanvenido

Cu Unjieng, Benlto
Damparre, Alfoneo R.de
Diaz, Pompeyo
Ferla, Jose
Fernandez, Joa2
Frieder, Robert
Gabaldon, isauro
Gamboa, Regino D.
Gonzaies, Rafeel
Guermerg, Oscar E.
Halling, F. R.

Huang, Frank
Jalbuena, L.P.

Kahn, Emast

Klar, Jose

Liboro, Andras
Licaros, Gregorio, Sr.
Licaros, Gregario, B. Jr.
Lim, P. L.

Lim, Peter

Lacsin, Jose

Lops, Manuel

Lopez, Honrado G.
Lovell, G. H.

Luz, Alfrado J.
Madrigal, Antonlo P.

Resldence

Quezan City
Paeay City
Paaay Clty
Makati, Rizal
Manlla
Quezan City
Manila
Manila
Quuezon City
Quezon Cly
San Juan, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
Maniia
Mandaluyong, Rizal
Manila
Manlla
Manila
Mandaluyong, Rizal
GQuezon Cly
Quezon Cliy
Pasay City
Manila
Manila
Manila
Manila
Manlie
Quezon City
Manila
Manlla
Cluezon Clty
S, Juan, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
8. Juan, Rizal
Pasay Glty
Pasay City
Quezon Ciy
Quezon Cily
Manlla
Manlla

8, Juan, Rizal
Makatl, Rizal
Manila

Pasay City
Maniia

Pasig, Rizal
Manlla
Quezon City

Amount
Subscribed

P 3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,6800.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
5,600.00
3,600.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,5600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
2,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00



Madrigal, Jose P,

Manahan, Constantine P.

Manglapus, Raul
Manatoc, Ricardo €.
Matills, Faustino
Miranda, Antonio
Montincla, Aurelic 8r,
Montinola, Aurello Jr.
Montinola, Sergio
Nathan, Karl

Norton, J. E.

Olives, Sebastian
Ortiges, Eduarde
Ortiges, Francisco
Drtiges, Rafael
Perez Rublo, Miguel
Picazo, Fvaristo
Pirconell, Santiago
Preyzler, J. B.
Quirino, Garlos
Alfonso, Recto
Reyss, Narcleo Jr.
Rayes, Victor

Roco, Fernando S.
Roxas, Antonio
Roxas, Eduardo
Rufino, Emesto D.
Santayana, Luie 8.
Sorlana, Andres
Soriano, Andras Jr.
Sorlano, Jose Marla
Sycip, Washington
Tuasan, Celso A,
Tuason, Juen E.
Tuason, Severo A.
Unaon, Miguel R.
Uy, James
Velaaquez, Jalime
Velayo, Alfrado
Vellcuth, Alfred C.
Viiiz-Abrile, Alfrede
Villareal, Femando Sr.
Wilkinson, Gerald
Wiison, Caiude M., Jr.
Young, Walter Ay
Ysmasl, Carlos
Yamael, Felipe
Siong, Yu Khe

Tal, Yu Khe

Yuijulco, Alejandro S.
Yujuico, Jesus 8.
Zulueta, Cosar de

Quezon Clly
Quezon Clty
San Juen, Rizal
Quezan Clty
Quezon City
Pasay City
Makati, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Bacolod City
Quezon City
Quezon Clty
Quezon Clty
Quezon Clty
Manila

Manila

Makati, Rizal
Mekat!, Rizal
Manila

Makatl, Rizal
Manila

Makati, Rizal
Maniia

Manila

Quezon Clty
Pasay Clty
Makatl, Rizal
Pasay Clty
Makall, Rizsl
Pasay City
Makatl, Rlzel
Pasay Clty
Malkati, Rizal
San Juan, Rizal
KManila

Manlls

Pasay City
Makat|, Rizal
San Juan, Rizad
Makatl, Rizal
Parafiaque, Rizal
Makati, Rizal
Quezon City
Quezon City
Mandaluyong City
8an Juan, Rizal
Quezon Clty
Quezon Clty
Manlla

Pasay City
Quezonh Cly
Quezon City
Makati City

!

3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
9,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
5,600.00
3,600.00
8,500,00
3,500.00
8,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
8,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,500,00
3,500.00
3,500.00
4,500.00
3,500.00
3,500.00
3,600.00
__3500.00
P 360.000



TENTH. That ERNEST KAHN has been glected by the subscribers a8

Treasurer of the Corporation to act a8 such untll his successor I8 duly elected and

qualified in accordance with the By Laws, and that no such Traasurer he has been

authorized to recelve for the corporation end to recelpt in its name for ail

subscriptions pald in by sald slbseribars.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, we have hereunto et our hands In the City of

Manila, Philippines, this 14™ day of May, 1858.

d.) Celso {Sad.) Aurelio Montipoia
CELSO TUASON AURELIO NIONTINOLA
(Sqd.} Emest Kahn (Sqgl) Henry T. Belden
ERNEST KAHN HENRY T. BELDEN
. Antonjo Araneta
J. ANTONIO ARANETA
Signed in the presence of.
{Sgd.) llegible {8gd.} Weglble
REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES)
CITY OF MANILA )} 8.8.

Before ma. a Notary Public in and for the Gity of Maniia, Phiippines, this 14"

day of May, 1968, peraonally appearsd the followlng persons with thelr respective

residence ceriificates, to wit;

[ Nagme Resldence Date and Place
| - Cert No of lssue
Celson Tuason _ | A-0204982 Jan. 22, 1958 — Manlla
Aursfio Montinola, Sr. A-0023061 | Jan- 8. 1858 —Manila
Ernest Kahn A-0008403 Jan. 2. 1858 — Manila

"Henry Belden | A-0DB7620

"J. Antonlo Araneta | A-0120887 =

Jan. 17, 1968 —Manlia

Jan. 13, 1958 —Manlla |

]



—

all known to me and to me known to be the same persons who executed the
foregoing Articles of Incorporation of Valley Golf Club, Inc., and acknowledged to me
that tha same Is of their free and voluntary act and deed. ’

WITNESS my hand and seal &t the place and on the date first above written.

{Sgd.) Mariano B. Pineda, Jr.
MARIANO B. PINEDA, JR.
Notary Pubfic
Untll December 31, 1858

Doc. No. 188
Pgge No. 52
BookNo. I
Serles of 1968,



DIRECTOR'S CERTIFICATE

WE, the Cheirman, Secretary and mejority of the siectad and cuallfied
members of the Board of Directors of Directors of VALLEY GOLF CLUB, ING.,
stocll;:y corporation organized end existing under the laws of the Philippines do hereby
certify: .

That as an Annual Meeting of the Stockholders and members of the Board of
Directors held on September 10, 1989 &t 4:20 p.m. at the principal office of the
oqrmatlun and following resolution was duly approved, adopted and recorded In the
minutes:

"RESOLVED, as [t Is hersby
recelved that Aricle 1 of the Articles of
Incorporation of VALLEY GOLF CLUB, INC.
be amehded by changing the corporate
neme to VALLEY GOLF AND COUNTRY
CLUB, ING."

That the above repolution was confirmed, approved and retified by the vote of
the stockholders owning/representing at least two-thirds (2/3) of the antire
outstanding capltaf stock at a spectal stookholdars and directors meating held on the
sama dete and place;

That the attached articles of Incorporation le a true and corract copy of the
present Articles of Incorporation, as amended, reflacting lis new corporate name.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto subscribed our names this a5t
day of September 1989 &t Makatl, Metro Manlla.

PEDRO H. YAF
Diractor '

Res. Cert. No. 784301-A
Issued at: Manlla

on: Fab. 2, 1988
{Sgd.)
MARCELINO L. GO
Diractor

Res. Cert. No. 000006435
issued at Manila
on: 1-31-1889

(Sgd.)
LUIS SICAT
Director
Res, Cert. No. 214830-E
iesued at: Q. C.
on: 3-21-1889

(Sgd.)
ROMEO M. LIAMZON
Director
Res. Cert, No.
lssued at: Anflpolo
on: March 4, 1889

(Sgd.)
. EMMANUEL CASTANEDA

Director
Res. Gart. No. 025367
Issued at: Antlpolo

on; 1-16-80

(Sgd.)
JOHNNY SARMENTA
Directer
Res. Cerl. No. 08538668J
issued at: Q. C.

an: 3-20-88



:
R

(Sgd.)
JOSBE VILCHEZ, JR.
Director .
Ree. Cert. No. 1158001G
Issued at: Antipolo

on: 4-1-1889

'J

FEDERICO GARANDANG
Director
Res. Cart. No.
lesued at:
on:

(Sgd.)
CRISMEL VERANO
Diractor
Res. Cert. No. 4925502
Issued at: G C.

on: 2-23-1989

ATTESTED:

(8gd.) {Sgd.)
PEDRO H. YAP ORLANDO C. PARAY
President Secratary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 25" day of September 1888,
affiants exhibiting to ma thelr Res. Cert. No. printad below thelr respective name.

Sgd.

EDBAR A. PACIS
NOTARY PUBLIC
Until December 31, 1880
PTR No. 568198, Makati
Jan. 3, 1889

Doc. No. 438,
Page No. 88;
Book No. M
Serles of 1989.
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DIRECTORS' CERTIFICATE k“ ct.ﬁ.;;3i¢ifﬁ5‘¢g;m
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We, the undecgigned majority of the Directors and Corporate Secretary of VALLILY
GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC., do horeby certify that the Articles of Incorporation of
said oorporation was amended by a majarity vote of the directors on July 29, 2006 nrl the
vote of stockholders representing at 1east two~thirds (2/3) of the outstanding capital stock nt e
meeting held on November |8, 2007 at the prinolpal office of the corporation,

The amended provisions of the attached Amended Aticles of Incurporation refer to
Article 4 “That,the Tery for which sabd corporation is tv gxist [or-tinother Fifty (50)

years from May 15, 2008,/

WA T
ESTANISBLAO
Prissidamt!DIrector
TIN No. 100-143-4
Rea. Cert, No, 12458200
Issued at Antipolo City

on January 4, 2008

TIN No. 150-146-618
Res. Cort. No. 14723842
issued 2t Caints, Riznl

on January 3, 2008

JAIME. LARDI‘Z.\/A;‘\

Difgctor
TIN No. 103-405-178
Res, Cert. No, 23742105
Iasued st Pasig Cily
on February 23, 2008

0 P. CRUZ
Direotor
TIN No. 128-282-687
Res, Cert. No. 11562615
1ssued at Murllkln City
on JTanuary 3, 2008

0 TOPACIO
Vice President/Director
TIN No. 110-062-048
Res. Cert. No. 07594500
Yasued ar  Quezon City
on January 3, 2008

M
-~
TEODORL) PAPA

sst. TreamierDirecior

[N No. 1112024493
. Cert. No, 24199012

Tssued at Quezon City
on April 4,2008

/’ﬂ 1
(CISCOBIN REYES

Director
TIN No. 113-808-073
Res. Cert. No, 07649077
Tssued at Quezon City
on Januery 10, 2008

OBERTO ROXAS

Director
TIN No. [06-207-376
Res. Cert. No. 19475836
Tssued ot Malati City
on January 11,2008

18




L ()
- /

%ﬂ, \ dl '."r'-‘f[ﬂ"-.'t.
?SE RLU SUDARIO

irector
TIN No. 125-972-748
Res, Cert. No. 12465301
Issued at Antipolo City
on January 2, 2008

(m-igﬁd:
-A 0

(
O¥ILO C.
rporate Secrctary
TIN No. 119-B82-828
Res, Ceit. No. 11875770
Issued at Mandaluyong City
on Jaruary 4, 2008

SUBSCRIBED AND BWORN to before me'ﬁ.l&PR_lszougﬂy of

2008 et ITY DFPASIE by the above-named persons who

Py -

exhibited to me their Community Tax Certificates.

Doc. No. _ 10 ;

Page No. Al AMADO DANILO G yRYAG
BookNo. __ & : Notary Pubtis for Pasig City
Series of 2008. Untll December 31, 2009

PTR No. 4919284; 01/03/08; Rizal
{BF No. T32650: 01103/08; Rizal
San Juan . " mndaluyong
Roll ¥+, 41178
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T SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION g
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= Company Reg. No, 13951 . e
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E‘E;-.. CERTIFICATE OF FILING e
S OF Zieh
:il.f AMENDED BY-LAWS T
e . 3t E._.
S e
i KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: - Lie
.ﬁ{ THIS IS TO CERTIFY that the Amended By-Laws of 2
o . 25
"ﬂ{‘_ . .-‘i' [ 4
S VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC. i
Gl ._: ::
T copy annexed, adopted on August 21, 2010 by a majority vote of the Board of ik
;-fiE-; Directors and on September 26, 2010 by the vote of the stockholders owning or 34153
il representing at least majority of the outstanding capital stock, and certified i
_E.“.";E under oath by the Corporate Secretary and majority of the said Board was 53155
i approved by the Commission on this date pursuant to the provisions of EE'E-EE
Zhis Section 48 of the Corporation Code of the Philippines Batas Pambansa Blg, 68, ‘
il approved on May 1, 1980, and coples thereof are filed with the Commission. :
il

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the seal of

this Comumdssion to be affixed tﬁ gla Certificate at Mandaluyong City, Metro
Manila, Philippines, this y of November, Twenty Ten.
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AMENDED BY-LAWS OF
VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB

ARTIGLE | - OFFICE

The Princ ; .
Phillppines. ncipal office of lhe Club shall be loceted at Antipolo City, Rizal

ARTICLE Il . SEAL

the Clu'lt',he Board of Direclors is authorized to design and to adopt a seal for

ARTICLE I} - MEETING

Section 1. Annual Meelings — The annual mestings of stockholders
shall be held at the Clubhouse on the Fourth Sunday of September of each
year at 4:00 o'clock In the aiternoon,

Section 2. Speclal Meelings -~ Speclal meelings of stockholders may
be called at anytime by resalution of the Board of directors or by order of the
President, or upon written reduest of ten peroent {10%) of stogkholders. No
action will be taken st such gpecinl mesting sxcept for the purpose(s)
specified in the call.

Sectlon 3. Nolico of Meetlings — Written nolice of meetings for every
reguler or special meeling of stockhoiders shall be given lo stockhoalders at
least (10) days prior to {he date of the mesting. Any fallure or Irregularity of
notice of any meeting shall be deemed cured where the complaining
slockholders appear at the meeling.

Saction 4. Quorum - A guorum at any mesting &hall conelst of
majority of the stockholders, rapresented In persan of by proxy, and & malority
of such guorurn shall decide any queetion that may coms before the meeting,
except in cases where & different pumber of votes 18 required by |aw.

Section 5. Pioxies — Every stockholder is entited to vote at any
meeting of stockholdars end may 80 vote by proxy, provided that the proxy
chall heve been appolnted by the stockholder himself or by his duly
authorized attorney-in-fact in an official numbered proxy form lssued by lhe
club. No ather proxy form shall be recognized by the Club.

gection 8, Election of Diraclors ~ The slection of Directors ghall be
held at the annual mecting of stockhokiers and shell ba gonducted in the
manner provided fro in the Corporation Law, and with such formalities as the

officer presiding at the meeting shall then and there dstermine and provided.



The extemal suditor or audltors shall likewlse be eiected.by the

stockholders elther in the ennugl stockholders mestin
stockholders' meeting called for the purpose. g or in a speclal

Saection 7, Order of Buslness — The order of the business of the
annuel meeting and, as far as passlble, at all other meeting of stockholders,

shall be as follows:

a) Calling the roll,

b) Secretary's proof of due notice of the meeling,

¢) Reading and disposal of the unapproved minutes.
d) Report of officers, annua! and otherwlee.

8) Unfinished business.

f) New businesa.

g) Election of Directors.

h)y  Adiournment.

Section 8. Eligiblitty to vote and be voted

g} Only stockholders In goad standing shall have the right to vote and
be voted upon &t any meeting of the stockhalders.

50 cfi i

a8 one (1) share rgco in_histher name eas
3 8 shal
MMMMMMM
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for at least one (1) yoar, or 8. p aying gusst or corporate

ulrement will be red to one (1
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Hes clal record of grave serious c
u be! 8 7 a has ;
been convicted | Ip eny oriminal case. (As amer

the stockholders on September 26, 2010 and by the
Bpard of Directors ol August 21, 2010).




Section 9. Stockholder's Consent - The
- consent
outstanding capttal stock shall be requlred In the following ln:tar?c:eszrla of the

a) A substantial change in the
b :oursa. g present layout in the 36 holes golf
} Any expendifure of the funds of the Club
i orececing paragraph. for alteration covered by
¢) Any capital expenditure for new projects other than eny those
approved at previous atockholders' meeting which requires special
assessment against the stockholders, or an Increase In the number
of authorized sharee of Club.

For the purpase of this section, the consent of stockholdets may be
obtalnad by referendum.

Section 10. Commiltee on Election — Members of the Committes on
Election shall be appointed by the Board of Directors, composed of three (3)
proprietary members in good standing. Such proprietary mambers shall be of
unquestionable Integrity and occupy the highest esteem of his peers. For
purposes of the Comelec, a playlng represantative of & corporate proprietary
member may be appoinied as member of the Comelec provided that sald
designated playlng representative ghall be the Incumbent President or
Chairman of the Corporation and should own equity In the seld Corporation
and subjeck to such other requirements and/or imltafions that the Board may
impese.”’

The Club General Manager, Gomptrotler and Internal Auditor shall form
part of the Comelec Secratariat.

ARTICGLE IV - DIRECTORS

Section 1. Board of Directors — The business and property of the Club
shall be managed by a Board of nine (9) Direstors. At the next annust
stockholders' meeting, nine (8} Directors shall be elsctad, the first three (3)
Dirsctors raceiving the highest number of votes shall serve for & term of three
(3) years, the thres (3) other Directors receiving the next higheet number of
votes shall serve for & term of two (2} years, and the remalning three {3
Directors shall serve for a term of one (1) year. Every year thereafter, at the
annual stockholders' meeting, thers shall be three (3) elected Direclora who
ghall serve for a tarm of {hres (3) years. No Directors can serve cansacutively
for mote than three (3) years.

60) days prior to the annual meeting of stockholders, the
';?ei?gﬁtth:,?uf ixﬂt’i,e(augr.\rcizalpu the Board of Direciors, shall appoint 8

nominating Committes of five [5) stockholders, three (3) of whom afe nat

Directors, The said nominating committea shall prepare, &ign and poet at least

four (4} nor
15) days before the annual meeting, @ llst of not less than
f:nirtl:r:ntlsanJ lxy(s) candldates for the ?:ar:ld l(t)if DIT?nL?d?t; ;hfeo mseulgga}r:z;
ate additional C
Ay e St net {:g?l:grlnsn (10) days before the Annual Meeting.



he o] i evaluate all candidaies to ensure compllance

with the required gualifications. A list of the guelified candid
Qns. ates
shall be included in the notica of the annual meeting that ls sa:tsou??oln:::g

stockholder, (As amended by the sfockfiolders on Septemb
er 28, 2
and by the Bosrd of Directors on August 21, 2010} ! Ao

Section 2. Dlrectors to act es of Board ~ The Beard of Directors shall
act only as & board and no power |a vested In the Individual director as such.
A majority of the Boerd shall conslitute a quorum for the transaction of
business, except for the fillng of vacancies in the Board, In which case
majorily of the remalining Directors shell conatitute a quorum. Directors shak
recelve no salaties or fees as such,

Soctlon 3. Board Meating - The regular meeting of the Board of
Directors shall be held once a month at such time and place as shall be
determined by the Board. Special mestings of tha Board may be called by the
President, or upon written petition of three (3) membare, Notice of Board
Meetings shall be served on sach director at least {hree (3) days before the
meeting, uniess notice | walved by all the Directors present.

Sectlon 4. Order of Business - The order of business at any regular
or special meeting of the Board of Directors shall be:

a) Calling the roll.

b) Secrelary’s proof of due notice of the maeting.

¢} Reading and digposal of unapproved minutes in the case of
regular mestings of the Board.

d) Report of officers.

8) Unfinlshed business.

f)y  New business.

)] Adjournment.

Sactlon 5. A director must have at least ane (1) share registared In his
name during his term of office otherwlse, he ghall be automatically disquallfled
from the position. The stockholdars hoiding 2/3 of tha outstanding capital
stook In the books of the corporstion may remove a director who has
absented himeelf for three (3) consecutive ragular meetings of the Board
unless such absencss be execited by reason of slckneas, physical disability
or other justifiable reason(s) acceplabie {o the Board of Directors.

i i Ident of the
gection 6. The immediately preceding five (5) past Pres
Club shall becoma ax-officio members of the Board without the right to voie.

ARTICLE V - OFFICERS

i f Direclors at Its

Section 1. Destgnation - Mejority of gll the Board o :

first mesting shall elect as Execulive Officers of the Club & Eraslqtan;.rs V:;e“
Prasldent, a Treasurer, & Secretary and such other administrative offic

may deetn proper.



Sectlon 2. Quajificallon ~ All Exacutive Offlco
) rs of tha Club must ba
incumbent direclors, with the exceplion on the Secreta
be a resident and cilizen of the Pillippines. Y Who must, howsver

Section 3. Every execulive officers shall be slected by the Board for a
term of ane (1) yesr, unless sooner removed by the Board of Directors, and all
\éacagcls occurring among such officers however arlsing shall be filled by the

oard.

Sectlon 4. Compensalion —~The vompensaation and working conditions
of officers of the Club who are not directors shall e fixed by the Board
Direclors acting as such, or as officers of the Club Including members of
standing or special commitiees, shall receive no salaries or fees, whatsvever
for {helr services.

Soction 5. Dules and Responsiblites - The dulies and
responsibiiities of the different olficers of the Ciub are as follows:

8) The President ~ The President shail preside at all meetings and
shall sign the membership cerlificate of the Club. He shall be the chief
executive officar of the Club and have general supervision of the business
affalrs and proparty of the Club and over Its saveral agents and smployaas,
wilh suthority to hire sald employes, and dispensas wilh thelr garvices subjacl
to confirmation by the Boaid of Directors. He shall sign contracts on behalf of
the Club and shail sse that al ordeis aid resolutions of the Board are carried
into effect. In eddition to the above duties expressly veeled in him by these
By-Laws, he shall do and perform such acts and dutles as fram the time to
time may be assigned to lvirn by the Board of Directors.

b} The Vice-President ~ in the absence or disabillty of the Presldent,
the Vice-Prasident shall exercise all the powers and discharge all the dutles of
the Preskient. The Vice-Prasident shall, in addition, have such powers and
duties ss may, from time 10 {irne be conferrsd on him by the Board.

g) The Treasurer - The Troasurer, except as otherwise prov!ded by
tha Board of Directofs, shall have the custody ol ait monays, securities and
yaiues of the Club that come into his possession, and shall keep regular
pooks of accounts. He shall deposil said moneys, securides and values in
such banking. institulions as may be designated, from time to ime by the
Board of Directors, subject to withdrawal therefrom on the signature of such
officers of the Club as the Board may, by resolution, designate. He shall
perform all other duties incident io his office and all that are properly required
oh him by the Board of Directors. He shall fumish & bond conditioned upon
{he falthful performance of his duties, If and when required 8o to do by the
Board of Directore; the amount of seid bond 10 be determinad end fixed by the

sald Board,

e Sacretary shall lssue notices of all meelings,

lay - Th
d) The Secrelary nave charge of the seal and corporate books:

shall keep their minutes, shall



shall countersign the cerfificate of stock and
3 sign such
requlred such signaturae, and shall make such ragpurts angtgg:fg:fr:rg&ahn::stha:r

dutles as are
duties e are Incident {0 bis office or are propely required of him by the Board

ARTICLE VI . COMMITTEES

Section 1. Standing Committee - The Prasident with th
the Board of D_frclora. shell appoint the chalrman and membar: ?ﬁﬂ?vn?::::
all be nun-delln.quent members) of the different standing commitiees of the
Club and prescribed thelr respective dutles and responsibilitles, as well as
create new committess es may be necessary for the different handling of club
affairs. The standing committess are as follows:

a) House e) Flnance

b} Grounds f  Administration
c) Sports and Games g) Enginesring
d) Membership

Section 2. Trust Fund Commiiies — The Trust Fund Committes,
consisting of five (6) members, creeted pursuant to the reaciutions passad by
the stockholders last September 12, 1882, and empowered only to invest the
“THE VALLEY GOLF TRUST FUND" In accordance with law shail meet at
jeast once & year or anylime upon request of the Board of Directors. Three
{3) members shall constitute a quorum and the unanimous consent of three
{3) membere shall be necessary io conetitute & decision of the Committees.
Any vacancy In the Committee for any reason whatsoever ghall be flled by the
Board of Directors,

The Board of Directors shall also determine the amount of the fund to
be administered by the Trust Committee which shall not be leas then the

original amount of P3.5 Miillon,

ARTICLE VIl - MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Classification — Membership in the Club ghalt be claseifled
into (a) Proprietary (b) Playing Guest (c) Honorary and {(d) Socla!

a A propristaty Mermber s any person who 18 the registered
stockhol)der of a'? Iagat one (1) share of stock of the Club whose membership
had heen previously approved es hersinafter provided. In ?asateﬂ?t:
proprietary member Is a juridicai parson it shall be entitled to des grgae &
representative who shall exerclse all the rights and privileges of members p

including the right to vote.
[ ferrad
An Honorary Member I8 any person who hae baen con
piaylng fights by the Bo of Directors under terms and conditions specified
for such membership.



e et s o - E——— — $= =S

) c} A playing Guest Is any person who | :
rights of a share of stock ragletered In the nams o::plgt;:?'lg:rn:f the playing

d) A Soole! Member /s a natural perso
. n
priviege of eing he facites of e Gl sxoept e g courae,

Section 2. Memberehip in the Club shall be subject for
approval
Boerd of Directors upon the favorable recommandstion of thg ':\dambgrsm;

Committee. All members shall the stipul :
iR pay sfipulated monthly dues and other

Section 3. A slockholder, whether a member or not shall nevertheless
be opllgated to pay the regular monthly duss and special assessments
effective from the date of issuance of their respective cartificate of stock.

Soction 4. Stockhoiders who subscribed to the additional increase In
capltal atock of P8.1 Millon last August 1881 ehall be sxcluded from paylng
the regular monthly dues and speclel assessmenta corresponding to auch
additional shares untll they decide to sell the same, or to assign the playing
rights comesponding thereto.

ARTICLE Vil - CLUB ACCOUNTS

Sectlon 1. Lien — The Ciub has the first flen on the share of the
stockholder who hae, In his/her/lts name, or In the name of an assignee,
outstanding accounts and flebilities In favor of the Club to secure the payment
thereaf.

Section 2. No sale, or transfer of a share of stock, shall be reglstered
in the books of the Club unti and uniess the lien establiehed under Section 1
and the requlrements of Article ViI, Section 2, shall have been first fully
salisfled.

Section 3, The account of any member shall be presentsd to such
member every menth. If any statement of accounts remained unpald for a
period of forty-five (45) days efter out-off dete, said member may be posted as
delinquent. No delinquent member shall bs entitlad to enjoy the priviieges of
such membership for the duration of the dellnquency. Aftar the membet shell
have been postad a8 delinquent, the Board may order hefherfits share sold to
salisfy the olalims of the Club; pursuant to such rutes and procedures which
the Board of Directors may promulgate to govem the conduct of salefauction
of shares of dslinquent members; after which the member loses hisfher/ls
rights and privileges permanently. No Member can be indebted to the Club at
ay time any amount in axcess of the credIt limit est by the Board of Dlrtactunat
from time to ime. The unpaid account referred to here includes non-pf.tilymen
of dues, charges and other pegassments and non-payment for subscripttons.



ARTICLE IX - FISCAL YEAR

The Flscal Year of the Club shall commance on the first day of July of
each year and shall close on the 30" day of June of the following vear.

ARTIGLE X - AMENDMENT

Section 1, These By-Laws may be alterad, amended or repealed at
eny meeting of stockholders by a majority of the subscribed capital stack.

The Board of Directors, by resolution, may likewlse amend these By-Laws, as
however, shall be clreularized to all stockholdars.

ARTICLE X1 - TRANSITORY PROVISIONS

These By-Laws shall bs desmed to be complete and shall repanl the
By-Laws, Inciuding amendments adopted prior to this date.
Adopted June 6, 1858, at Manlla, Philippines.

(Spd.) Francleco R, Aguinaldo {Sgd.) Tomes B. Agulre
{Sgd) Aruro A, Alalitz {8gd.) . Anionla Aranata
(Sgel.) Luis Ma. Aransts {8gd) Cheat Babat
(Ggd) Gharles T. Blacalf (Spd) WMenuel Barrado
(8gd.) Canstantino Baullsta {Spd.) Henry Belden
{Sgd) Hanry E. Bennelt (8gd) Enrigue Briaa
{Sgd.) Jaime Brias {8gd.) Francieco cunhcuh
(8gd.) Josa A Cacho {8gd.) Antonio Roxas Chua
{Sgd) Pedro Cojuangso (Sgd.) Ricardo Consunji
(Sgd) JosaMa. Corles (8pd.} Felbir cgmﬂnﬂun
{5gd,) Blenvenldo Cruz {Spd) Benilo qu g
{Bgd) Alfonsc R, de Damperre {Sgd} Pompsyo Diaz
(Sgd.) Jase Ferla ((gndu; .:m:;sé:g:;z"

) gd) Isa
(Bpd) RO Fl'?;rmm (Sgd) Anionlo Gonzalea
(Sg:.) Eiwgén:am (6pd.) Oscar E. Guermera
E:gu'.; F.R. Hsliing gag} Er;r;l;n:!:;:
o] T (592) A Lbero

' {8gd) PelerLim
(20 ove Lowan G el Lope
(Sgd.) Hul'lrldl'.l!-sz. L.opaz ((S:d.) A;IN;I‘IID B Maddgl
(Sud2 /na P, Maciigal o) Gonstanipo P, Maraiar
(Bgd)  Raul Mengiarys (S9! Antonio Miranda
(8gd.) Faustino Mallile (gﬂﬂ-) T Montinola, Jr.
(Sgd) Serglo Montinola, 8r. Es:d:) N Nethan
(Sgd.) SBEmﬁoronllnnia (o) Sebesian ?':'I:-rm
(Bgd) JE. NI gnd) Franciso Ortiges
(Sgd} Eduardo Orliges Eagd.)) Fiual Perez
(Sgd) Rafael Ortlgas (80d) Sanliago circonell
(Sgd) Evatisto Picazo (gd) Garlos Qu Ao
(Sod) JN?O Pm‘é';'m (8gd) Naroiso Reyes, Jr.
{Sgd.) nso

(Sgd} Victor Reyes (Spd.) Farnando 5. Roca



{Sgd.) Antonio Roxas (Spd.) FEdusrdo Roxas

{Sgd) Ernesto D. Rufinc (Sgd.} Luls 3, Santayans
(Spd) Andres Sorlano {Sgd.) Andres Sorens, Jr.
{Sgd.) Jose Marla Sorlano {8gd,) Waahinglon Syoip
(Sgd} Celso A, Tusson {Sgd) JuanE. Tuason
(5gd) Jamealy {Sgd.) Miguel R. Unaon
{5gd.) Alfredo Velayo (8gd) Jaime Velasgusx
(Sgd.)  Alfredo Villa Abrllle (Sgd) Alfred C, Vellouth
(B8gd.) Qeraki Wilkineon (8gd) Femando Villareal, Sr,
{Sgd.) Fellpe Yamasl {Sgd) Claude M. Wiison, [r.
{6gd.) Walter Fuyang (8gd Yu Khe Sfong

{Spd)  YuKhe Tal (8gd) Afejandro 8. Yujulco

(Sgd.} Jesus 8. Yujuleo (Spd) Ossarde Zufuela



DIRECTORS' CERTIFICATE

We, the undorsigned representing the majority members of Tag Boug
Dirsetors and the Corporate Scretary of YALLEY GOLF & COUN'la"F

INC. do hereby certify that the attached By-Lawa of gaid corporation was amsirded by
{he vote of the atockholdera repressnting at least a majority of the outstanding Garitsi

stock at a meefing held on Septsmber 26, 2010, at the principal office of the
corporation.

The amendment was likowise epproved by majority of the direclors at a
mesting held al the principal office of the corporation, on August 21, 2010.

Ths amended provisions of the altached Amended By-lews refer io Artlcle
111, Section 8 and Article IV of the By-Laws, to wit:
Article I, Section §, Kligibility L vote and be voted -

#) Only stockholdery in good slanding shall have the right to vote and be
voted upon at any meeting of the stockholdexs. .

b) Qualificutions of Nominees for the Rlection of Directors:

i. mwmmmn.m&umﬂmﬂmm
o  the time of ingtion and & onti 8
shura duriig his/he office pominee has hes
mwmwmﬂ
laving puest or cotpprate resentative t fen D

-year jreme 1 be 1

iii. Shall bave gyffioient iime gn_d willing to share hig/her

i i io iscopduct that

" mew
MM& (As amended by the
stockholders on Saptetnber 26, 2010 and by the Board of
Direclors on August 21, 2010},



Article IV = Directors

Section 1. Board of Ditectors - The businese and property of the Club shell be
rr!anaged by a Board of nina {9} Dirsotors. At the next annual stockhiclders’ mesting,
nine {9) Directors shall be sleoted, the first three (3) Directors receiving the highest
number of votes shall serve for a term of thres (3) years; the three (3) other Directors
receiving the next highest number of votes shall serve for & term of two (2) years; and
the ramaining three (1) Directors shell serve for a term of one (1) year. Bvery year
thereafter, at the annual stockholders® meeting, thers shall be thres (3) elacted
Direotors who shall serve for a tarm of three (3) years. No Directors oan secive
conseculively for more than three (3) yenus.

No more than sixly (60) deya prlor to the annual meeting of stockholders, the
President with the appioval of the Board of Dirsctors, shall appoint & nominating
Commitice of five (5) stockholders, three (3) of whom are not Directors. The eaid
nominating Committee shall prepare, sign and post at leasf fifieen (15) daye before the
gnnue! mesting, & list of not leas than four (4) nor more than six (6) candidates for the
Board of Direclors for the ensuing ysar. Any five (5) stockholders may nominate
additional candidates for the Board by posting & signed list not later then ten (10) days
befors the Annual Meeting. The nominating Commiltee shall eveluate all ORRCICAIRA
1 ensurs compliance with the required qualifications A list of tho gualified
candidales nominated shall be included in the notice of the annual mesting that is sent
out to ench stockholder. (s amended by tha stookholders on September 26, 2010
and by the Board of Directors on Augusi 21,2010}

ol

Fiy
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereby set our hands figl_ day of
2010, at %@—@0‘_' Philippines.

. CRUZ RO];ER‘_E;O 5{?&:’
irector Vice President/Director
'},‘Ir;s-.l g;’-gsr;fﬁsv TN No. 106-207-376

Mmo R mc}fm
Treasurer/Director

TIN: 103-950-996

| [
\ %m
»
JOSE FERLU SLIDA

T[N']::;.rsef;;-'lﬂ TIN: 115-945-032



N R

ey rgfas
Direeto:

TIN: 106-169-744

TIN: 113-114-410

vISAURO SAN PEDRO, JR.
Director
TIN: 115-968-382

Certified Cortget by:

) )
PERRO H. MANIIGO, JR

Corporais Secretary
TIN: 130-488-850

3 b 06 'mﬁ

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to beforc me thi "day of
- 2010, ei by the above-named peteons who
exhibited to me theic Compatént Identificatig.

Dog. No. ;

Page No. s

Book No. i ; v

Series of 2010. TEOHL C‘. 1gbo
Noty Pubiy (or Makiati C

Lintk Decenbor 31, 2010
111 b, HA4TAD 0108000, Rizal
4 Mo, TOHEHD; OLOGRE: Babsth Clly
Hol o, 30031
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OUR MISSION

To pmwdc wotld-class go]f and necreaﬁonal fadﬁﬁes and, efﬁ- R

of the Club to promote the gamr: of golf e.nl-mnce ha:mmy and_"

L feﬂowship md instill co\meay, dlsctplme, honssi‘y, fm’ play dand
R ‘_-.:'.mtegnty among a]l m members '

OUR VISION

' Valiay Golf t‘m pmmm‘e g@lfa.nd com,try club p:ovidmg u.npar-
. -.nﬂehﬁ recrutmnal expenence to our melﬁbers, thmr fa.unlzes and



fa my thres years in the Board, I have.discovered thiat here were differences in-opinions, but there is always a common
ground or objective — that s, for the good of thie Club. Putting the:interest of the chib a priority is something:-everyone can
agree on, If each party agrees on that intended goal, getting everyone to work harmoniously on behalf of Valley golf is--
key to its further growth and success. !

At the Ogfiét of iy term; wwe bl enviionied Vailey 80.1uvs stato of tie art facilities to cafer the siesds of miembers and

. Eneiits. mﬂg the: ‘_Ects that we had lined up were, the purchiase of new South Gourse pumps and installing the related:
ool THUSE loyiiualily s mmbipeiliios o6 wiearsbia i Berisgh, Gonvan firways) somsletion of hinker jmpro emrF"t for South’

Course green side-bunkers, enlargement of .thp"Somur:: gmqake p}tbLit'l_g‘ m%.ﬂme%ulblﬁlg pﬁﬁﬁ golf'cart storage

. . facility that would atiow: for more than 550 carts o be stored while also increasing the necessary member/s and guest/s
" .. car park; building & new starter house at the North Course, the rencvation of the swimming pool, the purchase of 10

addifionat electric golf carts, the extension of the North Clubhouse Function Room and Conversion of the existing Poker
Koo fo & Pacsports Pro Shop, and lastly, the replacement of lock sets with digital locker keys in the Main Club House
*|oeker rooms to réinforce security.

i ']._)es.}iite-.the. thany setbacks that we have encountered this year:because of the global pandemic (Covid 19), we still
"'+ 'managed to accomplish most of those that-we ligye envisioned. The-Management, together with the Board of Directors,

" have already purcheied the new pumps-and 10 golf carts. Work hes already been started on the gabion filterand expansiod

".of zoysla in fairways: “The bunker improvement project, , piting green expansion-and North course starter house have
" already begn 'compléted. In addition; The renovation of the swimming pool has already commenced. We already have a
. pro shop, feady foropetations, in place et the North Clubhouse. Finally, fior added security, we started replacing the locker-

" Jocks with modersized-elecironic locks and instatled roll'up aluminui doors at the tea houses.

Moreover, es_uiéﬁ._ﬁ:iof-i&,my'tmﬁ.,we were already buying.-my_-aifsdds'for P100,000 per montil,--but,by_.ﬁ:eserving the

.. oonditions of our nurséry, we are able to take nexrly P 500,000 worth of sods for free. We continue fo use the nursery to

" mpke pepairs throughout ous golf courses. *And in coordination with DPWH, there is vast improvement in our waterways
systera by rip-rapping from the:bridge to just across from #10 fairway.

K is common knowledge that this year 2020 had been'a difficult year for many including Valley Golf. All other projects
.“were put oi2 hold indefinitely. It has caused us to shut down for almost 3 months during the quarantine period. As o abide
‘with the IATF rules and for the safety of out members and employees, we were forced to limit fie number of people
coming in by. dissllowing. gwests' to-play. We.were not able to host private toumaments. All these, bave brought a
significant decréase in our tevenue streams. - 3

. Our Gross Revenue demasead- ﬁ:em an average of 1?-12.“_39 Million: per month._ﬁeﬂ;re the pandemic to Ps Million: per
..month for the period March to Jane 2620, . Our average:monthly ‘Operatinig Expenses-and Depreciation is P12.61 Million
- under normal operutions, whereas during the community quarantine period the average is P11.33 Million, Our Cash Flow

i was likewise severe rely affiseted with the decrease of P12.66-Million for this fiscal year.

Th h'uanieasumafmyCIub mhow it faves 'm‘.a_ crisis. Does it falter or break under pressure? Or does it come stronger:
" inthis tbu;htlme'? ‘Rest agsured, q;gt..'ﬂais cluh has“re'mgined stable; able and ready to westher any storm. el

" Wil the club was Glosed daring the lockdown, maintenance of the golf course has been the utmost priority. We have

"+ alst emsired the safety and welfare of our emiployees by maintaining & skeletal workforce during the ECQ. To assist our

.. fwembiers, we suspeinded interest and surchargés on metiitiers’ accoupts until'l month after the lifiing of the ECQ. We took
care of our onddies through the mandstory assessment and the voluntary contributions of our dear members.

_-'- '-_r_ =’fiie Bbard and ﬂae mnnagementmmd that when tliq club;rgépaﬂed, we had the.propell' set of protocols.and guidelines
. jn place. We have iiplemented tee time réservations, which cdn now be accessed online. In order to work out a digital tee

. :time ‘reservations syswem, we were offered by many suppliers rangitig from 300 thousand to 500 thousand ‘pesos.
" Fortunately, Valley was abls.to-devélop its own system at NO additional cost. We may still experience a few glitches, but

we are constantly upgrading and improving the system., We have also implemented cost cutting measures of more than
+ P11 niillion for the 2021 fiscal budget to cope with the financial distress brought about by this pandemic.

. The mwth and stature of a-golf club lie not only on the value of its share or the price of land where it stands, but mose -
immportantly, on the people who are behind it. Tt is through the collective efforts of the Management and Board of Direstors,

and the membersthat Valtey golf will continue to excel and prosper. At this note, let me thank our board of directors for .



- Thank you,

their wise direction, our manasement and staff for t_h‘eir‘professidna.lism and dedication, and our members for, their
unwaverig support, - s

-Tﬁéééigﬁﬁﬁ?g'-'REPORT"

The Fiscal Year under :ré!\ﬁi'gw vas :a'-ybﬁr o‘f ;ixﬁp;ecadehted' évents and adverde fingiicial impact i our operations:. Qur
Club bas surpassed the Asian Crisis of 1997 and the Glabal Pinancia] Crisis of 2007, even the devastatior of typtioon

-Ondoy in 2609, 50 we are confident that we vill survive thiis pandemic. The ¢losure of our golf courses for almost three

- months had affected both the results of our operations and our cash flow.

.. . In the audited Financial Reports, Gross Revenus for the Year is Phip139.70 Million oz a decrease of Php12.15 Million or.
. 8% from last yesr's figure of Php151.86 Million. Our Expenses however incteased from Php143.63 Million in FY 2019
-~ to Phpl154,95 Million in FY:2020 or an increase of Php11.37 Million or 7.91%. “Last fiscal year we have a non-recurring

.. Other Revenue sotrces from Gain on Sale/Settlement.of Properties in the amount of Php7.44 Million that farther
"', contributed to the unfavorabile variance for this year. Deficiency of revenue over expenses for the year amount to
Php15.29 Million or a decrséise of Php23.52 Million from last year’s excess of Php8.23 Million.

dﬁf:ré\'iénue sourdéq-that declined significantly are our Green Pee Revenue by Php4.2 Million, Assessment for Road
Mntenmce,_b'rl’_hp_l.SZ'l\‘ﬁ]_ﬁon, Concessionaires Fee from-our F & B outlets and Proshop rental by Php1.6 Million and
‘Transfer Fee by Phpl Million. OurOperating Expenses however increased due to increases in Utilities by Phpl.18

‘Million, Outside Services by Phip6 Million while Supplies decreased by Phpl.4 Million and Personnel Expenses by Php

0.78 Million. Our Cash-and Cash Equivalents likewise decreased by Php12.66 Million, from Php46.75 Million in FY
2019 tﬂ.Z_E“ZIIp34.08"M.ill'ibn in FY 2020.

‘Our primary mmhnngth]s Mp i to ﬁnd means to keep our liquidity amidst our limited revenue sources and
the fortheoming finencitl recession by the fonrth quarter this year. The key is to keep our operating expenses at its lowest

' posgible level with minirial effeots $o onrservices to the members and to be prudent in the implementation of projects

.+, ; . assential to our operations. We need to compromise with the other Committees to temporarily shelve projects that lack

and necessity. In our pioposed Financial and Budget Plan for Fiscal Year 2021 our initial cost saving measures

" amount to Php11.23 Million. -

* During the ye‘attheTraasury was shle to finance various.projects such as the Rehabilitation of the Greens in the South,

. Course, Repair of Bunkers in the South Cosrse, Improvement of the Motorpool roofing, Renovation of Swimming pool, .
 Installation of Electronic Locks for the Men’s Lockers, Purohase of 10 units Electric Golf Carts and 1 unit Ice Maker.

i Wiro"would aldo like o disclose 0 .our Members the Supreme Court decision last August 13, 2019 that declared that

Memmbership® Dues, Assessments and fees of similar nature collected by Clubs which are organized and operafed
exclusively. for pledsure, recreation; and ofizer sonprofit purposes do not constitute as: a) “the income of recreational clubs

-from whatever source” that are ‘suliject to frcome tax; and b) part of the “gross receipts of recreationat clubs” that are
stibject to VAT. As such, Valley Golf daly complicd with the Supreme Court decision.

T wish to express ty thanks and ppreciation-to President Willy and the Board of Directors for their trust and whole-

-heaited support of the policies laid down by the Treasury., While we continue striving to do better for the Club, T would

like to acknowiledge the Finance Committee for their unselfish dedication of their time and expertise and the Almighty for

. Hisguidance. -

" )
LEOPOINDC M. GAR
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COMMITTEE REPORTS — - -

ADMIN COMMITTEE

The goal of the Admin Committee is to directly control and standardize the organization’s support
services to facilitate its success. The Admin Committee continues to strengthen the effectiveness
and efficiency of employees including employees of Congessionaires/Coniractors.

L:ast March-16; 2020 to May 26, 2020 the Club was closed due to the Pandemic Covid-19: The
Bibmsiiial gudisdss 6F the Club was affécted and it resulted.in the decision of management to reduce
‘the number of personnel under Yukon agency from 37 to 3 only the skilled personnel remained.
Duririg the initial lockdown, from March 17 until May 27, management was able to maintain the
livelihood of all Valley Golf employees, however, during the second lockdown from August 4-18,

“.due to strict austerity measures, management implemented skeletal work force on a “no work-no

‘pay” basis.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The benmiii‘ee: is reépéﬁéibl‘e in ptoviding independent assurance that the company’s risk
. management, governance, and internal control processes are operating effectively and efficiently.

Throughaut the year the Comemittee conducted reports and assistance on the following:

2 Audit on 13% Month Pay of Employees ,

9 Audit and Assistance of the 2019 Annual Stockholder’s Meeting and Election B

9 Matketing Expense Budget of Ladies and Seniors Association

? Audit of President’s Cup

? -Audjt on Hiring of Additional Two (2) Marshals

? Assistance on the Distribution of Caddie Assistance during the Lockdown period

? . Initial Audit on VMJ’s Contract

97 Reimbursement of Expenses using Personal Credit Cards

9 Assistance on the 21% Don Celso Tuason Cup Raffle
Monfhly audit o the icome on Read User Fes which generated-a total of P8.3 Miltion from i,
2619 1o Jume 2020, . - * I T
FINANCE. COMMITTEE o

The Fiscel Year 2020 was. very -challenging. to the Fipance Committee Being 'ﬁé_.lji-;a1qipu1.
committee tasked to formulate financial sttategies to the Board of Diredtors. Our Gross Reviic
decreased from an average of P12.39 Million permonth before the pandemic o P8 Million per
montk for the period March to June 20201 Our avcrage monthly Operating Expenses and
Depreciation is P12.61 Million under panmaloperations. Whereas during the community quardn-
tine period the-average is P11.33 Million. Our Cash Flow was likewise severely affectedwiththe.
dacrease -of P12:5 Million for this fideal vear, With these predicameris in“our finahoes; the
Fisiance' Committee thoroughly studied all the. pros and coms while balancing: the: []naﬁ:ﬁial”'



COMMITTEE REPORTS

sustainability of our Club. Primary concern of the Committee is thé.,-cost cutting measures and
eventually the recommendation for an assessment was submitted the Board. |

The major project of the Committee for this year is the In-house Development.of the Systems for
Membership, Registration, Club POS, Accounts Receivable (Statement of Accounts) and POS for
our F & B Coricessionairés with a total budget of P2:06 Million for the development period of 2
—in JRes. Tha diseld ta chpnas the existing program to feal time fransactions, to be adaptable to RF
1D. system or facial recognition, to make the SOA accessible thru on-line or cell phone, to
evelop a program solely owned by Valley Golf for our specific needs are some justifications for
the project. Fhe.program development is now 25% completed and is currently on hold to give

way to the programming of the on-line tee time reservation.

We had a very suecessful auction of delinquent shares of stock last Déc. 14, 2019, out of the 6

 shares published for auction, S menibers paid their accounts and 1 share wes sold for P1,3 Miilion.

. This paved the way oni the upward trend of the market value of our shares. During the year, the

" committee recommended the purchase of additional electric golf carts for the rental needs of our
-miembers and guests.

“." The Finance Committee also monitors the investment strategy of the Retirement Fund of Valley
" Golf thru our administrator, the RCBC Trust Division. The fund level as of June 30, 2020 is
-Phpl9.56 Million. - -

The Eina.née _'Commif_tée eﬁ,sures that our financial statements were prepared in accordance with
_Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and the SEC. Our external auditors Sycip Gorres
Velayo & Co. re_ndered an unqualified opinion on the fair presentation of our financial statements.

ENGINEERING COMMITTEE,
"The ff. ave the prOJects that ha'l"ié.*beén--done.ﬁnd..on-g'bing_ﬁom. the Month of July 2019 — June
20020 S K ' e e
Sy 2019
Rotonds @ North Hole 16

Repair of Clogged Drainage / Additional Drainage
o South Hole #18 Goingto Green |
o - South Hole #18:Near Lagoon 18 -

o Hole #1 Neir Tos-Off Y.
v . . .-I:':IL.: i i j_ L T}f%’}:ﬂ"
Angust 2019 R
e G = .
==ig L L ETEE A

Perimeter Wall Improvement @ Novhilolete=
L*'ay;l:r}'_ Extensio L@, outitsHo 3 : = = . ‘i_;F..- e !
Repairof Clogged Drain: ainage =, o
= -—-_;-:.s-—-— = - =
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North Hole #17 Bridge Approach Construct Manhole
North Hole #11

North Hole #11 Cart Path 100 from Tee-Off

South Hole #11 Lay-by Area

South Hole #11 Near Newly Rehab Dramage (Faarway)
South Hole #13 Open Canal Re-Shaping.

South Tee-House #5 Drainage Rehab
South Fee-rtoune wie

September 2019

Pumping Station @ North Lagoon 6

. Paving Blocks Installation @ Notth Hole 15
Filter Screen.@ South Siltation Pond 12
Rewn'mg for Grmmded Spnnklcr

Ogt_ﬂber 2019

South Course Lagoon #18 Hauling of Sﬂt

- South Course Hole #12 Removal of Plants to Expose Riprap

. Nerth Course Hole #13 Riprap Repair

. “North Course Hole #16 Riprap Repair

. Noith Course Hole #14 Installation of Paving Block
.+ - North Caurse Lagoon #8 Removal of Water Hyacinth

»" Noérih: Course Pump House Clogning of Cistern and Pump’s Filter Screen
i’k Sm.'lth Cowrse Repainting of Graphical Stand

0.0 O 0 0 0 0O

ﬁn#_elirh'er 2019.

North Course Puimp Cleaning & Repair

North Course Hole #15 Tee-Box Concreting of Bridge Flooring

South Course Tee-Off #16 Planting of Caballero Tree . .- ..

South Course Sjltation Pond #12 Installation of Garbage Trap ' S
South Coutse Siltation Pend #12 Constraction of Stairway-for Lagoon Cleaners--se s

Dﬂi:em.b'er 2019

North Course Hole #14 Tee-House Clearing of Bamboo Trees and Diebris o

‘South Course Hole #13 ‘Small Siltation Bow/Pocket Garden Cleaning and EJt.e.pemug off Bbd
_.South Course Lagoon ¥17 Cleamng and Repaar. ofopmp

South Course Widening of Cart Path it Hole #2 $iy]

South Course Construction of Cart Path, at Hale i AR e
Repamtmg of Hw-m:ar Nnrih tﬂurﬁie Hﬂ]L #1 Tee-Box T
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North Course Installation of Riprap at Tee-House #14
North Course Pump House Control Panel Repair

South Course Puinp #2 Repair

South Course Lagoon #16 Removal of Visible Silt Build-up
South Course Bunker Improvement on Hole #9 & 18

South & North Course Fabrication of Tee-Marker

——— m "-. ‘u‘ ‘“-' ;in!

g South Course Bunker Improvement on Hole#10,4,1,2,3
South Course Lagoon #6 Removal of Hyacinth
--=. North- & South Course Repainting of' Manhole Covers
- . South Course Wldenmg of Cart Path at Hole #17
+- North Course Tee House #14. Clearing of Trimmed Branches
: Bag Drop Fabncatlon of Frame for Sponsors’ Banners

Mareh 2020 (Stert of Covid)

. North Course Hole#14 Widening of Cart Path

. South Course Hole #2 Widening of Cart Path

-+ " North Course Hole #8 Dredging of Siit

<" Netth Course Hole #14 Tee-House Ravine Clearing of Trash and Branches

"+ . South Course Hole #1 Construetion of Gutter
. South Course Hole #2 Widening of Cart Path
- Nmth Course Hole #9 Dredging Works
North Course Hole #14 Beside ‘Tee-House Cleaning of Ravine

South Cot:lrse Hsole #3 & 4 Penmeter Wall Rspan' and Conslrucuon
North Course Hole #12 Construction of Lay-By - | %
South Course Hole #5 Relocation of Paving Blocks
Notth Course Hole #6' Construction of Rotonda

June. 2020

. 'Nnrth Cnurse Constmotmn 'of Starter House (On-Gomg}
. South Coutse Gabion Fﬂter_C-::.‘ st fon. n-GﬂlﬂE}z‘wgﬁé}
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GROUNDS COMMITTEE
(By VMJ EGMCC)

Last year, we have introduced the use of Zoysia Matrella to our greens. This year, we are doing our
best to maintain it by fertilizing, acrating, and topdressing. ' _

Same as last year - aggressive maintenance program; coring ‘and solid tine acration twice a year.
Ll%ht 1o heavy top-dressing of sand, to foliar and granular fertilization with fungicide, insecticide,
and POV stliabinicd o biantiine dini wpiblit of tha fufi -

Herbicide Program, manual weeding, sodding of large carabao grass contaminated area had been
continuous to prevent the rapid contamination of goose grass and carabao grass from the turf.

The bunker we have renovated which was completed by August 2018 is in good condition and we
foresee no issues in the coming years.

Tree trimming hiad been continuous for both courses hole 1 —18.

PROPOSED PROJECTS:

1. - North Course Tee Tops Renovation — Carabao Grass to Zoysia Grass.
2. “South Course Tee Tops Renovation.
3. ‘Installation of Satellite Controllers at North Course.

4, Additional drainage itistallation on fairways for both courses.

HOUSE COMMITTEE

- From last year’s report.of 4 targeted projects for implementation, the redevelopment of the swim-
‘ming pool area was the priority. Construction of a new main and one kiddie pool is underway and
has a completion target of October 2020. The old swimming pool which was built in 1963 was torn
‘down: A brand new multi lane 25-meter lapping pool will rise in its place.

Thete are other motable projects that had heén approved but put on hold due to the:economic impact

of the pandemic on the chub’s finsncial position. *Among these is the construction of i dining: |
pavilion/ cabana at the swimming pool area which wag. aimed to bring in more familiesnd {heir
guests to Valley. With a design parameter fo ‘seat ‘around 100; people, this ‘pavilion -cansprovide
gmother venue for functions/ events that will be an additional source of income for the.clubs’ =

. : e =
Angther is the constructionof a 2:level golf cart parking structire. - The parking structungis badiy
needed 1o protect Valley’s investment it golf carts. 'Valley.ovwned cattsare mostly stored'in the open,
exposed-to. the elements in good or bad weather. The members® gall cirt parking area is alsa filled:
beyond capacity thus necessitating a new and bigger facility: s ' e

“To comply with-environmental faws, the -:j{jfr_ii’-_n_ilj_t{:{:’w:ﬁ alsoinvolyed in studying the med:m";:ii;.i_'fubt
‘u sewage treatment plant or other devices; TThis hasalso heen-de ¥ due to Covid-19. e
"= Despite these setbacks, routi he malntendnce of the club facilitics 'was k # lﬁﬁﬁedtmf@nﬂﬁnﬁ
—n-a list of some of the improvéments and maintenance services performed: -~ ' Pl




COMMITTEE REPORTS T -

Repainting of Pumping Station @ North Lagoon 6

Men’s Locker Repainting of Hallway Wall

North Clubhouse’s Installation of Sub-Meter at Jhay-J’s-

Noith Clubhouse’s Men’s Locker Installation of Cover
Main Lobby Varmshmg of T011et Door

" waikind Liobbw Varnishin \6 of Cabinet Vault Area
' Main Lobby Retiling Works of Damaged Tites

Eféctical Room Renovation to make Space for Ice Maker
Arinix’s Ground Floor Kitchen Drainage Improvement

Men's Locker Varnishing of Cabinets Near Toilet

‘Men’s Locker Varnishing of Registration Counter

"'Men’s Locker Repainting of Foilet Ceiling

North Clubhiouse’s Installation of Bidet at Ladies’ Comfort Room
Main Clubhouse Board of Directors’ Wall Repainting

" Swinmning Pool Installatlon of Paving Blocks at the Entrance Pathway

‘Swimming Pool Femile CR Door Repair

. 'Varicus Clubhouse Repair Works

- Lower Veranda Re-Tiling Works

JTce Storage Room Renovation Works

‘Ortigas Gate Humps Conistruction

- Male Locker Toilet Shower Repair

- Maih Chibhouse Various Repainting Works

o Rpplacement of Aircon Units at Board & Conference Room

“Bridge Gate Repainting Works

Guard Houses at Ortigas, Smnulong & Bridge Gate Repainting Works

‘EHumps 4t Ortigas, Sumulong & Bridge Gate Repainting Works
Male Locker Toilet Repainting Works

Annix’s Satellite Kltchen Renovatlon

_ Satellite Parhng for DCT Preparatmn

¥ Narth Chibhguse Relocation of Glass Panel for proshop

Main Clubhouse Various. Repamtmg Worlm

Repainting' of Road Curbs and Gutters - *

‘Golf Cart Parking Aren Painting of Purlins - sl |
Repair of Roof Steel Plate at South Pump House €
Installauon of Roll-Up Doors at Tee-Houxes

E o 5o @ ® 6 & 88 008 a0 . o'._o‘_'o_ s @ 0 8 & 88 8 8 8 80 C S BN O s s0

“Main Clubhousé Registration and Counters Installation of Protective Plastic: Shleld = 4
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MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE

The Membership Committee was able to evaluate, interview, and recommend a total of thirty 1 nine

(39) proprietary members, thirty one (31) corporate representatives, forty one 41 playing guests,
gnd four (4) assoclate members for the fiscal year 2019-2020. As a result; has generated a total of
é-ﬁm u,.wu.h i Falide for the club from the resulting transfer fees.

As of'June 30, 2020, there were a total of 1,594 shareholders of the club.

REAL ESTATE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Real Estate Cominittee is the committee assigned to study and review maters referred to it- by
the Board of Directors involving the real estate owned by VGCCI, particularly regarding its use
and/or disposmon thereof. The following are the matters referred to the Committee and the

reeommendat:ons it submitted to the VGCCI Board:
-ﬂ - Omn the matter of Lot 12 Block 1 with an area of 330 sq. meters

It appearcd during the dire diligence conducted on the propertles of the Club that the Owner’s

‘Duplicate copy of TCT 140578 covering the property is missing. It was also discovered that
the real property taxes of the said property have not been paid for several years now. There
are also informal settlers occupying the property. The Committee recommended the follow-
ing actions to the Board:

.1: Pay the real property taxes for the last five (5) years with an estimated amount of
_ P19,000.00.
2 Refer 6 the Legal Counsel the filing of a petition for the issuance of new owner’s

duphcate cemﬁoaﬂe for the said property

0 On the matter of Lat 29 Block 7' wi‘th an area. 2 of I 815 sq meters eovered by TCT
,-143111 is located mmde Vletm-ia Vallwy e - :

This lot is lacated inside thona Valley. However, t:he property has no-access 1o T.hb} main T

road because it is surrounded by a creek and other lots which are alreaily awaed and titled to
different - mdwiduals There are informal sestlers in #bout 15 to 20 houses fmmﬁ imjthe
pmperty The Comm1ttee recommened the follaowmg to the Board: .

|. To offer the sale of the property to any of the owners ﬂ[ the adjacent Jots ort an“aﬁ 15 |
where is” basg who m:ghr.\'..um tn E-c.puud their lof area. '

#"‘:

@ On the matter of the Locatar's ﬁ:u :.-]:urued 1o ¢ompanies with deliv ery trucks passing e

through Doa Celso ToazonAvenue,
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For some time now, companies with delivery trucks passing through Doon Celso Tuazon
Avenue have been paying locator’s fee. In 2013, the locators’ fee was increased. Recently,
the management conducted a survey they noticed an increase of delivery trucks going to the
companies located DCT Avenue, which is being maintsgined by Valley Golf and Country
Club Inc. It would appear that the locator’s fee being collected from said ‘companies could
no: longer cover the cost of maintenance and repairs on DCT Avenue. Accordingly, the

{ocaior's fee was increased to correspond to the mimber of delivery trucks going in and out
thé ‘sald companies. Mowever, WiHoH i insvesse Wus Lsgsleiarisd, n dsreisiiun

apj_eélﬁﬂto VGCCI to return to the old rate of locator’s fee.

The matter was referred to the committee for further study. Upon the request of the
Cominitiee, management conducted another survey on the number delivery trucks entering
DCT Avenue and to which companies they were making the delivery. The result of the
survey showed that the number of delivery trucks going to the companies varied. The

Committee concludeéd that it would be more beneficial for both VGCCI and the companies
if delivery trucks are just charged road user’s fee as it enters DCT Avenue instead of
‘charging the companies locators fee. By charging the road user’s fee per entry of a delivery

" truack, the cost will vary depending on the number of trucks entering DCT Avenue unlike in

;. the case of locator’s fee where the amount is fixed regardless of the number of tracks making
deliveries to the concerned companies. Accordingly, the Committee recommended-to the
Boatd that it is better to charge delivery trucks road user’s fee as it enters along DCT Avenue .
instead of charging locator’s fee to companies along DCT Avenue to be able to recover the P
cost of maintenance and repairs on DCT Avenue.

@ Regarding the Deed of Donatien to Mulawin

The Committee in coordination with the Legal Committee and VGCCI's Legal Counsel
réviewed and submitted the Deed of Donation to Mulawin Homes Neighborhood Associa-
tion, Inc. to the Board for approval. The Deed of Donation was already signed by the
General Manager and is awaiting the acceptance. by the Donee.

@ Thelocation af the Phoenix Gasoling Station

The location'for thé Phoenix Gasoling Station as already been identified and, specifiedi
Contract of Lease between VGCCI and Phoenix Petroleum. O

The Conmittes held their regul ing the yoat, with the frcmbers
constituting a quorum, -along withit} eschtatives of Gold Cross L“:Uﬂfym‘%
Arguelles and Ms. Rose Victorof VEEOLESRiie e =

. REVENUE GENERATRBY-fHESECURIBY COMMITTEE & . i
This year the. itfeess Aioeinforim-tlic’ increass in revenue the ourep}m '
systemn with the iy S o0 ncy GOLD CROSS SECURITY AGENCY.

i ==
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REVENUE SOURCE JULY 2019-JUNE 2020

Car stickers  6,544,153.65
Locators' Fees 363,392.79
Toll fee 4,090,654.58

'P’assi:ng Thru 4 237,885.60

Event Parkin 104,541,135
Prepaid Voucher 50,089.29
Tire Clamping 29,017.82

TFotal - 15,419, 434 86

The -Gold Cross. Seeunty Agency instafled 10 watch man clock chip “Tour Guard” for roving guard
at the courses and Clubhouses. And also 3 units of Bodycam for Ortigas, Secondary and Sumulong

' gates

'I‘he Commlttee nnplemented the following:

1

Color codmg qf Car pass for Ortigas, Secondary and Sumulong gates.

. a. Fine for lost Car pass Php500.00
"b. In case the car pass was brought outside Valley Golf Complex, there will be a penalty of

2

100.00

‘New Ruite for Délivery Truck and Closed Van Sticker

@ 4'wheels (ELF/ Closed Van) Php 3,100.00

'@ 6wheels - _ Php 4,000.00

@ - 8-10 wheels Php 5,000.00
.. B 12 whee]s = Php 6,000.00

-.TI-IE SECURITY COMMITTEE PROPOSED PROJECTS FOR THE YEAR 2019-2020

. 1‘

yzto

Instal]anon of- CCTV cameras , for the 2. Clubheuses (an and Norlsh) Parldmg area Golf
Cart area, Motorpool Area, Carpentry area, 4 "Tee Houses and all gates from- ﬂmaaﬁ o '§ )

_‘Sumnilong gates. - =
* Planting of Bougainviliea plant arouml Valley Golf fence. ﬁ" e

Road saféty measures -
a. Road Speed Strips

b. Reflectorized paint on said road to indicate “Max 30kph™speed

Centerline Cat’s Ey¢/Road refledtors
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SPORTS & GAMES COMMITTEE

As bleak as the situation may seem, the Covid 19 pandemic has ereated a truly unprecedent situation
which affects as all. With restrictions in place, at least we continue to be able to play the game we love
and td employ the people who have worked with us for decades.

Dueto the pandemic, $ports and erumes VORIMIMUY NI S s 1l sl ialing St G

the rest of 2020. To ensure the health and safety of otir members and employees, Management and the

S&G committee have taken the recommendations of the IATF and NGAP to implement the necessary
guidelines to maintain the elub’s operations.

As & highlight of this difficult period, S&G, hand in hand with management was able to implement for
the first time, a Valley Golf tee times reservations system. June and July, we manually operated the
reservations departient, and by August we were able to avail of our own online system. By creating

our own system, we were able to implement exactly the parameters we believed to be most important,
and to do o at a sevings of anywhere from P300,000 to P1 miilion pesos vs buying a system.

The 8&G committee wishes to extend its gratitude to the Board of Directors and to the staff of Valléy
Golf for supporting the success of the Don Celso Tournament. Moving from the original date of May
to February was challénge to everyone but with perseverance and dedication it resulted to having 396
teams conttibiuting to the success of the DCT. We were fortuitous in moving to February for several
reasons: 1) with the eruption of Taal volcane on January 12, 2020 most of golf south of Metro Manila
was shut down, 2) additionally we had greet weather and finally, 3) we were able to have a great cvest,
which concluded only weeks before golf shut down for more than 2 months due to the health crisis.

TRUST FUND COMMITTEE

' The Trust Fund balance as of Jusie' 30, 2020 was Php4,818;614.93. Interest earned amiounting (o
Php44,_821.76repres§ntedﬂ1eadditionsto.the‘-ﬁ,md_.this:p@tyear.}_,,-'. T T

Incomplmnce ‘with the prowsmnsof the Club’-s By-]aws, the Trust F\md is plaeed iﬁﬁlmrbtum
-investrent in a universal bank, currently with an interest rate of 0.672%.(net) p.a.’ 4

_‘!‘_"



ENGINEERING PROJECTS
#Iﬂ

BOLTH HOLE ##12 BILTATION POND | NDRTH HOLE #16
CONGTRUCTION OF BARBACE TRAP

CONSTRUCTION OF ROTONDA

NDRTH BRIDBE #15
CONCRETING DF BRIDBE DECK

NORTH TEE-HOUSE #14
EONSTRUCTION OF RIPRAP AND TRIBAMING OF TREES

GAIGE GATE NORTH HOLE #6&
O y oA Tt Bty CONSTRUCTION OF ROTONDA




ENGINEERING PROJECTS

" DREOGING OF RIVER

NORTH COURSE TEE-OFF #1
COXETRUCTION OF STARTER HOUSE

SOUTH COURSE
EXPAWSION OF PITCHING GREEN

~ NORTH COURSE HOLE #8

" REPAIR OF CONCRETE GUTTERS

NORTH COURSE ROLE #12
CONBTRUCTION OF LAY-BY

SOUTH COURSE HDLE #5
RELOCATION OF PAVING BLOCKS

|} AT
'
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WIDENING OF CART PATH TRANSFER OF PAVING BLOCKS AND CONSTRUCTION OF GUTTER

NORTH COURSE HOLE #14 " SOUTH COURSE HOLE #2
WIDENING OF CART PATH WIDENING OF CART PATH

NORTH COURSE HOLE #9 SOUTR COURSE HOLE #1
HREDEMNE OF SILT CONSTRUCTION OF GUTTER




ENGINEERING PROJECTS

—_—e——————————— —_————
SOUTH COURSE RILE #4 SOUTH COURSE HOLES #¢1,2.3.4.9,10,18
REPAIR OF PERIMEYER WALL Hllll [MPROVEMENT - SILICA SAND TD CRUSHED MARBLE

SOUTR COURSE NOLE #4 SOUTH COURSE PUMP HOUSE
CONSTRUCTIOM OF CART PATH CONSTRUCTION GABION FILTER (ON-GOING}

. .

: TN T M < A TR T

SOUTH ROURSE HOLE #5 SOUTH COURSE PUMP HOUBE
REPAIR OF PERIMEYER WALL INBTALLATION OF NEW TURBINE PUMPS




ENGINEERING PROJECTS

HOLE#9
REPAR OF RIPRAP WALL SLOPE

SOUTH COURSE BRIDBE #10
" REPAIR OF BREEN SLATE

SOUTH COURSE LAGOON %5
WBEKING OF POND

BOUTH COURSE PUKP HOUSE CONTROL PANEL
ISTALLATION OF VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVES




CLUB EVENTS







JINLTTES OF THE ANN STOCKHOLDERS 101 1IN

VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY C'LUB, INC,

Iicld at the Board Room, Main Clubhouse
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc..
Don Celso Tuason Avenue. Antipolo City
22 September 2019 at 3:00 p.m.

|\l NUMBLR OF SHARES OUTSTANDING 1.504
{1141 NUMBER OF SHARES PEr
PRESENT REPRESENTFD N
AND ENIITLED 10 VOTE (SSERES)

L CALL TO ORDER

Afer the National Anthem, the President and Chairman of the Board of Directors.
Mr. Jaime Victor J. Santos. callud the meeting to order and presided over the same. The
Corporate Secretary, Mr. Rio Sesinanda E. Venturanza, recorded the minutes of the

proceedings.
.  CERIIFICATION OF NOTICE AND QLORUM

T'he Secretary confirmed that notices of the meeting were duly sent to all members
of the Board of Directors together with a copy of the materials for the meeting.

Based on a certificate issued by the Club’s stock transter agent. Suremail Courier
Senices Inc.. atiesting to the mailing of the notices of the meeting 10 the Club’s
stockholdets of record, the Secretary certified that notices of the meeting werc sent 10 all
stockholders of record as of D1 August 2019 . A copy of the certificate has been artached
10 these minules pursuant to the nstructions of the Chairman.

The Secretary certified that. based on the register of atlendees and proxies as
tahulated by the Stock Transfer Agent. out of the total 1,594 shares representing the
outstanding capital stock of the Club, holders of a fotal of 839 shares of stock were present
in person or by proxy Iepresenting an anendance of 32.60°0. Accordingdy, the Sveretan
certified that a quorum existed for the transaction of the business at hand.

At this juncture, Atty. Ricardo Fernandez mised a point of order. He questioned the
supposed presence of guorum since a number of proxyholders ore not present at the
meeting. The Corporate Secretary explained that under the terms of the proxy carlier
submitted by the proxyholders, the member who signed the proxy authorized the chairman
of the mceting to vote on behalf of the member in the absence of the appuinted proxy on
all matters stated in the agenda except the election of directors. After further discussion
and the maticr being clanfied. the meeting proceeded.

IIl. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE LAST STOCKHOLDERS'
MEETING

Upon motion duly made and seconded. the reading of the minutes of the last
stockholders’ meeting hetd on 23 September 2618 was dispensed with as the same had been
proviously circulated distributed 1o the stockholders. The Chairman opened the floor for
further questions about the Minues of the 2018 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. No



questions having been raised, the Minutes of the Jast stockholders’ meeting was thereafter
approved

The votes for the Resolution on the approval of the Minutes of 2019 Annual
Stockholders” Meeting are us follows.

VOTES IN YOTES -
| AGERBE (TR FAVOR  AGAINsT  ABSTAIN
Appronal of \tinutes of the 339 0 0
Previous Meeting of Stockholders  152.00%)} {0.00%) R

Accordingly . the following resolution was thereafier passed:

RESOLVED, that the Minuivs of the Annual Meeting of the
Stockholders of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLLB, INC,
{the “Corporation’ ) held on 23 September 2018 is hereby approved.”

IV. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINLTES OF THE LAST
STOCKHOLDERS' MEETING

(e Chairman, Mr. Jame Victor J. Santos, openud the floor for inquiries relative
to the previous year's minutes.

Afier a moment of silence. consideriny that no questions were raisad, the Chairman
procecded with the next item on the agenda,

V.  READING AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

The Chairman. Mr. Jaime Victor J Santos, informed the stockholders present of a
dlight change in the agenda consisting of a presemiation by GM Cliff M Friedman of his
proposal for the Club’s five ($) s ear plan entitled SPadley Ciolf World Class Fve Years and
H.)'und "

[here being no objection. the Chairman asked GM Friedman to share his report to
the stockholders.

VL MAIN AGENDA

GM FREEDMAN PRESENTATION: Five Year Plan for Valley Golf eatitled “F alley
Golf World Class Five Years and Beyond”

GM Friedman stated that the report was first presented during a board meeting and
the Chairman has requested him to give the stockholders a glimpse of his presentation, He
staried by saying that it has always been Valley Golf s Mission and Vision to become a
world class golf course. His proposed 5-year plan is geared towards the achievement of
ihis vision in a costeffevtive way. By having such plan. arbittan decisions of the boacd
whose composlion changes every Mear would be avoided. Tnstead., their efforts would
reflect a cohesive course of action designed to achieve specific goals that would help bring
the Clult to world class status, The Club is blessed with two great golf courses The South
Coursc for him 1s one of the best championship golf courses in Southeast Asia while
the North Course is spectacularly challenging in its own way. Presently. the Club has
sturied plugging the South Course greens with Zoy oia Matrella grass which is expected to
be finished ahead of schedule by the first weeh of November, By Tehruary of next vear.
he expects the South Course to have excellent greens. The Club intends 1o cony utt the grass
in the South Course fairway s to Zoysia Japonica and work is already in progress. He
vxpests the work 10 be completed in a year's time. The drainage system is aisv being



improved so there will be no standing water on the fairways and this is heing donc in-house
to minimize cxpenses, Wastewater improvement which actually is a long-term project is
also being undertaken by conolling the trash and tTushing the silt 1o improsve the quahty
of irigation water, This way. the Club will save on costly pump repairs and improve
playing conditions in the golf course.

Mr. Errol Coltado commended the GM on his vision for the Club and suggested
that the Board form a committee to oversee the Club's long terms plans. The Chairman
replied that the suggestion will be endorsed to the next bourd for action.

VII. PRESIDENT'S REPORT AND PRESENTATION OF AUDITED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Chairman, Jaime Victor |. Santos, noted that all stockholders have been
provided copies of the Club’s Annual Report, Nevertheless, he reported that the Club has
a number of on-going projects sn coordination with VMJ 1o make sure the coursas will he
in tip-top shape. Despite the simultancous works going on, cash flow remains healthy cven
without increasing the members’ monthly dues. Priority project during his administration
was the greens.

Thereafier, the Treasurer, Mr. Wilfredo G. Manahan, requested the Club’s
comptrofler. Ms. Rosanna Arguelles, to provide the stockholders with a summan of the
Club's annual financial performance. She reported that for the fiscnl year 2018-2G19,
revenues increased by $15 million compared to the last fiscal year’s while operating
expenses increased by 16 million. Netincome for the year is 6.96 million compared
to last year’s ®12 million or a decrease of ®35.2 million.

Thereafier, the Chairman opened the floor for questions in regard to the 2018-2019
Annual Report on the Club™s operations and Financial Statements

Mr. Ferlu Sudario asked what the Club plans to do after the Supreme Court decision
came out inv atidating the VAT imposed by the BIR on the members’ monthly ducs. The
Chairman replied that the BIR bas yet to issu¢ the pertinent regutations but efiorts witl be
exerted to make sure that VA 1 paid by the Club will be recoyered through appropriate tax
credits. The Chairman noted though that senior members of the Club have not been charged

VAT on therr monthly dues

A request was then made un the floor to revent golf cart rental being charged seniors
back to 350 from the new rate of ®70u. The Chairman notcd the request und said that he
will endorse the matter to the incoming board of directors.

After further deliherations and upon motion duly made and seconded. the Annual
Report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year 1 July 2018 to
30 Junc 2019, was approved based on the results of the voting via poll:

" AGENDAITEM  VOTESINFAVOR VOTESAGAINST  ABSTAIN

Approval of 2018-2019 893 o
a:‘:‘:i::p - "'cz“ (52.60%0) (0.00%)

The following resolution was likewise approv ud;

“RESOLVED., that the 2018-2019 Annual Report on the operations
of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY (LU, INC. (the
Cotporation’y together with the Auditcd Financial Statements and



accompan) ing notcs for the fiscal year | July 2018 to 30 June 2019, is
hereby approved.”

VI RATIFICATION OF CORPORATE ACTS

‘The Chairman next presented the acts of the Club’s Board of Directors and
Management for Fiscal Year July 1, 2018 fo June 30, 2019, including the disposat of non-
performing assets and setilement of cases that may involse disposal of some propertics of
the Club from the date of the last stockholders’ mecting up to this meeting for the
stockholders” confirmation, ratification, and approval.

Upon a motion to confirm, ratify, and appreve all the acts of the Club’s Board of
Ditectors and management including the disposal of non-performing assets and settiement
of cases that may involve disposal of same propertivs of the Club from the date of the last
stochholders’ meeting up 1o date of the present meeting was duly made and seconded. and
no objections thereto having been raised by amy of the stockholders’ presemi, the motion
was then approved based on the following results of voting via podl:

. YOTES TN VOTES -
AGENDA HIEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAN
Ratification of ali acts of the
Board of Directors and 893 ) 0
‘danagement from the date of the 2 609
last stockholdess' ing 1p 0 (52.60)%0) 10,0070} 10,4 6}
the date of the present meeting.

1he following resolution was likewise approved:

~RESOLVED, that afl acts of the Board of Directors and
Management of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB, INC.
(the *Corporation for the period July 1. 2018 to June 30, 2019, including
the disposal of non-performing assets and settlement of cases that may
imolve disposal of some properties of the Ciub from the last stockholders®
meeting on 23 September 2018 up to the date of this mecting. are henehy
confirmed. ratified and approved.”

ViIi, APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL Al DITOR

[he Chairman informed the audience that afier deliberations and upon the
recommendation of the Audit Commitiee, the Board of Directors approved the re-
appointment of Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company (SGV & Co.) as the Club’s external
auditor for the year 2019-2020.

No yuestioms or objections having been raised by the stuckhotders present despite
the opportunity given. the proposal to re-appoint SGV & Co. as the Club’s external auditor
for year 2019-2020 was approved by the stockhulders basad on the following results of

voting via poll:

VYOTES IN VOIES .
AGENDA ITEM FAVOR AGAINST ABSTAIN
Re-appointment  of
Sycip Gorres 393 0 0
Velayo & (52.60%) (P (0.00%)
Cuompany as

External Auditor



for 2019-2020
The following resolution was likewise approsed:

“RESOLVED, that VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,
INC. (the *Club’) hercby approves the re-appointment of Sycip Gorres
Velayo & Co. as the Banks external auditor, for Year 2019-2020."

IX. ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Chairman announced that the next item in the agenda is the election of the new
members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing ycar.

The Chairman then mentioned the names of the nominevs and informed the
audience that the nominees. whose individual profiles appear in the Club’s Information
Statement and Annual Report. were duly screened by the Nomination Committee.

The Chairman called on the Chairman of the Commission on Elcctions (Comelec),
Aty Felipe T. Cuison, to preside over the election of the new Directors. The other
members of the Comelec were Atty. Ben Delos Reyes, Jr., and Atty. Marcus Antonius T.
Andaya. The followning were the official nominges:

Atty, Plaridel J. Bohol II

Mr. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro
Mr. Pablito M. Gregore

Mr. Carlo J. Carpio

Mr. Lrrol U. Collado

Mr. Marcos C. Hermoso

Mr. Noel S. Flores

NP -

After all votes cast were counted, the following persons were declared elected as
new members of the Board of Directors of the Club for the year 2019-2020 after recciving
the votes indicated opposite their names:

Nominee No. of Votes Received
In By Total
Person  Proxy
1. Mr. Cario J. Carpio 16 642 658
2. Mr. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro 33 Gl 626
3. Mr. Pablito M. Gregore 23 504 527

IX. AWARDING OF PLAQUE

Thereuster, the Chairman proceeded to the awarding of the plaque of appreciation
to the outgoing Directors including himsell

The General Manager. Mr, Fricdman, together with the members of the Comelee,
awarded the plaque of appreciation to out-going Directurs of Valley Golf and Country
Club  Mr. Virgilio G. Bucat and Mr. Augusto A Cnez. Jr., in recognition of theil
imaluable services to the Club as members of the Board and as Chairmen of various
committees. Plaque of appreciation was likewise given to the outgoing President. Mr.
Jaime Victor J. Santos. in recognition of his outstanding service to the Club as member of
the Board. chairman of various commitiees and finally as President of the Club.

X. OTHER VATTERS



The Chairman opened the floor for discussion of other issues and or unfinished
business,

A. Ms. Clelo Fregil on the procedure to sanction erring members

Ms. Fregil asked why it takes the Club months before an erring member is
penalized. She cited the case of a lady member who was caught cheating on her
scorecard who was able play several more tournaments before her case was decided.
Dir. Manahan explained the existing procedure before disciplinary action can be imposed
including giving the member concerned due process. Also. the Membership Committee
meets only once a month and ils recommendation is submirted for approsal of the Board
which also mects once a month.

The Chairman noted the valid concern raised and underiook to refer the matier to
the next board for study on how 1o speed up disciplinary action process.

B. Mr. Renato Balibag request for 100° green fee discount for PASG

Mr. Balibag ashed the Chairman to completely waiv e the green foes i from just 504
discount) being charged participants in the PASG which the Club and its senior members
aze going to host the following month. While the Club’s association of senior members
receive subsidy from the Club. thic is hardly enough considering that there are 4 <enior
toumaments held every year and these are usually well attended. The senior’s funds will
be heavily depleted if they are going to foot the 50% green fae He also requuested that the
senior’s assucition be allowed 1o choose who among its members will sepresent the Club
in intra-club senior tournaments. The Chairman noted the requests and promised to refer
the matter 10 the next board for immediate action.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no other matters to be discussed. the meeting was thereupon adjourned.

Attested by )
JAIME dic"ron 1. SANTOS
President

RIO SESINAK D@f{vmrrmua

Corporate Sceretary
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Certification

| CLIFF M. FRIEDMAN, General Manager/Compliance Officer of VALLEY GOLF & COUNTRY CLUB,

INC. with SEC registration number 13951 with principal office at Don Celso 8. Tuason Victoria Valley
Antipolo Clty. on oath state:

1.

2.

3

4,

That on behalf of Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc., | have caused this Annual Corporate

Governance Report for the year ended June 30, 2020 to be prepared;

That | read and understood its contents which are true and correct of my own personal-
knowledge and/or based on true records;

That the company Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. will comply with the requirements set

forth in SEC Notice dated June 24, 2020 for a complete and official submission of reports

and/or documents through electronic mail; and

That | am fully aware that documents filed online which requires pre-evaluation and/or

processing fee shall be considered complete and officially received only upon payment of

a filing fee.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand thiéOCT day of

FRIEDMAN
Affiant

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of

pof No 27T
PAGE NO.5k

BOOK NO™ &
epifs e 2070
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A. BOARD MATTERS

1) Board of Directors

| Wunsber of Dirackeys per Articles of Incarporation "o

[ Astual number ef Directors for the year {9

{a) Composition of the Board

Complete the table with Information on the Board of Directors:

Tipe
[nstitive H nomines, Nominator in Elacted No. of
®D), M | Mendtiythe | thelasteledton | Date 1‘,‘:;:‘;::‘ when | yesm
Rivaztor's Kame Bomnis principal | WD matethe | St | ol Lo | Gnnuel | served
{NED] ar ralationship with | slocted sarvad o8 1B} [Spaciat a
induputationt the neminater) Neating) | dissctor
Girector (1D]]
ED Not Marcus 9f24/ | 9/24/2017 9/24/20 | 3 years
Wilfredo G. Applicable | Antonius 2017 17
Manahan not a Andaya
| Nominee ]
ED Not Ramon 9/24/ | 9/24/2017 9/24/20 | 3years
Albert DG San Applicable | Abaguln 2017 17
Gabriel nota
Nominee | | |
ED Not Leslie 9/23/ | 9/23/2018 9/23/20 | 2years
Leopoldo M. Applicable | Agoncille 2018 18
Garcia not a
Nominee _
ED Not Jose Antonio | 9/22/ | 9/22/2019 9/22/20 | 1year
Pablito M. Applicable | Borromeo 2019 15
Gregore nota
Nominee |
ED Not Ramon A. g/24/ | 9/24/2017 9/24/20 | 3 years
leremy Z Applicable | Cruz 2017 17
Parulan nota
Nominee =
ID Not Gerardo 9/23/ | 9/23/2018 9/23/20 | 2 years
Albert G. Que Applicable | Rivera 2018 | Two (2} years | 18
nota No
Nominee | relationship e
ED Not leremy 9/23/ | 8/23/2018 9/23/20 | 2 years
Ronald O. Solis Applicable | Parulan 2018 18
nota |
Nominee ]
D Not Jaime Victor | 9/22/ | 9/22/2019 9/22/20 | 1vyear
Carlo J. Carplo Applicable | Santos 2019 | One (1) year 19
nota No
Nominee | relationship
D Not Luis Polintan, | 9/22/ | 9/22/2019 9/22/20 | 1year
Applicable | Emmanuel 2019 | One (1) year 19
Reginald not a Manalo,
Benjamin V. Nominee | Rommel
San Pedro Latinazo,
Donald
Joseph

1 Reckoned from the election Immediately following January 2, 2012.



Macomb, | | i [ |
Leopoldo
Garcia,

Andres Baysa
No
relationship | _

{(b) Provide a brief summary of the corporate governance policy that the board of directors has adopted.
Please emphasize the policy/les relative to the treatment of all shareholders, respect for the rights of
minority shareholders and of other stakeholders, disclosure duties, and board responsibllities.

{a.) The evaluation system established by the company to measure or determine the level of
compliance of the Board of Directors and top-level management with its Manual of Corporate
Governance.

1. Initially, the Club adopted the Corporate Governance Self-Rating System Form.

2.Valley Golf has a Business Plan and Annual Budget. Management conducts a monthly
review of compliance with the action plan. Every month a Management Report Is submitted
during the Board Meeting which contains the status report of the business plan and the
comparative financial statement against the budget to reflect the variances. Included also is
a monthly highlight of the financial report with detalled explanations on the variances of the
actual figures as compared to the budget.

(b.} Measures being undertaken by the company to fully comply with the adopted leading practices
on good corporate governance.

1.The Audit Committee and the Finance Committee meet with the External Auditors
regarding the annual examination of the financial statements of the Club and the
operations of the Club.

2.The Club has a Membership Handbook and a Personnel Manual that contain policies,
procedures and implementing guidelines on dealing with members and employees.

3.The President submits a monthly Management Report to the Board of Directors.

4.The Board of Directors had appointed the members of the Nomination Committee,
Compensation and Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee to comply with their
respective duties and responsibilities as provided for in the Manual of Good Corporate
Governance.

5.The Board of Directors had appointed an External Audlitor and hired an Internal Auditor in
compllance with the Manual of Good Corporate Governance.

6.The Club’s annual report is disseminated to all members to Inform them of the results of the
operations of the Club and the activities of the Board for the fiscal year.

7.The Board of Directors has created several committees to ensure compliance with the
Club’s Code of Corporate Governance. Among the committees created are the
Management Committee, House Committee, Membership Committee, Finance
Committee, Sports and Games Committee, Nomination Commitiee, Grounds &
Engineering Committee, Administration Committee, Legal Committee, Real Estate
Committee, Securlty Committee and Election Committee.

8.During the Fiscal year 2020, the following Members of the Board of Directors and
Compllance Officer attended the Seminar on Corporate Governance:

The following Members of the Board of Directors and General Manager/Compliance Officer
attended the Seminar on Corporate Governance Crientation Program on November 19,
2019 at the Institute of Corporate Directors, Makati Diamond Residences, Makatl City,
Metro Manila

1. Dir. Carlo J. Carpio
2. Dir. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro
3. GM Cliff M. Friedman



The following Members of the Board of Directors attended the Seminar on Corporate
Governance Orlentation Program on August 28, 2019 at the Institute of Corporate
Directors, Tower Club, Philam Tower, Makati City, Metro Manila.

1. Dir. Leopoldo M. Garcia
2. Dir. Albert G. Que

(c.) Any deviation from the company’s Manual of Corporate Governance. It shall Include a
disclosure of the name and posltion of the person/s involved, and the sanction/s imposed on sald
individual

There is no deviation from the Manual of Corporate Governance of Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc.

(d) Any plan to improve corporate governance of the company

In compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 24 Series of 2019, requlring the submission of the
Revised Manual on Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors approved on July 22, 2020 the
new Manual of Corporate Governance of Valley Golf and was submitted electronically on July 25,
2020.

(c} How often does the Board review and approve the Mission and Vision?

The Mission and Vision are usually revisited and reviewed during the Strategic Planning seminar. The last
revision of the Vision was on Oct. 9, 2012; the Mission has not been revised to date.

{d) Directorship in Other Companles
{i) Directorship in the Company’s Group?

Identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who hold the office of
director in other companies within its Group:

Type of Direstorship
ol -~ Carporate Name of the (Bnecutive, Noa-Exacutive,
Group Company independent). indicate ¥
director Is also the Chalrman.
Not Applicable. Valley Golf | Not Applicable. Valley Golf | Not Applicable. Valley Golf

does not have affiliated | does not have affiliated | does not have affiliated
companies nor Is It a party to | companles nor is it a party to companies nor is it a party to
any |oint venture. any joint venture. any joint venture.

{i) Directorship in Other Listed Companies

identify, as and if applicable, the members of the company’s Board of Directors who are also directors of
publicly-listed companies outside of its Group:

Type of Directership

Phvectar's Namg Name of Listed Company mlll m“ scate W

disacter I3 glso the Chalrvan,
Not Applicable. No member of | Not Applicable. No member of | Not Applicable. No member of |

2The Group is composed of the parent, subsidiarles, associates and joint ventures of the company.



the Board of Directors Is a
director in any publicly listed
company.

the Board of Directors Is a
director in any publicly listed
company.

{iii} Relationship within the Company and lts Group

the Board of Directors Is a
director In any publicly listed
comgany.

Provide details, as and if applicable, of any relation among the members of the Board of Directors, which
links them to significant shareholders In the company and/or In its group:

~ Director’s Name _ significant Sharehaldsr Description of the relationship
Not Applicable. There is no | Not Applicable. There Is no | Not Applicable. There Is no
significant shareholder in the | slgnificant shareholder in the | significant shareholder In the
Company. Company. Company.

!

(v} Has the company set a limit on the number of board seats In other companies (publicly listed, ordInary
and companles with secondary license) that an individual director or CEQ may hold simultaneously? In
particular, is the limit of five board seats in other publicly listed companies Imposed and observed? If yes,
briefly describe other guidelines:

 Guidelines

companies

Executive Director

Not Applicable. Valley Golf has no
policy on the number of board
seats in other companies that a
Director or CEQ may hold
simultaneously.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf has |

no policy on the number of
board seats in other companies
that a Director or CEO may hold
simultaneously.

' Non-Executive Director

CEO

‘Not Applicable. Valley Golf has no

pollcy on the number of board
seats in other companies that a
Director or CEO may hold
simultaneously.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf has
no policy on the number of
board seats in other companies
that a Director or CEO may hold
simultaneously.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf has no
policy on the number of board
seats in other companies that a
Director or CEQ may hold

simultaneously.

Not Applicable. Valiey Golf has
no policy on the number of
board seats in other companies
that a Director or CEO may hold
simultaneously.

(e) Shareholding in the Company

Complete the following table on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who directly and Indirectly

own shares in the company:

Number of % of
Name of Dirdeter Mumbar of Divect shares | lndivect shares / Threugh |  Caplial
- | (nameofrererd owner) | Stock
Wilfredo G. Manahan 1 share Not applicable. There is 0.06%
- | noindirectshare. '

Albert DG San Gabriel 1 share Not applicable. There s 0.06%
no indirect share.

Leopoldo M. Garcia 1 share Not applicable. There is 0.06%
| no indirect share.




| Pablito M. Gregore 1share Not applicable. There Is | o0.06%
no Indirect share.
1 share Not applicable. Therels 0.06%
leremy Z. Parulan ;
_ - | - | no indirect share.
Albert G. Que 1 share Not_ ap.pllcable. Thereis 0.06%
i B - no indirect share,
Ronald O. Solis 1 share Not applicable. Therels 0.06%
no indlirect share.
. 1 share Not applicable. There is 0.06%
Carlo ). Carpio no Indirect share.
Reginald Benjamin V. 1 share Not applicable. Thereis 0.06%
San Pedro B no indirect share.
TOTAL 9 shares 0.56%

2) Chairman and CEO

{a) Do different persons assume the role of Chairman of the Board of Directors and CEO? If no, describe the
checks and balances laid down to ensure that the Board gets the benefit of independent views,

Yes [___—| No l——)ﬂ

identify the Chair and CEO:
Not applicable. The President
Chairman of the Boerd Is also the Chairman of the
Board i
CEO/President Wilfredo G. Manahan |

The members of the Board of Directors are free to discuss their oplnion and views during the Board Meetings.
Each Director is given chairmanship of different committees that submit their respective recommendations and
reports during the monthly Board meetings. For every major business decision, each Director is requested to express
his views on the matter and if there is any objection the President calls for a division of the house and votes are
counted by the Corporate Secretary.

{b) Roles, Accountabilities and Deliverables

Define and clarify the roles, accountabliities and deliverables of the Chairman and CEC.

Chebman Chiaf Exscutive Offiser

The President shall be the Chief Executive
Officer of the Club. The President shall
preside at all meetings and shall sign the
Membership Certificate of the Club.

a. Implements the corperation's strategic
plan on the direction of the business;

b. Communicates and Implements the
corporation's vision, mission, values and
overall strategy as formulated by the
board and promotes any organization or
stakeholder change in accordance with
the same;

c. Oversees the operations of the
corporation and manages human and
financial resources In accordance with
the strategic plan;

d. Has a good working knowledge of the
corporation's industry and market and
keeps up-to-date with its core business

Not Applicable. The President/Chief

Role Executive Officer is also the Chairman




3)

4)

purpose;

e. Directs, evaluates and guides the work
of the key officers of the corporation;

f. Manages the corporation's resources
prudently and ensures a proper batance
of the same;

g. Provides the Board with timely
informatlon and Interfaces between the
Board and the employees;

h. Builds the corporate culture and
motivates the empioyees of the
corporation; and

i. Serves as the link between internal
cperatlons and external stakeholders.

The Presldent has general supervision of
the business affairs and property of the
Club and over Its several agents and
employees, with authority to hire said
employees, and dispense with their services
subject to confirmation of the Board of
Directors. He shall sign contracts on behalf
of the Club and shall see to it that all orders
and resolutions of the Board are carried
out. He shall do and perform such acts and
duties as from time to time maybe assigned
1o him by the Board of Directors.
Deliverables include the annual and
monthly reports of projects and operations
of the Club. To conduct at least once a
month a regular meeting of the Board of
Directors. To oversee the operations of the
Club and its financial stability.

Accountabilities

Deliverables

Explain how the board of directors plan for the succession of the CEO/Managing Director/President and the top
key management positions?

The Stockholders elect three (3) members of the nine-member Board of Directors every year during the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting who shall serve for a term of three (3) years. No directors can serve consecutively for
more than three (3) years. The Board of Directors elect during the first Board Meeting the President, Vice
President, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary. The position of the General Manager is covered by an Engagement
contract of at [east (1) year.

Other Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors

Does the company have a policy of ensuring diversity of experlence and background of directors in the board?
Please explain.

The Nominatlon Committee circularlzes yearly before the Election the Invitation to submit the names of nominees
for the Board of Directors. Stockholders with different educational backgrounds, line of business and expertise
are submitted as nominees to ensure diversity of experience and background of directors in the board.

Valley Golf embraces diversity and recognizes the benefits it brings to the organization. In observing a policy on
board diversity, the company aims to avoid groupthink and ensure that optimal decision-making is achieved. In
designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity shall be considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, ethnlcity, cultural and educatlonal background, professional experlence, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
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considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits diversity brings to the Board and the

organization,

Does It ensure that at least one non-executive director has an experience in the sector or industry the company
belongs to? Please explain.

Not applicable. Valley Goif does not have non-executive director.

Define and clarify the roles, accountabilitles and dellverables of the Executlve, Non-Executive and Independent

Directors:
Ermeuthio Non-Execuiive independent Dirsctor
.Not
sg:alllcabieéd " To protect the stockholders
The Business and property of doesy not from any abuse of authority
Role the Club shall be managed by have  non- or discretion on the part of
Board of nine (9) directors. . the Board of Directors and
executive
. Officers of the Club.
director.
The Board of Directors shall
act only as a Board and no
power Is vested in the
individual director as such. A
malority of the Board shall The Chalrman of the Audit
constitute a quorum for the
, . Committee should be an
transaction of business, . )
. independent director. The
except for the filling of ; ;
L . Audit committee shall
vacancies in the Board, in . .
. assist the Board in the
which case majority of the i
. . performance of its
remaining Directors shall s
oversight responsibility for
constitute a quorum. ;
\ the financial reporting
It shall be the Board's
process, system of Internal
responslbility to foster the .
| control, audit process, and
long-term success of Valley s .
Not menitoring of compliance
Golf & Country Club, Inc, and . \
) . applicable. with applicable laws, rules
secure Its sustained
. . valley Golf | and regulations;
competitiveness in a manner
. . does not
Accountabllities | conslstent with its fiduciary
) ] have non- | The Independent Directors
responsibility, which [t shall
. . executive shall be members of the
exercise In the best interest of .
director. Nomination Committee.
Valley Golf & Country Club, . .
The said Nomination
Inc., s shareholders and
Committee shall prepare,
other stakeholders. ;
The Board shall be composed sign and post at least
P fifteen (15} days before the

of directors with a collective
working knowledge,
experience or expertise that is
relevant to the Valley Golf's
industry/sector. The Board
shall always ensure that it has
an appropriate mix of
competence and expertlse
and that Its members remain
qualified for thelr positions
individually and collectively,
to enable 1t to fulfil its roles

annual meeting, a list of
not less than four (4) nor
more than six (6)
candidates for the Board of
Directors for the ensuing
year.
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and responsibllities and
respond to the needs of the
organization based on the
evolving business
environment and strategic
directlon.

Deliverables

To insure a high standard of
best practice for Valley Golf
& Country Club, Inc. and its
shareholders, the Board shall

a. Install a nprocess of
selection to ensure a mix of
competent directors and
officers.

b. Determine Valley Golf
& Country Club, Inc's
purpose, its vision and
mission and strategies to
carry out lts objectlves.

c. Ensure that Valley Golf
& Country Club, Inc.
complies with all relevant
laws, regulations and
codes of best business
practice.

d. Identify Valley Golf &
Country Club, Inc.’s major
and other stockholders
and formulate a clear
policy on communicating
or relating with them

through an effectlve
Investor relations
program.

e. Adopt a system of
internal  checks and
balances.

f. Identify key risk areas
and key performance
Indicators and monitor
these factors with due
diligence.

g. Properly discharge Board
functions by meeting at least
once a month. Independent
views during Board meetings
shal be given due
consideration and all such

Not
applicable.
Valley Golf
does not
have non-
executive
director.

The Independent Director
as Chalrman of the Audit
Committee is responsible
for the following:

a) Review the Annual
internal audit plan to
ensure its conformity with
the objectives of the
corporation.

b) The plan shall include
the audit scope, resources
and budget necessary to
implement it;

¢} Organize an internal
audit department, and
consider the appointment
of an independent internal
auditor and the terms and
conditions of its
engagement and removal;

d} Review the reports
submitted by the internal
and external auditors;

e) Review the quarterly,
halfyear and  annual
financial statements before
their submission to the
Board.

The Independent Director
as Member of the
Nominatlon Committee
shall prepare, sign and
post a list of not less than
four {4) nor more than six
(6) candidates for the
Board of Directors for the
ensuing year.
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meetings shall be duly
minuted;

h. Keep Board authority
within the powers of the
institution as prescribed in
the Articles of
Incorporation, By-Laws
and In existing laws, rules
and regulation.

i. The Board shall conduct an

annual self-assessment of its

performance, including the
performance of the

Chalrperson, individual

members and committees.

j. The Board shall have in
place a system that
provides, at the minimum,
criteria and process to
determine the performance
of the Board, the individual
directors, committees and
such system shall allow for
a feedback mechanism
from the shareholders /
members.

k. The Board shall adopt a
Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics, which would provide
standards for professional and
ethical behavior, as well as
articulate acceptable and
unacceptable conduct and
practices in internal and
external dealings of hoard
members.
|. The Code shali be properly
disseminated to all the
members of the Board. It shall
also be disclosed and made
available to the public
through the company
website.

m. The Board shall ensure the

proper and efficient

implementation and
monitoring of compliance
with the Code of Business

Conduct and Ethics.

Provide the company's definition of "independence” and describe the company’s compliance to the definition.

“Independent Directors” as they are independent of management and free from any business or other relationship
which could, or could reasonably be perceived to materially interfere with their exercise of independent judgment In
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carrying out their responsibilities as directors

Does the company have a term limit of five consecutive years for Independent directors? If after two years, the
company wishes to bring back an independent director who had served for five years, does it limit the term for no
more than four additional years? Please explain.

The Board's independent directors shall serve for a maximum cumulative term of nine (9] vears. After which, the
independent director shall be perpetually barred from reelection as such in the same company but may continue to
gualify for nomination and election as a non-independent director. In the instance that a company wants to retaln an
Independent director who has served for nine (9) years, the Board shall provide meritorlous justification/s and seek
shareholders'/members' approval during the annual shareholders’/members' meeting.

5) Changes in the Board of Directors (Executive, Non-Executlve and Independent Directors)
{a) Resignation/Death/Removal

Indicate any changes in the composltion of the Board of Directors that happened during the period:

Mame Pogiden Dute of Cessation [Reaseal
M. Jaime Victor J. Expiration of term of
| Santos President _September 22,2019 office. |
Mr. Virgillo C. Bucat Director September 22,2019 | CXPiration of term of
office.
Mr. Augusto A, Cruz, Ir, Director September 22, 2019 Explratt:f:i:: Ly

{b) Selection/Appointment, Re-electlon, Disqualification, Removal, Reinstatement and Suspension

Describe the procedure for the selection/appointment, re-election, disquallfication, removal, relnstatement
and suspension of the members of the Board of Directors. Provide details of the processes adopted
{Including the frequency of election) and the criterla employed in each procedure:

Criteria

o 1_ B 1
» Sstoction/Appointment

a. Must have at least one (1) share recorded
In his name during hls term of office.

{i) Executive
Directors

The Stockholders elect
three (3) members of the
Board of Directors every
year during the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting who
shall serve for a term of
three (3) years. No directors
can serve consecutively for
more than three (3) years.
The Board of Directors elect
during the first Board
Meeting the President, Vice
President, Treasurer and
Corporate Secretary.

b. He shall be at least a college graduate or
have sufficient experience in managing the
business to substitute for such formal
education.

¢. He shall be at least twenty one (21) years
old.

d. An active Proprietary member of good
standing.

e. Must be willing to soliclt proxies.

f. Must have sufficient time to share his/her
professional and executive expertise.

g Sald member has no official record of

grave misconduct,
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h. He shall have proven to possess integrity
and probity.

i. He shall be assiduous.

{ii) Non-Executive
Directors

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have Non-
Executive Directors.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have
Non-Executive Directors.

{ill) Independent
Directors

The Board's independent
directors shall serve for a
maximum cumulative term
of nine (9] vyears. After
which, the independent
director shall be perpetually
barred from reelection as
such in the same company
but may continue to qualify
for nomination and election
as a non-independent
director. In the instance that
a company wants to retain
an independent director
who has served for nine (9)

years, the Board shall
provide meritorlous
justification/s and seek

shareholders'/members'
approval during the annual
shareholders'/members'
meeting.

a. Is not, or has not been a senior
officer or employee of the covered company
unless there has been a change in the
controlling ownership of the company;

b. Is not, and has not been in the two
(2) years Immediately preceding the election,
a director of the covered company; a
director, officer, employee of the covered
company's subsidiaries, associates, afflllates
or related companies; or a director, officer,
employee of the covered company's
substantial shareholders and its related
companies;

c. Has not been appointed in the
covered company, its subsidiaries,
associates, affiliates or related companies as
Chairperson "Emeritus,” "Ex-Officio"
Directors/Officers or Members of any
Advisory Board, or otherwise appointed in a
capacity to assist the Board in the
performance of its duties and responsibllities
within two (2) years immediately preceding
his election;

d. Is not an owner of more than two
percent (2%) of the outstanding shares of
the covered company, its subsidlaries,
assoclates, afflliates or related companies;

e Is not a relative of a director,
officer, or substantial shareholder of the
covered company or any of its related
companies or of any of its substantial
shareholders. For this purpose, relatives
Include spouse, parent, child, brother, sister
and the spouse of such child, brother or
sister;

f. Is not acting as a nominee or
representative of any director of the covered
company or any of its related companies;

g Is not a securitles broker-dealer of
listed companles and registered [ssuers of
securities. "Securities broker-dealer" refers
to any person holding any office of trust and
responsibility in a broker-dealer firm, which
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includes, among others, a director, officer, =
principal shareholder, nominee of the firm to
the Exchange, an associated person or
salesman, and an authorized clerk of the
broker or dealer;

h. Is not retained, either in his
personal capacity or through a firm, as a
professional adviser, auditor, cansultant,
agent or counsel of the covered company,
any of its related companies or substantial
shareholder, or is otherwise independent of
Management and free from any business or
other relationship within the two (2] years
immediately preceding the date of his
election;

i Does not engage or has not
engaged, whether by himself or with other
persons or through a firm of which he is a
partner, director or substantlal shareholder,
in any transaction with the covered company
or any of its related companies or substantial
shareholders, other than such transactions
that are conducted at arm's length and could
not materially interfere with or Influence the
exercise of his independent judgment within
the two (2) years immediately preceding the
date of his election;

i is not afflliated with any non-profit
organization that recelves significant funding
from the covered company or any of its
related companies or substantial
shareholders; and

k. Is not employed as an executive
officer of another company where any of the
covered company's executives serve as
directors. Related companles, as used In this
section, refer to [a) the covered entity's
holding/parent company; (b) its subsidiaries;
and (c) subsidiaries of its holding/parent
company.

Related companies, as used in this section,
refer to (a) the covered entity's
holding/parent company; (b} its subsidiarles;
and {c) subsidiaries of [ts holding/parent
company.

b. Re-appointment
{1} Executive Not applicable. Valley Golf Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have re-
Directors does not have re- appointment process
appointment process. ’
s i . Not Applicable. Valley Golf .
(i) Non-Executive does not have Non- Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have

Directors

Executive Directors.

Non-Executive Directors.
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{iii) Independent
Directors

Not applicable. Valle; Golf
does not have re-
appointment process.

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have re-
appointment process.

|"c. Permenent Pispraitfication

(i} Executive
Directors

Disqualified candidates are
not Included in the List of
Candidates for the Board of
Directors

The following persons shall be permanently
disqualified from being elected/appointed or
holding the position of a director:

a. Any person convicted by final
judgment or order by a competent judicial or
administrative body of any ¢rime that {a)
Involves the purchase or sale of securlties, as
defined in the Securitles Regulation Code; (b)
arises out of the person’s conduct as an
underwriter, broker, dealer, investment
adviser, principal, distributor, mutual fund
dealer, futures commission merchant,
commaodity trading advisor, or floor broker;
or {c} arlses out of his fiduciary relationship
with a bank, quasl-bank, trust company,

| Investment house or as an affillated person

of any of them;

b. Any person who, by reason of
misconduct, after hearing, Is permanently
enjoined by a final judgment or order of the
Commisslon or any court or administrative
body of competent jurisdiction from: (a)
acting as underwriter, broker, dealer,
investment adviser, principal distributar,
mutual fund dealer, futures commisslon
merchant, commodity trading advisor, or
floor broker; {b) acting as director or officer
of a bank, quasi-bank, trust company,
investment house, or investment company;
(c) engaging In or continulng any conduct or
practice in any of the capacities mentioned
in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above, or
willfully viclating the laws that govern
securities and banking activities.

c The disqualification shall also apply
if such person is currently the subject of an
order of the Commission or any court or
administrative body denying, revoking or
suspending any registration, license or
permit issued to him under the Corporate
Code, Securities Regulation Code or any
other law administered by the Commission
or Bangko Sentral ng Pillpinas {BSP), or under
any rule or regulation issued by the
Commission or BSP, or has otherwise been
restralned to engage In any activity involving
securities and banking; or such person is
currently the subject of an effective order of
a self-regulatory organization suspending or
expelling him from membership,

| participation or association with a member
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{il) Non-Executive
Directors

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have Non-

Executive Directors. |

{lii) Independent
Directors

Disqualified candidates are
not included in the List of
Candldates for the Board of
Directors

[ or participant of the organization;

d. Any person convicted by final
judgment or order by a court or competent
administrative body of an offense involving
moral turpitude, fraud, embezziement, theft,
estafa, counterfeiting, misappropriation,
forgery, bribery, false affirmation, perjury or
other fraudulent acts;

e Any person who has been adjudged
by flnal judgment or order of the
Commisslon, court, or competent
administrative body to have willfully
violated, or willfully aided, abetted,
counseled, induced or procured the violation
of any provision of the Corporate Code,
Securities Regulation Code or any other law
administered by the Commission or BSP, or
any of its rule, regulation or order;

f. Any person earlier elected as
independent director who becomes an
officer, employee or consultant of the same
corporation;

B Any person judicially declared as
insolvent;
h. Any person found guilty by final

judgment or order of a foreign court or
equivalent financial regulatory authorlty of
acts, violations or misconduct simllar to any
of the acts, violations or  misconduct
enumerated in sub-paragraphs (a} to (e)
above;

b Any person convicted by final
judgment of an offense punishable by
imprisonment for more than six {6) years, or
a violation of the Corporation Code
committed within five (5) years prior to the
date of his election or appointment.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have
Non-Executive Directors.

a Is not, or has not been a senlor
officer or employee of the covered company
unless there has been a change in the
controlling ownership of the company;

b. Is not, and has not been in the two
{2) years Immediately preceding the election,
a director of the covered company; &
director, officer, employee of the covered
company's subsidiarles, associates, afflliates
or related companies; or a director, officer,

employee of the covered company's
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'-substantlal shareholders and its related
companies;

c. Has not been appointed in the
covered company, its  subsidiaries,
assoclates, affiliates or related companies as
Chalrperson "Emeritus," "Ex-Offlcio"
Directors/Officers or Members of any
Advisory Board, or otherwise appointed in a
capacity to assist the Board in the
performance of its duties and responsibilities
within two (2) years immediately preceding
his election;

d. Is not an owner of more than two
percent {2%) of the outstanding shares of
the covered company, Its subsidiarles,
associates, affiliates or related companies;

e s not a relative of a director,
officer, or substantial shareholder of the
covered company or any of its related
companies or of any of Its substantlal
shareholders. For this purpose, relatives
include spouse, parent, child, brother, sister
and the spouse of such child, brother or
sister;

f. Is not acting as a nominee or
representative of any director of the covered
company or any of its related companies;

g Is not a securities broker-dealer of
listed companles and reglstered issuers of
securities. "Securities broker-dealer" refers
to any person holding any office of trust and
responsibility in 2 broker-dealer firm, which
includes, among others, a director, officer,
principal shareholder, nominee of the firm to
the Exchange, an associated person or
salesman, and an authorized clerk of the
broker or dealer;

h. Is not retained, either in his
personal capacity or through a firm, as a
professional adviser, auditor, consultant,
agent or counsel of the covered company,
any of its related companies or substantial
shareholder, or is otherwise independent of
Management and free from any business or
other relationship within the two (2] years
immediately preceding the date of his
election;

i Does not engage or has not
engaged, whether by himself or with other
persons or through a firm of which he is a
partner, director or substantial shareholder,
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In any transactlon with the covered company
or any of its related companies or substantial
shareholders, other than such transactions
that are conducted at arm's length and could
not materlally interfere with or influence the
exerclse of his independent judgment within
the two (2) years immediately preceding the
date of his election;

J Is not affiliated with any non-profit
organization that receives significant funding
from the covered company or any of [ts
related companies or substantial
shareholders; and

k. Is not employed as an executive
officer of another company where any of the
covered company's executives serve as
directors. Related companies, as used In this
section, refer to (a) the covered entity's
holding/parent company; (b} its subsidiaries;
and (c) subsidiaries of fts holding/parent
company.

Related companies, as used in this section,
refer to (a) the covered entlty's
holding/parent company; {b} its subsidiaries;
and (c) subsidiaries of its holding/parent
company.

#. Temporery Disqueitficatien

Disqualified candidates are

{i) Executive not included [n the List of
Directors Candidates for the Board of
Directors

The Board may provide for the
temporary disqualification of a director
for any of the following reasons:

a. Refusal to comply with the
disclosure requirements of the
Securities Regulation Code and lts
Implementing Rules and Regulations.
The disqualification shall be in effect as
long as the refusal persists.

b. Absence in more than fifty (50)
percent of all regular and special
meetings of the Board during his
incumbency, or any twelve (12) month
period during the said Incumbency,
unless the absence is due to illness,
death in the immediate family or
serious accident. The disqualification
shall apply for purposes of the
succeeding election.

c. DIsmissal or termination for cause
as director of any corporation covered
by this Code. The disqualification shall
be in effect until he has cleared himself
from any involvement In the cause that
gave rise to his dismissal or
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{ii) Non-Executlve
Directors

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have Non-
Executive Directors.

termination.

d. If the beneficial equity ownershlp of
an independent director in the
corporation or its subsidiarfes and
afflliates exceeds two percent of its
subscribed capltal stock. The
disqualification shall be lifted if the
limit Is later complied with.

e. If any of the judgments or orders
cited in the grounds for permanent
disqualification has not yet become
final.

f. ¥ the independent director
becomes an officer or employee of the
same corporation he shall be
automatically disqualified from being
an independent director;

A temporary disqualified director shall,
within sixty (60) business days from
such  disqualification, take the
appropriate actlon to remedy or
correct the disquallfication. If he falls
or refuses to do so for unjustified
reasons, the disquallification shall
become permanent.

Nct Applicable. Valley Golf does not have

Non-Executive Directors.

{lif} Independent
Diractors

Disqualified candidates are
not Included in the List of
Candidates for the Board of
Directors

The Board may provide for the
temporary disqualification of a director
for any of the following reasons:

a. Refusal to comply with the
disclosure requirements of the
Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations.
The disqualification shall be in effect as
long as the refusal persists.

b. Absence in more than fifty (50)
percent of all regular and special
meetings of the Board during his
Incumbency, or any twelve (12) month
period during the said incumbency,
unless the absence is due to Iliness,
death in the immediate family or
serious accident. The disqualification
shall apply for purposes of the
succeeding election.

¢. Dismissal or termination for cause
as director of any corporatlon covered
by this Code. The disquallfication shall
be in effect until he has cleared himself
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from any Involvement in the cause that

gave rise to his dismissal or

termination.

d. If the beneficial equity ownership of
an independent director in the
corporation or Its subsidiaries and
affillates exceeds two percent of its
subscribed capltal stock. The
disqualification shall be lifted if the
limit is later complied with.

e. If any of the judgments or orders
clted in the grounds for permanent
disqualification has not yet become
final.

f. f the Independent director
becomes an offlcer or employee of the
same corporation he shall be
automatically disqualified from belng
an independent director;

A temporary disqualified director shall,
within sixty (60) business days from
such  disqualification, take the
appropriate action to remedy or
correct the disqualification. If he fails
or refuses to do so for unjustified
reasons, the disqualification shall
become permanent.

¢. Removal

{i} Executive
Directors

(i) Non-Executive
Directors

The Stockholders holding
2/3 of the outstanding
capltal stock in the books of
the corporation may remove
a director.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have Non-
Executive Directors.

TThe Stockholders holding 2/3 of the

outstanding capital stock in the books of the
corporation may remove a director who has
absented himself for three {3) consecutive
regular meetings of the Board unless such
absences be excused by reason of sickness,
physical disability or other justifiable reasons
acceptable to the Board of Directors.

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have
Non-Executive Directors.

{iii) Independent

The Stockholders holding
2/3 of the outstanding
capital stock in the books of

The Stockholders holding 2/3 of the
outstanding capital stack In the books of the
corporation may remove a director who has
absented himself for three {3) consecutive

Directors the corporation may remove regular meetings of the Board unless such
:"_e ctl:: at v absences be excused by reason of sickness,
@ ’ physical disabllity or other justifiable reasons
acceptable to the Board of Directors.
{. Re-imstatement e s oy N !
{i) Executive ::t APT:::‘?IE' :;"e\;:::f Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have a
Directors s no ®a pollcy policy on re-Instatement

instatement

{ii) Non-Executive

Directors

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have Non-

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have
Non-Executive Directors.
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Executive Directors.
{ili) \Independent z:s:%zh::ie; p::::ye‘:;r?r‘:f Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have a
Directors instatement policy on re-instatement
£ Suspensien e — L
A, Ci INDU BEHAVIO|
1. Any form of cheating.
2. Unruly behavior; and/or physical or
verbal abuse on any mermnber, guest,
or club personnel.
3. Sexual harassment.
4, Disregarding instruction(s) of
starter/marshal.
5. Intentionally making a shot with
players in front who are still within
range.
6. Cutting in front of a flight in any
1. Violations of the General hole \{vltho.ut permission from the
Rules and Regulations as per followm? flight or starter.
Members Handbook are 7. Overtaking of flight after 9 holes
stated In an Incident Report without asking Permlsslon.
to be submitted to the 8. Cr!s§cro§slng falrv.vavs In a golf cart,
General Manager. driving in prohlbited areas, and/or
2. The member is given a allowring minors (below 18 yrs. old)
written Notice to Explain the to drive golf cart.
violation. 9. F?Ilure to replace divots or repalr
3. The report and the reply dwot:.s with sand, rake bunkers,
of the member is submitted repair ball rparks by the player or
to the Membership his/ he.:r caddie. .

10. Smoking in designated no smoking

{l) Executive Eommltt:_eh.e Membershl areas.
Directors C;)mmlttee conducts az 11. Rampant littering.
investigation and deliberates 12. Fallure t © Smel.t scarecards.
on the reports submitted. 13. Tolerating caddies and/or umbrella
5, The Membership girls'.d who break thelr code of
. conduct.
:":cr:::::: dat?or:par:: ::: 14, "Indecent exposure” in the golf
Board of Directors. co:rse; i.e. urinating in full view of
others.
:t.la"The Bo:i::u:: Dlrect:hr: 15. Members are accountable, and will
recommendation of the be held liable, for the misconduct of
Membership Committee and thelr guests.
shall decide on the penalty 16. Proposers and secc.)nders are
for the violation accountable for the misconduct of
’ the erring members.

17. Wearing improper golf attire or
insisting to be served at the
restaurant wearing Improper Club
attire.

18. Playing without caddie.

19. Renting of privately owned golf
carts without coursing through
Valley management.

20. Practicing pitching on the regular
green of the course.

21, Joining the group (flight) In the
middle of holes of the course
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without the approval of the starter
or marshal.

B, PROTECTION OF PROPERTY
1. Destroying club furniture, fixtures,

etc.; chopplng or defacing fairway,
trees & other natural habitat.

2. Damaging the greens in any way or
form.

3. Unauthorized use of company
property.
C.GENERAL __MEMBERSHIP L
1. Bringing armed escorts to off-limits

areas and/or bringing firearms
inside Club premises.

2. Bringing non-playing individuals on
the course without paying gallery
fees.

3. Falslfying company records,

4. Non-reglstration and/or payment of

green fees of guests.
5. Giving false or  misleading
information In the membership

records.

6. Unauthorized use of the services of
outsiders as caddies, umbrella girls.

7. Availment of privileges of
ungualified dependents.

8. Playing or using club’s facilitles
without pass card.

9. Registering suspended or expelled
members as guests.

(1) Non-Executive

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have Non-

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have

Directors Executive Directors. Non-Executive Directors.
1, Violations of the General | A, CODE OF CONDUCT & BEHAVIOR
Rules and Regulations as per 1. Any form of cheating.
Members’ Handbook are 2. Unruly behavior; and/or physical or
{iljindependent stated In an Incident Report verbal abuse on any member, guest,
Directors to be submitted to the or club personnel.

General Manager.
2. The member is given a
written Notice to Explain the

3. Sexual harassment.
4, Disregarding instruction(s} of

starter/marshal.
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violation.
3. The report and the reply
of the member Is submitted
to the Membership
Committee.
4, The Membership
Committee conducts an
investigation and dellberates
on the reports submitted.
5. The Membership
Committee prepares the
recommendation to the
Board of Directors.
6. The Board of Directors
shall discuss the
recommendation of the
Membership Committee and
shall decide on the penalty
for the violation.

10.

11.
12,
13.

14.

15,

1s.

17.

18.
19

20.

21,

Intentionally making a shot with
players in front who are still within
range.

Cutting in front of a flight in any
hole without permission from the
following flight or starter.
Overtaking of flight after 9 holes
without asking permission.
Crisscrossing fairways in a golf cart,
driving in prohibited areas, and/or
allowing minors (below 18 yrs. old)
to drive golf cart.

Failure to replace divots or repair
divots with sand, rake bunkers,
repair ball marks by the player or
his/her caddie.

smoking in designated no smoking
areas.

Rampant littering.

Failure to submit scorecards.
Tolerating caddies and/or umbrella
girls who break thelr code of
conduct.

“Indecent exposure” in the golf
course; I.e. urinating In full view of
others.

Members are accountable, and will
be held llable, for the misconduct of
their guests.

Proposers and seconders are
accountable for the misconduct of
the erring members.

Wearing Improper golf attire or
Insisting to be served at the
restaurant wearing improper Club
attire.

Playing without caddie.

Renting of privately owned golf
carts without coursing through
Valley management.

Practicing pltching on the regular
green of the course,

Joining the group ({flight} in the
middle of holes of the course
without the approval of the starter
or marshal.

B. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY

1.

Destroylng club furniture, fixtures,
etc.; chopping or defacing fairway,
trees & other natural habitat.

Damaging the greens In any way or
form.

Unauthorized
property.

use of company




C.GENERAL MEMBERSHIP RU &
REGULATIONS
1. Bringing armed escorts to off-limits
areas and/or bringing firearms
inside Club premises.

2. Bringing non-playing individuals on
the course without paying gallery
fees.

3. Falsifying company records.

4, Non-registration and/or payment of
green fees of guests.

5. Giving false or  misleading
information in the membership
records.

6. Unauthorized use of the services of
outsiders as caddies, umbrella girls.

7. Avallment of privileges of
unqualified dependents.

8. Playing or using club’s facilitles
without pass card.

9. Registering suspended or expelled
members as guests.

Voting Result of the last Annual General Meeting

= Hame of Directer Vistes Received

Mr. Carlo J. Carpio 658 votes

Mr. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro 636 votes

Mr. Pablito M. Gregore 527 votes

Mr. Errol U, Collado 186 votes

Atty. Plaridel J. Bohol Il 77 votes

Mr. Marcos C. Hermoso 8 votes

Mr. Noel S, Flores 2 votes

6} Orientation and Education Program
(a) Disclose detalls of the company’s orlentatlon program for new directors, if any.

It is the policy of Valley Golf to provide relevant training to its Directors, including an orientation program for
first-time directors and relevant annual continuing training for all directors. Such orientation and continuing
tralning programs, which may be conducted by SEC-accredited tralning providers, aim to promote effective
board performance and continuing qualification of the directors in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.
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(b} State any in-house training and external courses attended by Directors and Senlor Management? for the past
three (3) years:

a. The following Members of the Board of Directors attended the Seminar on Professionalism, Ethics
and Good Corporate Governance conducted by the Philippine Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

1. Dir. Augusto A. Cruz, Ir. —January 24, 2017
2. Dir. Virgilio C. Bucat - May 12, 2017
3. Dir. Jaime Victor J. Santos - May 12, 2017

b. The former General Manager/Compliance Officer, Mr. Dan L. Salvador Ill attended the Seminar on
Corporate Governance Orientation Program on Nov. 20, 2018 at the institute of Corporate Directors.

I. Continuing education programs for directors: programs and seminars and roundtables attended during the

year.

Neme of Di /Officer | Dute of p Name of Training

¢ Institution

, Institute of Corporate
. Seminar Corporate .
Dir. Leopoldo M. Garcla . . Directors, Discovery
Dir. Albert G. Que August 28, 2019 | Governance Drientation Primea, Makati City
Program

Dir. Carlo ). Carplo B Seminar on Corporate Institute of Corporate
Dir. Reginald Benjamin V. November 19, Goverance 0ri:?1tation Directors, Makati Diamond
San Pedro 2019 Program Residences, Makati City,
GM Cliff M. Frledman g Metro Manila

B. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT & ETHICS

1) Discuss briefly the company’s policies on the following business conduct or ethics affecting directors, senlor
management and employees:

Business Conduct &
RERCT

Directoss

Sevlar Manegement

Bmployees

(a) Conflict of Interest

In line with the policy
of Valley Golf of
transparency and
avoldance of conflict of
interest situations by
its directors/officers
and Committee
members as provided
in the By-laws, the
Board of Directors has
required the execution
of a Disclosure
Statement by
directors/officers and
Committee members
who directly or
indirectly through their
relatives up to the 4%

In line with the policy of
Valley Golf of
transparency and
avoidance of conflict of
interest situations by Iits
directors/officers and
Commlittee members as
provided [n the By-laws,
the Board of Directors has
required the execution of
a Disclosure Statement by
directors/officers and
Committee members who
directly or indirectly
through thelr relatives up
to the 4t civil degree of
either consanguinity or
affinity, have business

The Valley Golf Personnel
Manual contalns polices on
prohibition against
nepotism and employment
of husband and wife in the
same office.

? Senlor Management refers to the CEO and other persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing
and controlling the activities of the company.
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"Conflict of Interest — In

civil degree of elther
consanguinity or
affinity, have business
relations with Valley
Golf & Country Club,
Inc.

line with their duty and
loyalty towards the
Club, the directors and |
officers of the Club are
obligated to act solely
for the benefit of the

Club at all times.
Accordingly, they
should exercise utmost
good faith and integrity
in dealing with the
Club. They should
avoid any legal,
financial and ethical
conflict of Interest and
should ensure that
their actlvities and
interest do not
adversely affect those
of the Club’s. The
same ethical standards
shall be imposed on all

the committee
chalrmen and
members of their |
respective committees.

A conflict-of-interest
sltuation with the Club
may Include, but shall
not be limited to,
approval or entering
into any contracts,
business dealings, sales
or purchases or other
similar or related
transactions for the
personal gain or

| advantage of the

|

director, officer and
committee
chairman/member
concerned or of his
family or non-club
member friends and

associates to the
prejudice or at the
expense of the Club.

in any conflict-of-

relations with Valley Golf
& Country Club, Inc.
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interest

whether direct or
indirect, actual or
potential, the director,
officer or committee
chairman/member

concerned must make

sltuatlons,"

full prior disclosure of |

the same in writing to
the Board. They
should Itkewise desist
from performing any
actlon or engaging in
any activity, which

might give the |

appearance or
Impresslon to a
disinterested or
oblective person of any
such . conflict-of-
interest situation

without the prlor|

consent of the Club.

Upon such prior
disclosure, the Club
may nonetheless pass
upon and approve the
proposed transaction
with the director,
offlcer or committee
chalrman/member
Involved in the conflict-
of-interest situatlon if
the contract is fair and
reasonable, provided
that the presence of
such director or officer
is not necessary to
constitute a quorum in
the meeting where any
such contract or
transaction would be
passed upon and
approved, and
provided further that
the director or officer
concerned should not
vote In such meeting.

A director with a
material or potential
interest in any
transaction affecting
the corporation shall
fully disclose  his
adverse interest,

| abstain from taking
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(o) Conduct of
I Business and Fair
Dealings

(¢) Receipt of gifts from
third parties

(d} Compliance with
Laws & Regulations

part in the
deliberations for the |
same and recuse from
voting on the approval
of the transaction.

The abstention of a
director from |
participating In a
meeting when related
party transactions, self-
dealings or any
transactions or matters
on which he has a
material Interest are
taken up ensures that
he has no Influence
over the outcome of
the deliberatlions. The

fundamental principle
to be observed is thata |
director does not use
his position to profit or
gain some benefit or
advantage for himself
andfor his related
Interests.

The Bids and Awards
Committee is
responsible In  the
Implementation of the
Rules and Regulation
on procurement In line |
with Valley Golf's
commitment to adhere
to the Principles of
Transparency,
Competitiveness,
Streamlined
procurement, System
of accountability and
Monitoring.

Valley Golf does not
have a policy on |
receipt of gifts from
third parties but as a
practice the Board |
does not accept gifts |
that will affect their '
Judgment and declsion,
The By-laws of Valley
Golf contains Rules and
Regulations governing
the conduct of the
Board of Directors.

The Blds and Awards
Committee Is responsible
in the Implementation of
the Rules and Regulation
on procurement in line

with Valley Golf's
commitment to adhere to
the Principles of
Transparency,
Competitiveness,
Streamiined

procurement, System of
accountability and
Monitoring.

Valley Golf does not have
a pollcy on receipt of gifts
from third parties but as a
practice the Board does
not accept gifts that will
affect thelr judgment and
decislon,

The By-laws of Valley Golf
centains Rules and
Regulations governing the
conduct of the Senior
Management

The Personnel Manual
contains policies on
Rec¢rultment and Selection
procedure, Grievance
Procedure and table of
disciplinary actlon.

No tipping of any form
shall be allowed. Any
employee accepting tlps
shall be suspended or|
dismissed and the
member shall be subject
to appropriate disciplinary
action.

The Valley Golf Personnel
Manual contains polices on
limitations of employment

and as a general rule, the

Club shall refuse
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{e) Respect for Trade
Secrets/Use of Non-
public Information

{f} Use of Company
Funds, Assets and
information

Al corporat; records

are confidential

All corporate records are
confidential

employment to a person
who advocates and engages
in activities and beliefs that
are contrary to law.

All employee records are
confidential

The Board approves a
Financial and Business
Plan. Dishursements
for capex are subject to
availability of funds
and approval of the
Board

The Board approves
Financial and Business
Plan. Disbursements for
capex are subject to
availability of funds and
approval of the Board

The Board approves a
Financlal and Business Plan.
Disbursements for capex are

subject to avallability of
funds and approval of the
Board

() Employment &
Labor Laws &
Policles

The Personnel Manual
contains policies on
Recruitment and
Selection procedure,
Grlevance Procedure
and table of
disciplinary action. The
rank and file
employees are covered
by a Unlon Samahang
Gabay ng Manggagawa
sa Valley Golf.

{h) Disclplinary action

() Whistle Blower

The Members’
Handbook contalns
Penal Provision for

violations of the
General Rules and
Regulations of the
Club.

Violations are reported
by means of Incident

The Personnel Manual
contains policies on
Recrultment and
Selection procedure,

Grievance Procedure and

table of disciplinary
action. The rank and file

employees are covered by
a Union Samahang Gabay
ng Manggagawa sa Valley

Golf.

The Members’ Handbook

contalns Penal Provision
for violations of the
General Rules and
Regulations of the Club,

Violations are reported by
means of Incident Report.

The Personnel Manual
contains policies on
Recruitment and Selection
procedure, Grlevance
Procedure and table of
disciplinary action. The rank
and file employees are
covered by a Unlon
Samahang Gabay ng
Manggagawa sa Valley Golf.

The Personnel Manual
contains policles on
Recrultment and Selection
procedure, Grlevance
Procedure and table of
disciplinary action.

The Board shall establish a
suitable framework for
whistleblowing that allows
employees to freely
communicate their concerns
about lllegal or unethical
practices, without fear of
retaliation and t¢ have
direct access to an
independent member of the

(1) Conflict Resolution

Report. The reports | The reports are discussed | Board or a unit created to

are discussed by the | by the Membership | handle whistleblowing

Membership Committee concerns. The Board shall be

Committee consclentious in establlshing
the framework, as well as in
supervising and ensuring its
enforcement.
Violations are reported to
the HR/AdmiIn. The reports
are discussed with the
General Manager

The resolution of | The resclution of conlict

conflict is discussed by | Is discussed by the Board The Personnell Manua-l Bind

. the CBA contains policies on
the Board of Directors | of Directors Grievance Procedure
The Board  shall | The Board shall establish
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between
Corporation
stockholders,

establish and maintaln | and maintain an [
an alternative dispute | alternative dispute
resolution system in | resolution system in the
the Corporation that | Corporation that can
can amicably
conflicts or differences | or differences between

and its | stockholders, and
Corporation and third | parties, Including the

parties, including the | regulatory authorities.
regulatory authorities.

settle | amicably settle conflicts
- the | the Corporation and its

and | Corporation and third

2) Has the code of ethics or conduct been disseminated to 2ll directors, senior management and employees?

3)

4)

Yes, the Code of Ethics had been disseminated to all Directors, senior management and employees. The Code of
Ethics Is included in the Company Wehbsite, Members’ Handbook and Annual Report to the Stockholders.

Discuss how the company implements and monitors compliance with the code of ethics or conduct.

The Code of Ethics Is Included In the Member's Handbook and any violation is reported to Management and the
Membership Committee. The Audit Committee conducts regular meetings and dlscusses compliance on the Code

of Ethics.
Related Party Transactions

{a) Policies and Procedures

Describe the company’s policies and procedures for the review, approval or ratification, monitoring and
recording of related party transactions between and among the company and Its parent, Joint ventures,
subsidiaries, associates, affiliates, substantial stockholders, officers and directors, including thelr spouses,
children and dependent siblings and parents and of interlocking director relationships of members of the

Board.
Redsted Party Troneactions Policies snd Procedures |
(1) Parent Company Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have a parent company '
{2) Joint Ventures Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have joint ventures.
(3} Subsidiaries Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have subsidiaries.

{4) Entities Under Common Control

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have entitles under
common control.

(5) Substantial Stockholders

Not Applicable. Valley Golf does not have substantial
stockholders.

{6} Officers including
spouse/chlldren/siblings/parents

In line with the policy of Vailey Goif of transparency and
avoidance of conflict of interest situations by its
directors/officers and Committee members as provided in
the By-laws, the Board of Directors has required the
executlon of a Disclosure Statement by directors/officers and
Committee members who, directly or indirectly through their
relatives up to the 4'" civil degree of either consanguinity or
affinity, have business relations with Valley Golf & Country
Club, Inc.

(7) Directors including
spouse/children/siblings/parents

In line with the policy of Valley Golf of transparency and
avoidance of conflict of Interest situations by its
directors/officers and Committee members as provided in
the By-laws, the Board of Directors has required the
execution of a Disclosure Statement by directors/cfflcers and
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relatives up to the 4 civil degree of either consanguinity or
affinity, have business relations with Valley Golf & Count
Club, Inc.

[ Committee members_who, directly or indlrectly through their
ry

(8) Interlocking director relationship Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have Interlocking
of Board of Directors | directors. N

(b) Conflict of Interest
{i) Directors/Officers and 5% or more Shareholders

identify any actual or probable conflict of interest to which directors/officers/5% or more shareholders
may be involved.

‘ Detells of Condlist
| of intarest (Actual or Probable)
Name of Director/s Not Applicable. No conflict of Interest.
| Name of Offlcer/s Not Applicable. No conflict of Interest.
Name of Significant Shareholders | Nota::?‘ic:ible_. No conflict of Interest
gnificant shareholders.

() Mechanism

Describe the mechanism laid down to detect, determine and resolve any possible conflict of interest
between the company and/or its group and their directors, officers and slgnificant shareholders.

| Directors/Officers/Significawt Shareholders ,
Not applicable. Valley Goif has no group of companies and

company __nosignificant shareholders.
Grou Not applicable. Valley Golf has no group of companies and
: P _ no significant shareholders.

5) Family, Commercial and Contractual Relations

(a) Indicate, If applicable, any relation of a family,* commercial, contractual or business nature that exists
between the holders of significant equity (5% or more), to the extent that they are known to the company:

Numes of Related Brief Ducsriptien of the
significant Gheshaidars Ta i Rastonsie Retatisnship .
Not applicable. Valley Golf does | Not applicable. Valley Golf does | Not applicable. Valley Golf
not have holders of significant | not have holders of significant does not have holders of
eauity. equity. siznificant equity
|

{b) Indicate, if applicable, any relation of a commercial, contractual or business nature that exists between the
holders of significant equity {5% or more) and the company:

4 Family relatlonship up to the fourth clvil degree elther by consanguinity or affinity.
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6)

Koo of Reluated

Type of Relationship | Betz] Dearppiien

Significant Shareholders
Not applicable. Vailey Golf does
not have holders of significant
equity.

Not applicable. Valley Golf does | Not applicable. Valiey Golf does
not have holders of significant

not have holders of significant

equity. | ~equity.

{c) Indicate any shareholder agreements that may impact on the control, ownership and strategic direction of

the company:
I % of Capita! Stock affaeted Brief Dasaription ef the
Hame of Shareheblers {Parties) Transactien
Not Applicable. Valley Golf

Not Applicable. Valley Golf
does not have a shareholder

Not Applicabl&. Valley Golf
does not have a shareholder
agreement.

does not have a shareholder
agreement.

agreement.

Alternative Dispute Resolution
Describe the alternative dispute resolutlon system adopted by the company for the last three (3) years in amlcably
settling conflicts or differences between the corporation and its stockholders, and the corporation and third
parties, including regulatory authorities.
Adternative Dispute Rwsoiution System
Not Applicable. valley Golf has not
adopted alternative dispute resolution
Corporation & Stockholders mechanism to amicably settle conflicts or
differences between the Club and its
shareholders.
Not Applicable. Valley Golf has not
adopted alternative dispute resolution
Corporation & Third Partles mechanism to amicably settle conflicts or
differences between the Ciub and third
parties.
Not Applicable. Valley Golf has not
adopted alternative dispute resolution
Corporation & Regulatory Authoritles mechanism to amicably settle conflicts or
differences between the Club and
regulatory authorities.
C. BOARD MEETINGS & ATTENDANCE
1) Are Board of Directors’ meetings scheduled before or at the beginning of the year?
The meetings of the Board of Directors are scheduled at the first meeting of the new board following the start of
the new fiscal year.
2) Attendance of Directors
— — I = = o = =
fNo. of
Deteof | Macstings Held
[Blesael] Fogmea o durl Mastings 1
- | _ vairh :
Chairman | wilfredo G. Manahan | 9/24/2017 12 12 | 100%
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Member ‘Albert DG San Gabrlel | 9/24/2017 12 | 12 100%

| Member | Leopoldo M. Garcia | 9/23/2018 12 | 12 100%
Member leremy Z. Parulan 9/24/2017 12 9 75%
Independent | Albert G. Que __  9/23/2018 12 10 83%
Member Ronald O. Solis 9/23/2018 12 10 83%
Independent | Carlo J. Carpio 9/22/2019 7 | 7 100% |
Member Pablito M. Gregore 9/22/2019 7 6 86%
Independent | Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro 9/22/2019 7 | 7 100%

3) Do non-executive directors have a separate meeting during the year without the presence of any executive? If
yes, how many times?

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have non-executive directors.
4) Is the minimum quorum requirement for Board decisions set at two-thirds of board members? Please explain.

A majority of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except for the filling of
vacancies in the board, in which case majority of the remaining Directors shall constitute a quorum.

5) Access to Information

(a) How many days in advance are board papers® for board of directors meetings provided to the board?
The Board papers for meeting of the Board of Directors are sent at least one day before the meeting.

(b} Do board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary?

Yes, the board members have independent access to Management and the Corporate Secretary.

{c) State the policy of the role of the company secretary. Does such role include assisting the Chairman in
preparing the board agenda, facilitating training of directors, keeping directors updated regarding any
relevant statutory and regulatory changes, etc?

The Board shall ensure that it Is assisted in Its dutles by a Corporate Secretary, who should be a separate
Individual from the Compliance Officer. The Corporate Secretary shall not be a member of the Board of
Directors and should annually attend a trairing on corporate governance.

The Corporate Secretary Is primarily responsible to the corporation and its shareholders/members, and not to
the Chairperson or President of the company and has, among others, the following duties and

responsibilities:

a. Assists the Board and the Board committees in the conduct of their meetings (i.e. agenda setting,
preparation of annual schedule of meetings and board calendar);

b. Safekeeps and preserves the integrity of the minutes of the meetings of the Board, Board
committees and shareholders/members, as well as other official records of the corporation;

c. Keeps abreast of relevant laws, regulations, all governance issuances, industry developments and
operations of the corporation, and advises the Board and the Chairperson on all relevant issues as they arise;

d. Works fairly and objectively with the Board, Management and shareholders/members and
contributes to the flow of Information between the Board and Management, the Board and its commlttees,
and the Board and its shareholders/members as well as other stakeholders;

5 Board papers consist of complete and adequate information about the matters to be taken in the board meeting.
Information Includes the background or explanation on matters brought before the Board, disclosures, budgets,
forecasts and internal financial documents.
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e. Advises on the establishment of board committees and thelr terms of reference;
f. Informs members of the Board, in accordance with the by-laws, of the agenda of their meetings at
least five (5) working days before the date of the meeting, and ensures that the members have before them

accurate information that will enable them to arrive at intelligent decisions on matters that require their
approval;

g Attends all Board meetings, except when Justifiable causes, such as iliness, death in the immediate
family and serious accidents, prevent him from doing so;

h. Performs all required administrative functlons;

i Oversees the drafting of the by-laws and ensures that they conform with regulatory requirements;

and

J- Performs such other duties and responsibllities as may be provided by the Board and the
Commission.

I The Corporate Secretary shall have charge of the seal and corporate books; shall countersign the

certificate of stock and sign such other instruments as required such signature, and shall make such
reports and perform such other duties as are incident to his office or are properly required of him by
the Board of Directors.

{d) Is the company secretary trained in legal, accountancy or company secretarial practices? Please explain
should the answer be in the negative.
The Corporate Secretary Is a lawyer.

{e)} Committee Procedures

Disclose whether there is a procedure that Directors can avail of to enable them to get Information necessary
to be able to prepare in advance for the meetings of different committees:

ves [ | No [ X_]

Commhttne Detelis ofthe prosctiures

Executive Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have an Executive |
Committee

Audit There Is no procedure but the agenda and documents for |
discussion are sent at least ene {1) day before the meeting.

Nomination There is no procedure but the agenda and documents for
discussion are sent at least one (1) day before the meeting.

Remuneration There is no procedure but the agenda and documents for|
discusslon are sent at least one {1} day before the meeting.

Others (specify) 4

6) External Advice

Indicate whether or not a procedure exists whereby directors can receive external advice and, if so, provide

details:

Proectivrcs Bedcs
Not Applicable. There is no procedure for | Not Applicable. There is no procedure for
external advice. external advice.
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7) Change/s in existing policies

Indicate, if applicable, any change/s introduced by the Board of Directors {during Its most recent term) on |
existing policies that may have an effect on the business of the company and the reason/s for the change:

Awards Committee composed
of:

Controllers’ Division will act as
a member of BAC)

To have a proper check and

° Vice President balance, the Chalrman of the
e Chairman of Finance BAC shall not be the Chairman
Committee of either House Committee or
. Chairman of Audit Engineering and Grounds
Committee Committee.

. General Manager (in

the absence of General

Manager, the Head of

Exnicting Policies Chauges Reasen
Procurement, Bids and Award To ensure transparency and
Policy accountability, To facilitate

the flow of work and
BAC - refers to the Bids and transactions.

Competitive Bidding - refers to
a method of procurement
which is open to participation
by any interested party

Competitive Bidding - refers to

a method of procurement

which Is open to participation

by any interested party gxcept
r Boa Directors, BA

and Audlt Cammittee.

To ensure transparency and
accountability. To facilltate
the flow of work and
transactions.

No procurement shall be

Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc

ar_unless it has a Board
Resolution _@pproving _the
sams, The Annusal
Procurement Plan shall be
anproved by the Board of

No procurement shall be Directors _and _must
undertaken unless it is n consistent  with i d
accordance with the approved poroved vearly bud
Annual Procurement Plan of Procurement "
Valley Golf & Country Club, Inc. i o
The Annual Procurement Plan 'ndud"‘l Desln:
shall be approved by the Board ____e_E_.;z- Speclfications:
of Directors and must be 3- Terms of Reference;
consistent with its duly ll:—'ﬁmE —
approved yearly budget. 5 Cost breakdown and
6. Projected Income and
Analysi
In re th
included In the Annu

Procurement Plan of Valiey

Golf & Country Club, the
requesting Committee _shall

submit the procurement plan

| to_Finan

mmittee for !

To ensure transparency and

undertaken unless it s in | accountability. To facilitate
accordance with the approved | the flow of work and
Annual Procurement Plan of transactions.
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' 'i_ggntlfigg'_tlon of;:urgg of fund |

avajlable for the project. Upon
budget linkaze

None In the Existing Policy

Step 4: Invitatlon to Bld

in line with the principle of
transparency and
competitiveness, all Invitations
to Bid contracts under
competitive bidding shall be
advertised by the Procuring
Entity In such manner and for
such length of time. in order to
ensure the widest possible
dissemination, posting In the
Procuring Entity's premises,
in newspapers of general
circulation, the website and
social media of the Procuring
Entity, if available.

Changes__in the Qesign,_= To ensure transparency and

ecifications Terms

R nce B

|A r val is required
r h § Design

Specifications and Terms of
Reference. For changes in

budzet, a recommendation
from Finance Committee with
nal rom r

[ desinad NECEssSary,

| Step 4: Invitation to Bid

In line with the principle of
transparency and
competitiveness, all
Invitations to Bid contracts
under competitive bidding
shall be advertised by the
Procuring Entity in such
manner and for such length of

time {minimum of 10 days}, In

| order to ensure the widest

possible dissemination,
posting in the Procuring
Entity's premises, in
newspapers of  general

circulation, the website and
soclal media of the Procuring
Entity, if avallable.

To facilitate
work and

accountabillty.
the flow of
transactions.

' To ensure transparency and

accountabllity. To facllitate
the flow of work and
transactions.

None in the Existing Policy

Step 12: Notice to Proceed

The Procurinzg Entity shall

|ssye the ice to Proceed to

the winning bidder not jater

than seven (7 lendar

| from the date |
ontr; he rd

Directors_or_upon dellvery or
submission of the following:

a.  delivery of
equipments, __materials,
| manpower, etc needed to
start the project and

Perfori Securi

whichever comes first. All
noticc: called for by the terms

of the contract shall be
effective only at the time of
receipt _ thereof he
coniractor.

To ensure transparency and
accountability. To facilitate
the flow of work and
transactlons.

D. REMUNERATION MATTERS
1) Remuneratlon Process

Disclose the process used for determining the remuneratlion of the CEQ and the four (4) most highly compensated
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management offlcers:

- ' I Top 4 Highest Pald
L 20 Management Officers
(1) Fixed remuneration Not appllcable.. The CEO does Fixed remuneraticn as per
| not receive salary ! Contract. |
(2) Variable remuneration Not applicable. The CEQ does | Not applicable. Contract Is for
I ) not recelve salary | fixed remuneration
(3) Per diem allowance Not applicable. The CEO does = Notapplicable. Not Included in
not recelve salary | the contract.
—43th
Not applicable, The CEQO does | Bonus as per Labor Laws 1.3
(4) Bonus g month pay and as per practice-
B = N i | 31% of salary B _|
(5) Stock Options and Not applicable. The CEO does = Not applicable. Not included In
other financial \
not receive stock option the contract.
Instruments . |
| (6) Others (specify) |

2) Remuneration Policy and Structure for Executive and Non-Executlve Directors

Disclose the company’s policy on remuneration and the structure of its compensatlon package. Explain how the
compensatlon of Executive and Non-Executlve Directors Is calculated.

How

| Policy u-:nm s ‘ Corapaungtion I ‘
= i e || ~ Calculated
Not applicable. The Not applicable. The Naot applicable.
Executlve Directors directors do not directors do not recelve The directors do
receive salary. | salary. not receive salarv.
Not applicable. ; Nct applicable.
r A Valley Golf does not Not applicable. Valley | Valley Golf does
Non-Executive Directors Golf does not have non-
have non-executive . not have non-
. executive directors . R
directors executive directors |

Do stockholders have the opportunity to approve the decision on total remuneration (fees, allowances, benefits-
in-kind and other emoluments) of board of directors? Provide details for the last three (3) years.

[ : Date of
Remsnevatipn Scheme | B Stockholders’ Approwval ‘
Not applicable, The directors do not receive Not applicable. The directors do nct receive
salary | salary.

3} Aggregate Remuneration

Complete the following table on the aggregate remuneration accrued during the most recent year:
. :

B son awn [Exscutiviel ; '.I“ h“““:" Q'n" ml‘"i Independcat
Dirversors Directers

| directors)

Not applicable.
The directors

do not receive

 salary.

—

Not applicable. Valley Not applicable. The
Golf does not have non- directors do not
| executive directors receive salary.

{(a) Fixed Remuneration
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{b)

Variable Remuneration

Not applicable.

The directors
do not receive
salary.

Not applicable. Valley
Golf does not have non-
executive directors

Not applicable. The
directors do not
receive salary.

| ?:: :zz:::e' ‘ Not applicable. Valley Not applicable. The
{c) Perdiem Allowance do not receive Golf does not have non- directors do not
executive directors receive per diem.
| per dlem.
.'::: 'i:rFe’::c::?sle. Not applicable. Valley Not applicable. The
(d} Bonuses do not receive Golf does not have non- directors do not
bonuses. executive directors receive bonuses.
. Not applicable. Not applicable. The |
{e) Stock Optlor]s andfor The directors Not applicable. Valley directors do not
other financial Golf does not have non- .
instruments do not receive executlve directors receive stock
i stock ootlons optlons
{f) Others (Specify)
Totel
Ron-Executhve Diregtor
Executive independent
et Banaflts fnther than independent
Directers diractors) . Directors
Not applicable. Not applicable. The
The directors directors do not
do not receive Not applicable. Valley receive any beneflts
1) Advances any benefits Golf does not have non- other than playing
other than executive directors coupons.
playing
| cougons. .
Not applicable. Not applicable. The
The directors directors do not
do not receive | Not applicable. Valley receive any benefits
2) Credit granted any benefits Golf does not have non- other than playing
other than executive directors coupons.
playing
| coupons, |
Not applicable. Not applicable. The
The directors ‘ directors do not
. do notreceive | Not applicable. Valley receive any benefits
3 zz:::'?:u:[l::: § any benefits Golf does not have non- | other than playing
other than executive directors coupons.
playing
COUPONS. |
Not applicable. Not applicable. The
The directors directors do not
do not receive | Not applicable. Valley receive any benefits
) gi?;::;;::?;’c urred any benefits Golf does not have non- other than playing
other than executive directors COUpons.
playing ‘
I COUpONS. |
| Not applicable. | Not applicable. The
The directors . directors do not
. . do not recelve Not applicable. Valley receive any benefits
(e} Life Insurance Premium . Golf does not have non-
any benefits . other than playing
other than executive directors -

playlng




coupons,

(f) Hospitalization Plan

The directors
do not receive
any benefits
other than
playing
coupons.

Not applicable.

Not applicable. Valley
Golf does not have non-
executive directors

Not applicable. The
directors do not
receive any banefits
other than playing
COUpDNS.

{g) CarPlan

The directors
do not receive
any benefits
other than
playing
coupons.

Not applicable.

Not applicable. Valley
Golf does not have non-
executive directors

Not applicable. The
directors do not
receive any benefits
other than playing
coupons.

(h) Others {Specify)

Total

4) Stock Rights, Options and Warrants

{a) Board of Directors

Complete the following table, on the members of the company’s Board of Directors who own or are entitled
1o stock rights, options or warrants over the company'’s shares:

Blrector’s Mame

' Not applicable.
Valley Golf does
not issue stock

bt of B4 Number of Nusiber of |
jndirect Tetel % from
Optioa/Bights/ PRighets/ fiquivelent Saacd
Warraofs Dption Shares N
Werrenis
Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable.

Valley Golf does
nat issue stock

Valley Golf does
not Issue stock

Valley Golf does
not issue stock

Valley Golf does
not issue stock

Directors.

rights, options or | rights, options or | rights, options or rights, options or | rights, optlons
warrants to the warrants to the warrants to the warrants to the | or warrants to
Directors. | Directors. | Dlrectors. the Dlrectors. |

(b) Amendments of Incentive Programs

Indicate any amendments and discontinuation of any incentive programs introduced, including the criteria
used in the creation of the program. Disclose whether these are subject to approval during the Annual

Stockholders’ Meeting:

Intentive Pragram

Amendments

Pats of
Steckholdare’ Approval

Not applicable. There are no

Not appiicable._There areno

Not applicable. Thereare no
~_ incentive programs.

incentive programs.

incentive programs.

5) Remuneration of Management
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Identfy the five (5) members of management who are hot at the same time executive directors and indicate the
total remuneration recelved during the financial year:

Nane of Offiser/Position Totsl Remancratien
Cliff M. Friedman — General Manager Fiscal Year
ending June 30, 2020
I Php 1,700,190.13

E. BOARD COMMITTEES

1) Number of Members, Functions and Responsibliities

Provide details on the number of members of each committee, its functions, key responsibllities and the
power/authority delegated to it by the Board:

No. of Ktombers
Bowte | or Commitae
Commites s | Weesv | indopénde Fumstions | Key Respensibifities Power
1 & | mblagtor | Charter
) Ofwettor (-]
[NED}
Not Not Not Not Not applicable,
applica | applica | applicabl | applicable. There is no
ble. ble. e. There | Thereis no Executive
There | There | Isno Executlve Not agpllcab!e. Not applicable. committee
. \ . \ There is ho Therels no
Executive s no is no Executly | committee . .
. R Executive Executive
Executi | Executi | e . .
\ committee committee
ve ve committ
commi | commi | ee
tiee ttee |
Manual of a.Recommends the | The Audit
Corporate approval of the | Committee
Governance The Board Internal Audlt (lA) | shall observe a
shall establish \
| Charter, which | robust process
an Audit ,
formally defines the | for approving
Committee to
.. | responsibilities, and
enhance  its ,
oversight powers and | recommending
b authority of the A | the
capability over .
the company’s Department, the | appointment,
audit plan of the 1A | re-
financial
. Department, as well | appointment,
reporting,
. 2 as oversees the | removal and
Audit 1] 0 internal . . of f
control implementation fees of the
system the IA Charter; external
> ¢ auditor. The
internal  and
. | b. Through appointment,
external audit
the IA Department, | re-
processes, and .
compliance monitors and | appolntment,
, evaluates the | removal and
with
avolicable adequacy and | fees of the
PP effectiveness of the | external auditor |
laws and .
reeulations corporation’s shall be
g ' internal control | recommended |
system, integrity of | by the Audit
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| financial operating,
and security of
physical and
information assets.
Well-designed

internal control
procedures and
processes that will
provide a system of
checks and balances

shall be In place in
order to: a)
safeguard the
company’s

resources and
ensure thelr
effective utilization,
b} prevent
occurrence of fraud
and other
irregularities, c)

protect the accuracy
and rellability of the
company’s financial
data, and d) ensure
compliance with
applicable rules and
regulations;

C. Oversees

the IA Department
and recommends
the appolntment
and removal of IA
head as well as his
qualifications, and
grounds for
appointment  and
removal. The Audit
Committee shall also
approve the terms
and conditions for
outsourcing internal

audit services, if
applicable;
d. Establishes

and identlfies the
reporting line of the
Internal Audior to
enable him to
properly fulfill his
duties and
responsibilitles. For
this purpose, he
shatl directly report
to the Audit
Committee.

Committee and |

approved by
the Board of
Directors and
the
shareholders.
For the removal
or change in
the external
auditor, the
reasons for
removal or
change shall be
disclosed to the
Commission,
the
shareholders,
and the public
through the
company
website and
other required
disclosures.

The Audit
Committee
shall have a
Charter which
shall include its
responsibility
on assessing
the Integrity
and
independence
of external
auditors and
exercising
effective
oversight to
review and
monitor the
external
auditor's
independence
and objectivity
and the
effectiveness of
the audit
process, taking
into
consideration
relevant
Philippine
professional
and regulatory
requirements.
The Charter
shall also
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e. Monltors
the Management's
responsiveness to
the Internal
Auditor's  findings
and

recommendations;

f. Prior to the
commencement of
the audit, discusses
with the External
Auditor the nature,
scope and expenses
of the audit, and
ensures the proper
coordination If more
than one audit flrm
is involved in the
activity to Identify
proper coverage and
minimize duplication
of efforts;

g Evaluates

and determines the
non-audit work, if
any of the External
Auditor, and
periodically reviews
the non-audit fees
paid to the External
Auditor In relation
to the total fees pald

and the
corporation’s overall |
consultancy

expenses. The Audit
Committee shall
disallow any non-
audit work that will
conflict with the
dutles of an External
Auditor or may pose
a threat to his
independence. The
non-audit work, If
allowed, shall be
disclosed in the
corporation’s Annual
Report and Annual
Corporate

Governance Report.

h. Reviews
and approves the
Interlm and Annual

contain the
Audit
Committee’s
responsibility
on reviewing
and monitoring
the external
auditor’s
suitabllity and
effectlveness
on an annual
basis.




Financial Statement

hefore thelr
submission to the
Board, with
particular focus on
the following
matters:

. Any
change/s In
accounting policles
and practices

° Areas

where a significant
amount of jJudgment
has been exerclsed;

® Significant
adjustments
resulting from the
audit

. Going
concern

assumptions

o Compliance
with accounting
standards;

° Compliance

with tax, legal and
regulatory
requirements;

i Reviews the
recommendations in
the External
Audiltor's
management letter;

jr Performs
oversight functions
over the
corporation’s
Internal and External
Auditors and
ensures thelr
Independence and
unrestricted access
to all records,
properties and
personnel to enable
them to perform
thelr respective
audit functions
taking: Into
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consideratlon
relevant Philippine
professional and
regulatory
requirements;

k.

Coordinates
, monitors and
facllitates
compliance with
laws, rules and
regulations;

I

Recommen
ds to the Board any
appolntment,
reappointment,
removal and fees of
the External Auditor,
duly accredited by
the Commission,
who undertakes an
independent audit
of the corporation,
and provides an
objective assurance
on the manner by
which the financial
statements shall be
prepared and
presented to the
shareholders;

m. Evaluates
on an ongoing basis
existing relations
between and among
businesses and
counterparties to
ensure that all
related parties are
continuously
identified, RPTs are
monltored, the
Related Party
Registry is updated
to capture
subsequent changes
in relationship with
counterparties {from
non-related to
related and vice-
versa);

n. In case of
the absence of a




Related Party
Transactions {RPTs)
Committes,
evaluates all RPTs to
ensure that these
are not undertaken
on more favorable
economic terms
(e.g., price,
commissions,
Interest rates, fees,
tenor, collateral
requirement} to
such related parties
than simllar
transactions with
non-related parties
under similar
circumstances and
that no corporate or
business resources
of the company are
misappropriated or
misapplied;

0. In case of
the absence of an
RPT Committee:

. Determines
any potential
reputational risk
issues that may arise
as a result of or in

connection with
RPTs. In evaluating
RPTs, the

Committee  takes
into account, among

others, the
following:
i. The related

party’s relationship
to the company and
interest In  the

transaction;
2. The
material facts of the
proposed RPT,
including the

proposed aggregate
value of such
transaction;

3. The
benefits to the
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corporation of the

proposed RPT;

4 The
avallability of other
sources of
comparable

products or services;
and

5. An

assessment of
whether the
proposed RPT is
undertaken on
terms and

conditions that are
comparable to the
terms generally
available to an
unrelated party
under certain
clrcumstances. The
company shall have
an effective price
discovery system in
place and exercise
due diligence in
determining a fair
price for RPTS.

. Ensures
that appropriate
disclosure is made,
and/or information
is provided to
regulating and
supervising
authorities relating
to the company's
RPT exposures, and
policies on potential
and/or actual
conflicts of interest.
The disclosure shall
include informaticn
on the approach to
managing material
conflicts of Interest
that are Inconsistent
with such policies,
and conflicts that
could arise as a
result of the
company's affiliation
or transactions with
other related
partles;




. Reports to
the Board of
Directors on a
regular basis, the
status and aggregate
exposure to each
related party, as well
as the total amount
of exposures to all
related parties;

. Ensures the
transactlons with
related parties,
including  write-off
of exposures that
are subject to a
periodic
independent review
or audit process;

. Oversees
the implementation
of the system for
identifying,
monitoring,
measuring,
controlling and
reporting RPTs,
including a periodic
review of RPT
policies and
procedures; and

p- Performs
the functions of the
Board Risk Oversight
Committee, In the
absence thereof;

q. Meets
internally and with
the Board at least
once every quarter
without the
presence of the CEO
or other
Management team
members, and
periodically meets
with the head of the
1A,

r. Assist  the
Board in the
performance of lts
oversight




responsibility for the
financial reporting
process, system of
internal control,
audit process, and

monitoring of
compllance with
applicable laws,
rules and

regulations;

Nominatlon

Remunerati
on

Manual of
Corporate
Governance
and By-laws

Manual of
Corporate
Governance

The
Nomination
Committee
shall prepare,
sign and post
at least fifteen

{15} days
before the
annual

meeting, a list
of not less
than four (4)
nor more than
slx (6}
candidates for
the Board of
Directors for
the ensuing
year.

Establish a
formal and
transparent

procedure for
developing a

policy on
executive
remuneration
and for fixing
the
remuneration
packages of
corporate
officers and
provide

oversight over
remuneration
of senior
management
and other key
personnel
ensuring that
compensation
Is consistent
with the
Corporatlon’s
culture,
strategy _and

It shall pre-screen
and shortlist all
candidates
nominated to
become a member
of the Board of
Directors

Designate amount of
remuneration,
which shall be in
sufficient level to
attract and retain
officers who are
needed to run the
company
successfully.

The Nomination
Committee has
the power to
reject nominees |
to the Board.
Identify
qualified
candidates to
become Board
of Directors.

The
Remuneration
Committee has
the power to
evaluate and
recommend
compensation
packages for
the employees.
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| control

environment, |
[
| Others [ ‘ '
(specify} |
2) Committee Members
(a) Executive Committee
Date of l e Mo. of !eruln::
| ko) I Held Attandad o e
Not Not Not Not
Not applicable. Thereis | applicable. applicable. | applicable, applicable.
Chairman no Executive Therels no Thereis no | Therels no There Is no
committee. Executive Executive Executive Executive
_|_ committee. | committee. | committee. committee.
| Not applicable. Thereis | Not Not Not I Not
no Executive applicable. applicable. | applicable. applicable.
Member (ED) | committee. There is no Thereisne | Therels no There is no
Executive Executive Executive Executive
| committee. | committee. | committee. | committee.
Not applicable. Thereis | Not Not Not Not
no Executive applicable. applicable. | applicable. applicable.
| Member . \ ] . .
(NED) committee, There is no There l.s no | Thereisno There is no
Exacutlve Executive Executive Executive
| committee. | commlitee. | committee. committee. |
| Not applicable. Therels | Not Not Not Not |
no Executive applicable. applicable. | applicable. applicable.
Member {ID) | committee. There is no Thereisno | Therels no There is no
| Executive Executive Executive Executive
| | committee. | committee, committee. | | committee.
Not applicable. Thereis | Not Not | Not Not
no Executive applicable. applicable. | applicable. applicable.
Member committee. There is no Therelis no | Therelis no There is no
[ Executive Executive Executlve ‘ Executive
| — - B committee. | committee. | committee. | committee.
{b} Audit Committee
= i | Dwedt "’“'"“ I Mm ; m: |
Held —— | Cam::ttne
Chairman (ID} Dir. Ben]Jamin Reginald San | Oct. 19, 2020 4 4 | 100% 1yr.
- | Pedro - =l -
Member | Mr. Eric Tan | Oct.19,2020 | 4 4 | 100% | 3yrs.
Member (ED} | Dir. Pablito Gregore | Oct. 19, 2020 4 3 | 7% | 1yr
Member | Mr. Val Constantine Co Oct. 19, 2020 4 3 | 75% | 1y |
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a)

b)

€

d)

(c)

| Member Mr. Thomas Edison San Pedro | Oct. 19, 2020 4 | 3 75% 1yr.
Member Mr. Jose Cruz Oct.19,2020] 4 | 2 50% | 2yrs.
Member (ID) | Dir. Carlo Carpio |Oct.15,2020| 4 | 2 50% 1yr.
Adviser Mr. Jaime Victor Santos | Oct. 18, 2020 4 ] 0 0% 1yr.

Disclose the profile or qualifications of the Audit Committee members.

Dir. Reginald Benjamin V. San Pedro is a member of the Club since March 2012. He is the Chief
Operating Officer of B-Mirk Group of Companies.

Mr. Eric Tan is 2 member of the Club since February 1957. He is a Mutual Fund Representative of
Sun Life Asset Management Co., Inc.

Dir. Pablito M. Gregore is a Club Member since Sept. 11, 2006. He Is the Managing Director of
Colorsteel System Corp.

Mr. Val Constantine Co is a Club Member since September 15,, 2015. He is the IT Head of ICCT
College.

Mr. Thomas Edison San Pedro is a Club Member since September 3, 2016. He Is the Director New
Ventures and Audit of B-Mirk Enterprises Corporation.

Mr. Jose Cruz is a member of the Club since December 1981. He is the Chairman/President of High
End Broadcast Technology Phils., Inc.

Dir. Carlo J. Carpio Is a member of the Club since Nov. 1998. He is the Vice President on Sales &
Marketing of Texicon Agri Ventures. He is currently the Chalrman of the Sports & Games Committee.

Mr. Jalme Victor J. Santos is a Club Member as Proprletary Member since Nov. 10, 2007. He [s the
Managing Director of Jamar Development and Realty Corporation, Dahilayan Agri Development Corporation
and Belen & Sons Commodities Inc. He Is also a Director of Assoclation of Fresh Fish Traders of the
Philippines, Inc.

Describe the Audit Committee’s responsibility relative to the external auditor.

Perform oversight functions over the corporation’s Internal and external auditors. It should ensure that the
Internal and external auditors act Independently from each other, and that both auditors are given
unrestricted access to all records, properties and personnel to enable them to perform their respective audit
functions;

Prior to the commencement of the audlt, discuss with the external auditor the nature, scope and expenses of
the audit, and ensure proper coordination if more than one audit firm is involved in the activity to secure
proper coverage and minimize duplication of efforts;

Review the reports submitted by the internal and external auditors;

Evaluate and determine the non-audit work, If any, of the external auditor, and review pericdically the non-
audit fees paid to the external auditor in relation to thelr significance to the total annual income of the
external auditor and to the corporation’s overall consultancy expenses. The committee shali disallow any
non-audit work that will conflict with his duties as an external auditor or may pose a threat to his
independence. The non-audit work, if allowed, should be disclosed in the corporation’s annual report.

Nomination Committee

] Date of Mo. of o of  Length of
Obice G Mastings | Mestings % Servica in
- ol ! Appoknment I Altended *:
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(] . [ e = " Commitbee
Chalrman Mr. Jose B. Cruz June 27, 3 3 100% 7 yrs.
I 2020
Member | Mr. Rafael Estanislao June 27, 3 3 100% 6 yrs.
2020
Member (ID) Dir. Benjamin Reginald San June 27, 3 3 100% 1yr.
Pedro _— 2020
Member Mr. Nicanor S. Jorge June 27, 3 3 100% 2 yrs.
2020
Member {(ED) Dir. Leopoldo M. Garcia June 27, 3 3 100% 2 yrs.
2020
(d} Remuneration Committee
'
Bate of boof | do.of Service
Office Name Appolntment M::Im m % n the
Commit
e — | | tee
Chalrman (ED) | Dir. Leopoldo Garcia | October 19, 6 6 100% 2
2019
Member Engr. Leopoldo Sanchez October 19, 6 4 67% 2
2019
Member ' Engr. Rustico Nero October 19, 6 5 83% 2 1
2019 |
Member Mr. Leslie Agoncillo October 19, 6 6 100% | 2 ]
2019 |
Member Engr. Mar de Guzman October 19, 6 5 833% 2
. 2019 |
| Member Engr. Armando Perez October 19, 6 5 83% 2 1
[ 2019 - _ |
Member Mr. Larry Abalos October 19, 6 6 100% 1
2019 '
Adviser Atty. Fellpe Culson October 19, 6 5 83% 2 |
2019
(e} Others (Specify)
Provide the same information on all cther committees constituted by the Board of Directors:
Finance Committee
Length of
pa No. of M. of Sorvice in
Office: Name- Meatings | Meotings % the
Appeintroent Held Keonded F———
[
Chalrman (ED} | Dir. Leopoldo M. Garcia October 19, 5 5 100% lyr.
2013
Member Mr. Michael Raymund | October 19, 5 5 100% 4 yrs,
Liamzon 2019
Member Mr. Romeo Avila October 19, 5 5 100% 1yr.
| 2019 i |
Member Mr. Joselito Gutierrez October 19, 5 4 80% 1yr.
2019 _
Member Mr. Eric lllescas | October 19, 5 3 | 60% 3 yrs.
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| - | 2019 | i -
Member I Mr. Marcellno Corpuz October 19, | 5 4 80% 1yr.
| 2019
Member Mr. Donald Joseph Macomb | October 19, 5 4 80% 4 yrs.
| 2018 ,
Member Mr. Gerard Ceballos October 19, | 5 0 0% 4yrs
- 2019 ]

Adviser Mr. Jose Luls Achacoso October 19, ‘ 5 1] 0% 2 yrs.
- __— | B 2019 I
Grounds Committee

BEA
Neo. of No. of
Offize Name mmm Meeoting | Meetings % ’:::'
sHeld | Attonded ‘ Commit
i e

Chairman {ID} Dir. Albert Que October 19, 5 5 100% | 3yrs.

i 2019 . | E— —

Vice Chairman | Dir. Pablito Gregore QOctober 19, 5 1 20% Lyr.

(ED) | I 2018 . | =

Member Mr. Jan Erwin Menguito | October 18, 5 3 60% 3 yrs.

| | 2019 |
Member | Mr. Benjamin Sumulong | October 19, 5 | 2 | 40% | 2yrs.
| 2019 L | —
Member Mr. Danilo Nuesca October 19, 5 ' 5 100% | 1yr.
| 2019 I
Member Mr. Damasus Wong October 19, 5 2 | 40% 2 yrs.
- - 2019 1 : S

Member Mr. Arnold Duay October 19, 5 2 | 40% 2 yrs.
| 2019 |
| Member Mr. Adrian Mauriclo October 19, 5 4 | 80% | 1yr
| | 2019 ,
| Member Mr. Celestino Lee October 19, 5 3 60% | 1yr.

| 2019
Engineering Committee
| | jo
Ne. of e, of
Offiee Noa , I"“ Mosting | Mestings | % ’:::
SHeM | Atsesded Comw
| 1 ]

Chairman (ID} Dir. Albert Que October 19, 4 4 100% | 2 yrs.
- 2019 L |

Vice Chalrman | Dir. Pabllto Gregore Qctober 19, 4 1 25% 1yr.
| (ED) - | 2019
| Member | Mr. Domingo Brion | October 19, 4 2 50% | 5yrs.
| ‘ 2019 ;

Member Mr. Reynaldo Regino ‘ October 19, 4 3 | 75% | Gyrs.
R | || | 2019 = | ! _
Member | Mr. Raymundo Estrada | October 19, 4 1 25% | 2yrs.

2019

54




}_Me_mber Mr. Ramon Bernabe | October 19, 4 2 | 50% | 1yr. ‘
2019 o
i Member Mr. Arnold Duay Octobher 15, 4 1 25% 1yr.
2018 |
Adviser | Engr. Rafael Estanislao October 19, 4 2 ‘ 50% | 4yrs.
‘ | | 2019
Membership Committee
el ‘
Ne. of Ne. of
Offios Name Bataof | pooings | Meetmp | % m
Appointmant Heid Ansemilad Commit
b e
Chairman {ID} | Mr. Benjamin Reginald San | October 19, 8 8 100% | 1yr.
| Pedro 2019 = H_
| Vice Chairman | Mr. Ernesto Severino October 19, 8 7 88% 3yrs.
| 2019 | a
| Member Atty.Marcus Antonius Andaya | October 18, 8 2 25% | 3yrs. |
B 2019 i _
Member Mr. Nicanor Jorge October 19, 8 8 100% | 2 yrs.
| . 209 R . |
Member Mr. Bartolo H. Monforte October 19, 8 4 50% iyr ‘
| 2019
" Member | Mr. John Vincent Sicat October 19, 8 4 50% | 3yrs. |
- - - . —
Member Mr. Julius C. Villaruz October 19, 8 4 | 50% 1yr.
= | . 2019 I B
Adviser | Mr. Jose Antonio Borromeo | October 19, 8 3 | 38% | 6y
- 2019 | | |
Sports & Games Committee
o s ‘ Suta of No.of | Me.of | mﬁ
g | Mo m‘ I e
| Committes
' Chalrman (ED} | Dir. Carlo Carpio October 19, 10 | 10 100% 2
, 2019 N
Vice Chairman 1 Mr. lohn Borromeo October 19, 10 6 60% 1
| 2019 .
| Member LMr. Chino Raymundo October 19, 10 9 | 90% 4
| 2019 : _
Member | Mr. Joaquln Tolentino, Jr. October 19, 10 10 | 100% 1
| | 2019
Member | Mr. Kevin Lachica | October 19, 10 2 20% 1
| 2019
' Member Mr. Ravin Sehwani October 19, 10 3 3-% 1
. . | 2018 = /8 1 -
Member Mr. Andy Hirang October 19, 10 0 | 0% 1
| 2019 _ . | |
Member | Mr. Elmer Espino October 15, 10 | 0 0% 1
_____l - | 2019 B |
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House Committee

Longth of
Dete of Ne. of No. of Servica in
Offiee Neme Mesting | Maestings % the
Appotment | o Leid | Asended Commiste
=
Chairman (ED) | Dir. Albert San Gabriel October 19, 5 5 100% 4 yrs,
2019
Member Mr. Anil Sehwani | October 189, 5 3 60% 3yrs.
2019
Member Mr. Rudy Panaguiton October 19, 5 2 40% 3 yrs.
- 2019
Member Mr. Buenaventura Fulgencio | October 19, 5 5 100% 3yrs.
2019
Member Mr. Daniel Dumlao October 19, 5 5 100% 2 yrs.
2019 _|
Member Mr. Edgar Allan Dy October 19, 5 1 20% 2 yrs.
2019 ] o
Member Mr. Ronaldo Liamzon October 19, 5 3 60% 4 yrs.
2019
Member | Mr. Jose Antonio Borromeo October 19, 5 2 40% 2 yrs.
| 2019

3) Changes in Committee Members

Indicate any changes In committee membership that occurred during the year and the reason for the changes:

Name of Commifiies

Executive

Audit

Nomlnﬁon

Remuneration

Not applicable. There is ho
Executive Committee B
The Board of Directors in their
regular meeting last October 18,
2019 appointed Dir. Reginald
Benjamin San Pedro as Chalrman of

the Audlt Committee to replace Dir.

| Augusto A, Cruz, Jr. —
| The Nomination Committee that was

appointed by the Board of Directors
last June 30, 2018:

1. Dir. Jaime Victor J. Santos

Dir. Virgilio C. Bucat

Mr. Jose B, Cruz

Engr. Rafael Estanislao

Atty. Pablo Gancayco

wihawpM

The Nomination Committee that was
appointed by the Board of Directors
last June 15, 2019:

1.Dir. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. - Chalrman
2.Dir. Leopoldo M. Garcia - Member
3.Mr. Jose B. Cruz - Member

4,Mr. Nicanor S. Jorge - Member
5.Atty. Miguel U. Silos - Member_
Not applicable.
changes in
membership:

the committee

There are no1

Not applicable. There s

Executive Committee

no

Dir. Augusto A. Cruz, Jr. ceased to
hold his positions in view of the
explration of his terms of offlce on
Septemnber 22, 2019.

The practice of the Board is to
appoint the new members of the
Nomination Committee every fiscal
year to comply with the By-laws.

Not _applicable. ~ There are no
changes in  the committee
membership.
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Others (specify) Not applicable.  There are no | Not applicable.  There are no |
changes In the committee | changes In the committee
membership. membership.

4) Work Done and Issues Addressed

Describe the work done by each committee and the significant Issues addressed during the year.

Name of Committee

Waerk Dene

Issues Addressed

Executive

Not applicable. There Is no

Executive Committee

Not applicable. There is ho

Executive Committee

Audit

| 1.Review payables, inventory, bank

reconciliation and other important
issues as required by the Board.

2.Proposed the review and
improvement on Procurement/Bids
and Awards policy

Issues on improper process on
Purchases leading to improper
allocation of budget

Conflict of Interests between
Committee Chairman

Nomination

Screening and Posting of the
candidates for the election of the
Board of Directors.

There were no Issues addressed.

Remuneratlion

Finance

Implemented skeletal force and
reduced manpower under Yukon
Agency .

Financial and Budget Plan, auction of
delinquent shares of stock, In-house
development of the Membership
and Registration system and
proposal for assessment during the
guarantine period.

There were no Issues addressed.

There were no issues addressed.

Grounds

Construction of Riprap and Trimming
of Trees at North Course Hole #14
Dredging of lagoon at North Course
Hole #8 _
Expansion of Pitching Green {South
Course)

Dredging of Silt (North Course Hole
#9)

Bunker Improvement at South
Course - Silica Sand to Crushed
Marble

Repair of Riprap Wall Slope
Widening of Pond at Lagoon #5
South Course

Sodding of Zoysia Grass at South
Course

Carabao Grass transferred to Rough
Areas
Secondary Cut on Fairways

Construction

Engineering &

Constructlon of New Starter House
at the North Course

Installation of New Turbine Pumps
and Variable Frequency Device at
South Course

Construction of Garbage Trap at the
Siltation Pond at South Course
Constructlon of Riprap by DPWH
Repair of Perimeter Walls

Construction of Gabion Filter at
South Course Pump Room

Repair of Green Slate at South
Course
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[ Membership

Interview  and
applicants for membership and
acted on several complaints of
members.

screening  of

There were no issues addressed.

Sports & Games

| pon Celso Tuason Tournament,

several in-house and outside
tournaments and private
tournaments. Training of caddies
and umbrella girls. Revislon of golf

rules.

There were no issues addressed.

House

| Replacement of Roof at the Main

Clubhouse, renovation of the Men's
Locker in the North Clubhouse and
repainting of facilities. Renovation
of the satellite kitchen at the Main
Clubhouse.

There were no issues addressed.

5) Committee Program

|

Provide a list of programs that each committee plans to undertake to address relevant [ssues in the improvement
or enforcement of effective governance for the coming year.

lmum

Phanned Pregrams

Issues to be Addressed

Executive

Audit

Nomination

Not applicable. There is no
Executive Committee

1 Review and improve the
Election Process

2. Refinement of  Club’s
Organizational Structure thru the
review of existing Job Descriptions
Not applicable. No planned
grogram.

Not applicable. There is no
Executive Committee

Absence of Standard Operating
Procedures of each Department
engaged in the Electlon Process

Alignment of Duties and
responsibilitles of each employee
within the organization

None

Remuneration

Conduct seminar on 55 for
Supervisors and Dept. Managers

Finance

Grounds

implementation of the Financial and
Business Plan, Increase In the market
value of shares of stock and auction
of delinquent shares of stock.

Phase 2 of?prapping of the sides of |

the lagoon near Hole # 10 and bridge
gate

None

Construction

Engineering &

Installation of filter screen at Holes #
12 & 13 Lagoons in the South
Course, dredging of lagoons in Holes
# 8, 9 In the North Course, planting
of Indian Tree along the perimeter
fence and instaflation of gabion filter
in the South Course.

None

Membership

3ports & Games

Increase In the market value of
shares of stock and updating of
membership profile

Increase participation in In-house
tournaments and increase [n green

None

Process of submission of scores
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fee income. Live scoring system for
both Club and other tournaments.
Exclusive tournaments in the future
if IATF allows

House Renovation of swimming pool, ladies = None

locker and locker hallway. Extenslon
of the Men’s locker in the Main
Clubhouse, construction of
additional functlon rooms at the
view deck, replacement of tile in the
main clubhouse and construction of
additional parking space for golf
| carts.

F. RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

1) Disclose the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

{d)

{e)

overall risk management phllosophy of the company;

Identify and assess the business risks as early as possible, prioritize and control the probability and/or impact
of the event.

A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the risk management system and
commenting on the adequacy thereof;

The effectiveness of the risk management system of the Club is usually reviewed at the beginning of the term
of the Board of Directors in the month of Sept. The risk management system is adequate.

Period covered by the review;
The period covered is for a period of twelve {12) months from Sept. 2019.

How often the risk management system is reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing its effectiveness;
and

The risk management system is reviewed regularly by the Audit Committee with the Internal Auditors. The
assessment on its effectiveness is upon evaluation and recommendation of the Audit Committee

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Not applicable. There is regular review,

2) Risk Policy

(a) Company

Give a general description of the company’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s
covered by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the policy for each kind
of risk:

| Risk Exposure _ Risk Management Policy | Objective i
Fire Assets are covered by Fire To mitlgate the impact of losses.
Insurance. | |
Typhoon damage The Financial and Budget Plan | To ensure funds are available in

provides for a yearly calamity | case of damage by typhoon. |
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| fund.
Theft | Security guards are posted in
strategic areas and CCTV cameras | Deterrent for theft and safeguard
are installed. Insurance coverage | of assets.
for money, payroll and rotibery. | -
{b) Group

Give a general description of the Group’s risk management policy, setting out and assessing the risk/s covered
by the system (ranked according to priority), along with the objective behind the pollcy for each kind of risk:

Risk Exposure

[ Golf related injuries

_D_irectors.

| Risk Management Policy

| Objective |

| The Club is covered by
comprehensive general liability
Insurance.

| Cases flled agalnst the | The Board of Directors are
Club and the Board of | covered by the Directors Liabillty

| Insurance

_‘

{c) Minority Shareholders

To mitigate the Impact of losses.

To cover the legal expenses and
possible claims.

Indicate the principal risk of the exercise of controlling shareholders’ voting power.

Rk te Minority Sharsholdars

Not applicable. There are no minorlty shareholders and no controlling shareholders.

3) Control System Set Up

(a) Company
Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:
Risk Expossire Risk Asssssmeant | pisk Mesmgement and Costrol
[Manitoring and Messuseoent Proogss) | (Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken) |
Fire | Fire insurance is updated, and The coverage of the fire insurance Is
P ! inspected and assessed by the
coverage regularly reviewed. )
| h insurance comgany
Typhoon damage The amount of Php 5 Million is
E:';":Lt:n‘:;"r‘:agl P;::I'i‘:e in the | located In the Budget for the
_ | € Y il Calamity Fund.
Theft | The deployment of the security . .

R The Security Committee meets every
guards Is reviewed regu_larly, ccrv month to assess the effectiveness of
cameras are working, and
. . the security
insurance is updated.

(b) Group



Briefly describe the control systems set up to assess, manage and control the main issue/s faced by the
company:

Risic Assessrent Risk Management and Contrel
I ] (Monitoring and Messwement Process) | (Structures, Procedures, Actions Taken)
Golf related Injuries Documentary  reguirements on
claiming for reimbursement should
be comulied with.

Comprehensive general [liabllity
fnsurance Is updated.

Cases filed against
the Club and the
Board of Directors,

The Board of Directors are covered | To cover the legal expenses and
by the Directors Liability Insurance | possible claims.

(c) Committee

Identify the committee or any other body of corporate governance in charge of laying down and supervising
these control mechanisms, and give details of its functions:

| Cammbttoe/Unit | Control Mechanism Detallo of s Functions
Provide oversight over
Management's activities in
managing credit, market,
The Audit Committee reviews | liquidity, operational, legal and
the Internal controls of the | other risks of the corporation.

Audit Committee Club and assesses the | This function shall include
Improvements that need to be | regular receipt from
Imposed. Management of information

on risk exposures and risk
management activities;

a. Oversees the protection
of all Members,
Employees and Guests.
The  Security committee b. Ensures protection of all

reviews the adeguacy of the company assets
Security Committee security guards deployed in c. Ensures implementation
the premises and the security of all traffic and security
procedure. rules.
d. Recommends approval of
Security contract.

G. INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROL

1) Internal Control System
Disclose the following information pertaining to the internal control system of the company:
(a} Explain how the internal control system Is defined for the company;

Auditing activities play an essentlal and useful role in the conduct of successful operations. The
policies/guidelines/procedures developed by the Company such as By-laws, Manual of Corporate
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2)

(b)

{c)

(d)

(e)

Governance, Code of Conduct, Operations Manual and Organlzational Structure are independently and
regularly reviewed and evaluated not only to provide reascnable assurance that the controls are operating
effectively but also to Improve the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance process In the
financial, administrative, and operational activities of the enterprise, which supplies management personnel
at all levels with information to assist in their attainment of objectives for which they are responsible.

Two (2} In-house auditors are performing the Internal audit functions of the Club who are directly reporting
to the Audlit Committee.

A statement that the directors have reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control system and whether
they consider them effective and adequate;

As mandated by the Manual of Corporate Governance, the Board of Directors appointed the members of the
Audit Committee for the fiscal year 2020. The Audit Committee is primarily responsible in assisting the Board
In the perfermance of its oversight responsibility and monitors compliance with the system of internal
controls and policles of the Club. Through the assistance of the Internal Audit Department the Board of
Directors through the Audit Committee ensures the effectiveness and adequacy of the Internal control
system.

Period covered by the review;
Fiscal year June 30, 2020.

How often Internal controls are reviewed and the directors’ criteria for assessing the effectiveness of the
internal control system; and

To achleve the effectiveness of the internal control system, the Audit Committee meets once a month to
review and evaluate the audit and financial reports as well as the over-all operations of the Club. The report
of the Audit Committee Is discussed, reviewed and evaluated in the Board Meeting.

Where no review was conducted during the year, an explanation why not.

Not applicable. There is regular review of internal controls.

Internal Audit

(a)

Role, Scope and Internal Audit Function

Give a general description of the role, scope of internal audit work and other details of the internal audit
function.

Indlullwh:b.r Neme of Chief
Rate 9 — internal Reportdiag
- internel Andit AﬂnFrll’:mlll procass
JI= — Il ==l Fumetion — _ {
Responsible for the Maria Cristina Reports directly
administration  of Odon to Audit
the internal audit Committee to
activity, ensure and
maintain
. | Responsible for the . independence of
Head, Internal Audit internal audit plans, In-house Auditor internal audit
the conduct of function.
internal audits, and
the internal audit
reports Issued
within the |
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segment(s) where
responsibillty  has
been assigned.

Performs routine to Rachel Ann Reports directly |
Internal Audit | complex  internal . Magsakay to the Head of
Assistant audit work as may In-house Auditor Internal Audit

be assizned. |

{b) Do the appointment and/or removal of the Internal Audltor or the accounting fauditing firm or corporation to
which the internal audit function Is outsourced require the approval of the audit committee?

Yes. All appointment and/or removal whether outsourced or in-house requires the recommendation of the
Audlt Committee and approval of the Board.

{c) Discuss the Internal auditor's reporting relationship with the audit committee. Does the internal auditor have
direct and unfettered access to the board of directors and the audit committee and to all records, properties
and personnel?

The Head of Internal Audit, together with the Internal Audlt Assistant reports regularly to the Audit
Committee on the Internal audit activity’s purpose, authority, responsibility, and performance relative to Its
plan. Reporting also includes significant risk exposures and control Issues, [tems related to management’s
process of risk management, control and governance, management’s progress in addressing the Issues, any
areas where management has accepted a level of residual risk that may be unacceptable to the organlzation,
and other matters needed or requested by the board.

All concerns and correspondences of the Internal Audit Department are coursed through Initially to the Audit
Committee and will be eventually elevated to the board of directors. Yes, the Internal Audit Department has a
direct and unfettered access to the board of directors (which will be coursed through first to the Audit
Committee) and to all records, properties and personnel.

(d) Resignation, Re-assignment and Reasons

Disclose any resignation/s or re-assignment of the internal audit staff (including those employed by the third-
party auditing firm) and the reason/s for them.

Nome of Audit Svaff Reasan
Not Applicable Not Applicable

{e) Progress against Plans, Issues, Findings and Examination Trends

State the internal audit’s progress against plans, significant issues, significant findings and examination
trends.

The Internal Audit Department has review significant processes

related to the Club’s overall operations including compliance to

Progress Agelrst Plens established policies and procedures of the Company.

Recommendations on control mechanisms were made in

relation to review of irocesses were made.

: g There were no significant issues that had a materlal effect on
the Company’s financial statements and its operations.

There were no significant issues that had a material effect on

the Company's financial statements and its operations.

Sxacnination Frends | Regular. Generally adequate and effective internal control

[The relationship among progress, plans, issues and findings should be viewed as an internal control review

§ "|ssues” are compliance matters that arise from adopting different interpretations.
7 “Findings” are those with concrete basls under the company’s policles and rules.
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{f}

{&)

cycle which involves the following step-by-step activities:
1) Preparatlon of an audit plan Inclusive of a timeline and milestones;
2) Conduct of examination based on the plan;
3) Evaluation of the progress in the implementation of the plan;
4} Documentation of issues and findings as a result of the examination;
5) Determinatlon of the pervasive issues and findings (“examination trends”) based on single year
result and/or year-to-year resuits;
6) Conduct of the foregolng procedures on a regular basls.)

Audit Control Policies and Procedures

Disclose all Internal audit controls, policies and procedures that have been established by the company and
the result of an assessment as to whether the established controls, policies and procedures have been
implemented under the column “Implementation.”

Peficies & Pracedures implementation

Recruitment process Implemented. Generally adequate
| Procurement Policy for ftems subject to Bidding | In Progress

Mechanisms and Safeguards

State the mechanism established by the company to safeguard the independence of the auditors, financial
analysts, investment banks and rating agencies (example, restrictions on trading in the company’s shares and
imposition of internal approval procedures for these transactions, limitation on the non-audit services that an
external auditor may provide to the company}):

Audiors
{internal and External)
Internal Audit —

- all internal auditors
are expected to abide
by The Institute of
Internal Auditors’ Code
of Ethics, specifically
Including the four
principles of Integrity,
Objectivity,
Confidentiality, and
Competency as set out
in the Code.

- In the course of the
assignments, internal
auditors will be in | Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
contact with personnel
at all levels of authority
and position. At all
times independence in
mental attitude is to be |
maintained.  Reports
resulting from their
efforts should always
contain full and
unbiased disclosure of
all but minor audit
findings.

- they should guard
against any conduct or

Flaancial Analysts Invmsnent Baxks Reting Agencles
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mannerisms that
present an impression
that they consider
themselves a "home
office expert" sent to
check on employees in
the field.

External Auditors

- reviews and confirms
the independence of
the external auditors
by obtaining
statements from the
auditors on
relationships between
the auditors and the
Company, including
non-audit services, and
discusses the
relationship with the
auditors

(h} State the officers (preferably the Chalrman and the CEO) who will have to attest to the company’s full
compliance with the SEC Code of Corporate Governance. Such conflrmation must state that all directors, officers
and employees of the company have been given proper instruction on their respective duties as mandated by
the Code and that Internal mechanisms are in place to ensure that compliance

BOARD OF DIRECTORS -
| President 'Mr. Wilfredo Manahan - j
| Vice President Mr. Albert San Gabriel .
. Treasurer Mr. Leopoldo Garcia _
| Director - independent Mr. Benjamin Reginald San Pedro
Director - Independent | Mr. Carlo Carplo |
Director — Independent | Mr. Albert Que !
| Director | Mr. Pablito Gregore -
| Director | Atty. Pope Solls ‘
Director B | Mr. Pablito Gregore B
AUDIT COMMITTEE
Chairman | Dir. Benjamin Reginald San Pedro |
Member Mr. Eric Tan
| Member Dir. Pablito Gregore .
| Member Mr. Val Constantine Co '
. Member | Mr. Thomas Edison San Pedro
| Member | Mr.JoseCruz -
Member | Dir. Carlo Carpio —
Adviser Mr. Jaime Victor Santos |

H. ROLE OF STAKEHOLDERS

1) Disclose the company’s policy and activities relative to the following:
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Policy

Activitles

The Vision of the Club - Valley Golf,

| Golf

tournaments mong_
members and varlous clubs within
Valley Golf, Bingo social and

the premier golf and country club | raffle, Members and Guests

Customers' welfare providing unparalleled recreational | tournament (Don Celso and
experience to our members their Founders’ Cup Tournament) and

famllies and guests. participation In Qutside

tournaments. Providing varlety of

meny from our F &B

Concessionaires. 1|

The Bids and Awards Committee is in Bidding, Announcement thru

Supplier/contractor selection
practice

charge of awarding major contracts.
Other suppliers are accredited, and
regular canvass is conducted.

publication and circulars and
canvassing.

Environmentally friendly value-
chain

All supplies are non-toxic and
environmentally friendly.

Elimination of the use of plastic,
Styrofoam, harsh chemicals, use
of materials recovery facility and
segregation of waste materials.

Community interaction

Part of the proceeds from the
Bingo/Raffle is donated to charitable
institutions designated by DSWD of
Antlpolo Clty.

School supplies, toiletries, food
stuff and clothes are donated to
Children in conflict with the law,
Kanlungan ng Kabataan Village,
Bahay Kalinga and Senior
Citizen/PWD

Anti-corruption programmes and
procedures?

The Club has Internal Control policies
that strictly safeguard company
assets against corruption. There is
check and balance in the operating
procedures. We have an
Independent Internal and External

| Auditors.

The Internal Controls and
Operating Procedures are
regularly reviewed by the internal
and External Auditors.
Modifications and improvement
are adopted to safeguard the
assets.

Safeguarding creditors' rights

Valley Golf complies with the credit
terms of the suppliers and other
creditors.

The accounting  operational
procedure provides for the aging
and subsidiary ledgers of the
creditors for proper monltoring of
credit terms and schedule of

payment.

2} Does the company have a separate corporate responsibllity (CR) report/section or sustainability report/section?

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have a separate corporate responsibility {CR) report/sectlon or sustainability

report/section.

3) Performance-enhancing mechanisms for employee participation.

{a) What are the company’s policy for its employees’ safety, health, and welfare?

Valley Golf provides for the health card (HMO) of the employees with a2 maximum limit of P90,000 per year,
Annual medical checkup, a Clinic with a full time Nurse and available Physiclan once a week. The employees
are covered by a group life insurance. The employees assigned to the Engineering Dept. are provided with
safety gears, safety shoes and raincoats and boots.

(b) Show data relating to health, safety and welfare of its employees.

There was no work related accident during the fiscal year 2020.
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{c) State the company’s training and development programmes for Its employees. Show the data.

a. The Following employees attended the following seminars

Employars Confiderstion of the

Seminar Conducted by Philippines Faderation of Fres Workers (FFW)
Date July 8-10, 2019 23-5ep-18 September 30 to October 3, 2019
5";":3:::’;’:: dﬂﬂ;ﬂm’f:ﬁ” Philppine Red Cross' Standard First Ald
Tite Thematic Workshop on Mediation and Grievance Handling Seminar ond Baslc Life Support (CPR with AED
Dispute Settiement) Training)
Attandess: - Cathy Vidallon - fluth Villanueva - Sarah Baladbad
- Albert Cenon - Peter Dones - Ruth Villanueva
- Richard Aclbes - Placido Barrozo - Jhunhill Array
- Relko Sampan - Jhunhlll Array - Noli Cabutin
- Juancho Fernandez - Albert Cenon
- Roger Bagaln - Mark Joker Javier
- Rommel Vargas - Relko Sampan
- Marcialito Bagas - Princess Reyes
- Dennis Villacorte - Jeserell Aning {SG)
- Albert Cenon - H-Jay Carrasco {5G}
- E] Fermen Fernandez (Annlx)
= Jan Kyle Sajorda {Annix}
= Calvin ljan {lay-I's)
- Rogello Salula jr. {Caddie}
- Marlssa Tobes (Yukon)
Emplayars Confideration of tha Employers Confideration of tha Employers Confiderstion of tha
Seminar Conducted by Philippines Phillppines Philipplnes
Data September 26-27, 2019 November 18-19, 2020 November 21-22, 2019
Strengthening Blpartite Refations at the Strengthening Bipartite Relations at the
et N:tqlanal a:d ;.arerpm Leveis (3rd mx’;::s:’;::‘:ﬂczzmmiﬂ Na:':mai a:d E’:laterpn'se Levels { 4th
Themetic Workshop on Medlotion ond Side) Thematic Workshop on Mediation ond
Dispute Settiement } Dispute Settlement )
Attendeas: - Cathy Vidallon « Cathy vidallon - Cathy Vidallon
- Albert Cenon - Lenle Lopez - Albert Cenon
- Richard Aclbes - Lanla Aycardo - Richard Acibes
= Ruth Villanueva - Ruth Villanueva - Ruth Villanueva
- Ma. Cristina Odon - Ma. Cristina Qdon
-Sarah Baladbad - Sarah Baladbad
- Rachel Magsakay
- Mary Ann Verague
- Dassa Halbay
- Alex Pedraza
- Raggle Caponpon
- Danllo Ramas
- Jhunhill Array
= Paulo Tuyay
- Mark Joker Javier
- Juancho Fernandez
- Dennls Villacorte

b. Ms. Mellanie Aycardo attended the Seminar on Servsafe Certification Program on Sept. 19 ~20, 2019
conducted by Enderun Colleges.

c. Ms. Marla Cristina Odon attended the Seminar on Computer Assisted Auditing and Basic Admin
Remedles of Taxpayers under Tax Audit conducted by PICPA last September and December 2019.
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d. Engr. Shon Babon attended the Construction and Occupational Safety and Health Training last Oct.
19-20 and 26-27, 2019

{d) State the company’s reward/compensation policy that accounts for the performance of the company beyond
short-term financial measures

The rank and file employees are covered by CBA. The Supervisors are subject to annual performance
evaluation that Is the basls of the salary increase. The Club recently approved Organizational Improvement
Program that covers the salary administration guldelines, Job evaluation and classification and performance

appralsal.

4)

corruption) and unethical behaviour? Explain how employees are protected from retaliation.

What are the company's procedures for handling complaints by employees concerning illegal (including

Complaints of employees covered by the CBA concerning Management and other employees are submitted
to the HR/Admin. The process stated In the Grievance procedure of the CBA Is belng followed. Complaints
agalnst club members are submitted to the General Manager whereln the member Is glven the chance to
reply In writing regarding the Incident. The documents are submitted to the Membership Committee for
discussion and recommendation Is made to the Board of Directors for proper action. Management makes
sure that employees are protected from retaliation.

1) Ownership Structure

DISCLOSURE AND TRANSPARENCY

(a) Holding 5% shareholding or more
Shareholder - Numker of Shares Percent Beneficiat Cwner
Not applicable. There | Not applicable. There | Not applicable. There | Not applicable. There
s no shareholder | Is no shareholder |is no shareholder | is no  shareholder
holding 5% or more | holding 5% or more | holding 5% or more holding 5% or more
shares. shares. shares. shares.
| |
Number of Wof |
e ooy Nupwher of Disact shares |  irdirect shares / Theough Capital |
o A0 i __(nemeofrecprdownac} | Stock |
Not applicable. Not applicable. Not applicable. [
There is no There is no There is no
shareholder holding shareholder holding shareholder holding
5% or more shares. 5% or more shares. 5% or more shares.
I — =
TOTAL | B -
2) Does the Annual Report disclose the following:
Key risks Yes o
Corporate cblectives Yes
FInancial parformance indicators Yes
Non-financlal performance Indicators Yes
o Not applicable.
Dividend pollcy d;:as"::tGI:sI:e
dividends.
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Not applicabla.
Valley Golf
Detalls of whistle-blowing policy does not have
a whistle-
blowlns rolicy.
Blographical detalls (at least age, qualifications, date of first appolntment, relevant exparience, and any ather Yes
directorships of listed companles) of directors/commissloners
Tralning and/er continuing aducation programma attanded by each director/commissioner Yas
Number of board of directors/commissioners meetings held during the year Yes
Attendance detalls of each director/commissioner In respect of meetings held | Yes
= = B | Not applicable.
The CEQ and
. the Board of
Detalls of remuneration of the CEO and each member of the board of directars/commissioners Directors does
not recelve
remuneration |

Should the Annual Report not disclose any of the above, please Indicate the reason for the non-
disclosure,

3) External Auditor’s fee

Name of auditor Audit Fea : Nen-audit Fee
Syclp Gorres Velayo & Co. P400,000 plus vat and out of P135,000 plus vat and out of
pocket expenses _pocket expenses

4) Medium of Communication
List down the mode/s of communication that the company is using for disseminating information.

Website

Short Messaging System {SMS)

Email

Circulars

Announcement in the Bulletin Boards
Tarpaulin

TV Monitors

Personal Calls

S@ e an g

5) Date of release of audited financial report: August 29, 2020
6) Company Website

Does the company have a webslte disclosing up-to-date information about the following?

Business operations Yes
Flnancm:tementslrepnru (current and prlnrv:rs) I Yoa B
Materials provided In briefings to analysts and media . h( ]
Shareholding structure . Yes -
Group oorpora:e structure N o Yas
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| Downipadable annual report Yas

Notice of AGM and/or EGM Yes

Company's constltution {company’s by-laws, memorandum and articles of association) Yas

Should any of the foregoing Information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

7) Disclosure of RPT

. T | Raletianshig [ Nature Ve
The Malntenance Crew | Ms. Sylvia Carplo is the = Maintenance Crew

service contractor of | wife of Director Carlo ' service contractor. P5,743,200.00
Valley Golf is Yukon | Carplo.

General Manpower

Services wherein the

General Manager Is Ms.
Sylvia Carpio.

When RPTs are Involved, what processes are in place to address them in the manner that will safeguard the
interest of the company and in particular of its minority shareholders and other stakeholders?

Dir. Carpio have no management control or participation over Yukon General Manpower Services and was
not Involved in the decislon of Valley Golf management to enter Into business with said company. The
engagement of manpower services was bidded out and all procedures of the procurement policy was followed by
the Bids and Awards Policy. Yukon General Manpower Services submitted the lowest bid and complied with the
requirements of the BAC.

J. RIGHTS OF STOCKHOLDERS
1) Right to participate effectively In and vote In Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meetings

(a} Quorum

Give detalls on the quorum required to convene the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting as set forth In its
By-laws.

A quorum at any meeting shall consist of a majority of
stockholders, represented in person or by proxy, and a
maority of such quorum shall decide any question that
may come before the meeting, except in cases where a
different number of votes is required by law.

(b) System Used to Approve Corporate Acts

Explain the system used to approve corporate acts.

= — . A N |
Swstem Used | Procurement, Bids and Awards Policy
| The ImplementIng Rules and Regulation on procurement is in line with Valley
Golf's commitment to adhere to the Principles of Transparency,
Desasiphion Competitiveness, Streamlined procurement, System of accountability and
Monitoring.

{c) Stockholders’ Rights
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List any Stockholders’ Rights concerning Annual/Speclal Stockhclders’ Meeting that differ from those lald

down In the Corporatlon Code.
Sechholtiers’ Rights under Steckholders’ Rights aat in
The Corporation Code The Corporatien Code

Not applicable. The Stockholders rights are

consistent with the Corporatlon Code.

Not applicable. The Stockholders rights are
consistent with the Corporation Code.

Dividends

Peciaration Date

Record Date

Payment Date

not i

Not applicable. Valley Golf does

ssue dividends,

Not applicable. Valley Golf does
not issue dividends.

Not applicable. Valley Golf does
not issue dividends.

{d) Stockholders' Participation

1. State, If any, the measures adopted to promote stockholder participation in the Annual/Special
Stockholders’ Meeting, including the procedure on how stockholders and other parties interested may
communicate directly with the Chairman of the Board, individual directors or board committees. Include
in the discussion the steps the Board has taken to solicit and understand the views of the stockholders as
well as procedures for putting forward proposals at stockholders’ meetings.

Measures Adepted

Carmnanicetion Procedure

Agenda, matters for discusslon, Minutes of
previous years Stockholders’, Summary of
Resolutions of the Board of Directors for the
fiscal year and the list of Candidates for the
Board of Directors and the Annual Report
were sent to the Stockholders.

Envelopes containing the documents were
sent thru courler and mail. Notices of the
Stockholders’ Meeting were posted on the
Website, Bulletin Board and Tarpaulin.

2. State the company policy of asking shareholders to actively participate in corporate decisions regarding:

Amendments to the company’s constitution

The proposed amendments in the By-laws and the explanations are circularized to the Stockholders

and posted In the Bulletin Board, Website and TV Monitor.

In order particlpate In corporate

decislons, proposed amendments are included In the ballots distributed during the Stockholders’

Meeting for the stockholders to vote.

Authorizatlon of additional shares

Not applicable, no request for authorization for additlonal shares.

Transfer of all or substantially all assets, which in effect results in the sale of the company

Not applicable. There is no transfer of all or substantially all assets of the Club.

3. Does the company observe a minimum of 21 business days for giving out of notices to the AGM where

items to be resolved by shareholders are taken up?

b. Date of the Annual/Speclal Stockholders’ Meeting:

Date of sending out notices:

August 19, 2019

September 22, 2019

4. State, if any, questions and answers during the Annual/Special Stackholders’ Meeting.
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The Secretary certified that, based on the reglster of attendees and proxies as tabulated by the Stock
Transfer Agent, out of the total 1,594 shares representing the outstanding capital stock of the Club,
holders of a total of 839 shares of stock were present in person or by proxy representing an
attendance of 52.60%. Accordingly, the Secretary certified that a quorum existed for the transaction
of the business at hand.

At this juncture, Atty. Ricardo Fernandez raised a point of order. He questioned the supposed
presence of quorum since a number of proxyholders are not present at the meeting. The Corporate
Secretary explained that under the terms of the proxy earlier submitted by the proxyholders, the
member who signed the proxy authorized the chairman of the meeting to vote on behalf of the
member in the absence of the appointed proxy on all matters stated in the agenda except the
election of directors. After further discussion and the matter belng clarified, the meeting proceeded.

Mr. Ferlu Sudarlo asked what the Club plans to do after the Supreme Court decision came out
invalidating the VAT imposed by the BIR on the members’ monthly dues. The Chairman replied that
the BIR has yet to issue the pertinent regulations but efforts will be exerted to make sure that VAT
paid by the Club will be recovered through appropriate tax credits. The Chairman noted though that
senior members of the Club have not been charged VAT on their monthly dues.

A request was then made on the floor to revert golf cart rental being charged seniors back to #350
from the new rate of #700. The Chairman noted the request and said that he will endorse the matter
to the incoming board of directors.

Ms. Clelo Fregil on the procedure to sanction erring members

Ms. Fregil asked why it takes the Club months hefore an erring member is penalized. She cited the
case of a lady member who was caught cheating on her scorecard who was able play several more
tournaments before her case was decided. Dir. Manahan explained the existing procedure before
disciplinary action can be imposed including giving the member concerned due process. Also, the
Membership Committee meets only once a month and its recommendation is submitted for
approval of the Board which also meets once a month.

The Chairman noted the valid concern raised and undertook to refer the matter to the next board
for study on how to speed up disciplinary action process.

Mr. Renato Balibag request for 100% green fee discount for PASG

Mr. Balibag asked the Chairman to completely waive the green fees (from just 50% discount) being
charged participants in the PASG which the Club and its senior members are going to host the
following month. While the Club’s associatlon of senior members receive subsidy from the Club, this
is hardly enough consldering that there are 4 senlor tournaments held every year and these are
usually well attended. The senior’s funds will be heavily depleted if they are going to foot the 50%
green fee. He also requested that the senior’s association be allowed to choose who among its
members will represent the Club in intra-club senior tournaments. The Chalrman noted the requests
and promised to refer the matter to the next board for immediate action.

5. Result of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting’s Resolutions

= Resolnion Aoy | Disserting Abstaining
Approval of the

Minutes of the Annual
Meeting Held on 23 Approved None None
September 2018

Chairman’s and

Approved None None
Treasurer’s Report Pe
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Ratification of Prlor
Acts of the Board of
Directors and
Management

: Appolntment of |
| External Auditor Sycip '
Gorres Velayo & Co.

Approved

Approved

None

None

None

6. Date of publishing of the result of the votes taken durlng the most recent AGM for al! resolutlons:

September 22, 2019

(e) Modificatlons

State, if any, the modifications made in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting regulations during the most
recent year and the reason for such modification:

Madificaslons

regulations.

{f) Stockholders’ Attendance

Reason for Modification
Not applicable, there is no modification of the = Not applicable, there is no modification of the |

regulations.

() Details of Attendance in the Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting Held:

Rames of Board
members /
Officers pressnt
Jaime Victor J.
Santos

Albert DG. San
Gabriel

Wilfredo G.
Manahan

Leopoldo M.
Garcia

Virgilio C. Bucat

Viodag Prosudare
Msging hanls, 98T,

Sept. 22 | By poll
2019

% of 6H
Attanding
| In Person

1.50%

Augusto A.
Cruz, Jr.

% of
BH in
Proxy

51.13%

Total % of $H

52.63%

Jeremy Z.
Parulan

Albert G. Que

Ronald O. Solis

Rio Sesinando
_| E. Venturanza
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(i) Does the company appoint an independent party (inspectors) to count and/or validate the votes at the
ASM/SSMs?

Valley Goif appoints the Internal Auditors ta count the votes and with the External Auditors as observers.

(i) Do the company’s common shares carry one vote for one share? If not, disclose and give reasons for any
divergence Lo this standard. Where the company has more than one class of shares, describe the voting
rights attached to each class of shares.

Each common share carries three {3) votes in the election of directors since every year there are three (3)
directors to be elected. In the voting for the amendment of the Articles and By-laws, one (1) common
share s entitled to one (1) vote. Valley Golf has common shares only.

(g} Proxy Voting Policles

State the policies followed by the company regarding proxy voting in the Annual/Special Stockholders’
Meeting.

Company’s Palhsies

Every stockholder is entitled to vote at any meeting of
stockhoiders and may so vote by proxy, provided that the
proxy shall have been appointed by the stockholder himself or
by his duly authorized attorney-in-fact in an official
Execution and acceptance of proxles | numbered proxy form issued by the Club. No other proxy
form shall be recognized by the Club.” (Section 58 of the
Corporation Code and Article Ill, Section 5 of our Club's By-
Laws);

Notary Proxies are not required to be notarized.

Stockholders of good standing who wish to be represented by
an ottorney-in-foct must submit their duly notarized Special
Power of Attorney [SPA) on or before 5 p.m. of August 15,
2018, No cancellgtion or revocation of the SPA or substitution

of the attorney-in-foct can be done after 5 p.m. of August 15,
Submission of Proxy 2018.
Stockholders who are not represented by an ottorney-in-fact
must submit their proxles on or before 5 p.m. of September
18, 2019. No cancellation or revocatlon or replacement of
proxies shall be allowed after September 18, 2019. |
Several Proxies The latest proxy submitted is considered valld. _
All previous proxies are Invalid and of no force and effect for |
o the 2017elections (SEC Memorandum Circular No. 5, Serles of
Validity of Proxy 1996, dated August 6, 1996);
Proxles executed abroad Original coples of the proxy must be submitted.
Invalidated Proxy Invalidated proxies are not entitled to vote.
Proxies submitted and on file with the COMELEC may be
s verified by any stockholder, and any objection to sald
Validation of Proxy proxies must be registered with the COMELEC within the
verification period.
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I i

i Violation of Proxy

| Violation of proxy is subject to resolution of the COMELEC.

(h} Sending of Notices

(n

{

State the company’s policles and procedure on the sending of notices of Annual/Special Stockholders

Meeting.

Polisies

Notices of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting must
be sent to the Stockholders at least 30 days
before the Stockholders’ meeting.

’

Procedurs

The Club complies with the policy and sends the
hard copies of the Notices thru courier services,
mall and messengers at least 30 days before the
Stockholders’ meeting.

Definitive Informatien Statements and Management Report

Number of Stockholders antitied to recelve
Definive information Statements and
‘Management Re Owher Materials

Date of Agtual Bistrivetion of Definltive
information Statement and Menagement Repert
and Other Matenlale bold by market
participants/certain beneficlal owners

1,594

Not applicable. There are no market
participants/certaln beneficial owners

Date of Actual Disteibution of Definktive
nfarmation Stetement mvd Managemant Report
and Other Matertals held by stockholders
Siate whether CD format or hard coples were
distributed

August 19, 2019

Distribution Is thru email, webslte and hard
copies.

¥ yes, indicate whether requesting stockholdess
were provided hard copies

Yes, requesting stockholders were provided with |
hard coples.

Does the Notice of Annual/Special Stockholders’ Meeting include the following:

election/re-election.

The auditors to be appointed or re-appointed.

An explanation of the dividend policy, If any dividend is to be declared.

Each resolution to be taken up deals with only one item.

Profiles of directors (at least age, qualification, date of first appointment,
experience, and directorships in other listed companles) nominated for

Yes

No. The names of
the nominees for
directors are
included. The
profiles of the
Nominees for the
electlon are posted
in the bulletin board. |

Yeas

' Not applicable.
Valley Golf does not
| Issue dividends

The amount payable for final dividends.

Documents required for proxy vote.

Not applicable. |
Valley Golf does not |
| issue dividends |

Yes
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Should any of the foregoing information be not disclosed, please indicate the reason thereto.

2) Treatment of Minority Stockholders

(a) state the company’s policles with respect to the treatment of minority stockholders.

Policies

implammentation

minority stockholders.

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have | Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have

minority stockholders,

(b} Do minority stockholders have a right to nominate candidates for board of directors?

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not have minority stockholders.

K. INVESTORS RELATIONS PROGRAM

1) Discuss the company’s external and internal communications policies and how frequently they are reviewed.
Disclose who reviews and approves major company announcements. Identify the committee with this
responsibillty, If It has been assigned to a committee.

The communication policies are reviewed by Management and the Board of Directors. Major company
announcements are approved by the Board of Directors.

2} Describe the company’s investor relations program Including its communicatlons strategy to promote effective
communicatlon with its stockholders, other stakeholders and the public In general. Disclose the contact details
{e.g. telephane, fax and emall) of the officer responsible for Investor relations.

1) Objectives
(2] Principles

Detalls

'_ To facilitate the most efficient m;t_le of communicé:ﬂ:m

Transparency and Services to Members

{3) Modes of Communications

_' Website, circulars, announcements and posters

(4) \Investors Relations Officer

The Membershlp Head Ms, Zarina Manzano and Membership
Supervisor Mary Ann Veraque handles investor relations. Email

at membership@valleygolf.com.ph and tel. no 86584901 up to

|03

3) What are the company’s rules and procedures governing the acquisition of corporate control in the capital
markets, and extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets?

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not engage In acquisition of corporate control in the capital markets, and has no
extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets.

Name of the independent party the board of directors of the company appointed to evaluate the fairness of the

transaction price.

Not applicable. Valley Golf does not engage in acquisition of corporate control in the capital markets, and has no
extraordinary transactions such as mergers, and sales of substantial portions of corporate assets.
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L. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY INITIATIVES

Discuss any initiative undertaken or proposed to be undertaken by the company.

injtiative [Pemetictalyy
Not applicable there are no proposals. - | Not applicable there are no proposals.

M. BOARD, DIRECTOR, COMMITTEE AND CEO APPRAISAL

Disclose the process followed and criteria used in assessing the annual performance of the board and its
committees, individual director, and the CEOQ/President.

Frocess Crizerla

a) Knowledge of the business:
Does this director have an
adequate understanding of
the company’s strategies,
industries, markets,
competitors, financials,
operating Issues, regulatory
concerns, technology and
general trends?

b) Initiative: Whenever
appropriate, does this
director take the inltlative
to obtain relevant
informatlon on boardroom
issues? When absent from
meetings, do they make
sure they are brought up-
to-date on discussions they
have missed? Do they
Initiate contact with the
board chair or committee
chairs when appropriate?

¢} Preparation: Do directors
come fully prepared to
meetings having read
advance materials and
completed pre-meeting
assignments? Do  they
spend an  appropriate
amount of time learning
about company issues to
make informed decisions?

d) Time: Do directors attend a
sufficient number of board
and assigned committee
meetings for consultation |

President’s Report, Treasurer's
Board of Directors Report and Audited Financial
Reports to the Stockholders.
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Board Committees

Ie)

f)

or speclal situations?
Judgment and candor: Is a
director able to speak his
mind constructively even if
his views differ from others
at a meeting? Is he an
effective contributor to
discussions? Does he offer
innovative  ideas  and
solutions?

Integrity: Is the director
able to keep the
informatlon he receives
confidentlal? Does he

demonstrate obJectlve, fair
and ethical behaviour?

Committee Reports to the
Stockholders

a)

b)

c)

d)

Knowledge of the business:
Does this commlttee
member have an adequate
understanding of the
company’s strategies,
industries, markets,
competitors, financials,
operating Issues, regulatory
concerns, technology and
general trends?

inltiative: Whenever

appropriate, does this
committee member take
the inltiative to obtain
relevant Information on
committee issues? When
absent from meetings, do
they make sure they are
brought up-to-date on
discussions they have
missed? Do they initiate
contact with the board
chair or committee chairs
when appropriate?

Preparation: Do committee
members come  fully
prepared to  meetings
having read advance
materlals and completed
pre-meeting assignments?
Do they spend an
appropriate amount of
time learning about
company Issues to make
Informed decislons?

Time: Do commlittee
members attend a
sufficient number  of
committee meetings for
consultation or special |
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Individual Directors

Committee Reports
Stockholders

to the

g)

s

b)

c)

d)

e)

situations?

Judgment and candor: Is a
committee member able to
speak his mind
constructively even if his
views differ from others at
a meeting? Is he an
effective contributor to
discusslons? Does he offer
Innovative Ideas and
solutions?

Integrity: Is the committee
member able to keep the
information he receives

confidential? Does he |

demonstrate objective, falr
and ethical behaviour?

Knowledge of the business:
Does this director have an
adequate understanding of
the company’s strategles,
industries, markets,
competitors, financials,
operating issues, regulatory
concerns, technology and
general trends?

Initiative: Whenever

appropriate, does this |

director take the initiative

to obtaln relevant |

information on boardroom
issues? When absent from
meetings, do they make
sure they are brought up-
to-tlate on discussions they
have missed? Do they
initiate contact with the
board chair or committee
chairs when appropriate?
Preparation: Do directors
come fully prepared to
meetings having read
advance materials and
completed pre-meeting
assignments? Do  they
spend an appropriate
amount of time learning
about company issues to
make informed decisions?
Time: Do directors attend a
sufficient number of board
and assigned committee
meetings for consultation
or special situations?
Judgment and candor: Is a
director able to speak his
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mind constructively even if
his views differ from others
at a meeting? Is he an
effective contributor to
discussions? Does he offer
innovative ideas and
solutions?

Integrity: Is the director
able to keep  the
Information he receives
confidential? Does he
demonstrate objective, fair
and ethical behaviour?

CEQ/President

President's
Stockholders.

Report

to

the

a)

b)

c

d)

e)

Knowledge of the business: |

Does this CEQ/President
have an adequate
understanding of the

company's strategles,
industries, markets,
competitors, financials,

operating [ssues, regulatory
concerns, technology and
general trends?

Initiative: Whenever
appropriate, does this
CEO/President take the
initiative to obtain relevant
Informatlon on boardroom
issues? When absent from
meetings, do they make
sure they are brought up-
to-date on discussions they
have missed? Do they
initiate contact with the
board chair or committee
chairs when appropriate?
Preparation; Does the
CEQ/President come fully
prepared to meetings
having read advance
materials and completed
pre-meeting assignments?
Do they spend an
appropriate amount of
time learning about
company issues to make
informed decisions?

Time: Does the
CEO/President attend a
sufficient number of board
and assigned committee
meetings for consultation
or speclal situations?
Judgment and candor: Is
the CEQ/President able to
speak his mind
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=

constructively even if his
views differ from others at
a meeting? Is he an
effective contributor to
discussions? Does he offer
innovative ideas and
solutions?

f)  Integrity: Is the
CEO/President able to keep
the information he receives
confidentlal? Does he
demonstrate objectlve, fair
and ethical behaviour?

N. INTERNAL BREACHES AND SANCTIONS

Discuss the internal policies on sanctions imposed for any violation or breach of the corporate governance manual

involving directors, officers, management and employees

Viokstions

To strictly observe and implement the provisions of
the manual of corporate governance, the following
penaltles shall be imposed, after notice and hearing,
on the company’s directors, officers, staff in case of
violation of any of the provision of this Manual:

a. In case of first violation, the subject person
shall be reprimanded.

b. Suspension from office shall be Imposed In case
of second wviolation. The duration of the
suspension shall depend on the gravity of the
violation.

¢. For third violatlon, the maximum penalty of
removal from office shall be Imposed.

The commission of a third violation of this
manual by any member of the board of Valley
Golf & Country Club, Inc. shall be a sufficlent
cause for removal from directorship.

The Compliance Officer shall be responsible for
determining violatlon/s through notice and hearing
and shall recommend to the Chairman of the Board
the imposable penalty for such violation, for further
review and approval of the Board.

81



Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and Exchange Commission, this Annual Corporate Governance Report is
signed on behalf of the registrant by the undersigned, thersunto duly authorized, in the Clty of

on , 20
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Independent Director Inderiendent Director

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 20___ affiant(s) exhibiting to me
their , as follows:
NAME/NO. TIN #
WILFREDO G. MANAHAN 109-940-874
CARLO ). CARPIO 152-516-875
ALBERT QUE 172-881-872
REGINALD BENJAMIN V. SAN PEDRO 235-166-433 /
MARCUS ANTONIUS T. ANDAYA 117-688-980 A
CLIFF M. FRIEDMAN 205-657-276 /}.,c' —
f,r'“ NOTARY PUBLIC
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